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2017(3) 6,085 325,000
L
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R,
200669 7.286 395,000
E 1984 6,085 0 106,542 325,000
1984(7) 6,317 0 130,333 337,500
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L
2008(8)
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3) 2018 10 31
11,917 11,427 72,684 10,593
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(@
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Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (The) 13,243,989
JPMorgan Chase & Co. 4,548,663
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) N (644,696,103) (38.71)
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( )2019
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c77)

Federal National Mortgage
Association Pass-Through
Certificates, TBA

2049/3/1

.500

128,000,000

128,520,000

128,520,000

.12

Federal National Mortgage
Association Pass-Through
Certificates, TBA

2049/2/1

.500

120,000,000

120,406,211

120,628,128

.24

Federal National Mortgage
Association Pass-Through
Certificates, TBA

2049/2/1

.000

98,000,000

100,135,273

100,342,808

.02

Government National Mortgage
Association Pass-Through
Certificates, TBA

2049/2/1

.000

31,000,000

31,697,500

31,896,092

.92

Government National Mortgage
Association Pass-Through
Certificates, TBA

2049/2/1

.500

28,000,000

28,203,438

28,352,187

.70

Government National Mortgage
Association Pass-Through
Certificates, TBA

2049/2/1

.500

18,000,000

18,587,813

18,687,656

.12

Federal National Mortgage
Association Connecticut Avenue
Securities FRB Ser. 16-C03,
Class 1M2, (1 Month US LIBOR +
5.30%)

2028/10/25

.810

14,843,000

15,251,013

17,287,762

.04

Federal National Mortgage
Association Connecticut Avenue
Securities FRB Ser. 16-C03,
Class 2M2, (1 Month US LIBOR +
5.90%)

2028/10/25

.410

14,237,524

14,254,064

16,083,178

.97

Government National Mortgage
Association Pass-Through
Certificates

2046/7/20

.500

14,716,568

14,506,167

14,976,159

.90

10

Federal National Mortgage
Association Pass-Through
Certificates

2049/2/1

.500

13,000,000

13,461,094

13,512,890

.81

11

Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation Structured Agency
Credit Risk Debt FRN Ser. 16-
HQA1, Class M3, (1 Month US
LIBOR + 6.35%)

2028/9/25

.860

10,997,870

11,792,788

13,188,765

.79

12

Federal National Mortgage
Association Pass-Through
Certificates

2057/9/1

-500

13,026,764

12,926,011

13,118,876

.79

13

Government National Mortgage
Association Pass-Through
Certificates

2048/5/20

.000

11,916,331

12,494,459

12,520,026

.75

14

Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.
(The) sr. unsec. FRB

2029/5/1

.223

12,305,000

12,305,000

12,488,252

.75

15

Bellemeade RE, Ltd. 144A FRB
Ser. 17-1, Class M2, (1 Month
US LIBOR + 3.35%)

2027/10/25

.860

11,470,000

11,470,000

11,741,144

.70

16

Station Place Securitization
Trust 144A FRB Ser. 18-1,
Class A, (1 Month US LIBOR +
0.90%)

2019/4/24

.379

11,361,000

11,361,000

11,369,532

.68

17

Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation Ser. 315, PO

2043/9/15

.000

13,071,675

10,185,694

10,528,477

.63

18

Cigna Corp. 144A sr. unsub.
Notes

2023/7/15

.750

9,049,000

9,037,905

9,185,185

.55

19

Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation Pass-Through
Certificates

2045/9/1

.000

8,802,085

9,523,788

9,098,241

.55
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20

Station Place Securitization
Trust 144A FRB Ser. 18-3,
Class A, (1 Month US LIBOR +
0.70%)

2019/7/24

.179

8,943,000

8,943,000

8,949,318

.54

21

BCAP, LLC Trust 144A FRB Ser.
15-RR5, Class 2A2

2046/1/26

.227

8,733,000

7,685,040

8,521,625

.51

22

Federal National Mortgage
Association Pass-Through
Certificates

2057/1/1

.000

8,226,125

8,389,362

8,492,580

.51

23

WaMu Mortgage Pass-Through
Certificates Trust FRB Ser.
05-AR13, Class AlC4, (1 Month
US LIBOR + 0.43%)

2045/10/25

.940

8,814,256

5,423,592

8,370,864

.50

24

Bank of America Corp. unsec.
sub. notes Ser. L

2027/11/25

.183

8,000,000

7,672,240

8,052,492

.48

25

Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation Structured Agency
Credit Risk Debt FRN Ser. 16-
HQA2, Class M3, (1 Month US
LIBOR + 5.15%)

2028/11/25

.660

6,718,200

7,536,728

7,847,243

47

26

Government National Mortgage
Association Pass-Through
Certificates

2048/11/20

.500

7,300,846

7,517,590

7,616,040

.46

27

Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation Structured Agency
Credit Risk Debt FRN Ser. 15-
DN1, Class M3, (1 Month US
LIBOR + 4.15%)

2025/1/25

.660

6,261,298

6,378,901

6,702,062

.40

28

Federal National Mortgage
Association Pass-Through
Certificates

2057/1/1

.500

6,638,369

6,621,773

6,683,234

.40

29

Credit Suisse Commercial
Mortgage Trust 144A FRB Ser.
08-C1, Class AJ

2041/2/15

.803

9,821,289

10,226,563

6,645,438

.40

30

Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation Structured Agency
Credit Risk Debt FRN Ser. 16-
HQA3, Class M3, (1 Month US
LIBOR + 3.85%)

2029/3/25

.360

5,825,000

6,424,565

6,464,228

-39

) @

@
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(2019 )
Putnam Short Term Investment Fund 235,276,831
Interest in $338,488,000 joint tri-party repurchase agreement dated
1/31/19 with Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith, Inc. due 2/1/19 63,488,000
- maturity value of $63,492,532 for an effective yield of 2.570%
U.S. Treasury Bills 2019/6/13 11,724,608
U.S. Treasury Bills 2019/2/14 11,492,405
U.S. Treasury Bills 2019/4/11 6,102,257
U.S. Treasury Bills 2019/3/14 5,658,847
U.S. Treasury Bills 2019/6/20 4,178,207
U.S. Treasury Bills 2019/6/6 2,514,038
U.S. Treasury Bills 2019/2/7 2,224,158
U.S. Treasury Bills 2019/3/7 2,129,264
U.S. Treasury Bills 2019/4/18 1,363,174
U.S. Treasury Bills 2019/5/16 1,283,107
U.S. Treasury Bills 2019/8/15 908,952
U.S. Treasury Bills 2019/2/21 657,144
U.S. Treasury Bills 2019/3/21 629,023

(2019 )

(2019 )
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(©)
( )
2019
15
(2009 10 194,199 21,160 .50 708
(20%8 10 222,916 24,289 .74 734
(zoﬂ 10 170,347 18,561 .71 731
(20%2 10 151,113 16,465 .12 776
(2012 10 128,376 13,988 .05 768
(20?2 10 121,065 13,191 .10 774
(20% 10 103,524 11,280 .77 738
(20%2 10 88,869 9,683 72 732
(20?3 10 79,485 8,661 .74 734
24
(2018 10 72,688 7,920 .50 708
2018 76,936 8,383 .65 725
76,362 8,320 .65 725
76,344 8,318 .69 729
75,659 8,244 .67 727
75,574 8,235 .65 725
74,991 8,171 64 723
74,210 8,086 .58 717
10 72,688 7,920 .50 708
1 71,927 7,837 .49 707
12 72,259 7,873 .53 712
2019 72,790 7,931 61 720
) 1994 12 14
1994 12 14 1,005 (109,505 ) 6.50 (708 )

51/322



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

( )
15 (2008 11 2009 10 31 ) 0.456 ( 50 )
16 (2009 11 2010 10 31 ) 0.472 ( 51 )
17 (2010 11 2011 10 31 ) 0.335 ( 37 )
18 (2011 11 2012 10 31 ) 0.199 ( 22 )
19 (2012 11 2013 10 31 ) 0.220 ( 24 )
20 (2013 11 2014 10 31 ) 0.317 ( 35 )
21 (2014 11 2015 10 31 ) 0.210 ( 23 )
22 (2015 11 2016 10 31 ) 0.196 ( 21 )
23 (2016 11 2017 10 31 ) 0.228 ( 25 )
24 (2017 11 2018 10 31 ) 0.228 ( 25 )
2017 2019

2017 0.019 2.070 2017/ /20 6.67 127

0.019 2.070 2017/ /18 6.76 737

0.019 2.070 2017/ /18 6.73 733

0.019 2.070 2017/ /19 6.76 737

0.019 2.070 2017/ /18 6.75 735

0.019 2.070 2017/ /18 6.73 733

0.019 2.070 2017/ /18 6.73 733

10 0.019 2.070 2017/10/18 6.75 735

11 0.019 2.070 2017/11/17 6.74 734

12 0.019 2.070 2017/12/18 6.76 737

2018 0.019 2.070 2018/ /18 6.73 733

0.019 2.070 2018/ /16 6.66 726

0.019 2.070 2018/ /19 6.66 726

0.019 2.070 2018/ /18 6.68 728

0.019 2.070 2018/ /18 6.61 720

0.019 2.070 2018/ /18 6.66 726

0.019 2.070 2018/ /18 6.68 728

0.019 2.070 2018/ /20 6.68 728

0.019 2.070 2018/ /18 6.59 718

10 0.019 2.070 2018/10/18 6.53 712

11 0.019 2.070 2018/11/16 6.50 708

12 0.019 2.070 2018/12/18 6.54 713

2019 0.019 2.070 2019/ /17 6.56 715

0.019 2.070 2019/ /15 6.61 720
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)
(D)
15 33.82
16 11.28
17 4.66
18 9.27
19 2.15
20 5.31
21 1.74
22 2.21
23 3.77
24 0.20
()
¢y 100 NAV x A L
NAV
A NAV
NAV NAV
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*

15
(11/1/2008
10/31/2009)

2,328,323

1,549,200

4,240,822

3,808,200

29,858,909

28,194,200

16
(11/1/2009
10/31/2010)

9,555,118

8,610,100

6,321,085

5,994,200

33,092,942

30,810,100

17
(11/1/2010
10/31/2011)

4,348,925

3,686,200

12,052,732

11,273,900

25,389,135

23,222,400

18
(117172011
10/31/2012)

1,189,022

669,600

5,356,881

4,740,900

21,221,276

19,151,100

19
(11/1/2012
10/31/2013)

728,296

466,600

3,731,396

3,101,200

18,218,176

16,516,500

20
(11/1/2013
10/31/2014)

1,509,858

425,700

2,673,607

2,328,800

17,054,427

14,613,400

21
(117172014
10/31/2015)

1,152,641

66,400

2,924,955

2,420,800

15,282,113

12,259,000

22
(11/1/2015
10/31/2016)

558,582

103,200

2,618,370

1,473,100

13,222,325

10,889,100

23
(11/1/2016
10/31/2017)

221,407

10,900

1,653,408

726,100

11,790,324

10,173,900

24
(117172017
10/31/2018)

238,820

27,200

842,019

468,200

11,187,125

9,732,900
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50,000 3.36
50,000 100,000 2.30
100,000 250,000 1.27
250,000 500,000 1.01
500,000 ok
500,000
)
)
)
(
)
(
)
(b) 2007 12 31

2007 12 31
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13

13

IRA( ) (

529

(putnam.com/individual) Mutual Funds - Pricing and performance

- About fund costs

0.40
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(1) 2018 10 31

2018 10 31
1,962,591,778 1,906,996,255 207,786,312
235,817,220 235,817,220 25,694,644
13,801,119 1,503,770
9,640,652 1,050,445
788,919 85,961
303,532,389 33,072,889
11,333,960 1,234,948
3,670,889 399,980
7,164,018 780,501
6,746,836 735,135
62,354 6,794
2,499,554,611 272,351,470
5,048 550
9,766,189 1,064,124
537,099,546 58,522,367
2,618,021 285,260
517,545 56,392
86,118 9,383
202,726 22,089
475,005 51,757
2,874 313
264,325 28,801
1,397,434 152,264
9,363,685 1,020,267
4,565,115 497,415
22,649,596 2,467,900
7,962,609 867,606
16,254 062 22,169,025 2,415,537
311,768,516 311,250,458 33,913,850
314,808 34,301
930,710,127 101,410,175
1,568,844,484 170,941,295
) 1,683,427,106 183,426,217
(114,582,622) (12,484,922)
_ 1,568,844,484 170,941,295

771322




599,510,166

6.69

12,173,362

103,790,592

72,688,299

6.50

12,382,398

5,148,572

88,269,120

674,881,975

**

2018 10 31

+ 89,663,800

96.00 100

+ 1,841,977

+ 15,666,419

+ 11,187,125

96.75 100 t

+ 1,869,939

+ 761,051

+ 12,982,021

+ 99,261,269

10
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6.69

6.97

6.61

6.63

6.50
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6.77
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759

720

722

708
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721

738
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2018 10 31
3,672,274 74,596,272 8,128,010
74,596,272 8,128,010
5,991,610 652,846
2,464,001 268,487
174,651 19,030
68,889 7,506
3,408,407 371,380
43,235 4711
687,004 74,856
12,837,887 1,398,816
(8,314) (906)
12,829,573 1,397,910
61,766,699 6,730,100
(100,765,897) (10,979,452)
(210) (23)
(7,658,457) (834,465)
36,675,644 3,996,178
69,675,139 7,591,803
(2,073,781) (225,959)
(35,510,223) (3,869,194)
(4,667,200) (508,539)
6,740,790 734,476
(26,491,156) (2,886,476)
(59,927,798) (6,529,733)
(62,001,579) (6,755,692)

(234,880) (25,593)
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2018 10 31 2017 10 31
61,766,699 6,730,100 60,963,885 6,642,625
(2,073,781) (225,959) (26,291,741) (2,864,748)
(59,927,798) (6,529,733) 27,868,884 3,036,594

(234,880) (25,593) 62,541,028 6,814,470
(22,487,333) (2,450,220) (24,946,481) (2,718,169)
(454,876) (49,563) (607,066) (66,146)
(3,298,180) (359,370) (4,182,614) (455,738)
(2,616,565) (285,101) (2,814,911) (306,713)
(476,861) (51,959) (670,673) (73,077)
(142,188) (15,493) (154,890) (16,877)
(3,044,731) (331,754) (2,721,115) (296,493)
(20,984,615) (2,286,484) (21,292,845) (2,320,068)
150,670 16,417
57,191,926 6,231,632 (331,228,696) (36,090,679)
3,602,367 392,514 (326,078,263) (35,529,488)
1,565,242,117 170,548,781 1,891,320,380 206,078,269
1,568,844,484 170,941,295 1,565,242,117 170,548,781
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a
C ) () (@)
2018 10 31 6.93 0.27 (0.27) e 024)  (0.24) f
2017 10 31 6.89 0.25 0.03 0.28 024y  (0.2)
2016 10 31 6.94 0.24 (0.08) 0.16 021)  (0.21)
2015 10 31 7.26 0.18 (0.28) (0.10) ©02) (022
2014 10 31 7.20 0.27 0.12 0.39 033 (033
2018 10 31 6.85 0.22 (0.27) (0.05) 019  (0.19) f
2017 10 31 6.82 0.20 0.02 0.22 019)  (0.19)
2016 10 31 6.87 018 (0.07) 011 016)  (0.16)
2015 10 31 7.19 013 (0.28) (0.15) ©017)  (0.17)
2014 10 31 713 0.21 013 0.34 028  (0.29)
2018 10 31 6.87 0.22 (0.27) (0.05) 019  (0.19) f
2017 10 31 6.84 0.20 0.02 0.22 019  (0.19)
2016 10 31 6.8 0.18 (0.06) 012 016)  (0.16)
2015 10 31 7.21 013 (0.29) (0.16) ©017)  (017)
2014 10 31 7.15 0.21 013 0.34 ©028)  (0.28)
2018 10 31 6.74 0.25 (0.26) (0.01) 023 (029 f
2017 10 31 6.72 0.23 0.02 0.25 029  (0.29)
2016 10 31 6.77 0.21 (0.06) 0.15 (0200  (0.20)
2015 10 31 7.10 0.16 (0.28) (0.12) ©021)  (021)
2014 10 31 7.05 0.24 013 0.37 032  (0.32)
2018 10 31 6.6 0.26 (0.27) (0.01) 023 (029 f
2017 10 31 6.84 0.23 0.02 0.25 023  (0.29)
2016 10 31 6.8 0.22 (0.07) 015 019  (0.19)
2015 10 31 721 0.16 (0.28) (0.12) ©021)  (0.21)
2014 10 31 7.16 0.25 012 0.37 032  (032)
2018 10 31 7.01 0.30 (0.28) 0.02 026)  (0.26) f
2017 10 31 6.97 0.269 0.04 0.30 026)  (0.26)
2016 10 31 7.02 0.26 (0.08) 018 023  (0.29)
2015 10 31 7.35 0.20 (0.28) (0.08) 025  (0.25)
2014 10 31 7.29 0.27 0.15 0.42 036)  (0.36)
2018 10 31 7.04 0.30 (0.28) 0.02 026)  (0.26) f
2017 10 31 7.00 0.28 0.02 0.30 026)  (0.26)
2016 10 31 7.04 0.27 (0.08) 0.19 023 (029
2015 10 31 7.36 0.20 (0.27) (0.07) 025  (0.25)
2014 10 31 7.29 0.29 0.14 043 (036)  (0.36)
2018 10 31 7.03 0.30 (0.28) 0.02 025  (0.25) f
2017 10 31 6.99 0.27 0.02 0.29 025 (0.5
2016 10 31 7.03 0.26 (0.08) 018 ©02) (0.2
2015 10 31 7.36 0.20 (0.29) (0.09) 024)  (0.24)
2014 10 31 7.29 0.29 013 0.42 035  (0.35)
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b [ ) d

) ( ) ) (@D) )
2018 10 31 6.69 (0.02) 599,510 0.87 401 825
2017 10 31 6.93 416 668,024 0.88 3.67 1,055
2016 10 31 6.89 233 829,643 0.87N 3450 981
2015 10 31 6.94 (1.37) 1,087,633 0.85 252 793
2014 10 31 7.26 5.57 1,004,198 0.85 3.67 505
2018 10 31 6.61 (0.74) 12,173 1.62 3.24 825
2017 10 31 6.85 3.30 19,402 163 202 1,055
2016 10 31 6.82 1.59 24,859 162N 2.70h 981
2015 10 31 6.87 (2.11) 30,089 1.60 1.77 793
2014 10 31 7.19 4.79 32,142 1.60 294 505
2018 10 31 6.63 (0.75) 103,791 1.62 3.24 825
2017 10 31 6.87 3.28 131,467 163 202 1,055
2016 10 31 6.84 174 180,492 1620 270N 981
2015 10 31 6.88 (2.24) 221,882 1.60 176 793
2014 10 31 7.21 4.84 181,142 1.60 296 505
2018 10 31 6.50 (0.20) 72,688 112 375 825
2017 10 31 6.74 377 79,485 113 3.42 1,055
2016 10 31 6.72 221 88,869 1120 3.20N 981
2015 10 31 6.77 (1.74) 103,524 1.10 226 793
2014 10 31 7.10 5.31 121,065 1.10 343 505
2018 10 31 6.62 (0.22) 12,382 112 376 825
2017 10 31 6.86 3.66 15,675 113 343 1,055
2016 10 31 6.84 2.29 25,266 1120 321h 981
2015 10 31 6.88 (1.73) 29,237 1.10 225 793
2014 10 31 7.21 5.27 21,255 1.10 3.42 505
2018 10 31 6.77 0.33 5,149 058 429 825
2017 10 31 7.01 4.45 3510 0.58 3.819 1,055
2016 10 31 6.97 2.66 5,069 057N 376N 981
2015 10 31 7.02 (1.16) 4,463 0.56 277 793
2014 10 31 7.35 5.83 2,683 0.58 371 505
2018 10 31 6.80 0.33 88,269 051 437 825
2017 10 31 7.04 4.45 73,329 051 4.05 1,055
2016 10 31 7.00 2.80 76,616 050" 3.82N 981
2015 10 31 7.04 (1.02) 123,635 0.49 282 793
2014 10 31 7.36 5.98 48755 051 3.97 505
2018 10 31 6.80 0.32 674,882 0.62 4.26 825
2017 10 31 7.03 4.30 574,349 0.63 3.02 1,055
2016 10 31 6.99 268 660,506 0.62N 371h 981
2015 10 31 7.03 (1.27) 779,830 0.60 276 793
2014 10 31 7.36 5.90 461,835 0.60 3.93 505
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2017 10 31

0.01

2017 11 20

0.01
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23,620,342 23,286,916

317.5
235.5

1.25
1.30
0.04
0.04
0.21
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1986

740

2018 10 31

28,617,407

9,953,150
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12,144,182

12,294,852

32,927,160
(125,130,735)

2017 10

31

(92,203,575)
16,191,509

(38,570,557)
1,876,108,390

16,374,064
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1,077,191 4,421
27,270 40,161
198,362 964,433
128,233 2,464,091

24,020

8,314
1,085
1995
2004
2005 12 31
50 2006 12 31
2003
1940 12
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0.35 0.25 1,607,867
1.00 1.00 162,587
1.00 1.00 1,183,444
1.00 0.50 382,795
1.00 0.50 71,714
3,408,407
49,355 578
7,465 3,328
1.00
293
14,456,259,536 14,928,130,509
426,687
14,456,259,536 14,928,557,196
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2018 10 31 2017 10 31

14,365,662 98,591,278 11,937,181 82,101,703
2,899,891 19,802,116 3,202,893 21,954,903
17,265,553 118,393,394 15,140,074 104,056,606

(24,060,043)

(164,968, 690)

(39,037,327)

(267,532,889)

(6,794,490)

(46,575,296)

(23,897,253)

(163,476,283)

2018 10 31 2017 10 31
42,295 287,829 161,340 1,095,040
56,670 382,844 76,098 516,308
98,965 670,673 237,438 1,611,348

(1,089,326)

(7,375,966)

(1,048,641)

(7,121,027)

(990, 361) (6,705,293) (811,203) (5,509,679)

2018 10 31 2017 10 31

2,126,695 14,448,166 2,030,543 13,835,244
408,506 2,765,892 506,429 3,442,806

2,535,201 17,214,058 2,536,972 17,278,050

(6,017,433)

(40,884, 460)

(9,788,422)

(66,604,219)

(3,482,232)

(23,670,402)

(7,251,450)

(49,326,169)

2018 10 31 2017 10 31
188,801 1,259,521 163,274 1,094,644
50,019 332,130 58,133 388,227
238,820 1,591,651 221,407 1,482,871
(842,019) (5,610,293) (1,653,408) (11,079,153)
(603,199) (4,018,642) (1,432,001) (9,596,282)
2018 10 31 2017 10 31
601,783 4,082,774 644,367 4,386,003
55,885 378,089 81,700 555,126
657,668 4,460,863 726,067 4,941,129

(1,071,477)

(7,262,980)

(2,138,164)

(14,557,577)

(413,809)

(2,802,117)

(1,412,097)

(9,616,448)
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2018 10 31 2017 10 31
293,828 2,005,669 154,014 1,073,749
20,602 142,188 22,361 154,890
314,430 2,147,857 176,375 1,228,639
(54,295) (376,207) (402,215) (2,797, 260)
260,135 1,771,650 (225,840) (1,568,621)

2018 10 31 2017 10 31

5,685,279 39,580,075 2,570,365 17,907,590
439,057 3,044,727 390,605 2,721,115

6,124,336 42,624,802 2,960,970 20,628,705

(3,563,580)

(24,772,932)

(3,487,648)

(24,310,473)

2,560,756 17,851,870 (526,678) (3,681,768)
2018 10 31 2017 10 31

50,619,296 351,421,494 32,506,895 226,547,340
2,430,720 16,857,513 2,523,080 17,557,650
53,050,016 368,279,007 35,029,975 244,104,990

(35,446, 288)

(246,938,851)

(47,813,719)

(332,558,436)

17,603,728 121,340,156 (12,783,744) (88,453,446)
2018 10 31

2017 10 31
20,657,092 | 730,736,636 | 515,576,508 3,672,274 235,817,220
20,657,092 | 730,736,636 | 515,576,508 3,672,274 235,817,220
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478,700,000

9,206,800,000

865,900,000

8,110,900,000

3,000

4,741,900,000

161,900,000

40,400,000

329,400,000

102,100,000

815

8,476,587

26,686,622*

33,981,676*

47,285,583*

42,458,263

73,972,205
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815
4,008,391 4,008,391
(7.,487,622) (7,658,457) 32,667,253 17,521,174
(7,487,622) (7,658,457) 36,675,644 21,529,565
) )
815
6,460,759 6,460,759
(14,230,157) (4,667,209) 280,031 (18,617,335)
(14,230,157) (4,667,209) 6,740,790 (12,156,576)
2017 2017-08
310-20
2018 12 15
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Merrill
Barclays - ) ) Lynch, Morgan
Bank of [Barclays Canital Inc. | Citibank Citigroup Credit Goldman | JPMorgan | JPMorgan | Merrill  |Pierce| Stanley &
America | Bank (?:ll)earin ' NA ’ Global Suisse Sachs |Chase Bank| Securities | Lynch [Fenner Co.
N.A. PLC broker)g o Markets, Inc.|International|l nternational N.A. LLC |Internationall & [International
Smith, PLC
Inc.
6,190,860 6,190,860
3,365 11,511 54,856 42,779 1,228 4,442 118,181
514,591 |2,774,194 |2,087,400 2,597,755 | 403,941 98,706 | 8,476,587
5,143,100 5,143,100
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1,233,129 878,817 495,441 | 822,164 241,338 | 3,670,889
58,241 5,202,011 2,897,408 |2,237,858 3,719,939 14,115,457
2,028,803 2,028,803

35,996,000 35,996,000

1,294,735 11,511 |11,333,960 6,080,828 [36,510,591 |2,829,050 5,523,028 [5,090,053 |2,602,197 | 403,941 4,059,983 75,739,877

103/322



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
OOoOooooooooooodoooodd

Bardlays Merrill Morgan
Bank of . - Citigroup e Goldman | JPMorgan | JPMorgan Merrill Lynch, Stanley &
America Biirlf |§>le C(agggn an' C':\'lbznk’ Global ?r:te; ﬁaﬂrﬁ Sachs | Chase Bank | Securities Lynch Pierce, Co.
N.A. broker)g o Markets, Inc. | nternational N.A. LLC International] Fenner & |International
Smith, Inc. PLC
4,257,575 4,25
108,341 1,625 42,811 40,036 10,339 26,538 22
13,012 1
334,898 1,356,628 | 6,231,251 |2,103,306 9,200,453 788,041 1,654,358 | 21,66
5,093,098 5,09
1,397,434 1,39
2,536,386 1,179,521 729,401 | 3,277,697 239,604 | 7,96
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209,445 | 1,130,045 6,688,866 2,836,979 | 5,606,198 2,629,762 | 19,10

3,067,730 3,06

3,080,729 | 1,238,386 [9,363,685 | 7,870,012 | 1,356,628 | 6,274,062 [5,709,722 [11,961,964 | 9,226,991 | 788,041 | 1,397,434 4,523,724 | 62,79

(1,785,994)|(1,226,875)|1,970,275 [(1,789,184)[35,153,963 [(3,445,012)| (186,694)|(6,871,911)|(6,624,794)| (384,100)|(1,397,434)| (463,741)| 12,94
(1,785,994)|(1,016,785), (1,378,227)[35,153,963 |(3,445,012)| (186,694)|(6,049,277)(6,624,794)| (375,671) (463,741)

(210,090)L,970,275 | (410,957) (822,634), (8,429)|(1,397,434)
36,717,415 36,71
(1,903,402)|(1,016,785), (1,378,227)| (837,169)|(3,568,176)| (594,270)|(6,049,277)|(7,411,517)| (375,671)| (376,962)| (586,526)|(24,09
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4,216,687 23,960,768
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Government National Mortgage Association Pass-Through Certificates

(14.9%)

5.00%, with due dates from 6/15/40 to 6/20/48 $24,368,669 $25,387,918
4.70%, with due dates from 6/20/65 to 8/20/67 1,198,716 1,260,685
4.673%, 5/20/65 264,663 276,237
4.667%, 9/20/65 274,479 286,576
4.646%, 6/20/65 139,171 145,167
4.627%, 6/20/67 877,445 920,220
4.621%, 6/20/65 40,666 42,292
4.589%, 5/20/65 48,894 51,034
4.519%, 8/20/65 69,206 71,792
4.507%, 3/20/67 1,068,695 1,111,443
4.50%, 6/20/65 40,961 42,629
4.50%, TBA, 12/1/48 31,000,000 31,747,150
4.50%, TBA, 11/1/48 31,000,000 31,794,375
4.50%, with due dates from 5/20/44 to 5/20/48 7,427,063 7,708,757
4.499%, 5/20/65 1,020,781 1,058,687
4.485%, 5/20/65 70,811 73,332
4.404%, 6/20/65 25,740 26,718
4.32%, 5/20/67 326,662 336,870
4.00%, TBA, 11/1/48 34,000,000 34,209,845
4.00%, with due dates from 9/20/40 to 5/20/48 11,985,275 12,106,714
3.50%, TBA, 11/1/48 43,000,000 42,227,342
3.50%, with due dates from 11/15/42 to 1/20/48 36,612,857 36,041,166
3.00%, TBA, 11/1/48 5,000,000 4,778,516
3.00%, with due dates from 3/20/43 to 10/20/46 2,295,322 2,198,138

233,903,603

(33.8%)
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation Pass-Through Certificates
5.00%, 3/1/41 462,223 488,536
4.50%, with due dates from 7/1/44 to 3/1/45 1,397,258 1,442,049
4.00%, with due dates from 12/1/44 to 9/1/45 9,992,725 10,039,757
3.50%, with due dates from 4/1/42 to 11/1/47 18,073,204 17,650,028
3.00%, 10/1/46 3,341,186 3,167,977
2.50%, 4/1/43 715,646 657,190
Federal National Mortgage Association Pass-Through Certificates

6.00%, TBA, 11/1/48 2,000,000 2,151,719
6.00%, with due dates from 2/1/36 to 5/1/41 3,512,770 3,856,604
5.50%, with due dates from 1/1/33 to 2/1/35 595,395 641,166
5.00%, with due dates from 3/1/40 to 1/1/44 1,832,618 1,937,235
4.50%, TBA, 11/1/48 15,000,000 15,355,079
4.50%, with due dates from 7/1/44 to 10/1/46 6,910,367 7,114,448
4.00%, TBA, 11/1/48 30,000,000 29,997,657
4.00%, with due dates from 8/1/44 to 1/1/57 21,658,659 21,744,256
3.50%, with due dates from 5/1/56 to 9/1/57 25,705,342 24,970,256
3.50%, TBA, 12/1/48 78,000,000 75,830,625
3.50%, TBA, 11/1/48 184,000,000 179,083,740
3.50%, with due dates from 6/1/31 to 2/1/47 17,023,642 16,679,556
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(48.7%)"

Federal National Mortgage Association Pass-Through Certificates

3.00%, TBA, 11/1/48 $70,000,000  $66,199,217
3.00%, with due dates from 9/1/42 to 3/1/47 18,757,349 17,814,513
2.50%, TBA, 11/1/48 31,000,000 28,323,829
2.50%, 12/1/47 5,954,182 5,469,649
530,615,086

( $777,603,135) $764,518,689

(39.2%)"
(A7-0%)

Bellemeade Re, Ltd. 144A
FRB Ser. 17-1, Class M1, (1 Month USLIBOR + 1.70%), 3.981%,

10/25/27 (Bermuda) $3,063,668 $3,066,723
FRB Ser. 18-2A, Class M1B, (1 Month USLIBOR + 1.35%), 3.631%,
8/25/28 (Bermuda) 3,454,000 3,476,641

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation
IFB Ser. 3408, Class EK, ((-4.024 x 1 Month USLIBOR) + 25.79%),

16.621%, 4/15/37 615,739 826,934
IFB Ser. 2976, Class LC, ((-3.667 x 1 Month USLIBOR) + 24.42%),

16.062%, 5/15/35 84,763 106,453
IFB Ser. 3249, Class PS, ((-3.3 x 1 Month USLIBOR) + 22.28%),

14.753%, 12/15/36 188,775 228,025
IFB Ser. 3065, Class DC, ((-3 x 1 Month USLIBOR) + 19.86%),

13.022%, 3/15/35 441,964 534,666
IFB Ser. 2990, Class LB, ((-2.556 x 1 Month USLIBOR) + 16.95%),

11.119%, 6/15/34 312,856 345,691
Structured Agency Credit Risk Debt FRN Ser. 14-HQ3, Class M3,

(1 Month USLIBOR + 4.75%), 7.031%, 10/25/24 634,854 701,135
Structured Agency Credit Risk Debt FRN Ser. 16-DNA2, Class M3,

(1 Month USLIBOR + 4.65%), 6.931%, 10/25/28 5,830,000 6,683,291
Structured Agency Credit Risk Debt FRN Ser. 15-DN1, Class M3,

(1 Month USLIBOR + 4.15%), 6.431%, 1/25/25 6,602,166 7,073,543
Structured Agency Credit Risk Debt FRN Ser. 15-DNA2, Class M2,

(1 Month USLIBOR + 2.60%), 4.881%, 12/25/27 1,920,499 1,955,367
Ser. 4132, Class IP, 10, 4.50%, 11/15/42 4,648,730 792,618
Ser. 4122, Class Tl, 10, 4.50%, 10/15/42 2,056,553 483,934
Ser. 4018, Class DI, 10, 4.50%, 7/15/41 2,038,225 289,155
Ser. 3707, Class PI, 10, 4.50%, 7/15/25 709,055 35,717
Structured Agency Credit Risk Debt FRN Ser. 15-HQ1, Class M2,

(1 Month USLIBOR + 2.20%), 4.487%, 3/25/25 114,891 115,174
Structured Agency Credit Risk Debt FRN Ser. 16-DNA2, Class M2,

(1 Month USLIBOR + 2.20%), 4.481%, 10/25/28 551,734 556,214
Ser. 4546, Class Tl, 10, 4.00%, 12/15/45 13,785,801 3,067,341
Ser. 4500, Class GI, 10, 4.00%, 8/15/45 10,860,297 2,436,399
IFB Ser. 3852, Class NT, ((-1 x 1 Month USLIBOR) + 6.00%), 3.721%,

5/15/41 1,211,357 1,089,838
Ser. 4165, Class Al, 10, 3.50%, 2/15/43 9,959,303 1,906,310
Ser. 4182, Class GI, 10, 3.00%, 1/15/43 14,402,503 988,284
Ser. 4141, Class PI, 10, 3.00%, 12/15/42 5,530,603 617,990
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(39.2%)"

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation

Ser. 4158, Class Tl, 10, 3.00%, 12/15/42 $13,712,912 $1,348,254
Ser. 4176, Class DI, 10, 3.00%, 12/15/42 15,181,636 1,513,305
Ser. 4171, Class NI, 10, 3.00%, 6/15/42 8,717,311 851,681
Ser. 4183, Class MI, 10, 3.00%, 2/15/42 4,998,855 441,769
Ser. 4201, Class JI, 10, 3.00%, 12/15/41 14,248,091 1,195,654
Ser. 4206, Class IP, 10, 3.00%, 12/15/41 6,518,575 597,775
Ser. 4004, 10, 3.00%, 3/15/26 6,332,522 266,156
Ser. 315, PO, zero %, 9/15/43 13,434,685 10,350,940
Ser. 3835, Class FO, PO, zero %, 4/15/41 4,996,161 4,007,360
Ser. 3369, Class BO, PO, zero %, 9/15/37 10,620 8,570
Ser. 3391, PO, zero %, 4/15/37 95,657 78,191
Ser. 3300, PO, zero %, 2/15/37 130,512 106,582
Ser. 3206, Class EO, PO, zero %, 8/15/36 6,204 5,144
Ser. 3175, Class MO, PO, zero %, 6/15/36 22,542 18,124
Ser. 3210, PO, zero %, 5/15/36 19,477 17,290
Ser. 3326, Class WF, zero %, 10/15/35 " 10,749 7,266
FRB Ser. 3117, Class AF, (1 Month USLIBOR + 0.00%),

zero %, 2/15/36 14,222 10,527

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation Structured Agency
Credit risk Debt FRN Ser. 15-HQ1, Class M3,
(1 Month USLIBOR + 3.80%), 6.087%, 3/25/25 500,000 533,262

Federal National Mortgage Association
IFB Ser. 06-62, Class PS, ((-6 x 1 Month USLIBOR) + 39.90%),

26.212%, 7/25/36 305,409 480,214
IFB Ser. 06-8, Class HP, ((-3.667 x 1 Month USLIBOR) + 24.57%),

16.202%, 3/25/36 307,499 420,951
IFB Ser. 05-122, Class SE, ((-3.5 x 1 Month USLIBOR) + 23.10%),

15.115%, 11/25/35 459,291 556,156
IFB Ser. 05-75, Class GS, ((-3 x 1 Month USLIBOR) + 20.25%),

13.406%, 8/25/35 142,246 169,740
IFB Ser. 05-106, Class JC, ((-3.101 x 1 Month USLIBOR) + 20.12%),

13.05%, 12/25/35 317,474 374,113
IFB Ser. 05-83, Class QP, ((-2.6 x 1 Month USLIBOR) + 17.39%),

11.462%, 11/25/34 55,716 61,338
IFB Ser. 11-4, Class CS, ((-2 x 1 Month USLIBOR) + 12.90%),

8.337%, 5/25/40 583,190 626,745
Connecticut Avenue Securities FRB Ser. 16-C02, Class 1M2,

(1 Month USLIBOR + 6.00%), 8.281%, 9/25/28 12,770,000 14,941,374
Connecticut Avenue Securities FRB Ser. 14-C04, Class 1M2,

(1 Month USLIBOR + 4.90%), 7.181%, 11/25/24 4,833,651 5,525,186
Connecticut Avenue Securities FRB Ser. 15-C02, Class 2M2,

(1 Month USLIBOR + 4.00%), 6.281%, 5/25/25 1,192,112 1,284,250
Connecticut Avenue Securities FRB Ser. 14-C03, Class 2M2,

(1 Month USLIBOR + 2.90%), 5.181%, 7/25/24 2,665,343 2,846,480
Connecticut Avenue Securities FRB Ser. 14-C02, Class 1M2,

(1 Month USLIBOR + 2.60%), 4.881%, 5/25/24 845,000 898,195
Connecticut Avenue Securities FRB Ser. 16-C03, Class 1M1,

(1 Month USLIBOR + 2.00%), 4.281%, 10/25/28 1,563,167 1,579,224
Ser. 15-3, Class BIl, 10, 4.00%, 3/25/44 6,596,828 1,175,297
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(39.2%)"

Federal National Mortgage Association

Ser. 12-124, Class Ul, 10, 4.00%, 11/25/42 $12,050,657 $2,517,057
Ser. 12-118, Class PI, 10, 4.00%, 6/25/42 11,149,498 2,198,700
Ser. 12-62, Class El, 10, 4.00%, 4/25/41 7,466,975 1,157,002
Ser. 12-22, Class CI, 10, 4.00%, 3/25/41 6,907,368 1,099,272
Ser. 15-10, Class Al, 10, 3.50%, 8/25/43 13,670,158 2,638,466
Ser. 13-18, Class IN, 10, 3.50%, 3/25/43 4,869,655 748,538
Ser. 14-10, 10, 3.50%, 8/25/42 6,914,483 1,272,464
Ser. 12-128, Class QI, 10, 3.50%, 6/25/42 8,766,287 818,720
Ser. 12-101, Class PI, 10, 3.50%, 8/25/40 11,072,697 1,000,790
Ser. 14-20, Class 1A, 10, 3.50%, 7/25/39 8,615,800 602,727
Ser. 13-55, Class IK, 10, 3.00%, 4/25/43 4,449,838 494,119
Ser. 12-151, Class PI, 10, 3.00%, 1/25/43 6,380,463 668,609
Ser. 12-144, Class KI, 10, 3.00%, 11/25/42 9,169,199 903,221
Ser. 13-35, Class IP, 10, 3.00%, 6/25/42 4,267,488 308,125
Ser. 13-55, Class PI, 10, 3.00%, 5/25/42 6,998,720 568,226
Ser. 13-35, Class PI, 10, 3.00%, 2/25/42 12,045,730 839,551
Ser. 13-67, Class IP, 10, 3.00%, 2/25/42 9,797,601 731,744
Ser. 13-30, Class IP, 10, 3.00%, 10/25/41 3,300,226 193,426
Ser. 13-23, Class LI, 10, 3.00%, 6/25/41 4,159,719 227,133
Ser. 14-28, Class Al, 10, 3.00%, 3/25/40 13,516,375 1,228,611
FRB Ser. 01-50, Class B1, 10, 0.385%, 10/25/41 ! 345,060 1,483
FRB Ser. 05-W4, Class 1A, 10, 0.062%, 8/25/45 ! 96,161 116
Ser. 03-34, Class P1, PO, zero %, 4/25/43 137,971 114,516
Ser. 07-64, Class LO, PO, zero %, 7/25/37 18,337 15,913
Ser. 07-14, Class KO, PO, zero %, 3/25/37 104,125 82,960
Ser. 06-125, Class OX, PO, zero %, 1/25/37 13,288 10,696
Ser. 06-84, Class OT, PO, zero %, 9/25/36 10,534 8,512
Ser. 06-46, Class 0C, PO, zero %, 6/25/36 8,287 6,573
FRB Ser. 02-W6, Class 1A, 10, zero %, 6/25/42 " 524,095 81
Government National Mortgage Association

Ser. 09-79, Class IC, 10, 6.00%, 8/20/39 10,918,338 2,229,306
Ser. 18-127, Class ID, 10, 5.00%, 7/20/45 597,647 87,250
Ser. 14-76, 10, 5.00%, 5/20/44 5,685,911 1,356,283
Ser. 13-3, Class IT, 10, 5.00%, 1/20/43 2,656,127 600,656
Ser. 11-116, Class 1B, 10, 5.00%, 10/20/40 114,442 9,612
Ser. 10-35, Class Ul, 10, 5.00%, 3/20/40 1,787,550 414,372
Ser. 10-9, Class Ul, 10, 5.00%, 1/20/40 15,801,445 3,556,526
Ser. 09-121, Class Ul, 10, 5.00%, 12/20/39 7,360,481 1,731,995
IFB Ser. 10-9, Class YD, 10, ((-1 x 1 Month USLIBOR) + 6.80%),

4.52%, 1/16/40 22,036,334 3,576,083
Ser. 18-127, Class IB, 10, 4.50%, 6/20/45 1,812,738 248,309
Ser. 14-108, Class IP, 10, 4.50%, 12/20/42 4,377,938 657,873
Ser. 13-20, Class QI, 10, 4.50%, 12/16/42 10,466,696 1,664,054
Ser. 12-129, 10, 4.50%, 11/16/42 5,609,650 1,258,469
Ser. 10-35, Class QI, 10, 4.50%, 3/20/40 2,745,318 583,957
Ser. 10-9, Class QI, 10, 4.50%, 1/20/40 2,838,037 584,357
Ser. 13-34, Class PI, 10, 4.50%, 8/20/39 15,121,727 1,362,165
Ser. 14-71, Class BI, 10, 4.50%, 5/20/29 7,818,399 779,416
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Government National Mortgage Association

Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.

IFB

((-1 x 1 Month USLIBOR) + 6.15%), 3.87%, 9/20/43
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.

Ser.

Ser.

FRB

Ser.
Ser.

Ser.

15-149, Class KI, 10, 4.00%, 10/20/45
15-94, 10, 4.00%, 7/20/45
15-99, Class LI, 10, 4.00%, 7/20/45
15-53, Class MI, 10, 4.00%, 4/16/45
14-2, Class IL, 10, 4.00%, 1/16/44
14-63, Class P1, 10, 4.00%, 7/20/43
15-52, Class IE, 10, 4.00%, 1/16/43
13-4, Class IC, 10, 4.00%, 9/20/42
12-56, Class 1B, 10, 4.00%, 4/20/42
12-50, Class PI, 10, 4.00%, 12/20/41
14-4, Class 1K, 10, 4.00%, 7/20/39
11-71, Class IK, 10, 4.00%, 4/16/39
14-162, Class DI, 10, 4.00%, 11/20/38
14-133, Class Al, 10, 4.00%, 10/20/36
Ser. 13-129, Class SN, 10,

18-127, Class IE, 10, 3.50%, 1/20/46
15-69, Class X1, 10, 3.50%, 5/20/45
16-136, Class YI, 10, 3.50%, 3/20/45
15-20, Class PI, 10, 3.50%, 2/20/45
15-24, Class CI, 10, 3.50%, 2/20/45
15-24, Class IA, 10, 3.50%, 2/20/45
13-100, Class MI, 10, 3.50%, 2/20/43
13-37, Class JI, 10, 3.50%, 1/20/43
12-145, 10, 3.50%, 12/20/42

13-27, Class PI, 10, 3.50%, 12/20/42
12-136, 10, 3.50%, 11/20/42

12-113, Class ID, 10, 3.50%, 9/20/42
18-127, Class 1A, 10, 3.50%, 4/20/42
15-36, Class GI, 10, 3.50%, 6/16/41
14-102, Class 1G, 10, 3.50%, 3/16/41
15-52, Class KI, 10, 3.50%, 11/20/40
15-26, Class Al, 10, 3.50%, 5/20/39
15-87, Class Al, 10, 3.50%, 12/20/38
15-24, Class IC, 10, 3.50%, 11/20/37
14-100, Class JI, 10, 3.50%, 7/16/29
14-141, Class Cl, 10, 3.00%, 3/20/40
13-23, Class IK, 10, 3.00%, 9/20/37
14-46, Class KI, 10, 3.00%, 6/20/36
14-30, Class KI, 10, 3.00%, 2/16/29
14-5, Class LI, 10, 3.00%, 1/16/29
13-164, Class CI, 10, 3.00%, 11/16/28

16-H27, Class Bl, 10, 2.495%, 12/20/66 !
16-H23, Class NI, 10, 2.483%, 10/20/66 v

Ser. 15-H16, Class XI, 10, 2.333%, 7/20/65 !

16-H24, Class JI, 10, 2.181%, 11/20/66 "
17-H08, Class NI, 10, 2.151%, 3/20/67 "
16-H11, Class HI, 10, 2.089%, 1/20/66 "
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$16,251,358
692,705
3,211,945
16,075,973
5,234,449
7,820,908
10,487,559
12,734,071
5,762,320
12,781,320
3,788,593
7,278,909
6,795,992
8,329,657

2,111,800
7,736,235
13,907,854
13,229,583
8,773,966
6,790,295
9,254,349
3,861,007
3,381,490
5,696,628
3,864,750
14,221,894
18,753,332
20,189,509
8,360,711
6,638,585
13,897,314
27,796,998
12,935,086
9,175,610
13,719,478
6,085,581
14,487,236
3,737,994
5,551,013
5,800,743
11,100,002

13,056,993
42,916,056
22,537,608
16,378,083
15,421,280
35,706,388

$3,096,696
150,896
516,771
3,460,578
1,008,731
1,236,009
1,834,553
2,722,063
1,176,535
2,196,598
330,540
729,077
330,732
662,972

276,435
1,301,467
1,652,128
1,967,901
1,614,576
1,289,321
1,256,657

608,418

599,437
1,191,414

674,051
2,640,903
3,620,618
2,033,084

858,645

721,491
1,650,487
2,323,412

906,259

880,565
1,432,911

436,659
1,328,422

238,297

350,386

469,245

947,940

1,551,171
4,840,931
2,222,208
1,985,843
1,751,857
3,302,841
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Government National Mortgage Association

Ser. 18-H02, Class El, 10, 1.967%, 1/20/68 ! $16,843,761 $2,310,753
Ser. 17-H12, Class QI, 10, 1.955%, 5/20/67 v 23,717,232 2,794,933
Ser. 15-H15, Class JI, 10, 1.951%, 6/20/65 v 18,245,656 1,713,267
Ser. 17-H18, Class ClI, 10, 1.893%, 9/20/67 ! 14,612,785 2,100,588
Ser. 17-H23, Class BI, 10, 1.874%, 11/20/67 " 21,975,093 2,248,052
Ser. 15-H12, Class Al, 10, 1.854%, 5/20/65 ! 27,227,421 2,344,771
Ser. 15-H20, Class Al, 10, 1.826%, 8/20/65 ! 24,846,118 2,161,612
Ser. 15-H10, Class CI, 10, 1.809%, 4/20/65 ! 27,417,359 2,444,943
Ser. 18-H05, Class Al, 10, 1.804%, 2/20/68 ! 21,326,633 2,905,754
Ser. 15-H12, Class GI, 10, 1.793%, 5/20/65 ! 36,015,980 3,018,139
Ser. 15-H12, Class El, 10, 1.699%, 4/20/65 ! 26,518,920 2,089,691
Ser. 15-H09, Class BI, 10, 1.692%, 3/20/65 v 30,640,944 2,425,506
Ser. 18-H17, Class GI, 10, 1.669%, 10/20/68 " 30,614,377 3,979,869
Ser. 17-H10, Class MI, 10, 1.657%, 4/20/67 v 19,858,402 1,890,520
Ser. 15-H26, Class DI, 10, 1.653%, 10/20/65 " 18,683,945 1,783,999
Ser. 15-H01, Class ClI, 10, 1.634%, 12/20/64 " 25,076,508 1,281,861
Ser. 15-H25, Class Al, 10, 1.611%, 9/20/65 ! 22,666,092 1,711,290
Ser. 15-H17, Class CI, 10, 1.601%, 6/20/65 v 26,419,139 1,301,037
Ser. 15-H14, Class Bl, 10, 1.578%, 5/20/65 ! 2,250,054 109,647
Ser. 15-H28, Class DI, 10, 1.551%, 8/20/65 ! 26,129,962 1,717,888
Ser. 15-H25, Class Cl, 10, 1.522%, 10/20/65 v 23,743,778 2,132,191
Ser. 14-H11, Class GI, 10, 1.473%, 6/20/64 ! 47,367,188 3,298,935
Ser. 14-H07, Class Bl, 10, 1.462%, 5/20/64 ! 37,828,460 2,789,849
Ser. 10-H19, Class GI, 10, 1.414%, 8/20/60 ! 30,074,219 1,686,923
Ser. 17-H14, Class El, 10, 1.375%, 6/20/67 ! 24,078,462 2,076,767
Ser. 16-H04, Class KI, 10, 1.254%, 2/20/66 ! 29,623,772 2,184,753
Ser. 16-H02, Class HI, 10, 1.182%, 1/20/66 ! 46,541,117 3,732,598
Ser. 18-H17, Class TI, 10, 1.168%, 10/20/68 " 28,876,000 2,684,919
Ser. 15-H04, Class Al, 10, 1.086%, 12/20/64 " 30,414,536 2,471,181
IFB Ser. 11-70, Class YI, 10,
((-1 x 1 Month USLIBOR) + 5.00%), 0.15%, 12/20/40 11,226,479 68,217
Ser. 10-151, Class KO, PO, zero %, 6/16/37 217,205 174,383
Ser. 06-36, Class 0D, PO, zero %, 7/16/36 13,824 10,998

Home Re, Ltd. 144A FRB Ser. 18-1, Class M1,

(1 Month USLIBOR + 1.60%), 3.832%, 10/25/28 (Bermuda) 1,974,000 1,974,000

266,831,155
(13.5%)

Banc of America Commercial Mortgage Trust FRB Ser. 07-1,

Class XW, 10, 0.221%, 1/15/49 " 2,107,073 3,180

Banc of America Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A
FRB Ser. 04-4, Class XC, 10, 0.322%, 7/10/42 v 78,116 1
FRB Ser. 07-5, Class XW, 10, zero %, 2/10/51 " 2,690,694 27

Banc of America Merrill Lynch Commercial Mortgage, Inc. 144A
FRB Ser. 04-5, Class XC, 10, 0.439%, 11/10/41 ! 1,311,942 4,108
FRB Ser. 05-1, Class XW, 10, zero %, 11/10/42 " 21,755,131 218

Bear Stearns Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
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Bear Stearns Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust 144A

FRB Ser. 06-PW11, Class B, 5.27%, 3/11/39 " $5,480,608 $3,836,426
FRB Ser. 06-PW14, Class X1, 10, 0.315%, 12/11/38 v 437,660 2,188
Capmark Mortgage Securities, Inc. FRB Ser. 97-C1,
Class X, 10, 1.337%, 7/15/29 " 306,836 4,406
CD Commercial Mortgage Trust FRB Ser. 16-CD1,
Class XA, 10, 1.427%, 8/10/49 " 23,789,514 1,924,572
CD Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A FRB Ser. 07-CD4,
Class XW, 10, 0.771%, 12/11/49 ! 150,377 15
CFCRE Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A
FRB Ser. 11-C2, Class D, 5.756%, 12/15/47 ! 601,000 621,188
FRB Ser. 11-C2, Class E, 5.756%, 12/15/47 " 3,258,000 3,151,074
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust
FRB Ser. 13-GC17, Class XA, 10, 1.307%, 11/10/46 " 38,496,649 1,356,872
FRB Ser. 14-GC19, Class XA, 10, 1.142%, 3/10/47 v 91,380,566 4,442,558
FRB Ser. 15-GC31, Class XA, 10, 0.406%, 6/10/48 " 74,020,272 1,594,712
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A
FRB Ser. 14-GC21, Class D, 4.926%, 5/10/47 v 696,000 634,714
FRB Ser. 06-C5, Class XC, 10, 0.496%, 10/15/49 ! 10,023,809 100
COBALT CMBS Commercial Mortgage Trust FRB Ser. 07-C3,
Class AJ, 5.82%, 5/15/46 " 3,902,544 3,918,315
COMM Mortgage Trust
FRB Ser. 14-CR17, Class C, 4.738%, 5/10/47 ! 1,619,000 1,605,504
FRB Ser. 14-CR18, Class C, 4.732%, 7/15/47 ! 889,000 885,264
Ser. 13-CR11, Class AM, 4.715%, 8/10/50 " 949,000 977,916
FRB Ser. 14-UBS6, Class C, 4.463%, 12/10/47 " 1,113,000 1,068,384
FRB Ser. 14-LC15, Class XA, 10, 1.275%, 4/10/47 v 95,970,536 3,806,191
FRB Ser. 14-CR19, Class XA, 10, 1.184%, 8/10/47 " 41,899,717 1,661,253
FRB Ser. 14-UBS4, Class XA, 10, 1.18%, 8/10/47 v 31,858,582 1,482,980
FRB Ser. 13-LC13, Class XA, 10, 1.167%, 8/10/46 " 39,658,795 1,659,324
FRB Ser. 14-CR18, Class XA, 10, 1.15%, 7/15/47 ! 58,136,538 2,185,352
FRB Ser. 14-CR17, Class XA, 10, 1.08%, 5/10/47 ! 51,084,401 2,000,005
FRB Ser. 14-UBS6, Class XA, 10, 0.962%, 12/10/47 " 54,758,688 2,207,104
FRB Ser. 15-CR23, Class XA, 10, 0.961%, 5/10/48 v 37,607,442 1,477,165
FRB Ser. 14-LC17, Class XA, 10, 0.961%, 10/10/47 " 28,677,059 828,652
COMM Mortgage Trust 144A
Ser. 12-LC4, Class E, 4.25%, 12/10/44 1,918,000 1,553,440
Ser. 15-LC19, Class D, 2.867%, 2/10/48 2,131,000 1,803,163
FRB Ser. 12-LC4, Class XA, 10, 2.206%, 12/10/44 " 20,210,873 1,116,428
FRB Ser. 06-C8, Class XS, 10, 0.442%, 12/10/46 v 3,695,947 37
Credit Suisse Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A
FRB Ser. 07-C4, Class C, 5.985%, 9/15/39 " 1,317,673 1,335,343
FRB Ser. 08-C1, Class AJ, 5.971%, 2/15/41 ! 9,861,000 8,359,170
FRB Ser. 07-C2, Class AX, 10, 0.04%, 1/15/49 " 8,680,689 87
Credit Suisse First Boston Mortgage Securities Corp.
144A FRB Ser. 03-C3, Class AX, 10, 2.012%, 5/15/38 ! 732,606 2,595
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Class D, 3.796%, 4/15/50 " 3,980,000 3,562,950
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DBUBS Mortgage Trust 144A FRB Ser. 11-LC3A,

Class D, 5.338%, 8/10/44 " $2,143,500 $2,201,070
GE Commercial Mortgage Corp. Trust 144A FRB Ser. 07-C1,
Class XC, 10, 0.087%, 12/10/49 " 22,179,057 24,548
GMAC Commercial Mortgage Securities, Inc. Trust 144A FRB
Ser. 05-C1, Class X1, 10, 0.982%, 5/10/43 " 214,462 2
GS Mortgage Securities Trust
FRB Ser. 14-GC18, Class C, 4.996%, 1/10/47 ! 1,273,000 1,253,655
FRB Ser. 13-GC10, Class XA, 10, 1.52%, 2/10/46 ! 67,092,847 3,498,892
FRB Ser. 13-GC12, Class XA, 10, 1.438%, 6/10/46 " 32,043,446 1,650,526
FRB Ser. 14-GC18, Class XA, 10, 1.045%, 1/10/47 " 42,056,059 1,855,135
FRB Ser. 14-GC22, Class XA, 10, 0.99%, 6/10/47 ! 64,092,065 2,457,867
GS Mortgage Securities Trust 144A
FRB Ser. 12-GC6, Class D, 5.652%, 1/10/45 " 1,590,376 1,560,000
FRB Ser. 13-GC10, Class E, 4.397%, 2/10/46 ! 3,347,000 2,589,089
JPMBB Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust FRB Ser. 14-C25,
Class XA, 10, 0.947%, 11/15/47 ! 33,326,176 1,272,960
JPMBB Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust 144A
FRB Ser. 13-Cl14, Class E, 4.566%, 8/15/46 ! 4,051,000 3,299,268
FRB Ser. C14, Class D, 4.566%, 8/15/46 v 6,516,000 5,852,278
FRB Ser. 14-C25, Class D, 3.945%, 11/15/47 ! 5,849,000 4,670,608
Ser. 14-C23, Class E, 3.364%, 9/15/47 " 2,623,000 2,014,123
Ser. 14-C25, Class E, 3.332%, 11/15/47 ! 4,818,000 2,949,300
JPMorgan Chase Commercial Mortgage Securities Corp. FRB
Ser. 12-LC9, Class XA, 10, 1.545%, 12/15/47 ! 42,724,862 1,950,390
JPMorgan Chase Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
FRB Ser. 16-JP2, Class XA, 10, 1.846%, 8/15/49 ! 18,138,751 1,975,237
FRB Ser. 13-LC11, Class XA, 10, 1.273%, 4/15/46 " 46,010,674 2,124,313
FRB Ser. 13-C16, Class XA, 10, 1.022%, 12/15/46 v 46,310,515 1,752,043
FRB Ser. 13-C10, Class XA, 10, 1.01%, 12/15/47 ! 71,069,553 2,482,957
FRB Ser. 06-LDP8, Class X, 10, 0.286%, 5/15/45 ! 1,032,297 1,341
FRB Ser. 07-LDPX, Class X, 10, 0.151%, 1/15/49 ! 8,344,777 10,808
JPMorgan Chase Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust 144A
FRB Ser. 07-CB20, Class C, 6.233%, 2/12/51 v 396,904 397,896
FRB Ser. 11-C3, Class F, 5.676%, 2/15/46 " 4,436,000 4,286,156
FRB Ser. 12-C6, Class E, 5.14%, 5/15/45 " 3,917,000 3,460,920
FRB Ser. 13-C16, Class D, 5.01%, 12/15/46 " 641,000 641,826
FRB Ser. 12-C8, Class D, 4.651%, 10/15/45 ! 2,931,000 2,805,852
FRB Ser. 12-C8, Class E, 4.651%, 10/15/45 " 678,000 636,549
FRB Ser. 12-LC9, Class D, 4.373%, 12/15/47 ! 621,000 611,294
FRB Ser. 13-LC11, Class E, 3.25%, 4/15/46 " 2,038,000 1,539,475
FRB Ser. 05-CB12, Class X1, 10, 0.363%, 9/12/37 " 2,254,017 2,769
FRB Ser. 06-LDP6, Class X1, 10, zero %, 4/15/43 ! 660,845 7
LB-UBS Commercial Mortgage Trust FRB Ser. 07-C2, Class XW, 10,
0.182%, 2/15/40 ! 269,889 28
LB-UBS Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A
FRB Ser. 05-C5, Class XCL, 10, 0.507%, 9/15/40 ! 4,399,656 25,744
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LSTAR Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A FRB Ser. 15-3,

Class C, 3.072%, 4/20/48 " $3,057,000 $2,662,586
Merrill Lynch Mortgage Trust 144A
FRB Ser. 04-KEY2, Class XC, 10, 0.961%, 8/12/39 v 364,961 4
FRB Ser. 05-MCP1, Class XC, 10, 0.001%, 6/12/43 " 888,168 24
Mezz Cap Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A
FRB Ser. 05-C3, Class X, 10, 6.722%, 5/15/44 " 9,853 1,362
FRB Ser. 06-C4, Class X, 10, 6.235%, 7/15/45 v 187,340 5,540
Morgan Stanley Bank of America Merrill Lynch Trust
FRB Ser. 13-C7, Class XA, 10, 1.358%, 2/15/46 ! 53,742,964 2,477,282
FRB Ser. 15-C26, Class XA, 10, 1.038%, 10/15/48 v 38,367,054 2,098,588
FRB Ser. 13-C12, Class XA, 10, 0.626%, 10/15/46 ! 123,887,749 2,884,714
Morgan Stanley Bank of America Merrill Lynch Trust 144A
Ser. 14-C17, Class D, 4.703%, 8/15/47 " 1,035,000 930,897
FRB Ser. 13-C11, Class D, 4.357%, 8/15/46 ! 5,438,000 4,350,400
FRB Ser. 13-C11, Class F, 4.357%, 8/15/46 " 6,212,000 2,174,200
FRB Ser. 13-C10, Class E, 4.082%, 7/15/46 " 5,447,000 4,366,626
Ser. 14-C17, Class E, 3.50%, 8/15/47 2,709,000 1,901,249
Ser. 14-C18, Class D, 3.389%, 10/15/47 2,046,000 1,622,838
Morgan Stanley Capital | Trust FRB Ser. 16-BNK2,
Class XA, 10, 1.098%, 11/15/49 " 27,906,997 1,657,397
Morgan Stanley Capital 1 Trust 144A
FRB Ser. 08-T29, Class F, 6.107%, 1/11/43 ! 1,812,279 1,789,626
FRB Ser. 12-C4, Class E, 5.42%, 3/15/45 v 1,850,000 1,680,725
TIAA Real Estate CDO, Ltd. 144A Ser. 03-1A,
Class E, 8.00%, 12/28/38 1,661,295 138,718
UBS Commercial Mortgage Trust FRB Ser. 17-C7,
Class XA, 10, 1.072%, 12/15/50 ! 34,569,667 2,425,857
UBS Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A FRB Ser. 12-C1,
Class XA, 10, 2.07%, 5/10/45 ! 12,559,166 716,230
UBS-Barclays Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A
Ser. 12-C2, Class F, 4.893%, 5/10/63 " 2,565,000 1,761,642
Ser. 13-C6, Class E, 3.50%, 4/10/46 3,489,000 2,475,878
FRB Ser. 12-C4, Class XA, 10, 1.642%, 12/10/45 v 44,553,721 2,290,133
Wachovia Bank Commercial Mortgage Trust
FRB Ser. 06-C26, Class AJ, 6.076%, 6/15/45 ! 575,500 521,748
FRB Ser. 06-C29, 10, 0.279%, 11/15/48 " 6,456,121 258
FRB Ser. 07-C34, 10, 0.108%, 5/15/46 " 2,565,760 834
Wachovia Bank Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A
FRB Ser. 05-C21, Class E, 5.241%, 10/15/44 ! 4,945,000 4,697,750
FRB Ser. 06-C26, Class XC, 10, 0.045%, 6/15/45 ! 547,628 110
FRB Ser. 05-C18, Class XC, 10, zero %, 4/15/42 ! 179,848 2
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust FRB Ser. 14-LC16,
Class XA, 10, 1.334%, 8/15/50 " 82,721,772 3,495,822
WF-RBS Commercial Mortgage Trust
FRB Ser. 14-C22, Class XA, 10, 0.849%, 9/15/57 v 35,934,350 1,329,894
FRB Ser. 13-C14, Class XA, 10, 0.741%, 6/15/46 ! 97,603,577 2,590,399
FRB Ser. 14-C23, Class XA, 10, 0.63%, 10/15/57 ! 69,247,657 1,915,131
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WF-RBS Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A

FRB Ser. 11-C2, Class D, 5.651%, 2/15/44 " $5,677,438 $5,632,921
Ser. 11-C4, Class E, 5.231%, 6/15/44 " 3,023,768 2,892,282
Ser. 11-C4, Class F, 5.00%, 6/15/44 " 6,151,000 4,455,520
Ser. 11-C3, Class E, 5.00%, 3/15/44 " 1,601,000 799,051
FRB Ser. 12-C7, Class D, 4.822%, 6/15/45 " 4,142,000 3,789,060
FRB Ser. 12-C10, Class D, 4.442%, 12/15/45 ! 1,834,000 1,605,030
FRB Ser. 12-C10, Class E, 4.442%, 12/15/45 " 3,645,000 2,369,250
Ser. 13-C12, Class E, 3.50%, 3/15/48 893,000 683,327
FRB Ser. 12-C9, Class XA, 10, 1.887%, 11/15/45 ! 59,753,448 3,576,244
FRB Ser. 11-C5, Class XA, 10, 1.738%, 11/15/44 ! 32,299,262 1,281,021
FRB Ser. 12-C10, Class XA, 10, 1.567%, 12/15/45 " 42,711,805 2,188,681
FRB Ser. 13-C11, Class XA, 10, 1.216%, 3/15/45 " 23,004,794 952,178
212,378,358
(8.7%)
BCAP, LLC Trust 144A FRB Ser. 15-RR5, Class 2A2, 2.914%, 1/26/46 " 8,733,000 8,139,339
Bellemeade Re, Ltd. 144A
FRB Ser. 17-1, Class M2, (1 Month USLIBOR + 3.35%),
5.631%, 10/25/27 (Bermuda) 11,470,000 11,907,168
FRB Ser. 18-2A, Class M1C, (1 Month USLIBOR + 1.60%),
3.881%, 8/25/28 (Bermuda) 1,080,000 1,087,388
Chevy Chase Funding, LLC Mortgage-Backed Certificates 144A FRB Ser.
04-3A, Class A2, (1 Month USLIBOR + 0.30%), 2.581%, 8/25/35 1,717,339 1,698,620
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation
Structured Agency Credit Risk Debt FRN Ser. 16-HQAl, Class M3,
(1 Month USLIBOR + 6.35%), 8.631%, 9/25/28 10,997,870 13,456,317
Structured Agency Credit Risk Debt FRN Ser. 16-HQA2, Class M3,
(1 Month USLIBOR + 5.15%), 7.431%, 11/25/28 6,718,200 7,888,050
FRB Ser. 16-DNA3, Class M3, (1 Month USLIBOR + 5.00%),
7.281%, 12/25/28 4,290,000 5,009,282
Structured Agency Credit Risk Debt FRN Ser. 14-DN2, Class M3,
(1 Month USLIBOR + 3.60%), 5.881%, 4/25/24 2,690,000 2,964,344
Structured Agency Credit Risk Debt FRN Ser. 17-DNAl, Class M2,
(1 Month USLIBOR + 3.25%), 5.531%, 7/25/29 403,000 435,473
Structured Agency Credit Risk Debt FRN Ser. 17-DNA3, Class M2,
(1 Month USLIBOR + 2.50%), 4.781%, 3/25/30 2,650,000 2,745,368
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 144A Structured Agency
Credit Risk Debt FRN Ser. 18-DNA2, Class Bl1,
(1 Month USLIBOR + 3.70%), 5.981%, 12/25/30 4,330,000 4,376,682
Federal National Mortgage Association
Connecticut Avenue Securities FRB Ser. 16-C03, Class 2M2,
(1 Month USLIBOR + 5.90%), 8.181%, 10/25/28 14,657,880 16,815,804
Connecticut Avenue Securities FRB Ser. 16-C03, Class 1M2,
(1 Month USLIBOR + 5.30%), 7.581%, 10/25/28 16,603,000 19,436,905
Connecticut Avenue Securities FRB Ser. 16-C05, Class 2M2,
(1 Month USLIBOR + 4.45%), 6.731%, 1/25/29 3,641,000 4,046,824
Connecticut Avenue Securities FRB Ser. 16-C07, Class 2M2,
(1 Month USLIBOR + 4.35%), 6.631%, 5/25/29 260,000 288,885
Connecticut Avenue Securities FRB Ser. 16-C06, Class 1M2,
(1 Month USLIBOR + 4.25%), 6.531%, 4/25/29 556,000 629,388
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Federal National Mortgage Association
Connecticut Avenue Securities FRB Ser. 17-C01, Class 1M2,

(1 Month USLIBOR + 3.55%), 5.831%, 7/25/29 $268,000 $290,564
Connecticut Avenue Securities FRB Ser. 17-C06, Class 2M2,
(1 Month USLIBOR + 2.80%), 5.081%, 2/25/30 900,000 935,250
Connecticut Avenue Securities FRB Ser. 18-C04, Class 2M2,
(1 Month USLIBOR + 2.55%), 4.831%, 12/25/30 4,989,700 5,055,117
FIRSTPLUS Home Loan Owner Trust Ser. 97-3, Class Bl, 7.79%, 11/10/23
(In default) ' 134,710 13
Morgan Stanley Resecuritization Trust 144A Ser. 15-R4,
Class CB1, 3.041%, 8/26/47 " 4,746,000 4,617,872
NovaStar Mortgage Funding Trust FRB Ser. 04-2, Class M4,
(1 Month USLIBOR + 1.80%), 4.081%, 9/25/34 1,955,860 1,955,878
Oaktown Re, Ltd. 144A FRB Ser. 17-1A, Class M2,
(1 Month USLIBOR + 4.00%), 6.281%, 4/25/27 (Bermuda) 1,172,000 1,210,090
Radnor Re, Ltd. 144A FRB Ser. 18-1, Class M2,
(1 Month USLIBOR + 2.70%), 4.981%, 3/25/28 (Bermuda) 1,500,000 1,520,566
Structured Asset Investment Loan Trust FRB Ser. 04-10,
Class A10, (1 Month USLIBOR + 0.90%), 3.181%, 11/25/34 1,686,771 1,686,240
WaMu Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates Trust
FRB Ser. 05-AR1, Class A2B, (1 Month USLIBOR + 0.80%),
3.081%, 1/25/45 1,216,573 1,209,159
FRB Ser. 05-AR11, Class A1C3, (1 Month USLIBOR + 0.51%),
2.791%, 8/25/45 2,218,833 2,220,045
FRB Ser. 05-AR13, Class A1C4, (1 Month USLIBOR + 0.43%),
2.711%, 10/25/45 9,146,796 9,052,613
FRB Ser. 05-AR17, Class A1B2, (1 Month USLIBOR + 0.41%),
2.691%, 12/25/45 3,502,769 3,378,771
FRB Ser. 05-AR2, Class 2A1B, (1 Month USLIBOR + 0.37%),
2.651%, 1/25/45 1,188,642 1,181,985
FRB Ser. 05-AR17, Class A1B3, (1 Month USLIBOR + 0.35%),
2.631%, 12/25/45 1,042,185 1,034,702
136,274,702
( $641,719,232) $615,484,215
(24.5%)"
(1.4%)
Celanese US Holdings, LLC company guaranty sr. unsec. notes
5.875%, 6/15/21 (Germany) $340,000 $354,795
Celanese US Holdings, LLC company guaranty
Sr. unsec. unsub. notes 4.625%, 11/15/22 (Germany) 455,000 463,179
CF Industries, Inc. 144A company guaranty sr. notes 4.50%, 12/1/26 4,860,000 4,770,643
Georgia-Pacific, LLC sr. unsec. unsub. notes 7.75%, 11/15/29 260,000 338,868
Glencore Finance Canada, Ltd. 144A company guaranty Sr. unsec.
unsub. notes 6.00%, 11/15/41 (Canada) 327,000 324,477
Glencore Funding, LLC 144A company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes
4.625%, 4/29/24 2,378,000 2,378,556
Glencore Funding, LLC 144A company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes
4.00%, 4/16/25 1,585,000 1,515,894
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International Flavors & Fragrances, Inc. sr. unsec. notes

4._45%, 9/26/28 $1,681,000 $1,675,521

International Paper Co. sr. unsec. notes 8.70%, 6/15/38 382,000 511,091

Sherwin-Williams Co. (The) sr. unsec. unsub. bonds 3.45%, 6/1/27 1,543,000 1,426,363

Southern Copper Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 5.375%,

4/16/20 (Peru) 200,000 204,900

Westlake Chemical Corp. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. bonds

4.375%, 11/15/47 847,000 721,988

Westlake Chemical Corp. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes

3.60%, 8/15/26 2,725,000 2,524,746

WestRock MWV, LLC company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes

8.20%, 1/15/30 3,316,000 4,233,044

WestRock MWV, LLC company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes

7.95%, 2/15/31 354,000 448,888

Weyerhaeuser Co. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 7.375%, 3/15/32 R 769,000 943,575
22,836,528

(1.1%)

Johnson Controls International PLC sr. unsec. unsub. bonds

4.50%, 2/15/47 1,465,000 1,345,554

L3 Technologies, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. bonds

3.85%, 12/15/26 2,786,000 2,695,780

L3 Technologies, Inc. company guaranty Sr. unsec. notes

4.40%, 6/15/28 1,988,000 1,984,995

Northrop Grumman Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 3.25%, 1/15/28 4,110,000 3,796,947

Oshkosh Corp. sr. unsec. sub. notes 4.60%, 5/15/28 3,205,000 3,135,259

Republic Services, Inc. sr. unsec. notes 3.95%, 5/15/28 3,920,000 3,840,977

ZF North America Capital, Inc. 144A company guaranty sr. unsec.

unsub. notes 4.50%, 4/29/22 713,000 714,122
17,513,634

(2.0%)

American Tower Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. bonds 3.55%, 7/15/27 R 2,284,000 2,098,955

AT&T, Inc. 144A sr. unsec. notes 4.10%, 2/15/28 4,566,000 4,335,568

CC Holdings GSV, LLC/Crown Castle GSIII Corp. company guaranty sr.

notes 3.849%, 4/15/23 427,000 422,507

Charter Communications Operating, LLC/Charter Communications

Operating Capital Corp. company guaranty sr. sub. bonds

6.484%, 10/23/45 2,253,000 2,287,151

Charter Communications Operating, LLC/Charter Communications

Operating Capital Corp. company guaranty sr. sub. notes

4.908%, 7/23/25 1,006,000 1,010,286

Charter Communications Operating, LLC/Charter Communications

Operating Capital Corp. company guaranty sr. sub. bonds

5.375%, 5/1/47 1,636,000 1,472,473

Comcast Cable Communications Holdings, Inc. company guaranty sr.

unsec. notes 9.455%, 11/15/22 1,100,000 1,328,639

Comcast Corp. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. bonds

4.049%, 11/1/52 711,000 606,956

Comcast Corp. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. bonds

3.999%, 11/1/49 514,000 440,105

Comcast Corp. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes

6.50%, 11/15/35 388,000 453,049
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(24.5%)

Cox Communications, Inc. 144A sr. unsec. bonds 3.50%, 8/15/27 $2,209,000 $2,032,924

Crown Castle International Corp. sr. unsec. bonds 3.80%, 2/15/28 R 2,616,000 2,435,216

Crown Castle International Corp. sr. unsec. bonds 3.65%, 9/1/27 R 1,777,000 1,642,995

Crown Castle International Corp. sr. unsec. notes 4.875%, 4/15/22 R 403,000 414,562

Crown Castle International Corp. sr. unsec. notes 4.75%, 5/15/47 R 1,073,000 997,040

Crown Castle International Corp. sr. unsec. notes 3.15%, 7/15/23 R 285,000 273,527

Rogers Communications, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes

4.50%, 3/15/43 (Canada) 236,000 223,532

Sprint Spectrum Co., LLC/Sprint Spectrum Co. Il, LLC/Sprint Spectrum

Co. Ill, LLC 144A company guaranty sr. notes

3.36%, 9/20/21 726,750 719,483

Telefonica Emisiones SAU company guaranty sr. unsec. bonds

4.895%, 3/6/48 (Spain) 2,623,000 2,335,490

Verizon Communications, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes

4.329%, 9/21/28 1,325,000 1,310,842

Videotron, Ltd./Videotron Ltee. 144A sr. unsec. notes

5.125%, 4/15/27 (Canada) 1,052,000 996,770

Vodafone Group PLC sr. unsec. unsub. notes 4.375%,

5/30/28 (United Kingdom) 3,110,000 2,996,408
30,834,478

(2.9%)

21st Century Fox America, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

7.75%, 1/20/24 482,000 558,101

21st Century Fox America, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.

bonds 4.75%, 9/15/44 65,000 67,000

21st Century Fox America, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.

notes 7.75%, 12/1/45 2,603,000 3,757,901

Alimentation Couche-Tard, Inc. 144A company guaranty sr. unsec.

notes 3.55%, 7/26/27 (Canada) 1,048,000 968,204

Amazon.com, Inc. sr. unsec. notes 4.05%, 8/22/47 1,364,000 1,267,964

Amazon.com, Inc. sr. unsec. notes 3.15%, 8/22/27 1,187,000 1,117,837

CBS Corp. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. bonds 2.90%, 1/15/27 1,408,000 1,234,800

CBS Corp. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes 4.60%, 1/15/45 1,786,000 1,609,269

CBS Corp. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes 4.00%, 1/15/26 313,000 302,901

Ecolab, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 3.25%, 12/1/27 5,145,000 4,869,123

General Motors Financial Co., Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

4.00%, 10/6/26 625,000 571,524

General Motors Financial Co., Inc. company guaranty Sr. unsec.

unsub. notes 4.30%, 7/13/25 520,000 496,868

General Motors Financial Co., Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec.

unsub. notes 4.00%, 1/15/25 910,000 863,766

Hilton Domestic Operating Co., Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. sub.

notes 4.25%, 9/1/24 677,000 650,123

Hilton Worldwide Finance, LLC/Hilton Worldwide Finance Corp. company

guaranty sr. unsec. notes 4.875%, 4/1/27 3,252,000 3,105,660

IHS Markit, Ltd. sr. unsec. sub. bonds 4.75%, 8/1/28

(United Kingdom) 1,105,000 1,078,756
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IHS Markit, Ltd. 144A company guaranty notes 4.75%, 2/15/25

(United Kingdom) $3,445,000 $3,410,550

IHS Markit, Ltd. 144A company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

4.00%, 3/1/26 (United Kingdom) 750,000 705,000

Interpublic Group of Cos., Inc. (The) sr. unsec. sub. bonds

4.65%, 10/1/28 5,475,000 5,387,834

Lear Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. bonds 3.80%, 9/15/27 4,002,000 3,633,452

NVR, Inc. sr. unsec. notes 3.95%, 9/15/22 223,000 222,146

Omnicom Group, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes

3.60%, 4/15/26 764,000 717,159

QVC, Inc. company guaranty sr. notes 4.85%, 4/1/24 613,000 604,423

QVC, Inc. company guaranty sr. sub. notes 4.45%, 2/15/25 524,000 496,689

S&P Global, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes

4.40%, 2/15/26 1,032,000 1,051,228

Sirius XM Radio, Inc. 144A sr. unsec. bonds 5.00%, 8/1/27 4,014,000 3,763,125

Standard Industries, Inc. 144A sr. unsec. notes 5.00%, 2/15/27 1,946,000 1,775,725

Time Warner, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. bonds

3.80%, 2/15/27 336,000 314,829

Time Warner, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. bonds

2.95%, 7/15/26 427,000 377,822
44,979,779

(1.8%)

Anheuser-Busch InBev Finance, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec.

unsub. bonds 4.90%, 2/1/46 4,541,000 4,277,588

Anheuser-Busch InBev Finance, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec.

unsub. bonds 3.65%, 2/1/26 262,000 249,219

Anheuser-Busch InBev Worldwide, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec.

unsub. bonds 4.95%, 1/15/42 318,000 304,725

Ashtead Capital, Inc. 144A notes 4.375%, 8/15/27 4,175,000 3,839,748

CVS Pass-Through Trust sr. notes 6.036%, 12/10/28 48,370 51,368

CVS Pass-Through Trust 144A sr. mtge. notes 7.507%, 1/10/32 959,805 1,107,252

Diageo Investment Corp. company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

8.00%, 9/15/22 203,000 235,337

ERAC USA Finance, LLC 144A company guaranty sr. unsec. bonds

4.50%, 2/15/45 1,451,000 1,330,876

ERAC USA Finance, LLC 144A company guaranty Sr. unsec. notes

7.00%, 10/15/37 859,000 1,049,362

ERAC USA Finance, LLC 144A company guaranty sr. unsec. notes 5.625%,

3/15/42 1,393,000 1,480,502

ERAC USA Finance, LLC 144A company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

3.85%, 11/15/24 289,000 285,057

Kraft Heinz Co. (The) company guaranty sr. unsec. bonds

4.375%, 6/1/46 4,897,000 4,074,316

Lamb Weston Holdings, Inc. 144A company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.

notes 4.875%, 11/1/26 2,071,000 1,998,515

Maple Escrow Subsidiary, Inc. 144A company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

4.597%, 5/25/28 5,253,000 5,172,356

Newell Brands, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 4.20%, 4/1/26 1,462,000 1,343,142

Walgreens Boots Alliance, Inc. sr. unsec. bonds 3.45%, 6/1/26 1,968,000 1,820,216
28,619,579
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(2.0%)
Cheniere Corpus Christi Holdings, LLC company guaranty sr. notes

5.125%, 6/30/27 $1,543,000 $1,512,140
Concho Resources, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. notes
3.75%, 10/1/27 3,051,000 2,868,441
Energy Transfer Partners LP jr. unsec. sub. FRB Ser. B,
6.625%, perpetual maturity 3,294,000 3,030,480
Energy Transfer Partners LP sr. unsec. unsub. bonds
6.125%, 12/15/45 360,000 357,545
Energy Transfer Partners LP sr. unsec. unsub. notes 6.50%, 2/1/42 542,000 559,535
Energy Transfer Partners LP sr. unsec. unsub. notes 5.20%, 2/1/22 235,000 242,865
EOG Resources, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 4.15%, 1/15/26 4,718,000 4,757,913
EQT Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 3.90%, 10/1/27 2,346,000 2,134,715
Equinor ASA company guaranty sr. unsec. notes
5.10%, 8/17/40 (Norway) 1,054,000 1,150,327
Marathon Petroleum Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 6.50%, 3/1/41 292,000 327,722
Petroleos Mexicanos company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes
4.50%, 1/23/26 (Mexico) 1,853,000 1,644,871
Sabine Pass Liquefaction, LLC sr. bonds 4.20%, 3/15/28 821,000 781,207
Sabine Pass Liquefaction, LLC sr. notes 5.00%, 3/15/27 3,166,000 3,180,743
Spectra Energy Partners LP sr. unsec. notes 3.375%, 10/15/26 336,000 311,578
Targa Resources Partners LP/Targa Resources Partners Finance Corp.
company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes 5.00%, 1/15/28 1,399,000 1,325,553
Transcanada Trust company guaranty jr. unsec. sub. FRB
5.30%, 3/15/77 (Canada) 3,382,000 3,094,530
Williams Cos., Inc. (The) sr. unsec. unsub. notes 8.75%, 3/15/32 283,000 370,489
Williams Partners LP sr. unsec. sub. notes 4.30%, 3/4/24 3,611,000 3,601,135
Williams Partners LP sr. unsec. sub. notes 3.60%, 3/15/22 192,000 188,874
31,440,663
(6.6%)
Air Lease Corp. sr. unsec. sub. bonds 4.625%, 10/1/28 4,390,000 4,258,335
Air Lease Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 3.625%, 4/1/27 1,054,000 958,972
Air Lease Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 3.00%, 9/15/23 302,000 284,433
Ally Financial, Inc. sub. unsec. notes 5.75%, 11/20/25 2,579,000 2,637,028
American International Group, Inc. jr. unsec. sub. FRB
8.175%, 5/15/58 1,428,000 1,752,870
Aon PLC company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes 4.25%, 12/12/42 1,806,000 1,593,561
Australia & New Zealand Banking Group, Ltd./United Kingdom 144A jr.
unsec. sub. FRB 6.75%, perpetual maturity (United Kingdom) 585,000 600, 356
Banco Santander SA sr. unsec. unsub. notes 4.379%, 4/12/28 (Spain) 200,000 186,324
Banco Santander SA unsec. sub. notes 5.179%, 11/19/25 (Spain) 2,000,000 1,971,024
Bank of Montreal unsec. sub. FRN 3.803%, 12/15/32 (Canada) 892,000 817,580
Berkshire Hathaway Finance Corp. company guaranty sr. unsec. notes
4.30%, 5/15/43 623,000 603,836
BGC Partners, Inc. sr. unsec. notes 5.125%, 5/27/21 94,000 96,114
BPCE SA 144A unsec. sub. notes 5.15%, 7/21/24 (France) 260,000 262,326
BPCE SA 144A unsec. sub. notes 4.50%, 3/15/25 (France) 5,062,000 4,893,764
Cantor Fitzgerald LP 144A unsec. notes 6.50%, 6/17/22 2,870,000 3,017,288
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(24.5%)
Capital One Bank USA NA unsec. sub. notes 3.375%, 2/15/23 $264,000 $255,179
Capital One Financial Corp. unsec. sub. notes 4.20%, 10/29/25 1,063,000 1,025,811
CBRE Services, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. notes
5.25%, 3/15/25 715,000 740,164
CBRE Services, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes 4.875%,
3/1/26 1,716,000 1,733,980
CIT Group, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 5.25%, 3/7/25 1,182,000 1,189,388
Citigroup, Inc. sr. unsec. FRB 3.668%, 7/24/28 3,060,000 2,867,498
Citigroup, Inc. unsec. sub. bonds 4.75%, 5/18/46 1,791,000 1,670,207
Citigroup, Inc. unsec. sub. bonds 4.45%, 9/29/27 6,240,000 6,072,394
CNO Financial Group, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 5.25%, 5/30/25 1,299,000 1,310,366
Credit Agricole SA 144A unsec. sub. FRN 4.00%, 1/10/33 (France) 795,000 718,988
Credit Suisse Group AG 144A jr. unsec. sub. FRN 6.25%, perpetual
maturity (Switzerland) 293,000 284,943
Credit Suisse Group AG 144A sr. unsec. bonds 3.869%, 1/12/29
(Switzerland) 1,310,000 1,215,680
Digital Realty Trust LP company guaranty sr. unsec. bonds
4.45%, 7/15/28 R 4,355,000 4,279,671
Fairfax Financial Holdings, Ltd. 144A sr. unsec. notes
4.85%, 4/17/28 (Canada) 4,093,000 3,986,965
Fairfax US, Inc. 144A company guaranty sSr. unsec. notes
4.875%, 8/13/24 773,000 776,281
Fifth Third Bancorp jr. unsec. sub. FRB 5.10%, perpetual maturity 347,000 330,518
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (The) sr. unsec. FRB 4.223%, 5/1/29 12,305,000 11,930,606
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (The) sr. unsec. unsub. notes
3.85%, 1/26/27 728,000 697,569
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (The) unsec. sub. notes 6.75%, 10/1/37 527,000 615,814
Hartford Financial Services Group, Inc. (The) sr. unsec. unsub.
notes 6.625%, 3/30/40 1,969,000 2,329,362
Hospitality Properties Trust sr. unsec. notes 4.375%, 2/15/30 R 1,289,000 1,172,074
Hospitality Properties Trust sr. unsec. unsub. notes
4.65%, 3/15/24 " 136,000 134,576
Hospitality Properties Trust sr. unsec. unsub. notes
4.50%, 3/15/25 R 485,000 467,252
ING Bank NV 144A unsec. sub. notes 5.80%, 9/25/23 (Netherlands) 816,000 854,931
JPMorgan Chase & Co. sr. unsec. unsub. FRB 3.964%, 11/15/48 5,191,000 4,548,663
Liberty Mutual Group, Inc. 144A company guaranty jr. unsec. sub.
bonds 7.80%, 3/15/37 42,000 48,090
Lloyds Banking Group PLC unsec. sub. bonds 4.344%, 1/9/48
(United Kingdom) 1,225,000 1,018,057
Lloyds Banking Group PLC unsec. sub. notes 4.50%, 11/4/24
(United Kingdom) 1,191,000 1,163,728
Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance Co. 144A unsec. sub. notes
8.875%, 6/1/39 1,442,000 2,146,854
Metropolitan Life Insurance Co. 144A unsec. sub. notes 7.80%,
11/1/25 2,381,000 2,875,130
Mid-America Apartments LP sr. unsec. notes 4.30%, 10/15/23 R 45,000 45,445
Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes
3.85%, 3/1/26 (Japan) 626,000 611,703
Neuberger Berman Group, LLC/Neuberger Berman Finance Corp.
144A sr. unsec. notes 4.875%, 4/15/45 1,387,000 1,257,058
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OneAmerica Financial Partners, Inc. 144A sr. unsec. notes

7.00%, 10/15/33 $757,000 $870,156

Peachtree Corners Funding Trust 144A company guaranty Sr. unsec.

unsub. bonds 3.976%, 2/15/25 356,000 345,451

Prudential Financial, Inc. sr. unsec. notes 6.625%, 6/21/40 630,000 774,075

Royal Bank of Canada unsec. sub. notes Ser. GMTN, 4.65%,

1/27/26 (Canada) 1,126,000 1,136,874

Royal Bank of Scotland Group PLC sr. unsec. unsub. FRB

4.892%, 5/18/29 (United Kingdom) 3,860,000 3,758,281

Royal Bank of Scotland Group PLC sr. unsec. unsub. notes

3.875%, 9/12/23 (United Kingdom) 265,000 254,933

Santander UK Group Holdings PLC 144A unsec. sub. notes

4.75%, 9/15/25 (United Kingdom) 260,000 249,834

Santander UK PLC 144A unsec. sub. notes 5.00%, 11/7/23

(United Kingdom) 1,548,000 1,550,242

Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group, Inc. 144A unsec. sub. bonds 4.436%,

4/2/24 (Japan) 1,321,000 1,315,875

Teachers Insurance & Annuity Association of America 144A unsec. sub.

bonds 4.90%, 9/15/44 230,000 237,439

Teachers Insurance & Annuity Association of America 144A unsec. sub.

notes 6.85%, 12/16/39 667,000 855,352

TIAA Asset Management Finance Co., LLC 144A sr. unsec. sub. notes

4.125%, 11/1/24 24,000 24,014

Toronto-Dominion Bank (The) unsec. sub. FRB 3.625%,

9/15/31 (Canada) 1,640,000 1,526,803

UBS Group Funding Jersey, Ltd. 144A company guaranty sr. unsec.

notes 4.125%, 4/15/26 (Switzerland) 1,561,000 1,525,348

UBS Group Funding Switzerland AG company guaranty jr. unsec. sub.

FRN Ser. REGS, 6.875%, perpetual maturity (Switzerland) 200,000 197,310

VEREIT Operating Partnership LP company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

4.60%, 2/6/24 R 2,164,000 2,165,019

VEREIT Operating Partnership LP company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.

bonds 4.875%, 6/1/26 " 114,000 113,755

Wells Fargo Bank, NA unsec. sub. notes Ser. BKNT, 6.60%, 1/15/38 250,000 303,612

Willis Towers Watson PLC company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes

5.75%, 3/15/21 226,000 235,637

WP Carey, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 4.60%, 4/1/24 R 1,659,000 1,667,084
103,415,850

(2.8%)

AbbVie, Inc. sr. unsec. notes 3.60%, 5/14/25 319,000 304,697

Amgen, Inc. sr. unsec. bonds 4.663%, 6/15/51 1,776,000 1,644,379

Anthem, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 4.625%, 5/15/42 369,000 349,691

Becton Dickinson and Co. (BD) sr. unsec. unsub. bonds

4.669%, 6/6/47 3,087,000 2,898,596

Becton Dickinson and Co. (BD) sr. unsec. unsub. bonds 3.70%, 6/6/27 2,652,000 2,490,234

CVS Health Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. bonds 5.05%, 3/25/48 1,484,000 1,446,991

CVS Health Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 4.78%, 3/25/38 4,450,000 4,281,838

Elanco Animal Health, Inc. 144A sr. unsec. notes 4.90%, 8/28/28 3,589,000 3,545,516

Halfmoon Parent, Inc. 144A sr. unsub. notes 3.75%, 7/15/23 9,049,000 8,970,147

HCA, Inc. company guaranty sr. bonds 5.25%, 6/15/26 336,000 341,880
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(24.5%)

HCA, Inc. company guaranty sr. sub. bonds 5.50%, 6/15/47 $725,000 $713,400

HCA, Inc. company guaranty sr. sub. notes 5.00%, 3/15/24 1,276,000 1,291,153

Omega Healthcare Investors, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

4.50%, 4/1/27 R 1,565,000 1,498,488

Omega Healthcare Investors, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.

notes 4.95%, 4/1/24 R 1,222,000 1,230,171

Roche Holdings, Inc. 144A company guaranty sr. unsec. bonds

4.00%, 11/28/44 (Switzerland) 642,000 619,132

Service Corp. International sr. unsec. notes 4.625%, 12/15/27 666,000 624,375

Shire Acquisitions Investments lreland DAC company guaranty sr.

unsec. unsub. notes 3.20%, 9/23/26 (lreland) 1,226,000 1,109,913

Shire Acquisitions Investments lIreland DAC company guaranty sr.

unsec. unsub. notes 2.875%, 9/23/23 (lreland) 1,021,000 963,169

UnitedHealth Group, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 3.85%, 6/15/28 6,040,000 5,981,068

Zoetis, Inc. sr. unsec. notes 3.90%, 8/20/28 3,370,000 3,267,312
43,572,150

(2.4%)

Apple, Inc. sr. unsec. notes 3.45%, 5/6/24 1,216,000 1,204,742

Apple, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 4.375%, 5/13/45 269,000 267,974

Apple, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 3.85%, 5/4/43 371,000 342,241

Broadcom Corp./Broadcom Cayman Finance, Ltd. company guaranty sr.

unsec. unsub. notes 3.875%, 1/15/27 3,532,000 3,243,221

Diamond 1 Finance Corp./Diamond 2 Finance Corp. 144A company

guaranty sr. notes 6.02%, 6/15/26 3,181,000 3,296,308

Diamond 1 Finance Corp./Diamond 2 Finance Corp. 144A sr. bonds

8.35%, 7/15/46 700,000 813,451

Fidelity National Information Services, Inc. sr. unsec. sub. notes

Ser. 10Y, 4.25%, 5/15/28 2,465,000 2,421,182

Fiserv, Inc. sr. unsec. sub. bonds 4.20%, 10/1/28 6,040,000 5,978,167

Legrand France SA sr. unsec. unsub. notes 8.50%, 2/15/25 (France) 773,000 937,812

Microchip Technology, Inc. 144A company guaranty sr. notes

4.333%, 6/1/23 3,835,000 3,747,094

Microsoft Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. bonds 2.40%, 8/8/26 956,000 871,862

Microsoft Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 3.70%, 8/8/46 3,251,000 2,992,207

Oracle Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 3.25%, 11/15/27 925,000 872,904

Oracle Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 2.65%, 7/15/26 1,146,000 1,048,038

Salesforce.com, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 3.70%, 4/11/28 5,645,000 5,511,084

VMware, Inc. sr. unsec. notes 3.90%, 8/21/27 1,332,000 1,217,638

Western Digital Corp. company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

4.75%, 2/15/26 2,682,000 2,477,498
37,243,423

(0.1%)

Penske Truck Leasing Co. LP/PTL Finance Corp. 144A sr. unsec. bonds

3.40%, 11/15/26 1,282,000 1,176,785

Southwest Airlines Co. Pass Through Trust pass-through certificates

Ser. 07-1, Class A, 6.15%, 8/1/22 66,823 70,103

United Airlines, Inc. Pass-Through Trust pass-through certificates

Ser. 07-1, Class A, 6.636%, 7/2/22 250,617 262,019

United Airlines, Inc. Pass-Through Trust pass-through certificates

Ser. 14-2, Class A, 3.75%, 9/3/26 135,183 132,934

1,641,841
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(24.5%)
(1-4%)
AES Corp./Virginia (The) sr. unsec. unsub. bonds 5.125%, 9/1/27 $962,000 $949,975
American Transmission Systems, Inc. 144A sr. unsec. unsub. bonds
5.00%, 9/1/44 1,421,000 1,461,551
Appalachian Power Co. sr. unsec. unsub. notes Ser. L, 5.80%, 10/1/35 322,000 356,526
Arizona Public Services Co. sr. unsec. notes 4.50%, 4/1/42 118,000 117,576
Berkshire Hathaway Energy Co. sr. unsec. bonds 6.50%, 9/15/37 227,000 273,915
Berkshire Hathaway Energy Co. sr. unsec. unsub. bonds
6.125%, 4/1/36 555,000 654,160
Commonwealth Edison Co. sr. mtge. bonds 5.875%, 2/1/33 266,000 307,050
Consolidated Edison Co. of New York, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes
4.20%, 3/15/42 214,000 205,482
Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC sr. mtge. notes 4.25%, 12/15/41 219,000 211,026
EDP Finance BV 144A sr. unsec. unsub. notes 5.25%,
1/14/21 (Netherlands) 345,000 353,039
El Paso Natural Gas Co., LLC company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.
notes 8.375%, 6/15/32 460,000 570,501
Emera US Finance LP company guaranty sr. unsec. notes 3.55%, 6/15/26 611,000 566,315
Enbridge, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. bonds 4.25%, 12/1/26 (Canada) 686,000 674,237
Energy Transfer LP sr. sub. notes 5.875%, 1/15/24 4,189,000 4,403,686
Enterprise Products Operating, LLC company guaranty sr. unsec.
unsub. bonds 4.25%, 2/15/48 1,269,000 1,122,895
FirstEnergy Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. bonds Ser. B, 3.90%, 7/15/27 437,000 417,313
FirstEnergy Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. bonds Ser. C, 4.85%, 7/15/47 729,000 709,884
FirstEnergy Transmission, LLC 144A sr. unsec. unsub. notes
5.45%, 7/15/44 1,504,000 1,596,992
Iberdrola International BV company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. bonds
6.75%, 7/15/36 (Spain) 283,000 331,724
IPALCO Enterprises, Inc. sr. sub. notes 3.70%, 9/1/24 844,000 814,768
Kinder Morgan Energy Partners LP company guaranty sr. unsec. notes
5.40%, 9/1/44 707,000 685,223
Kinder Morgan Energy Partners LP company guaranty sr. unsec. notes
3.50%, 3/1/21 439,000 437,135
Kinder Morgan, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes
3.15%, 1/15/23 665,000 641,167
MidAmerican Funding, LLC sr. bonds 6.927%, 3/1/29 200,000 242,079
NextEra Energy Capital Holdings, Inc. company guaranty jr. unsec.
sub. FRB 4.80%, 12/1/77 962,000 859,788
Oncor Electric Delivery Co., LLC sr. notes 4.10%, 6/1/22 439,000 447,399
PacifiCorp sr. mtge. bonds 6.25%, 10/15/37 139,000 170,350
PPLWEM Ltd./Western Power Distribution, Ltd. 144A sr. unsec. unsub.
notes 5.375%, 5/1/21 (United Kingdom) 972,000 1,001,919
Puget Energy, Inc. sr. sub. notes 3.65%, 5/15/25 858,000 822,266
Texas-New Mexico Power Co. 144A 1st sr. bonds Ser. A, 9.50%, 4/1/19 1,576,000 1,617,229
23,023,170
( $398,701,167) $385,121,095
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(1.9%)
loanDepot Station Place Agency Securitization Trust 144A FRB Ser.
17-LD1, Class A, (1 Month USLIBOR + 0.80%), 3.081%, 11/25/50 $3,432,000 $3,432,000
Station Place Securitization Trust 144A
FRB Ser. 18-1, Class A, (1 Month USLIBOR + 0.90%), 3.082%,4/24/19 11,361,000 11,361,000
FRB Ser. 18-5, Class A, (1 Month USLIBOR + 0.70%), 2.882%,9/24/19 6,303,000 6,303,000
FRB Ser. 18-3, Class A, (1 Month USLIBOR + 0.70%), 2.882%,7/24/19 8,943,000 8,943,000
( $30,039,000) $30,039,000
0.9%)"
Bank of America N.A.
3.1165 LIBOR-BBA 2028 11 2018 11 3.1165 $224,005,400 $58,241
Citibank, N.A.
(3.031) LIBOR-BBA 2049 2019 3.031 17,674,600 1,238,282
(3.23) LIBOR-BBA 2049 2019 3.23 39,755,900 1,042,002
(3.29) LIBOR-BBA 2049 2019 3.29 39,755,900 803,069
3.1905 LIBOR-BBA 2028 11 2018 11 3.1905 252,810,000 755,902
(3.296) LIBOR-BBA 2028 11 2018 11 3.296 224,005,400 687,697
3.126 LIBOR-BBA 2028 11 2018 11 3.126 224,005,400 510,732
(3.3745) LIBOR-BBA 2028 11 2018 11 3.3745 252,810,000 164,327
Goldman Sachs International
(3.0325) LIBOR-BBA 2020 12 2018 12 3.0325 318,047,000 1,125,886
(3.01) LIBOR-BBA 2020 12 2018 12 3.01 318,047,000 830,103
3.2775 LIBOR-BBA 2020 2019 3.2775 318,047,000 349,852
3.0325 LIBOR-BBA 2020 12 2018 12 3.0325 318,047,000 263,979
3.01 LIBOR-BBA 2020 12 2018 12 3.01 318,047,000 165,384
2.99375 LIBOR-BBA 2020 2019 2.99375 318,047,000 162,204
JPMorgan Chase Bank N._A.
(3.25) LIBOR-BBA 2029 2019 3.25 159,023,500 1,332,617
(2.925) LIBOR-BBA 2020 11 2018 11 2.925 238,535,200 880,195
3.11 LIBOR-BBA 2028 11 2018 11 3.11 119,267,600 25,046
Morgan Stanley & Co. International PLC
3.00 LIBOR-BBA 2072 2047 3.00 18,691,900 1,578,905
3.00 LIBOR-BBA 2072 2047 3.00 18,691,900 1,577,223
(2.92875) LIBOR-BBA 2020 11 2018 11 2.92875 156,614,200 563,811
( $16,171,003) $14,115,457
0.1%)"
JPMorgan Chase Bank N_A.
Federal National Mortgage Association 2018 11
30 yr 3.00% TBA commitments $95.68 $52,000,000  $52,000,000 $3,536
Federal National Mortgage Association 2018 12
30 yr 3.50% TBA commitments 98.02 57,000,000 57,000,000 128,592
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0.1%)"

JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A.
Federal National Mortgage Association 2018 12

30 yr 3.50% TBA commitments $98.17 $57,000,000 $57,000,000 $105,564
Federal National Mortgage Association 2018 12
30 yr 3.50% TBA commitments 98.33 57,000,000 57,000,000 85,956
Federal National Mortgage Association 2018 11
30 yr 3.50% TBA commitments 99.19 57,000,000 57,000,000 57
Federal National Mortgage Association 2018 11
30 yr 3.50% TBA commitments 99.38 57,000,000 57,000,000 57
Federal National Mortgage Association 2018 11
30 yr 3.50% TBA commitments 99.56 57,000,000 57,000,000 57
Federal National Mortgage Association 2019
30 yr 3.50% TBA commitments 97.75 57,000,000 57,000,000 621,984
Federal National Mortgage Association 2019
30 yr 3.50% TBA commitments 97.59 57,000,000 57,000,000 567,207
Federal National Mortgage Association 2019
30 yr 3.50% TBA commitments 97.44 57,000,000 57,000,000 515,793
( $3,286,250) $2,028,803
©.2%)"
CA State G.0. Bonds, (Build America Bonds), 7.50%, 4/1/34 $770,000 $1,051,258
North TX, Tollway Auth. Rev. Bonds, (Build America Bonds),
6.718%, 1/1/49 675,000 930,346
OH State U. Rev. Bonds, (Build America Bonds), 4.91%, 6/1/40 845,000 930,793
( $2,294,510) $2,912,397
(20.9%)"
2018 11 2.220 35,998,220
2018 10 31 Citigroup Global Markets, Inc.
503,000,000
0.750 2.250 2019 15 2046 15
513,080,898
$35,996,000 $35,996,000
2.33 L 235,817,220 235,817,220
2.097 2018 11 s $17,152,000 17,145,030
2.146 2018 12 13 # 8 8 16,197,000 16,156,467
2.312 2019 24 8 6,465,000 6,430,964
2.163 2018 12 18 4,289,000 4,277,090
2.060 2018 11 15 "8
° 4,212,000 4,208,540
2.153 2018 11 Bl s o 4,009,000 4,009,000
2.129 2018 11 23 "8
® 1,769,000 1,766,674
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(20.9%)"
2.151 2018 12 s $1,437,000 $1,434,021
2.269 2019 10 08 691,000 688,016
2.292 2019 17 8° 668,000 664,797
( $328,594,701) $328,593,819
$2,198,408,998) $2,142,813,475
DAC
FRB
FRN
G.0. Bonds
IFB
10
PO
TBA
2017 11 2018 10 31
820 820
* 1,568,844,484
;
#
4,216,687
23,286,916
(0]
811,066
5
23,960,768
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509,251,303
144 1933 144
2018 10 31
30 102  $14,088,750 $14,088,750 2018 12 $(574,142)
30 385 57,449,219 57,449,219 2018 12 (3,748,504)
322 67,831,313 67,831,313 2018 12 (191,738)
1,772 199,142,345 199,142,345 2018 12 (1,554,128)
10 945 111,923,438 111,923,438 2018 12 (1,541,929)
10 230 28,775,156 28,775,156 2018 12 (607,804)
( ) (8,218,245)
$(8,218,245)
2018 10 31 ( $16,021,249)
Bank of America N.A.
(3.204) LIBOR-BBA 2028 11 2018 11 3.204 $112,002,700 $209,445
Barclays Bank PLC
2.813 LIBOR-BBA 2021 2019 2.813 167,414,000 1,130,045
Citibank, N.A.
3.50 LIBOR-BBA 2049 2019 3.50 39,755,900 252,848
3.2825 LIBOR-BBA 2028 11 2018 11 3.2825 126,405,000 279,355
3.43 LIBOR-BBA 2049 2019 3.43 39,755,900 366,947
3.395 LIBOR-BBA 2049 2019 3.395 39,755,900 465,542
(3.211D) LIBOR-BBA 2028 11 2018 11 3.211 112,002,700 542,093
3.33 LIBOR-BBA 2049 2019 3.33 39,755,900 640,070
3.211 LIBOR-BBA 2028 11 2018 11 3.211 112,002,700 700,017
(3.2825) LIBOR-BBA 2028 11 2018 11 3.2825 126,405,000 924,021
3.09 LIBOR-BBA 2024 2019 3.09 78,553,800 956,000
2.663 LIBOR-BBA 2021 2019 2.663 167,414,000 1,561,973
Goldman Sachs International
(3.02125) LIBOR-BBA 2022 12 2018 12 3.02125 318,047,000 419,822
(3.1325) LIBOR-BBA 2021 2019 3.1325 318,047,000 486,612
3.02125 LIBOR-BBA 2022 12 2018 12 3.02125 318,047,000 1,930,545
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2018 10 31 $16,021,249)

JPMorgan Chase Bank N_A.

3.41 LIBOR-BBA 2028 11 2018 11 3.41 $119,267,600 $2,385

3.085 LIBOR-BBA 2020 11 2018 11 3.085 238,535,200 317,252

3.005 LIBOR-BBA 2020 11 2018 11 3.005 238,535,200 570,099

3.18 LIBOR-BBA 2024 2019 3.18 148,687,000 648,275

3.26 LIBOR-BBA 2049 2019 3.26 34,667,100 791,103

2.77 LIBOR-BBA 2021 2019 2.77 445,256,000 3,277,084

Morgan Stanley & Co. International PLC

(3.00) LIBOR-BBA 2048 2025 3.00 18,691,900 1,314,041

(3.00) LIBOR-BBA 2048 2025 3.00 18,691,900 1,315,721
$19,101,295

2018 10 31 ( $3,232,813)

JPMorgan Chase Bank N._A.

Federal National Mortgage Association

30 yr 3.00% TBA commitments 2018 11 $95.68 $52,000,000 $52,000,000 $572,156

Federal National Mortgage Association

30 yr 3.50% TBA commitments 2018 12 98.36 57,000,000 57,000,000 82,878

Federal National Mortgage Association

30 yr 3.50% TBA commitments 2018 12 98.51 57,000,000 57,000,000 66,918

Federal National Mortgage Association

30 yr 3.50% TBA commitments 2018 12 98.67 57,000,000 57,000,000 53,694

Federal National Mortgage Association

30 yr 3.50% TBA commitments 2018 12 98.70 57,000,000 57,000,000 51,585

Federal National Mortgage Association

30 yr 3.50% TBA commitments 2018 12 98.85 57,000,000 57,000,000 40,983

Federal National Mortgage Association

30 yr 3.50% TBA commitments 2018 12 99.01 57,000,000 57,000,000 32,205

Federal National Mortgage Association

30 yr 3.50% TBA commitments 2018 11 99.72 57,000,000 57,000,000 57

Federal National Mortgage Association

30 yr 3.50% TBA commitments 2018 11 99.54 57,000,000 57,000,000 57

Federal National Mortgage Association

30 yr 3.50% TBA commitments 2018 11 99.91 57,000,000 57,000,000 57

Federal National Mortgage Association

30 yr 3.50% TBA commitments 2019 97.27 57,000,000 57,000,000 463,068
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2018 10 31 ( $3,232,813)
JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A.
Federal National Mortgage Association
30 yr 3.50% TBA commitments 2019 $97.11 $57,000,000 $57,000,000 $418,608
Federal National Mortgage Association
30 yr 3.50% TBA commitments 2019 96.95 57,000,000 57,000,000 377,511
Federal National Mortgage Association
30 yr 3.50% TBA commitments 2019 96.78 57,000,000 57,000,000 336,015
Federal National Mortgage Association
30 yr 3.50% TBA commitments 2019 96.63 57,000,000 57,000,000 301,644
Federal National Mortgage Association
30 yr 3.50% TBA commitments 2019 96.47 57,000,000 57,000,000 270,294

$3,067,730
2018 10 31

« )

Bank of America N.A.
(2.647) LIBOR-BBA 2024
2029 2.647 $55,656,700 $(2,176,177) $645,061
(2.785) LIBOR-BBA 2027
2047 2.785 33,394,000 (3,583,176) 588,068
2.647 LI1BOR-BBA 2024
2029 2.647 55,656,700 (2,176,177) (889,394)
2.785 LIBOR-BBA 2027
2047 2.785 33,394,000 (3,583,176) (1,646,992)
Citibank, N.A.
(2.654) LIBOR-BBA 2024
2029 2.654 55,656,700 (2,176,177) 634,486
(2.689) LIBOR-BBA 2024 11
2049 11 2.689 5,702,000 (734,133) 244,331
2.689 LIBOR-BBA 2024 11
2049 11 2.689 5,702,000 (734,133) (295,136)
2.654 LI1BOR-BBA 2024
2029 2.654 55,656,700 (2,176,177) (884,385)
Goldman Sachs International
(2.725) LIBOR-BBA 2029 11
2039 11 2.725 9,503,400 (761,698) 187,217
(3.005) LIBOR-BBA 2029 11
2039 11 3.005 9,503,400 (658,586) 159,752
(2.8175) L1BOR-BBA 2027
2047 2.8175 6,678,900 (843,211) 148,472
3.169 LIBOR-BBA 2018 11
2028 11 3.169 224,005,400 (909,462) (15,680)
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2018 10 31
C )
Goldman Sachs International
2.725 LIBOR-BBA 2029 11
2039 11 2.725 $9,503,400 $(761,698) $(207,079)
3.005 LIBOR-BBA 2029 11
2039 11 3.005 9,503,400 (864,809) (218,293)
2.8175 LIBOR-BBA 2027
2047 2.8175 6,678,900 (843,211) (270,429)
(3.229) LIBOR-BBA 2018 11
2028 11 3.229 112,002,700 686,950 (8,960)
3.379 L1BOR-BBA 2018 11
2028 11 3.379 112,002,700 201,605 (8,960)
JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A.
(2.8325) L1BOR-BBA 2022
2052 2.8325 33,394,000 (4,662,637) 322,586
(2.902) LIBOR-BBA 2024 11
2049 11 2.902 5,702,000 (611,825) 229,448
(2.50) LIBOR-BBA 2029 11
2039 11 2.50 9,503,400 (988,354) 111,380
2.50 L1BOR-BBA 2029 11
2039 11 2.50 9,503,400 (549,297) (96,935)
3.062 LIBOR-BBA 2018 12
2028 12 3.062 143,427,700 (431,478) (172,113)
2.902 LIBOR-BBA 2024 11
2049 11 2.902 5,702,000 (881,529) (358,428)
2.8325 LIBOR-BBA 2022
2052 2.8325 33,394,000 (4,662,637) (2,483,846)
2021
(5.00 ) 2021 5.00 1,000,000 222,000 158,750
3.302 LIBOR-BBA 2018 12
2028 12 3.302 143,427,700 392,036 (166,375)
Morgan Stanley & Co. International PLC
(2.505) LIBOR-BBA 2024 11
2049 11 2.505 5,702,000 (873,546) 236,006
@3.27) LIBOR-BBA 2023 10
2053 10 3.27 1,179,600 (134,592) 5,332
3.27 L1BOR-BBA 2023 10
2053 10 3.27 1,179,600 (134,592) (861)
2.505 LIBOR-BBA 2024 11
2049 11 2.505 5,702,000 (613,535) (238,743)
3,670,889
( ) (7,962,609)
$(4,291,720)
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2018 10 31 ( $311,768,516)
( )
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, 3.50%, 11/1/48 $5,000,000 11/13/18 $4,866,797
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, 3.00%, 11/1/48 2,000,000 11/13/18 1,891,250
Federal National Mortgage Association, 4.00%, 11/1/48 1,000,000 11/13/18 999,922
Federal National Mortgage Association, 3.50%, 11/1/48 82,000,000 11/13/18 79,809,058
Federal National Mortgage Association, 3.00%, 12/1/48 70,000,000 12/13/18 66,125,388
Federal National Mortgage Association, 3.00%, 11/1/48 111,000,000 11/13/18 104,973,044
Government National Mortgage Association, 5.00%, 11/1/48 20,000,000 11/19/18 20,790,624
Government National Mortgage Association, 4.50%, 11/1/48 31,000,000 11/19/18 31,794,375
$311,250,458
2018 10 31
( )
( )
$313,228,300 $1,426,755 $(655,045) 10/5/20 2.8225% 3 month USD- $698,952
Semiannually  LIBOR-BBA-
Quarterly
5,000,000 4,985 (€Y 5/26/20 3 month USD- 6 month USD- (4,244)
LI1BOR-BBA LIBOR-BBA-
plus 12.70%  Semiannually
Semiannually
74,668,500 1,820,567 422,754 9/25/28 3 month USD- 2.936% (1,360,669)
L 1BOR-BBA- Semiannually
Quarterly
149,336,900 2,487,803 (412,657) 9/25/28 3.026% 3 month USD- 1,987,417
Semiannually  LIBOR-BBA-
Quarterly
119,267,600 625,797 111,723 10/11/28 3 month USD- 3.16% (473,090)
L 1BOR-BBA- Semiannually
Quarterly
112,002,700 2,418,138 597,729 10/9/28 3 month USD- 2.97% (1,789,438)
LIBOR-BBA- Semiannually
Quarterly
224,005,400 3,293,103 (607,785) 10/9/28 3.05%- 3 month USD- 2,612,426
Semiannually LIBOR-BBA-
Quarterly
74,668,500 1,328,278 424,620 10/16/28 3 month USD- 3.015% (890,711)
L1BOR-BBA- Semiannually
Quarterly
149,336,900 1,561,765 (435,057) 10/16/28 3.10% 3 month USD- 1,095,526
Semiannually LIBOR-BBA-
Quarterly
439,860,600 699,378 E (167,418) 12/19/20 3.05% 3 month USD- 531,961
Semiannually  LIBOR-BBA-
Quarterly
3,572,500 5,680 E 1,253 12/19/20 3 month USD- 3.05% (4,427)
L 1BOR-BBA- Semiannually
Quarterly
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2018 10 31
( )
( )
$294,081,500 $739,615 E  $(901,801) 12/19/23 3.10% 3 month USD- $(162,186)
Semiannually LIBOR-BBA-
Quarterly
183,130,700 1,387,581 E 137,067 12/19/28 3 month USD-  3.15% (1,250,513)
L 1BOR-BBA- Semiannually
Quarterly
465,000 9,072 E 2,522 12/19/48 3.20% 3 month USD- 11,594
Semiannually LIBOR-BBA-
Quarterly
24,152,500 471,215 € (135,248) 12/19/48 3 month USD-  3.20% (606,463)
L1BOR-BBA- Semiannually
Quarterly
3,136,100 15,113 44) 10/30/28 3.167% 3 month USD- 15,232
Semiannually LIBOR-BBA-
Quarterly
114,242,800 972,435 (1,515) 10/2/28 3.1215% 3 month USD- 911,983
Semiannually LIBOR-BBA-
Quarterly
2,862,400 39,664 E (98) 1/7/49 3.23% 3 month USD- 39,567
Semiannually  LIBOR-BBA-
Quarterly
6,421,500 12,907 E (91) 11/7/28 3.204% 3 month USD- 12,816
Semiannually LIBOR-BBA-
Quarterly
8,746,300 7,819 (124) 10/22/28 3.2325% 3 month USD- (9,013)
Semiannually LIBOR-BBA-
Quarterly
2,385,400 4,819 E (81) 1711749 3.29% 3 month USD- 4,737
Semiannually  LIBOR-BBA-
Quarterly
35,100,000 164,163 (465) 10/9/28 3 month USD-  3.275% 179,945
L 1BOR-BBA- Semiannually
Quarterly
35,100,000 115,093 (465) 10/9/28 3 month USD-  3.25877% 130,527
L 1BOR-BBA- Semiannually
Quarterly
35,100,000 102,948 (465) 10/9/28 3 month USD-  3.25475% 118,297
L 1BOR-BBA- Semiannually
Quarterly
35,100,000 101,474 (465) 10/9/28 3 month USD-  3.25427% 116,812
L1BOR-BBA- Semiannually
Quarterly
35,100,000 131,836 (465) 10/9/28 3 month USD-  3.26431% 147,389
L1BOR-BBA- Semiannually
Quarterly
40,551,000 114,962 E (574) 11/7/28 3.26% 3 month USD- (115,536)
Semiannually LIBOR-BBA-
Quarterly
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2018 10 31
)
( )
$6,738,000 $21,528 $(89) 10/11/28 3 month USD-  3.258%- $24,121
L 1BOR-BBA- Semiannually
Quarterly
24,912,000 106,300 (330) 10/12/28 3 month USD-  3.2705% 115,405
L 1BOR-BBA- Semiannually
Quarterly
182,500 203 (¢D) 10/15/23 3 month USD-  3.1545% 247
L 1BOR-BBA- Semiannually
Quarterly
57,282,500 64,099 (463) 10/15/23 3.15468%- 3 month USD- (78,975)
Semiannually LIBOR-BBA-
Quarterly
69,395,500 11,450 (561) 10/15/23 3.13395% 3 month USD- (28,832)
Semiannually LIBOR-BBA-
Quarterly
35,958,000 13,089 77 10/16/28 3.214703%- 3 month USD- 3,350
Semiannually LIBOR-BBA-
Quarterly
41,816,000 14,552 (554) 10/18/28 3.2255%- 3 month USD- (24,059)
Semiannually  LIBOR-BBA-
Quarterly
46,361,000 24,293 (615) 10/19/28 3 month USD-  3.2155%- (16,227)
L 1BOR-BBA- Semiannually
Quarterly
39,377,500 91,750 (522) 10/19/28 3 month USD-  3.24857% 99,035
L 1BOR-BBA- Semiannually
Quarterly
39,377,500 89,820 (522) 10/19/28 3 month USD-  3.248%- 97,098
L1BOR-BBA- Semiannually
Quarterly
22,364,000 79,884 (297) 10/22/28 3 month USD-  3.2635%- 82,496
L 1BOR-BBA- Semiannually
Quarterly
1,133,000 4,733 (15) 10/22/28 3 month USD-  3.2705% 4,867
L 1BOR-BBA- Semiannually
Quarterly
53,587,000 91,098 (711) 10/23/28 3.242% 3 month USD- (97,229)
Semiannually LIBOR-BBA-
Quarterly
31,519,000 117,566 (418) 10/23/28 3 month USD-  3.2655%- 120,501
L1BOR-BBA- Semiannually
Quarterly
17,887,000 54,698 (237) 10/24/28 3 month USD-  3.258%- 55,906
L1BOR-BBA- Semiannually
Quarterly
34,092,000 38,899 (452) 10/25/28 3.2095%- 3 month USD- 36,716
Semiannually LIBOR-BBA-
Quarterly
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2018 10 31
( )
( )
$26,154,000 $19,563 $(347) 10/26/28 3.2145% 3 month USD- $18,472
Semiannually LIBOR-BBA-
Quarterly
21,811,500 36,600 (289) 10/29/28 3.203% 3 month USD- 36,990
Semiannually LIBOR-BBA-
Quarterly
26,348,000 142,938 (349) 10/30/28 3.16%- 3 month USD- 143,965
Semiannually LIBOR-BBA-
Quarterly
42,777,500 303,464 (567) 10/30/28 3.14072%- 3 month USD- 305,154
Semiannually LIBOR-BBA-
Quarterly
42,777,500 304,105 (567) 10/30/28 3.14054% 3 month USD- 305,796
Semiannually LIBOR-BBA-
Quarterly
53,197,000 308,596 (705) 10/31/28 3.155% 3 month USD- 311,615
Semiannually LIBOR-BBA-
Quarterly
75,156,100 341,209 E (1,064) 12/6/28 3.182% 3 month USD- 340,144
Semiannually  LIBOR-BBA-
Quarterly
37,081,000 15,574 (492) 11/72/28 3 month USD-  3.21469%- (16,066)
L 1BOR-BBA- Semiannually
Quarterly
67,201,600 2,688 E (957) 12/4/28 3.229% 3 month USD- 1,732
Semiannually LIBOR-BBA-
Quarterly
$(1,633,827) $3,791,113
E
2018 10 31
( ) «c )
( )
Bank of America N.A.
$158,475  $158,695 $ 1/12/41 4.00% Synthetic TRS $1,505
(1 month Index 4.00% 30
USD-LIBOR)- year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
285,383 284,837 - 1/12/41 4.50% Synthetic TRS 1,860
(1 month Index 4.50% 30
USD-LIBOR)-  year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
Barclays Bank PLC
493,151 489,268 — 1/12/36 (5-50%) Synthetic TRS (1,504)
1 month USD- Index 5.50% 30
LIBOR- year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
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Barclays Bank PLC
$171,726  $171,545 $ 1/12/40 4.50% Synthetic MBX $(5)
(1 month Index 4.50% 30
USD-LIBOR)-  year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
124,719 124,893 - 1/12/41 4.00% Synthetic TRS 1,185
(1 month Index 4.00% 30
USD-LIBOR)-  year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
390,540 389,754 - 1/12/40 4.00% Synthetic MBX (464)
(1 month Index 4.00% 30
USD-LIBOR)-  year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
181,166 179,957 - 1/12/39 6.00% Synthetic TRS 789
(1 month Index 6.00% 30
USD-LIBOR)- year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
2,579,502 2,574,309 - 1/12/40 4.00% Synthetic MBX (3,062)
(1 month Index 4.00% 30
USD-LIBOR)-  year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
39,102 38,834 - 1/12/38 6.50% Synthetic TRS 173
(1 month Index 6.50% 30
USD-LIBOR)-  year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
294,518 293,825 - 1/12/41 5.00% Synthetic MBX (334)
(1 month Index 5.00% 30
USD-LIBOR)-  year Ginnie Mae
Monthly 11 pools-
Monthly
405,294 405,856 - 1712741 4.00% Synthetic TRS 3,849
(1 month Index 4.00% 30
USD-LIBOR)-  year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
1,917,662 1,915,633 - 1/12/40 4.50% Synthetic MBX (52)
(1 month Index 4.50% 30
USD-LIBOR)-  year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
2,589,347 2,591,561 - 1/12/39 (6.00%) Synthetic MBX (6,414)
1 month USD- Index 6.00% 30
LIBOR- year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
346,429 344,053 - 1/12/38 6.50% Synthetic TRS 1,532
(1 month Index 6.50% 30
USD-LIBOR)- year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
99,517 99,701 - 1/12/41 (5.00%) Synthetic TRS (1,095)
1 month USD- Index 5.00% 30
LIBOR- year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
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Barclays Bank PLC
$601,306  $600,414 $ 1/12/43 3.50% Synthetic TRS $3,620
(1 month Index 3.50% 30
USD-LIBOR)-  year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
60,228 60,138 — 1/12/43 3.50% Synthetic TRS 363
(1 month Index 3.50% 30
USD-LIBOR)-  year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
3,886,835 3,880,518 - 1/12/40 5.00% Synthetic MBX (1,540)
(1 month Index 5.00% 30
USD-LIBOR)-  year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
40,410,396 40,344,814 - 1/12/41 5.00% Synthetic MBX (16,066)
(1 month Index 5.00% 30
USD-LIBOR)- year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
44,064,059 44,064,059 — 1/12/38 (6-50%) Synthetic MBX (77,805)
1 month USD- Index 6.50% 30
LIBOR- year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
Citibank, N.A.
3,306,018 3,300,653 - 1/12/41 5.00% Synthetic MBX (1,314)
(1 month Index 5.00% 30
USD-LIBOR)-  year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
783,339 782,068 - 1/12/41 5.00% Synthetic MBX (311)
(1 month Index 5.00% 30
USD-LIBOR)- year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
Credit Suisse International
7,485,041 7,465,986 - 1/12/41 4.50% Synthetic MBX (11,497)
(1 month Index 4.50% 30
USD-LIBOR)-  year Ginnie Mae
Monthly 11 pools-
Monthly
267,345 267,345 - 1712739 (5.00%) Synthetic TRS (2,646)
1 month USD- Index 5.00% 30
LIBOR- year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
173,364 173,107 - 1/12/43 3.50% Synthetic TRS 1,044
(1 month Index 3.50% 30
USD-LIBOR)-  year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
481,587 482,479 - 1/12/41 (5.00%) Synthetic TRS (5,299)
1 month USD- Index 5.00% 30
LIBOR- year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
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Credit Suisse International
$956,452  $963,082 $ 1/12/41 5.00% Synthetic MBX $15,597
(1 month Index 5.00% 30
USD-LIBOR)-  year Ginnie Mae
Monthly 11 pools-
Monthly
533,088 532,699 1712744 3.50% Synthetic TRS 3,539
(1 month Index 3.50% 30
USD-LIBOR)- year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
606,985 607,828 1712741 4.00% Synthetic TRS 5,765
(1 month Index 4.00% 30
USD-LIBOR)-  year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
479,460 479,110 1/12/44 3.50% Synthetic TRS 3,183
(1 month Index 3.50% 30
USD-LIBOR)-  year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
349,386 349,131 1/12/44  3.50% Synthetic TRS 2,320
(1 month Index 3.50% 30
USD-LIBOR)-  year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
523,833 523,833 1/12/45 3.50% Synthetic TRS 3,763
(1 month Index 3.50% 30
USD-LIBOR)- year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
1,632,503 1,631,414 1/12/45 4.00% Synthetic TRS 11,558
(1 month Index 4.00% 30
USD-LIBOR)-  year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
571,699 571,317 1/12/45 4.00% Synthetic TRS 4,048
(1 month Index 4.00% 30
USD-LIBOR)-  year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
562,282 562,282 1/12/45 3.50% Synthetic TRS 4,039
(1 month Index 3.50% 30
USD-LIBOR)-  year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
2,460,454 2,463,869 1/12/41 (4.00%) Synthetic TRS (23,369)
1 month USD- Index 4.00% 30
LIBOR- year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
Goldman Sachs International
496,782 493,375 1/12/38 6.50% Synthetic TRS 2,197
(1 month Index 6.50% 30
USD-LIBOR)-  year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
383,229 380,601 1/12/38 6.50% Synthetic TRS 1,695
(1 month Index 6.50% 30
USD-LIBOR)-  year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
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Goldman Sachs International
$1,130,955 $1,123,411 $ 1/12/39 6.00% Synthetic TRS $4,923
(1 month Index 6.00% 30
USD-LIBOR)- year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
481,360 478,059 — 1/12/38 6.50% Synthetic TRS 2,129
(1 month Index 6.50% 30
USD-LIBOR)-  year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
206,894 206,498 - 1/12/41 4.50% Synthetic TRS 1,349
(1 month Index 4.50% 30
USD-LIBOR)-  year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
2,942,225 2,942,225 - 1/12/38 (6-50%) Synthetic MBX (5,195)
1 month USD- Index 6.50% 30
LIBOR- year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
1,105,313 1,105,313 - 1/12/38 (6-50%) Synthetic MBX (1,952)
1 month USD- Index 6.50% 30
LIBOR- year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
493,151 489,268 — 1/12/36 5.50% Synthetic TRS 1,504
(1 month Index 5.50% 30
USD-LIBOR)- year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
42,284 42,342 - 1/12/41 4.00% Synthetic TRS 402
(1 month Index 4.00% 30
USD-LIBOR)- year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
14,626 14,529 - 1/12/39 6.00% Synthetic TRS 64
(1 month Index 6.00% 30
USD-LIBOR)-  year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
449,822 446,822 - 1/12/39 6.00% Synthetic TRS 1,958
(1 month Index 6.00% 30
USD-LIBOR)- year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
4,030,537 4,030,537 - 1/12/38 (6-50%) Synthetic MBX (7,117)
1 month USD- Index 6.50% 30
LIBOR- year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
149,452 149,452 — 1/12/38 (6-50%) Synthetic MBX (264)
1 month USD- Index 6.50% 30
LIBOR- year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
398,493 398,493 — 1/12/38 (6-50%) Synthetic MBX (704)
1 month USD- Index 6.50% 30
LIBOR- year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
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Goldman Sachs International
$165,532  $164,397 $ 1/12/38 6.50% Synthetic TRS $732
(1 month Index 6.50% 30
USD-LIBOR)-  year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
544,433 540,700 - 1/712/38 6.50% Synthetic TRS 2,408
(1 month Index 6.50% 30
USD-LIBOR)-  year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
812,020 806,603 - 1/12/39 6.00% Synthetic TRS 3,535
(1 month Index 6.00% 30
USD-LIBOR)-  year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
993,402 994,781 - 1712741 4.00% Synthetic TRS 9,435
(1 month Index 4.00% 30
USD-LIBOR)- year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
939,585 941,324 - 1712741 (5.00%) Synthetic TRS (10,338)
1 month USD- Index 5.00% 30
LIBOR- year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
968,728 968,021 - 1/12/44 3.50% Synthetic TRS 6,431
(1 month Index 3.50% 30
USD-LIBOR)-  year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
567,398 567,019 - 1712745 4.00% Synthetic TRS 4,017
(1 month Index 4.00% 30
USD-LIBOR)-  year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
626,085 625,156 - 1712743 (3.50%) Synthetic TRS (3,769)
1 month USD- Index 3.50% 30
LIBOR- year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
1,093,809 1,096,569 - 1/12/744 (3.00%) Synthetic TRS (10,697)
1 month USD- Index 3.00% 30
LIBOR- year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A.
129,294 129,474 - 1/12/41 4.00% Synthetic TRS 1,228
(1 month Index 4.00% 30
USD-LIBOR)-  year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
939,625 941,364 - 1712741 (5.00%) Synthetic TRS (10,339)
1 month USD- Index 5.00% 30
LIBOR- year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
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JPMorgan Securities LLC
$1,962,166 $1,942,452 $ 1/12/44  4.00% Synthetic TRS $(4,442)
(1 month Index 4.00% 30
USD-LIBOR)- year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
1,797,574 1,796,261 - 1/12/744 (3.50%) Synthetic TRS (11,934)
1 month USD- Index 3.50% 30
LIBOR- year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
1,962,166 1,942,452 - 1/12/44 (4.00%) Synthetic TRS 4,442
1 month USD- Index 4.00% 30
LIBOR- year Fannie Mae
Monthly pools- Monthly
623,109 627,428 - 1/12/41 (5.00%) Synthetic MBX (10,162)
1 month USD- Index 5.00% 30
LIBOR- year Ginnie Mae
Monthly Il pools-
Monthly
— 118,181
( ) — ( (229,690)
$ $(111,509)
2018 10 31
) « )
( )
$9,405,000 $132,178 $ 7/3/22  (1.9225%)- USA Non Revised $132,178
At maturity  Consumer Price
Index-Urban
(CPI-U)- At
maturity
9,405,000 162,067 — 7/3/27 2.085% USA Non Revised (162,067)
At maturity  Consumer Price
Index-Urban
(CPI-U)- At
maturity
10,792,000 169,963 - 7/5/22  (1.89%)- USA Non Revised 169,963
At maturity  Consumer Price
Index-Urban
(CPI-U)- At
maturity
10,792,000 222,682 - 7/5/27 2.05% USA Non Revised (222,682)
At maturity  Consumer Price
Index-Urban
(CPI-U)- At
maturity
$ $(82,608)
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Bank of America N.A.
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P $13,534  $198,000 $27,562 5/11/63 300 bp- $(13,912)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 26,395 438,000 60,970 5/11/63 300 bp- (34,319)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 54,079 876,000 121,939 5/11/63 300 bp- (67,349)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 51,528 904,000 125,837 5/11/63 300 bp- (73,782)
Index Monthly
Citigroup Global Markets, Inc.
CMBX NA A.6 A/P (131) 337,000 7,717 5/11/63 200 bp- (7,717)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA A.6 A/P 308 397,000 9,091 5/11/63 200 bp- (8,629)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA A.6 A/P 462 397,000 9,091 5/11/63 200 bp- (8,475)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BB.7 BB/P 116,708 908,000 133,294 1/17/47 500 bp- (15,703)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 35,971 327,000 45,518 5/11/63 300 bp- (9,356)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 38,298 359,000 49,973 5/11/63 300 bp- (11,465)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6 ~ BBB-/P 53,902 490,000 68,208 5/11/63 300 bp- (14,020)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 66,061 673,000 93,682 5/11/63 300 bp- (27,229)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 73,033 730,000 101,616 5/11/63 300 bp- (28,157)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 107,308 1,087,000 151,310 5/11/63 300 bp- (43,368)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 126,206 1,144,000 159,245 5/11/63 300 bp- (32,372)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 169,734 1,670,000 232,464 5/11/63 300 bp- (61,756)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 206,990 2,168,000 301,786 5/11/63 300 bp- (93,531)
Index Monthly
Credit Suisse International
CMBX NA A.6 A/P 132,715 2,662,000 60,960 5/11/63 200 bp- 72,790
Index Monthly
CMBX NA A_6 A/P 2,036,197 40,122,000 918,794 5/11/63 200 bp- 1,133,006
Index Monthly
CMBX NA A.7 A-/P 11,938 287,000 1,521 1/17/47 200 bp- 10,529
Index Monthly
CMBX NA A.7 A-/P 102,321 2,780,000 14,734 1/17/47 200 bp- 88,668
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 67,149 665,000 92,568 5/11/63 300 bp- (25,031)
Index Monthly

146/322



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad
2018 10 31

**

. T ¢ )
( )

Credit Suisse International

CMBX NA BBB-.6 BBB-/P $111,485 $1,014,000 $141,149 5/11/63 300 bp- $(29,072)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 142,334 1,265,000 176,088 5/11/63 300 bp- (33,016)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 214,399 1,693,000 235,666 5/11/63 300 bp- (20,279)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 271,905 2,342,000 326,006 5/11/63 300 bp- (52,735)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 232,198 2,368,000 329,626 5/11/63 300 bp- (96,047)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 264,277 2,500,000 348,000 5/11/63 300 bp- (82,265)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 283,039 2,530,000 352,176 5/11/63 300 bp- (67,662)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 306,540 2,573,000 358,162 5/11/63 300 bp- (50,121)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 280,186 2,576,000 358,579 5/11/63 300 bp- (76,891)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB—/P 1,723,028 16,115,000 2,243,208 5/11/63 300 bp- (510,780)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.7  BBB-/P 143,564 2,186,000 137,062 1/17/47 300 bp- 7,777
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.7  BBB-/P 210,436 2,847,000 178,507 1/17/47 300 bp- 33,589
Index Monthly

Goldman Sachs International

CMBX NA A.6 A/P 5,271 168,000 3,847 5/11/63 200 bp- 1,489
Index Monthly

CMBX NA A.6 A/P 16,026 526,000 12,045 5/11/63 200 bp- 4,185
Index Monthly

CMBX NA A.6 A/P 40,497 800,000 18,320 5/11/63 200 bp- 22,488
Index Monthly

CMBX NA A.6 A/P 65,795 1,256,000 28,762 5/11/63 200 bp- 37,521
Index Monthly

CMBX NA A.6 A/P 88,084 1,783,000 40,831 5/11/63 200 bp- 47,947
Index Monthly

CMBX NA A.6 A/P 55,332 1,789,000 40,968 5/11/63 200 bp- 15,060
Index Monthly

CMBX NA A.6 A/P 109,667 1,964,000 44,976 5/11/63 200 bp- 65,455
Index Monthly

CMBX NA A.6 A/P 165,367 2,518,000 57,662 5/11/63 200 bp- 108,684
Index Monthly

CMBX NA A.6 A/P 130,272 2,529,000 57,914 5/11/63 200 bp- 73,342
Index Monthly

CMBX NA A.6 A/P 152,946 2,939,000 67,303 5/11/63 200 bp- 86,786
Index Monthly

CMBX NA A.6 A/P 148,581 3,016,000 69,066 5/11/63 200 bp- 80,688
Index Monthly
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Goldman Sachs International
CMBX NA A.6 A/P $224,300 $3,497,000 $80,081 5/11/63 200 bp- $145,579
Index Monthly
CMBX NA A.6 A/P 285,860 5,647,000 129,316 5/11/63 200 bp- 158,740
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 12,607 146,000 20,323 5/11/63 300 bp- (7,631)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 18,143 375,000 52,200 5/11/63 300 bp- (33,839)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 43,346 392,000 54,566 5/11/63 300 bp- (10,992)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 43,557 401,000 55,819 5/11/63 300 bp- (12,028)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 43,389 401,000 55,819 5/11/63 300 bp- (12,197)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 39,801 503,000 70,018 5/11/63 300 bp- (29,923)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 34,791 667,000 92,846 5/11/63 300 bp- (57,666)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 33,283 671,000 93,403 5/11/63 300 bp- (59,729)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 32,711 671,000 93,403 5/11/63 300 bp- (60,300)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 77,301 714,000 99,389 5/11/63 300 bp- (21,671)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 98,179 933,000 129,874 5/11/63 300 bp- (31,151)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 68,535 1,006,000 140,035 5/11/63 300 bp- (70,913)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 134,237 1,144,000 159,245 5/11/63 300 bp- (24,341)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 200,757 1,446,000 201,283 5/11/63 300 bp- 317
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.7  BBB-/P 49,185 605,000 37,934 1/17/47 300 bp- 11,605
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.7  BBB-/P 126,786 1,819,000 114,051 1/17/47 300 bp- 13,795
Index Monthly
JPMorgan Securities LLC
CMBX NA BB.6 BB/P 149,214 705,000 172,584 5/11/63 500 bp- (22,685)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA A.6 A/P 3,572 67,000 1,534 5/11/63 200 bp- 2,064
Index Monthly
CMBX NA A.6 A/P 9,475 208,000 4,763 5/11/63 200 bp- 4,793
Index Monthly
CMBX NA A.6 A/P 9,924 576,000 13,190 5/11/63 200 bp- (3,043)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA A.6 A/P 26,447 922,000 21,114 5/11/63 200 bp- 5,692
Index Monthly
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JPMorgan Securities LLC

CMBX NA A.6 A/P $106,467 $1,965,000 $44,999 5/11/63 200 bp- $62,233
Index Monthly

CMBX NA A.6 A/P 118,037 2,331,000 53,380 5/11/63 200 bp- 65,564
Index Monthly

CMBX NA A.6 A/P 126,001 2,507,000 57,410 5/11/63 200 bp- 69,566
Index Monthly

CMBX NA A_6 A/P 88,458 2,688,000 61,555 5/11/63 200 bp- 27,948
Index Monthly

CMBX NA A.6 A/P 173,376 3,385,000 77,517 5/11/63 200 bp- 97,175
Index Monthly

CMBX NA A.6 A/P 218,564 4,026,000 92,195 5/11/63 200 bp- 127,934
Index Monthly

CMBX NA A.6 A/P 250,960 4,947,000 113,286 5/11/63 200 bp- 140,315
Index Monthly

CMBX NA A.6 A/P 249,808 5,000,000 114,500 5/11/63 200 bp- 137,252
Index Monthly

CMBX NA A.6 A/P 530,174 9,000,000 206,100 5/11/63 200 bp- 327,574
Index Monthly

CMBX NA A.6 A/P 1,032,363 17,500,000 400,750 5/11/63 200 bp- 638,418
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 42,939 379,000 52,757 5/11/63 300 bp- (9,596)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 59,512 383,000 53,314 5/11/63 300 bp- 6,421
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 49,440 408,000 56,794 5/11/63 300 bp- (7,116)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 54,150 466,000 64,867 5/11/63 300 bp- (10,445)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 58,291 503,000 70,018 5/11/63 300 bp- (11,434)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 71,340 597,000 83,102 5/11/63 300 bp- (11,414)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 78,081 688,000 95,770 5/11/63 300 bp- (17,288)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 79,859 712,000 99,110 5/11/63 300 bp- (18,836)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 78,422 714,000 99,389 5/11/63 300 bp- (20,550)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 103,193 732,000 101,894 5/11/63 300 bp- 1,726
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 78,850 733,000 102,034 5/11/63 300 bp- (22,756)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 78,850 733,000 102,034 5/11/63 300 bp- (22,756)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 89,047 751,000 104,539 5/11/63 300 bp- (15,054)
Index Monthly
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JPMorgan Securities LLC

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P $77,823  $787,000  $109,550 5/11/63 300 bp- $(31,268)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 102,625 821,000 114,283 5/11/63 300 bp- (11,179)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 83,066 867,000 120,686 5/11/63 300 bp- (37,115)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 124,021 1,015,000 141,288 5/11/63 300 bp- (16,675)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 117,980 1,072,000 149,222 5/11/63 300 bp- (30,618)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 130,849 1,173,000 163,282 5/11/63 300 bp- (31,749)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 133,775 1,411,000 196,411 5/11/63 300 bp- (61,813)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 188,866 1,524,000 212,141 5/11/63 300 bp- (22,386)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 151,727 1,574,000 219,101 5/11/63 300 bp- (66,456)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6 BBB-/P 197,015 1,785,000 248,472 5/11/63 300 bp- (50,416)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 260,606 2,345,000 326,424 5/11/63 300 bp- (64,450)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 270,691 2,455,000 341,736 5/11/63 300 bp- (69,613)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 283,809 2,467,000 343,406 5/11/63 300 bp- (58,158)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 322,766 2,684,000 373,613 5/11/63 300 bp- (49,281)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 322,766 2,684,000 373,613 5/11/63 300 bp- (49,281)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 326,047 2,766,000 385,027 5/11/63 300 bp- (57,366)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 309,169 2,891,000 402,427 5/11/63 300 bp- (91,572)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 939,015 7,841,000 1,091,467 5/11/63 300 bp- (147,878)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 1,457,400 8,284,000 1,153,133 5/11/63 300 bp- 309,100
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.7  BBB-/P 392 15,000 941 1/17/47 300 bp- (540)
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.7  BBB-/P 93,740 709,000 44,454 1/17/47 300 bp- 49,700
Index Monthly

CMBX NA BBB-.7  BBB-/P 436,274 3,609,000 226,284 1/17/47 300 bp- 212,095
Index Monthly
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Merrill Lynch International
CMBX NA A.6 A/P $29,775 $2,100,000 $48,090 5/11/63 200 bp- $(17,498)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 41,803 370,000 51,504 5/11/63 300 bp- (9,485)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 116,427 991,000 137,947 5/11/63 300 bp- (20,942)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 170,644 1,443,000 200,866 5/11/63 300 bp- (29,380)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 284,572 2,540,000 353,568 5/11/63 300 bp- (67,515)
Index Monthly
Morgan Stanley & Co. International PLC
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 201,817 1,459,000 203,093 5/11/63 300 bp- (425)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA A.6 A/P - 643,000 14,725 5/11/63 200 bp- (14,474)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA A.6 A/P 3,311 1,218,000 27,892 5/11/63 200 bp- (24,108)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 37,481 329,000 45,797 5/11/63 300 bp- (8,124)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 60,396 493,000 68,626 5/11/63 300 bp- (7,942)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6 ~ BBB-/P 59,702 504,000 70,157 5/11/63 300 bp- (10,160)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 65,454 556,000 77,395 5/11/63 300 bp- (11,616)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 66,515 562,000 78,230 5/11/63 300 bp- (11,387)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 198,484 1,754,000 244,157 5/11/63 300 bp- (44,650)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 301,001 2,484,000 345,773 5/11/63 300 bp- (43,323)
Index Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.6  BBB-/P 448,144 3,500,000 487,200 5/11/63 300 bp- (35,844)
Index Monthly

22,649,596 4,505,610

( ) (131) ( ) (3,525,080)
$22,649,465 $980,530
2018 10 31
/P
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Citigroup Global Markets, Inc.

CMBX NA A.7 Index $(1,164) $157,000 $832 1/17/47 (200 bp)- $(393)
Monthly

CMBX NA BB.7 Index (28,902) 177,000 25,984 1/17/47 (500 bp)- (3,091)
Monthly

CMBX NA BB.9 Index (142,029) 922,000 141,066 9/17/58 (500 bp)- (1,859)
Monthly

CMBX NA BB.9 Index (142,669) 922,000 141,066 9/17/58 (500 bp)- (2,500)
Monthly

CMBX NA BB.9 Index (139,805) 908,000 138,924 9/17/58 (500 bp)- (1,764)
Monthly

CMBX NA BB.9 Index (71,701) 458,000 70,074 9/17/58 (500 bp)- (2,072)
Monthly

Credit Suisse International

CMBX NA BB.7 Index (118,205) 6,697,000 1,639,426 5/11/63 (500 bp)- 1,534,353
Monthly

CMBX NA BB.7 Index (761,903) 4,632,000 679,978 1/17/47 (500 bp)- (86,429)
Monthly

CMBX NA BB.7 Index (173,028) 938,000 137,698 1/17/47 (500 bp)- (36,242)
Monthly

CMBX NA BB.9 Index (226,349) 1,418,000 216,954 9/17/58 (500 bp)- (10,773)
Monthly

CMBX NA BB.9 Index (59,440) 386,000 59,058 9/17/58 (500 bp)- (758)
Monthly

CMBX NA BB.9 Index (36,130) 231,000 35,343 9/17/58 (500 bp)- (1,012)
Monthly

Goldman Sachs International

CMBX NA BB.6 Index (392,011) 3,832,000 938,074 5/11/63 (500 bp)- 542,337
Monthly

CMBX NA BB.7 Index (241,670) 1,597,000 234,440 1/17/47 (500 bp)- (8,783)
Monthly

CMBX NA BB.6 Index (44,124) 302,000 73,930 5/11/63 (500 bp)- 29,512
Monthly

CMBX NA BB.7 Index (691,993) 3,408,000 500,294 1/17/47 (500 bp)- (195,012)
Monthly

CMBX NA BB.7 Index (204,744) 1,211,000 177,775 1/17/47 (500 bp)- (28,147)
Monthly

CMBX NA BB.7 Index (194,318) 1,186,000 174,105 1/17/47 (500 bp)- (21,367)
Monthly

JPMorgan Securities LLC

CMBX NA BB.7 Index (112,593) 705,000 103,494 1/17/47 (500 bp)- (9,784)
Monthly

CMBX NA A.7 Index (61,347) 2,910,000 15,423 1/17/47 (200 bp)- (47,056)
Monthly

CMBX NA BB.6 Index (279,973) 1,931,000 472,709 5/11/63 (500 bp)- 190,859
Monthly

CMBX NA BB.6 Index (146,989) 1,022,000 250,186 5/11/63 (500 bp)- 102,203
Monthly
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JPMorgan Securities LLC
CMBX NA BB.6 Index $(111,356) $792,000  $193,882 5/11/63 (500 bp)- $81,755
Monthly
CMBX NA BB.6 Index (70,996) 534,000 130,723 5/11/63 (500 bp)- 59,208
Monthly
CMBX NA BB.7 Index (914,337) 5,341,000 784,059 1/17/47 (500 bp)- (135,470)
Monthly
CMBX NA BB.7 Index (228,669) 1,408,000 206,694 1/17/47 (500 bp)- (23,343)
Monthly
CMBX NA BB.7 Index (126,168) 806,000 118,321 1/17/47 (500 bp)- (8,630)
Monthly
CMBX NA BB.7 Index (139,307) 774,000 113,623 1/17/47 (500 bp)- (26,437)
Monthly
CMBX NA BB.7 Index (99,731) 635,000 93,218 1/17/47 (500 bp)- (7,130)
Monthly
CMBX NA BB.7 Index (10,923) 55,000 8,074 1/17/47 (500 bp)- (2,902)
Monthly
CMBX NA BB.7 Index (7,670) 39,000 5,725 1/17/47 (500 bp)- (1,983)
Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.7 Index (53,931) 733,000 45,959 1/17/47 (300 bp)- (8,400)
Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.7 Index (53,931) 733,000 45,959 1/17/47 (300 bp)- (8,400)
Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.7 Index (36,867) 408,000 25,582 1/17/47 (300 bp)- (11,523)
Monthly
Merrill Lynch International
CMBX NA BB.7 Index (251,200) 1,448,000 212,566 1/17/47 (500 bp)- (40,041)
Monthly
CMBX NA BB.9 Index (144,208) 922,000 141,066 9/17/58 (500 bp)- (4,039)
Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.7 Index (69,410) 847,000 53,107 1/17/47 (300 bp)- (16,797)
Monthly
Morgan Stanley & Co. International PLC
CMBX NA BBB-.7 Index (148,658) 1,459,000 91,479 1/17/47 (300 bp)- (58,029)
Monthly
CMBX NA BBB-.7 Index (8,256) 130,000 8,151 1/17/47 (300 bp)- 79
Monthly
— 2,540,227
( ) (6,746,705) ( ) (810,345)
$(6,746,705) $1,729,882

ok
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NA HY Series 31 Index $6,247,163 $87,003,000 $4,585,580

12/20/23 (500 bp)-

$1,229,476
Quarterly

$6,247,163

ok

820

$1,229,476

$30,039,000 $

385,121,095 -

615,484,215 —

2,912,397 -

2,028,803 —

14,115,457 —

764,518,689 -

235,817,220

92,776,599 —

$235,817,220

$1,906,996,255 $

$(8,218,245)

$ $

(3,067,730) _

(19,101, 295) _

(4,291,720) _

(311,250, 458) _

5,424,940 -

(194,117) _

(18,210, 035) _

$(8,218,245)
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Statement of assets and liabilities 10/31/18

ASSETS

Irnvestment in securities, ol value [(Motes 1 and 9

Unaffillated lssuers (dentifled cost 51,962,591, 778) 51,906,596,255

Affiliated ssuers (identified cost 5235.817.2.00) (Notes 1 and 5) 235817200
Interest and other receivabbes 13,801,119
Recevable for shares of the fund sold 9,640,657
Recsivable forimvestments sold 788,319
Recenable For sales of delmyed delivery secunties (Mote 1] 343,532, 385
Receivable for variation margin on centrally cleared swap contracts (Nate 1) 11,333 960
Unrealized appreciation on farward premium swap option contracts (Mote 1) 3610 88T
Unreal zed appreciation an OTC swap contracts (Note 1) - 7,164,008
Premium paid on CTC swap contracts (Mote 1} 6,746,836
Prepald assets 62,354
Tetal assets 2,499,554,611
Payable to custodian 5,048
Payable for imvestments purchased 9766, 18%
Payabile for purchases of delayed defivery securities iNote 1) 537,099,546
Payable for shares of the fund repurchased 2618021
Payable for compensation of Manager (Note 2) 517,545
Payable for custodian lees (Note 2) BE 118
Payable for investor servicing fees (Nate 2} 202,726
Payable for Trustee compensation and expenses (Note 2) 475,005
Payable for adminlstrative services (Note 2} 2874
Payable for distribution fees (Hote 2) 264 335
Payablz farvariation margin on futures contracts {Nate 1) 1,397.434
Payable for varistion margin cn centrally cleared swap contracts (Mate 1) 9,363 535
Unrealired depreciation on OTC swap contracts (Nate 1) 4555115
Pramium received an OTC swap contracts (Note ) 22,649,556
Unrealized depreciation on forwand premium swap opion coniracts (Note 1) 1962609
Written options cutstanding, at value (premiums 519,254 062) (Note 1) 22155025
T BA sale commitments, at value {proceeds receivable 531 1,764,516} (Nat= 1 311,250,458
Other accrued expenses 314.!1#5
Total liabilities 930,710,127
Met assets $1,568,844,484
Paid-in capltal (Unlimited shares autharized) (Motes | and 4} 51683427106
Total distributable samings (Mote 1) (114 582,543
Total — Representing net assets applicable to capital shares outstanding 5$1,568,844,484
(Continued annext page)

Incame Furd 71
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Statement of assets and liabilities cont.

COMPUTATION OF NET ASSET VALUE AND DFFERING PRICE

Net asset value and redemption price per class A share

{5599, 510, 166 divided by 83,663,800 shares) 5669
Offering price perclass A share (100,96 .00 of %6,65]" 56,97
Net asset value and offering price per class B share (512,173,362 divided by 1 841977 shares)™ L6561
Net assel value and offering price per class € share (5103 790,592 divided by 15 666,419 shares]™ 56.63
Net asset value and redemption price per class M share

1572 588,295 divided by 11,187,125 shares} 5650
QOffering price per class M share [100/96.75 of 56,5001 56,72
Net asset value, offering price and redemption price per class R share

1512,382 308 divided by 1,860,939 sharesh £6.62
Net asset value, offering price and redemption price per class RS share

155,148,572 divided by 761,051 shares) 56,77
Wet asset value, offering price and redemption price per class R& share

588,259,120 divided by 12,982,021 shaees) §6.80
Met asset value, offering price and redemption price per class ¥ share

15674, BBL.575 dnaded by 99,261,263 shoros) 56.80

"On single retail sales of less than 5100,000, On sales of $100,000 or mare the offering price is reduced.
“Redemption price per share s equal to net asset value less any applicasle contingent defermed sales charge,
10n single relail sales of kess than 550,000, On sales of 550,000 ar mare the offering price is reduced.,

The accompanying notes are an ntegral partof these financ'al statements.

T2 Income Fund
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INVESTMENT INCOME

Interest fincluding interest income of 53,672,274 from investments in affiliated sswers) (Note §)

$74,596,272

Totalinvestment income

74,596,272

Compensation of Manager (Note 2) 5,591,610
Investor servicing lees (Note 2) 24564091
Custodian fees [Note 2) 1T4,65]
Trustee compensation and expenses (Note 2| GE 88D
Distribution fees (Note 2) 3,408.407
Administrative sarvices (Mote 2} 43,235
Other BET, 004
Total expanses 12,837,887
Expense reduction (MNote 2) 18, 314)
Met expenses 12,829,573
Met investment income 61,766,699

REALIZED AND UNREALIZED GAIN (LOSS]

Met realized gain (loss) on:
Securities from unaffiliated issuers (Notes 1 and 3| {100, 765,89T)
Faretgn currency transactions [Note 1) [21g)
Futures cantracts (Nota 1) [TES8A5T)
Swap contracts (Note ) 35,675,644
Written options Mote 1) 36T, 139
Total net realized loss (2,073,781}
Change in net unrealized appreciation (depreciation] on:
Securities from unaffiliated issuers and TBA sabe commitments {35,510,223)
Futures contracts 4,667,205
Swap contracts 6,140,750
Written optians (26,491, 156)
Total change in net unrealized depreciation (59,927,T98)
MNetloss on investments (62,001,579)
Met decrease in net assets resulting from operations 5(234,880)

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these financial statemenis,
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Statement of changes in net assets

INCREASE [DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS Yearended 10/31/18  Yearended 10/31/17
Operations

het investment income S6l,To0695 560,963 885
Net realized loss an imestments

ard foreign curency transactlons {2.073,78L) [26.290, 141
Net unnealized appreciation [depreciatlion) of investments {55,927 708 27,868 884
Hetincreaze [decreasze) in net assets resulting

from operations (234,650) 62,541,028

Distributions to shareholders (Mot 1):
From ardinary income
Het investment income

ClassA [ AHT 333 (4 946,461
Class B {454, 876 {GOT,066)
ClassC (3,798, 1E0) (4,182 614
Class M [2.616,563] (2814911
Class i [a76a5L) [B06TL
Class RS (142, 1BE) {154,830
Class RE (3,044 73] 2,121,115
Class ¥ (20554 6L (21,292,845

Increase in capital from settlement payments 150,670 -
increase (decrease] from capital share transactions (Nate 4) 57,191,936 [331,22 6,656
Tatal increase (decrease] in net assots 3,602,367 (326,078,263}
Begmning of year 1,505,242 117 1,891,320,380
End of year (Mote 1) 51,568,344,484 $1,565,242,117

The accomparmying notes are an Integral part of these financial statements.

™ Income Fund

158/322



EDINETOOOO

O00000000000000(E14869)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

i Ty [ETEE AT

EISLEN I POy 35 0 1 Sy e su vayies Tuslord woooe s

) 2 51 4 Py 3 gl e iz cqmatou aeg

£ e W T [ 51 ST - L] (3] 1 ST o RTL FIDE T R
i T L3 vy L1 ] T - 15 &) 4] [ al o L S10E 1 Bo10
e L aif s aw'E i = ez el it il W o'l Ll e ]
T 1NE (1] a1e wEr (L7 [ae [74] [T v o 169 AT T
i) e L3 GHTEE 1% el L [L13] g oo L3 oar TorLg WIDE "I sSape Sy
05 or i SR i wE = 119] 1] i T 19 i FIOE "1 M0
11 T ot LeT'er leitl g} = [T (hF ) fev) ) " 14} BT "I e
s SIET alll Brse BE'E L] - [LA4] BT} L1 L 44 s Ll e o]
W ire (48] SI9ST [13] 3] ezl [174] 5T’ o 4 (1] LI0E T Moy
=] W 48] ERLETS 144 et i= lee'l lv4] el i o Ee FI0E 1 Hq00 0
w0 i LN SRR ww el = €] [E5) 1y tl w 41 FIOE | K g
1] we o1 ¥ea'con W'l LS [ee i1 4] et 3] o' arL 9 TR
15 T ial R e Ty loz (1541 5T (] e s Lt R
ST oE {38] SEYEL LE L] - IeT’l 4] L4 o 24 wy LTI T MO
e ] ST fqu] ALY ozl [ i leel (4] e} 4] 5T U503 FINEVE M0
S W w1 EFI'TED Fi'r L4 = (4] L) ¥’ T T T WIDE T gy
7] L5 =l EE'TIr L1441 3] - {1 ] frri (-1 4] =] (4] i TV W
i AT willT TeroeT w7 L - lan] ot 3 (21 W (3] e L k]
=1 it (gl Le¥IET HI'D fig} = [61°] (17¢) i fe] o Lik) {108 ™| oG
ol ML Bl es'rath Ised [0 - [L13] (03] o) ey £ g WL " iy
s [ o1 TFT'TE TR (4] = (C14] [C34] (& 3 I iTL FIDE 1E 0l
11 TR o4 Go'oE i+ fiok] - Fi ] fag] st = {31 &L ST0E " R
. (L% wiml BEEED 65T w 11 y] L] b1y ] u oy HI0E"|E Egaiag
=0 =1 w1 ol e o = 11 ] IET) f14g i o mo LI0EIN s
7 ] W w1 nrmg w2’} wes = L1 u] (11 L1 4] ey [+ swas HI0E 17 S0l
s iy L] BT 31 WL - IgEl Ll39] 1 fay I 6Tl [l L k]
1178 & i (33 LT Fin:] Lol - [F 4] 4] fo1} . a] L sTL FI0E I8 M
[ ahrl will ey EL°E L = ITE] & u L L L% UIOE "IN ey
91 iy #l Fen'nes LR (4] - 1741 (4] o L] gr wa T T
] e o DI5'6ESE It [0 | [L14]] [L54] - (uz} I EESE BN )T Sy

wh Buet s laEts frpemmagyl Ghwema pausta e
AR Y] [T ) ey (pieaa o pus e g, L |
e I e Tl AN wmume pweey Rsseay

BT B
gy

RuagsqUnR S e [T T T T pomind o T ——
L AL RS Sy ued g gy Bupialeg
] WeAR] AR R

PRI Y urey

WiIVE HINIRT14dN% ORY S80S

EHOLRAEIA LS FETY FHILIH 0 LNFRES AN
fpomiad agy anoyfnomy) Tuipuemsms asys eowiwo o) sy iy epovagy

159/322



EDINETOOOO

O00000000000000(E14869)
Ooooooooooooooooonoao

G 1M ALOOU [EILTE LR T

FSHUE S U 5 01 e ur s sy Tuslund oo gy

Tt o . Lo LT R I (IR L LN P ) R e g s
Y L A, L 1PN W PO ), B ] S N (LI LY 0 i suaten L o

T
o suDcEhssapa o R sy a) e poied @) ey SEUsEg T Soeds SRR e es auy) G puodtaLIaD
i A U T et 30 g Do o] dng i LDt LISkl g 1] SR nAictus R R e B

:n o t&i&zﬁuicat!i e | L 1) PO L e 3 6, A e (305 )
u!_.__-.- AP 3 LA ) e P ) QLTS [T T TR i i i LR ] g

g i borir ui T Tl sy
R ERERTD 00 FU i S| eI SRR DTy

duir g e nm pue ey pang paioe
AR Ay 1 P ] A e Sur i p e e e mteg U e e Lo el eneu e i

AT ST 0 SO BT EIBU 30U PO PART TR R L0 P R UFTTIE LN o q

potied 211 Buinp Juprma
S s g oy el b g 8 SIS] LB i e L A AR e s A g

e ERE [ SERTaN 0EE Wi = [5E°} [ 43 it [ 6TE WG TE Wi
15 oE . 3 oER'ELL Fiatt] L - Lol ey L4 ] [y L S0 oD
= aliT v Ll e “wn frz] 1=} L% 7] L o e "Ir asgaisn
£ it w (L= ot e = ez |&E e I £ L LTOE"IN Mep0ing
R ar L4 g L fa o - 1 = (1141 L5 o an B oS FInETIE sgoiag
iy
53 HE w SELUPE BEE WL - 1oE] [ T3 3 (53 6L ¥IOE TR BN
i £ o SEREIT Izo°th L = (141 ISt feo} FEa ] & 8L SI0E"IN agon
(L] afui L] i!. ow'E o - L{4] 114 L33 bl £E LU LI e e
e "o 11 e a¥E WL - [a2'] sz [ L] 13 nare 1102 T 440150
] e 13 [yt g pag - lwe] e o =1 [ v'rg FINE 16 gl
Wil S e ltsns [Epemogie] e pusdp T wapRquEa e amusle  luaupesis s dosm pEHp P Ty
s wleaersy RN E pord opuR peauge pesegEe i ) KL L preupaa agisel e Bumuleg
DRy sty BRSEE TR wmuEeg eeeey Rerieusy Iz WOER] P ek
R b e [ 2 TRE] I
yjoaEy
WV T AN Y SO NSRS FET FMOLIYHII0 NS IAN

160/322



EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000(E14869)
Ooooooooooooooooonoao

Motes to financial statements 10/31/18

Within the following Notes to financial statements, references 1o "State Street” represent State Street Bank

and Trust Company, references to “the SECT epresent the Securities and Exchange Commission, references o
*Putnam Manapement” represent Putnam Investment Management, LLE, the fund's manager, an indirec whally-
ewned subskdiary of Putnam Investments, LLC and relefences to *OTC" If any, represent ower-the-counte:. Unless
otherwise noted, the “reporting period” represents the perlod from November 1, 2017 through October 31, 2018,

Putnam Income Fund (thefund) is a Massachusetts business trust, which i registerad under the Investment
Company Actof 1940, as amended, a5 a diversified opon-end management investment compary. The goal of the
fund Is ta seek high current income consistent with what Putnam Management believes to be prudent risk. The
fund irvests mainly in bonds that are securitized debt instruments isuch as mortgage-backed irvestments) and
other obligations of companies and gavernments worldwide denominated in U.5, dollars, are either investment-
grade or below-investment-giade in quality (sametimes refermed 1o as “jund bonds”) and have intermediate- to
[ term maturities (three years or longer), Putnam Management may consicer, among other factors, credit,
Interest rate and prepayment risks, as well as general market conditions, when declding whether to buy or

sell investmants. The fund typically uses to a significant extent derivatives, such as futures, options, and swap
pontracts, for both hedging and non-hedging pufposes.

Thefund ofters class &, class B, class C, class M, class R, class RS, class R6 and class ¥ shares. The lund regis-

tered class T shares in February 2017, however, as of the date of this report, class Tshares had not commencad
operations and are nat avallable for purchase. Purchases of elass B shares are closed to new and existing imes-
tors except by exchange from class B shares of another Putnam fund or through dividend and/or capital gains
reinvestment. Class A and class M shares are sold with a maximum front-end sales charge of 4,00% and 3.25%,
respectively. Class A shares generally are not subject to a contingent deferred sales charge, and class M, class R,
class RS, class RS and class ¥ shares are not su bject to a contingent deferred sales charge. Class B shares, which
coraerL 1o class A shares alter appeoximotely aight years, are not subject 1o a lont-end sales charge and afe
subject to a contingent deferred sales charge If those shares are redeemed within sixyears of purchase, ClassC
shares are subject fo 2 ane-year 1 00% cantingent deferred sales charge and genarally canvert to class A shares
after approximately ten years. Prior to April 1, J018, class C shares did nat convert toclass A shares. Class A shares,
wihich are nol available to all investors, are sold at net asset value, The expenses for class A, class B, class C,

class M and class R shares may differ based on the distribution fee of each class, which isidentified in Note 2
Class RS, class RG and class ¥ shares, which are sald at net asset value, ase generally subject to the same expenses
asclass A, class B, classC, class M and class R shares, but do not bear a distribution fee, and in the case of class RS
and class RE shares, baar a lower investor servicing fee, which is identified in Note 2. Class RS, class ARG and class Y
shares are not avallable to all investars,

In the normal course of business, the fund entersinto contracts that may include agreements 1o indemmify
ancther party under glven clroumstances, The fund's maximum exposure uncdes thess grrangements s unknoawin
as this would involve future claims that may be, but have not yet been, made against the fund, However, the fund's
management team expects the risk of material loss to be remote,

Thiz fund has entered Into contractus! arrangements with an investment adviser, administrator, distributor, share-
holderservicing agent and custodian, whoeach provide services to the fund. Unless expressly stated otherwise,
shareholders are nol parties to, orintended beneficiaries of these confractual arrangements, and these contrac-
tual arrangements are notintended to create amy sharcholder right to enforce them against the service providers
or wseck any remedy under them against the service providers, either directly or an behalf of the fund.

Under the fund's Amended and Restatad sgresment and Declaration of Trust, any claims asserted agoinst or on
behalf of the Putnam Funds, including clalms against Trustees and Officers, must be brought in state and federal
courts lecated within the Comminpnwealth of Massachusetts.

Heote 1: Significant accounting policies

Thie following & a summary of significant accounting policios conzistently fallowed by the fund in the preparation
ofits financial statements. The preparation of financial statements isin conformity with accounting principles.
penerally accepted in the United States of America and requires management to make estimates and assump-
tions that affect the reportad amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the reported
amounts af increases and decreases in net assets from operations. Actual results could differ fram those esti-
mates, Subsequent events after the Statement of assets and Habilities date through the date that the financial
statements were issuec have been evaluated in the preparation of the financial statements,

80 Income Fund
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Investment income, realized and unrealized gains and losses and expenses of the fund are borne pro-rata based
on the relative net assets of each class to the total net assets of the fund, except that each class bears expenses
wnique to that class (including the distribution fees applicanle to such classes). Each class votes as a class only
with respect tovits own distribution plan or other matters an which a class vote is reguired by lavw ar determined
by the Trustees. If the fund were liquidated, shares of each class would receive thefr pro-rata share of the net
assets of the fund, In addition, the Trustees declare separate dividends on each class of shares,

Security valuation Portfolio securities and other irvestments ate valued using poedicies and procedures adopied
by the Board of Trustees, The Trustees have formed a Pricing Committee o oversee the implementation of these
procadures and have delegated respansibility for valuing the fund's assets in accordance with these pracedures
te Putnam Management. Putnam Management has astablished an internal Valuation Committes that (s respon-
sible for making fair value determinations, evaluating the effec tiveness of the pricing poficies of the fund and
reporting 1o the Pricing Committee.

Market quotations are not considered to be readily avadlable for certaln debt obligations fincluding shart-term
imvestments with remaining maturities of 0 days or less) and other investments: suck investments are valued on
the basis of valuations furnished by anindependent pricing service approved by the Trustees ar dealers selected
by Putnam Management. Such services or dealers determine valuations for normal institutional-size trading urits
ol such securities using methods based an markeat ransactions for comparable securities and various relation-
ships, generally recognized by institutional traders, between securities (which consider swch factors as securily
prices, yields, maturities and ratings), These securities will generally be categorized as Level 2. Secunithes guoted
in foreign currencies, if any, are transtated into U5, dollars at the current exchange rate,

Imvestments inopen-enc Investment companies lexcluding exchange-traded funds), if any, which can be classi-
fied as Leved | or Level 2 securities, are valued based on their net asset value. The net asset value of such mvest-
ment companies equals the total value of thelr assets lass thelr labilities and divided by the number of their
outstanding shares.

To the extent a pricing service or dealer is unable to value a security or provides a valuation that Putnam Manage-
ment does not balleve accurately reflects the security's Tair value, the security will be valued at fair value by
Putnam Management in accordance with policles and procedures approved by the Trustees. Certain invest-
ments, including certain restricted and guid securities and derivatives, are also valued at fair value following
procedures approved by the Trustess. These valuations consider such fac tars as signilicant market or specilic
security events such as interest rate o crediz quality changes, varlous relationships with other securities, discaunt
rates, LS. Treasuary, LS. swap and cradit yields, index levels, comaexity expasures, recovery rates, sales and ather
multiples and resale restrictions. These securities are classified as Level 2 or as Level 3 depending on the prionty
al the significant imputs,

To assess the continuing appropriateness of fair valuations, the Valuation Committes reviews and affirms the
reasonablaness of suchvaluations on a regular basis atter considering all relevant information that is reascnably
available. Such valuations and procedures are reviewed periodically by the Trustees. Certain securities may ba
walued on the basis of a price pravided by a single source. The fair value of securities is generally determined as
the amount that the fund could reasonably expect to realize from an oederly disposition of such securities over

a reasonable period of time, By its nature, a fair value priceis a good faith estimate of the value of a security ina
cuifent sale arel does nol rellact an aclual markel price, which may be different by a material amount,

Joint trading account Pursuant to an exemptive arder irom the SEC, the fund may transfer uninvested cash
balances into & joint trading account along with the cash ol ather registersd investment companiss and certain
other accounts managed by Putnam Management. These batances may be invested in issues of short-term
Imvestments having maturities of up to 30 days,

Repurchase agreements Thefund, or any joint trading account, through its custodian, receives delivery of tha
underying securities, the fairvalue of which at the time of purchase i required to be in an amount at least equal
to the resale price, including accrued interest. Collateral for certain tri-party repurchase agreements, which
totaled 536,717,415, & held at the counterparty’s custodian in a segregated account for the benefit of the fund
and the counterparty, Futnam Management is responsible for determining that the value of these underlying
securities is aball times at least equal to the resale price, including accroeed interest In the event of default or
bankrupicy by the other party to the agreement, retention of the collateral may be subject to legal proceed|ngs.

Security transactions and related investment income Security fransactions ame recorded on the trade
date {the date the order to buy or sell is executed). Cains or losses on securities sold are determined on the
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identified cost basis. Interestincome, net of any applicabiewithholding taxes, ks recorded on the accrual basis. All
premiums/discounts are amortized/accreted on a yield-to-maturity basis.

Securities purchased or sold on a delayed delivery basis may be settled at a future date beyond customary settle-
ment time; interest income is acorued based on the terms of the securities, Losses may arise due to changes in
tha fair value of the undertying securities or if the counteroarty does not perform under the contract.

Stripped securities The fund may invest in stripped securities which represent a participation in securities that
rray be structured n classes with rights to receive differant portions of the interest and principal. Interest-only
securities receive all of the interest and principal-only securities receive all of the principal. If the inferest-anly
secuntlies experience greater than anticipated prepayments of arincipal, the fund may fail to recoup fully its initial
investment in thess securities. Conversaly, principal-only securities increase in value if prepayments are greater
than anticipated and decline if prepayments are siower than anticipated, The fairvalue of these securities is
Fighly sersitive te changes in interest rates,

Foreign currency translation The accounting records of the lund are maintained in U5, dollars, The fairvalue of
foreign securities, currency holdings. and other assets and labilities is recorded in the books and records of the
fund after translation to .5, dollars based on the exchange rates on thatday. The cost of each security & deter
mined using historical exchange rates. Income and withho!ding taxes are translated at prevalling exchange rates
when earned or incurred, The fund does not isolate that portion of realized or unrealized gains or losses resulling
from changes in the foreign exchange rale on investments from fluctustions arising from changes in the market
prices of the securities. Such gains and lesses araincluded with the net realized and unrealized gain or loss on
Imestments, Net realized galns and losses on farelgn currency transactions represent net realized exchange
gains arlosses on disposition of foretgn currencies, currency gains and losses reallzed bebween the trade and
settlement dates on securities transactions and the ditference between the amount of investment income and
forelgn withholding taxes recarded on the fund's books and the LS. dollar equivalent amounts actually received
or paid. Metunreal zed appraciation and depreciation of azsets and labilities in foreign curtencies arise from
changes in the value of assets and liabilities ather than investments at the pered end, resulting from changes in
the exchange rate.

Qptions contracts The fund uses options contracts to hedge duration and convesity, to isolate prepayment risk
and to manage downside risks,

The potentlal risk to the fund is that the change Invalue of options contracts may not comespond to the change in
value of the hedped Instruments, In addition, losses may arise from changes in the value of the urderlying Instna-
ments if thera is an iliquid secondary market for the contracts, ifinterest or exchange rates move unepec tedly
or if the courterparty to the contract is unable to perform, Realized gains and losses on purchased optians are
Included in realized gains and lesses on imestment securities. if o written call opion is exercised, the premium
originalty recefved is recordad as an addition to sales proceeds. if awritten put option s exercised, the premium
criginally received is recorded as a reguction to the costof imvestments,

Exchange-traded options arevalued at the last sale price o, if no sales are reported, the |ast bid price for
purchased options and the last ask price forwritten options. OTC traded options are valued using prices
supplied by deabers,

Oiptiors on swaps are similar Lo options on securities excepl that the premiurm paid or received i to buy o

prant the right to enter inta a previously 2greed upon interest rate or credit default contract. Farward premium
swap apthan contracts include premiums that have extended settlernent dates. The defayed settlement of the
premivms is factored inta the dailty valuation of the oplion contracts. In the case of interest rate cap and floor
contracts, in return for a premium, ongoing payments between two parties are based on interest rates excesding
a specified rate, in the case of a cap cantract, or falling below a specified rate In the case of a floor contract.

Written aption contracts outstanding at period end, If any, are listed after the fund'’s portfolia,
Futures contracts The fund uses futures contractsfor hedging treasury term structure rsk and for vield
CUrve positianing.

The potential risk to the fund is that the change in value of futures contracts may nat carrespond 1o the change
invalue of the hedged instruments, In addition, losses may arise from changes in the value of the underlying
instruments, if there |5 an Iliquid secandary market for the contracts, ifinterest or exchange rates move unes-
pectedly or if the counterparty to the contract ks unable to perform. With futures, there is minimal counterparty
credit risk to the fund since futures are sxchange traded and the exchange's cleaninghouse, as counterparty to all
exchange traded futures, guarantees the futures against default. Risks may exceed amounts recognized on the
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Statement of assets and liabilities, When the contract i closed, the fund records a realized gain or loss equal to
the difference between the value of the contract at the tme it was opened and the value at the time it was closed,

Futures contracts ane valued at the quoted daily settlement prices established by the exchangs onwhich thay
trade, The fund and the broker agree to exchangs an amount of cash equal to the daily fluctuation in the value of
the futures contract. Such receipts or payments are known as “variation margin.®

Futures contracts cutstanding at pesiod end, if any, are listed after the fund's portfalio,

Interest rate swap contracts The fund enterad into OTC and,/or centrally cleared Interest rate swap contracts,
wihich are arrangements betwaen two parties to exchange cash flows based on a notional principal amount, for
hedging term structure risk and for yield curve positioning.

AnOTC and centrally cleared Interest rate swap can be purchased or sold with an uplront premium, For OTC
Intedest rate swap contracts, an uplront payment recaived by the fund is recorded as a liability on the fund's
books, An upfront payment made by the fund is recorded as an asset on the fund’s books, OTC and centrally
cleared interest rate swap contracts are marked to morket daily based upon quotations from an independent
pricing service ar market maxers, Any change is recorded as an unrealized gain or loss on OTC interest rate swaps,
Dally fluctuations in the value of centrally cleared interest rate swaps are settled through a central clearing agent
and are recarded invariation margin on the Statement of assets and liabélities and recorded as unrealized gain
or koss, Payments, including upfrent premiums, received or made are recorded as realized gains or losses al

the reset date or the closing of the contract, Certalin OTC and centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts may
include extended effective dates, Payments refated to these swap contracts are accrued based on the terms

al the contract

Thefund could be exposed to credit or market risk due tountavoratile changes in the Hectuation of interest
rates or if the countarparty defaults, in the case of OTC interest rate cantracts, or the central clearing agancy ora
clearing member defaults, in the case of centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts, on its respective obliga-
tion to perform under the contract, The fund's maximum risk of loss from counterparty risk orcentral clearing
risk is the fair value of the contract, This risk may be mitigated for OTC interest rate swap contracts by having

a master netting arrangement between the fund and the counterparty and for centrally cleared intarest rate
swap contracts through the daily exchange of variation margin, There is minimal counterparty risk with respect
o centrally cleared Interest rate swap contracts due to the chlearinghouse guarantee fund and other resources
that ane avallable In the event of 2 clearing member default. Risk of loss may exceed amounts recognized on the
Statement of assets and liabllities.

Q1C and centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts outstanding, including their respective notional amounts
at petiod end, if any, are listed alter the fund's partfalio,

Total return swap contracts The fund entered into OTC and/or centrally cleared total return swap contracts,
which are arrangements to exchange a market-linked return for a periadic payment, both based on a notional
principal amount, to hedge sector sxposure and for gaining expasure to specific sectors,

To the extent that the total return of the security, index or ather financial measure underlying the transaction
exceeds of falls short of the offsatting interest rate obligation, the fund will receive a payment from ar make a
payment 1o the counterparty, OTC and/or centrally cleared total returm swap conbracts are marked Lo market
dally basad upon quotations fram an independent pricing service of market maker. Any change is recorded as an
unrealized gainor loss on OTC total return swaps, Dally fluctuations in the value of centrally cleared total return
swaps aresettled through a central elearing agent and are recornded in variation margin on the Statement of
assets and liabilities and recorded as unrealized gain or loss. Payments reteived or made are recorded as realized
gains of losses. Certaln OTC and/or centrally cleared total return swap contracts may include extended effec-

tive dates. Payments related to these swap contracts zre accrued based on the terms of the contract. The fund
could be exposed to credit ar market risk due to unfavorable changes in the fluctuation of interest rates ar in the
price of the underhing security of index, the passibility that these is no liquid mar ket far these agreements or that
the caunterparty may default onits obligation to perfarm. The fund’s maximum risk of loss from counterparty
risk arcentral clearing risk is the fair value of the contract. This risk may be mitigated for OTC total return swap
contracts by having a master netting arangement between the fund and the counterparty and for centrally
cleared total return Swap contracts through the daily exchange of variation margin, There is minimal counterparty
Flak with respet to centrally cleared total returm swap contracts due 1o the clearinghoute guarantee fund and
other resources that are available in the event of a clearing member default. Risk of loss may exceed amounts
recognized on the Statement of assets and liabilities,
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OTC and/for centrally cleared total return swap contracts outstanding, includirg thelr respective national
amourts at period end, if any, are listed after the fund’s partiolic,

Credit default contracts The fund entersd into OTC and/for centrally cleared credit default contracts to hedge
credit risk, for gaining liquid exposure to indiidual names, to hedge market risk and for gaining exposure to
specilic sectors.

In QT and centrally cleared credit default contracts, the protection buyer typically makes a periodic stream

of payments (o a countarparty, the protection seller, in exchange for tharight to receive a contingent payment
upan the occurrence af a cradit event on the reference obligation or all ather equalty ranked obligations of the
reference entity. Credit events are contract specific but may include bankmiptoy, failure fo pay, restructuning and
ohligation acceteration. For OTC credit default contracts, an upfrant payment received by the fund is recarded as
a liability on the bund's books, An uplront payment made by the tund is recorded 35 an asset on the fund's books,
Centrally clzaned credit default contracts provide the same rights o the pratection buyer and sellar extept the
payments between parties, including uptrant premiums, are settled through a central clearing agent through
variation margin payments. Upfront and perodic payments recenved or pald by the fund for OTC and centrally
cleared credit default contracts are recorded as realized gains or losses at the reset date or close of the contract,
The OTC and centrally cleared credit default contracts are marked to market daily based upon quatations from an
independent pricing service ar markst makers. Ary change in value of OTC credit default contracts isrecorded s
an unreallzed gain or koss. Daily lluctuations in the value of centrally deared credit delault contracts are recorded
Invariztion margin on the Statement of assets and liablities and recorded as unrealized galn or lass, Upon the
cocurrence of a credit event, the difference between the par value and fair value of the reference obll gation, net of
any propoertional amount of the upfront payment, is recorded as a realized gain or loss

In addition to bearing the risk that the credit event will accur, thetund could be exposed to market risk dueto
unfavorable changes ininterest rates or in the price of the underlying security of index or the possibilivy that

the fund may be unable to clese cut its position at the same time or at the same price as if it had purchased tha
underlying reference obligations, In certain circumstances, the fund may enter into offsetting OTC and centrally
cleared credit default contracts which would mitigate its risk of loss. Nisks of loss may exceed amounts recog-
rized on the Statement of assets and liabilities. The fund's maximum risk of loss from counterparty risk, either
a% the protection seller or as the protec tion buyer, is the falr value of the contract. Thits risk may be mitigated for
OTC credit default contracts by having a master netting arrangement between the fund ard the countanparty
and for centrally cleared credit default contracts through the daily exchange of varfation margin, Counterparty
risk s further mitigated with respect to centrally cleared credit default swap contracts due to the clearinghouse
puarantes fund and other resources that ace available in the event of a clearing member default. Where the fund
I a seller of protection, the maximum potentlal amount of future payments the furd may be required to make is
equal to the national amount.

OTC ard centrally cleared credit default contracts outstanding, including thelr respective natioral amounts at
porind end, If amy, are listed after the fund's portfolio,

TBA commitments The fund may enter into TBA (to be announced) commitments to purchase securities for s
fimed umit price at a future date beyond customary settlement time. Although the unit price and par amount have
been established, the actual securities hiave not been specified. However, it is anticipated that the amount of the
comimitments will not significantly differ from the principal amount. The lund holds, and maintains wntil selile-
ment date, cashor high-grade debt cbligations in an amount sufficient to meet the purchase price, ar the fund
may enter inlo offsetting contracts for the forward sale of other securities |t owns. Income an the securities will
rot beearned unti! settlement date.

The tund may also enter into TBA salz commitments to hedge its portfolio pesitions, to sell morigage-backed
serurities it owns under delayed delivery arrangements or 1o take a short position in mortgage-backed securi-
tes. Proceeds of TRBA sale commitments are not received until the contractual settiement date. During the time

a TBAsale commitment ks autstanding, either equivalent deliverable securities or ar offsetting TBA purchase
commitment deliverable on or belora the sale commitment date ane held as “cover” for the transaction, or other
liguld assets ln an amount equal to the notional value of the TBA sale commitment are segregated. If the TBA sale
commitment is clased through the acquisition of an offsetting TBA purchase commitment, the fund realizes a
pain or foss, If the fund delivers securities undes the commitment, the fund realizes a gain or a loss from the sale of
the securities based upan the unit price established at the date the commitment was entered Inta.

TEA commitments, which are accaunted for as purchase and sale transactions, may be considerad securities
tremsalves, and imvalve a risk of loss due ta changas in thevalue of the security prios 1o the settlement data
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as wall as thia risk that the counterparty to the transaction will not perform its obligations, Countarparty rish is
mitigated by having & master agreement batween the fund and the counterparty,

Unsettled TEA commitments are valeed at their fairvalue according to the procedures described under "Security
valuation” abave, The contract is marked to market daly and the change in fairvalue is recorded by the fund as
an unrealized gain or loss. Based on market crcumstances, Putnam Management will determine whether to take
delivery of the underlying securities o to dispose of the TBA commitments prior to settlement.

TBA purchase cammitments cutstanding at period end, il ary, are [isted within the fund's portiolia ard TBA sale
commitments outstanding at period end, ifany, are listed after the fund®s portiola.

Master agreements The [undis a party to 1SDA (Int2mational Swaps and Derivatives Association, inc.) Master
Agreements that povern OTC derfvative and foreign exchange contracts and Master Securities Forward Transac-
tion Agreements that govemn transactions involving mertgage-backed and other asset-backed securities that may
result in delayed delivery Master Agreements) with certain counterparties entered into from time to time, The
Master Agroements may contzin provisions regarding, amangother things, the parties’ general obligations, repre-
sentations, agreemants, collateral recuirements, events of default and early termination. With respect to certain
counterparties, inaccordancewith the terms of the Master Agreements, collateral pasted to the fund is hedd ina
segregated account by the fund's custodian and, with respect to thase amauntswhich can be sold orrepledged,
are presented in the fund's portlolio.

Collateral pledged by the fund Is segregated by the fund's custodian and identified in the lund's portfolio, Collat-
erzl can beinthe form of cash or debt securities issued by the U,%, Government or related agencies or other secu-
rities as agreed to by the fund and the applicable counterparty. Collateral requirements are determined hased on
the fund's nat position with each counterparty.

With respect to 1504 Master Agreements, tarmination events applicable to the fund may occur upon a decline

in the fund's net assets below a spocified threshold over a cortain peried of time. Termination events applicable
to counterparties may eccur upan adecling in the counterparty’s long-term or short-term credit ratings below

a specified [2vel, In each case, upan occurrence, the ather party may elect to terminate early and cause settie-
ment of all derivative and foreign exchange contracts outstanding, including the payment of any losses and costs
resulting from such early termination, as reasonably determined by the terminating party. Any decision by ona or
more of the fund's counterparties toelect early termination coulld impact the fund's future derivative activity.

At thecloseof the reparting period, the fund hac a net liability position of 523,620,342 on open derivative
contracts subject to the Master Agreaments. Callateral posted by the fund at perlod end for these agreements
totaled 423,266,216 and may include amounts related to unsettled agreements,

Interfundlending The fund, along with other Putnam funds, may participate in an interfund lending program
pursuant to an exemptive order issued by the SEC, This program allows the fund to borrow from or lend ta
other Putnam funds that permit such transactions. Interfund lending transactions are subject to cach fund's
imvestment policies and borrawing and lending limits. interest earmed or paid on the interfund lending transac-
tionwill be based on the average of certain current market rates, During the reporting period, the fund did not
utilize the program.

Lines of credit The fund participates, along with other Putnam funds, in a 53175 million unsecured committbed
line of credit and & 5235.5 million unsecured uncommitted line of credit, Doth provided by State Strest. Bormow-
ings may be made for temporary or emergency purpeses, including the funding of shareholder redemption
requests and trads settiements, interest is charged ta the fund based on the fund’s barrowing at a rate equal to
1.75% plus the higher of (1) the Federal Funds rate and (2) the avernight LIBOR for the committed line of credit
and the Federal Fungs rate plus 1.30% for the uncommiited line of credit. A closing fee egual to 0.04% of the
committed ling of credit and (0.04% of the uncommitted line of credit has been paid by the participating funds. In
addition, 2 commitment fee of 0.21% per annum on any unutilized portion of the committed line of credit is allo-
cated ta the participating funds based on their relative et assets and paid quartedy. During the reparting pediod,
the fund had no borrowings against these arrangements.

Federal taxes It is the policy of the fund to distribute all of its tadable income within the prescribed time period
and otherwise comply with the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1386, a5 amended (the Code), appli-
cable to regulated Investment companies, it |s alzo the intention of the fund to distribute an amount sufficient to
aveld impesition of amy exclse tax under Section 49382 of the Code.

Ihe fund is subject to the provisions of Accounting Standards Codification 740 Incorme Faxes [ASC F40), ASE 140
sets forth 2 minimum threshold for fEnancial statement recogrition of the benefit of a tax position takenor
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gxpected to be taken in o tax retum, The fund did not have a liability to record for any unrecognized tax benefits
in the accompanying financial statements, Mo provision has been made for federal taxes on income, capital gains
or unrealized appreciation an securities held nor for excise tax an income and capitza| gains. Each of the func's
federal tax returns for the prios three fiscal years remains subject to examination by the internal Revenue Sarvice.

The fund may also be subject to taxes imposed by governments of countries in which it invests. Such taxes are
generally based an either income or gains eamed or repatriated. The furd sccrues and aopliessuch taxes to net
Investment iIncome, net realized galrs and net unreallzed gains as income and/or capital gains are earmed. In
some cases, the fund may be entitled to reclaim all ora portion of such taxes, and such reclaim amounts, if amy,
are reflected as an asset on the fund's books, In many cases, bowever, the fund may not receive such amounts far
anextended period of time, depending on the country of investmeant.

Under the Regulated Investment Company Modermization Act of 2010, the fund will be permitted tocarry borward
capital losses incurred for an unlimitad pariod and the carry lforwards will retain their character a2 either shart-
term or long-term capital losses. At October 31, 2008 the fund had the foflowing capital loss carryovers available,
o the cxtent allowed by the Code, to offset future net capltal galin, if any:

Loss carmyowar

Short-tarm Long-term Total
SIH6ITA0T 59,953, 150 538,570,557

Distributions to shareholders Destributions to shareholders from netinvestment income are recorded by
thefund on the ex-dividend date. Distributions fram capital gains, if any, are mecorded on the ex-dividend date
and paid at least annually. The amount and character of income and gains to be distributed are determinad in
accordance with income tax regulations, which may differ from generally accepted accounting principles. Thess
differences include temparary and/for permanent differences lram unsealized gains and losses on certain futures
contracts, fromincome on swap contracts, from interest-only securities and from real estate mortgage invest-
mentcondults, Reclassifications are made to the fund's capital accounts to reflect income and gains avallzble
for distribution [or available capital loss carryovers) under income tax regulations, Al the Coseol the reparting
period, tha fund reclassified 512,144,182 to decrease undistributed net investment income, $150,670 (o decrease
pald-in capltal and 512 294 852 to decrease aceumiulated net realized lass,

Tax cost of investments includes adjustments to net unrealized aporeciation (depreciation] which may not neces-
sarily befinal tax cost basis adjustmaents, but closaly appraximate the tax basks unrealized gains and losses that
may be realized and distributed to shareholders, The tax basis components of distributable sarnings and the
federal tax cost as of the close of the reporting period were as follows:

Unrealized appreciation $31927.160
Unrealized depreciation 125,130,735}
Wet unrealized depreciation (32, 303,575)
Undistributed ordinary income 16,191,509
Copitad less comryforward (38,570,557)
Cost forlederal income tax purposes 51.876,108,390

Faor tha fiscal year endod Octaber 31, 2017, the fund had undistributed net investment incomie of 516,374,064,

Hote 2: Management fee, administrative services and other transactions

Thiafund pays Putnam Management a managemsent fee (based on the fund’s average net assets and computed
and pakd monthly) at annual rates that may vary based on the awerage of the aggregate net assets of all open-end
mutual funds sponsared by Putnam Management {excluding net assets of funds that are invested in, or that are
invested in by, other Putnam funds to the extent necessary to avald "double counting” of those assets), Such
annual rates may vary as follows:

0.550% of the first 55 ballion, 0.350%: of the next 550 billion,
10.500F% of the next 45 billion, 0.330% of the next 550 bill on,
0.450% of the ret 510 billian, 0.330%% of the e 5100 billion and
Q.ACO% of the next 510 billian, 0.315% of army excess thereafter,
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For the reparting perind, the manageament fee represented an effective rate (encluding the impact from any
expense walvers in effect) of 0.302% of the fund's average net assets.

Putnam Management has contractually agreed, through February 28, 2020, to waive fees and/or reimburse the
fund's expenses to the extent necessary to [imitthe cumulative expenses of the furd, exclusive of brokerage,
interest, taxes, investment-relatad sxpenses, extraordinary expenses, acquired fund fees and exnenses and
payments under the fund's investor servicing contract, imestment management contract and distribution
plans, on a fiscal year-to-date basis to an annual rate of 0.20% of the fund's average net assets over such fiscal
yearo-date period, During the reporting period, the fund's expenses wene not reduced as a result of this limit,

Putnam mvestments Limited (2L}, an afiliate of Futnam Management, is authorized by the Trustees to manage a
separate portion of the assets of the fund as determined by Putnam Management from time to time, PIL did nat
manage any portion of the assets of the fund during the reporting period, it Putmam Management were (o engage
the services of PIL, Putnam Management would pay a quarterly sub-management fee to PIL for its sendees at an
annual rate of 0.25% of the average net assets of the portion of the fund managed by PIL.

Thefund reimburses Putnam Management an allecated amaunt for the compensation and related expenses of
certain officers of the fund and their staff who provide administrative services to the fund. The aggregate amount
of all such eimbursements Is determined annually by the Trustees,

Custodial functions for the lund's assets are provided by State Street. Custody lees are based on the fund’s assel
level, the number of its security holdings and transaction volumes,

Putnam lmvestor Senaces, Inc., an affiliate of Putnam Management, provides investor servicing agent functions

to the fund. Putnam Inwvesior Services, Inc. received fiees forinvestor senvicing for class A, class B, class €, class M,
class R and class ¥ shares that included (1) a per account lee har each direct and underlying non-defined contribu-
tizn account {retall account) of the fund; (2] a soecified rate of the fund's assets attributabls to defined contribu-
tion plan accounts; and (31 a specified rate based on the average net xssets in retail accounts. Putnam Investor
Services, Inc. hos agreed that the aggregate investor servicing fees for each fund’s retail and defined contrioution
accounts for these share classes will not exceed an annual rate of 0.25% of the fund's average assets attrioutable
to such accounts.

Class RS shares paid a monthly fee based on the sverage net assets of class RS sharesat an annual rate of 013,
Class RE shares pald a monthly fee based on the average net assets of class A6 shares at an annual rate of 0.05%.

Cruring the reparting period, the expenses for each class of shares refated to investor servicing fees
wiere as follows:

Class A 51077181 Class RS 4421
Chiec B 1370 Class RG 40,161
ClassC 198,362 Classy o654, 433
Class M 128,733 Total 52,464,001
Chazs R 020

Thefund has entered into expense offset arrangements with Putnam Imvestor Services, Inc. and State Street
whereby Putnam Investor Services, Inc.'s and State Street's fees ase reduced by credits allowed on cash balances.
For the reparting period, the fund's expenses were reduced by $8, 314 under the expense offset arrangements.

Each Independent Trustea of the fund receives an annual Trustes fee, of which 51,085, a5 a quarterly retainer,
has been allocated o the fund, and an additional fee for sach Trustees meeting attended. Trustees also are
reimbursed for expenses they Incur relating to their services as Trustees,

Thefuna has adopted a Trustee Fee Deferral Plan (the Deferral Flan) which aliows the Trustees to defer the recelpt
of all ora portion of Trustees fees payablz onar after July 1, 1995, The deferred fees remain invested Incertan
Putnam furds until distribution in accordance with the Deferral Plan

Thefund has adopted an untunded noncontributory detined benafit pension plan (the Pension Plan) covering

all Trustees of the fund who have served as a Trestee for at least five years and werefirst elected prior to 2004,
Benefits under the Pension Plan are equal to 50% of the Trustes's average annual attendance and retainer fees for
the three years ended December 31, 2005 The retirement benefit is payable during a Trustee's lifetime, beginning
the year following retirement, for the number of years of service through December 31, 2006, Persion expense

far the fund is included in Trustee compensation and expenses in the Statement of operations. Accrued pension
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liability is included in Payable for Trustee compensation and expenses in the Statemant of assets and liabilities.
The Trustees have terminzted the Pension Plan with respect to any Trustes first elected after 2003,

The fund has adopted distribution plans (the Plans)with respect to the following share classes pursuant 1o Rule
12b-1 under the Investment Company Actof 1940, The purpose of the Plans is to compensate Putnam Retall
Management Limited Partnamship, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Putnam Investments, LLE, for services
pravided and expenses incurned in distributing shares of the fund. The Plans provide payments by the fund to
Putnam Retail Management Limlied Partnership at an annual rate of up to the following amounts (Maximum S}
of the averape net assets altributable to each class. The Trustees have approved payment by the fund at the
following annual rate (Approved 96) of the average net assets attributabis to each class, During the reporting
period, the class-specific expanses related to distribution fees wers as follows:

Maximum % Appreved % Amount
Class A 0.35% 0.25% 31,607,867
Class B L0 1.00%: 162,587
Class T 100% 1.00% 1183444
Class M L1005 0.50%: 382795
Class R LO0% 0.50% TLT14
Total $3,408,407

For the reparting period, Putnam Retall Management Limited Partnership, acting as underwriter, recelved net
commissions of 549,355 and 55748 from the sale of class A and class M shares, respectively, and recelved 57,465
and 53,378 in contingent deferred sales charpes from redemptions af class B and class C shares, respectively.

A deferred sales charge of up to 1.00% is assessed on certain redemptions of class A shares, For the
reporting period, Putnam Retall Management Limited Partnership, acting as underwriter, recelved 5293 an
clazs A redemplions.

Hote 3: Purchases and sales of securities
During the reporting period, the cost of purchases and the proceads from sates, excluding short-term
investments, were a5 follows:

Costof purchases  Proceeds from sales.

Investmenis in securities, including TRBA commitments (Long-term) 514.456,253,536 514,928, 130,509
U5, government securities {Long-term)] — 426,687
Tetal £14,456,259,536 £14,928 557,196

The fund may purchase or sell imestments from or to other Putnam funds in the ordinary course of business,
which can reduce the fund's transaction costs, at prices determined in accordance with SEC requirements and
policees approved by the Truestees. During the reporting period, purchases or sales of long-term securities from
or o other Futnam funds, If any, did not represent mone than 5% of the fund's total cost of purchases andfor total
proceeds from sales,

Note 4: Capital shares

At the elose of the reparting perlod, there were an undimitad number of shares of beneficial Interest autha-
rized. Transactions, including, if applicable, direct exchanges pursuant to share conversions, in capital shares
were as follows:

YEAR ENDED 10/31/18 YEAR ENDED 10/31/17

ClassA Shares Amount Shares Amount

Shaes sold 14,365,662 00,551,778 11337181 $82,100,703

Shares issued inconnection with

ralmwestiment of distributions 2899,831 19802116 3202853 21554903

17,265,553 118,393,394 15,140,074 104,056,606

Stres epuachosed CAORIOG)  O60%GRe)  popiiaen)  pesuses
 Netdecrease (6,794,490)  $(46,575,296)  (23,897,253)  §(163,475,283|
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YEAR ENDED 10/31/18 YEAR EMDED 10/31/17
ClassB Shares Amaunt Shares Amount
Shanes soid 42295 287,829 161,340 51,005,040
Shames issued inconnection with .
reinvestrment of distributions 56,610 ECRRE] T 516,208
OB oS 610673 237438 L611.348
Shaned repuichased (1,083, 326) (7375966 (1,048,541 (T 121,027)
Met decrease (990,261) 5(6,705,293) (811,203) 515,500,679
YEAR ENDED 16/31/18 YEAR EMDED 10/31/17
Shanes sold 2136 695 514448 166 2,030,543 413,835,244
Shaes issued inconnection with
reinvestment of distributions 408,506 2765, 5492 506,429 3442 806
2535201 17,214,058 2,536,972 17,278,050
Shaies repurchased (6,007 433 (A0 84 A60) {0, 788.422) feb,604,219]
Net decraase (3,482,233)  $(23,670.402) (7,251,450)  §{49,326,160)
YEAR EMDED 10/31/18 YEAR EMDED 10/31/17
Clasam Amount Amounl
Shares sold 188,800 51,259,521 163714 L1084 644
Shares imsued inconnection with
reinvestment of distributions 30,019 332,130 58,133 388,227
238,820 1591651 21401 1482 871
Shares repurchassd [842,009) (2610,293) (1,653 408) (11,079,153)
Net decrease (603,199) $(4,018,642) (1,432,001) 519,596,282
YEAR ENDED 10/31/18 YEAR ENDED 10/31/17
Shares Amount Amaunt
Shares sold 60LTE3 S4,0E2.TTE 644 367 4,386,002
Shanes msued inconnection with
reimvestment of distributions 5L, BEL 378,049 E1,70d Lho 126
G57.668 4 460,363 T26.067 4,541,125
Shares repurchased (LOTLATT) (T.262,380) (2,138.164) (14,557,577
Metdecrease (413,808) §(2,802,117) {1,412,007) §(9,616,448)
YEAR ENDED 10/31/18 YEAR ENDED 10/31/1T
Class RS Shares Amaunt Sharos Amount
Sharnes scid 93878 52,005,568 154,004 51073, 748
Shaes issued inconnection with
relmestrment of distributions 20,602 fa2 188 22.36] 154,850
314430 24T 85T 176,375 1,228,639
Shares repurchased [24,295] {376, 207) (402,215 {2,737, 260)
Met increase [decrease) 260,135 1,771,650 (225,840) 5(1,568,621)
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YEAR ENDED 10/31/18 YEAR EMDED 10/31/17
ClassRE Shares Amaunt Shames Amouni
Shares sold 5,685,278 $39,580,075 2,570,365 517,907,500
Shares issved in connection with
retnwvestment of distributicns 43057 3,044,727 A 4721115
6124336 42 524,802 2,960,970 20,628.705
Shares repurchased {3,563,5801 (2477293 |3 487,645 (24,310 473)
Metincrease (decrease] 2,560,756 £17,851,870 (526,678) $(3.681,768)
¥EAR ENDED 10/31/18 YEAR ENDED 16/31/17
Amount Amount
Chares sald 50,615,206 5351 421 494 3] 506,695 275, 547.240
Shaies isswed in connection with
reirwestment of distributions 2430730 16,857,513 1523080 17,557,650
53,050,016 368279007 35.029.97% 244,104,990
Shares repurchased (35,446,288 (146,938 851) 47813719 (332,558 436)
Metincrease [decrease] 17,603,728 $121,340,156 [12,763,744)  $[8& 453 446)
Hote 5: Affiliated transactions

Transactions during the repas ting period with any company which is under common cwnershioor control
were as follows:

Shares
autstanding
and fair
Fair value as Purchase sale Imwestiment value as
Hame of affiliate of 10/31/1T cost procesds Income of10/31/18
Short-term investments
Putnam Shaort Term
Irwestrrent Fund” S20,B57002 ST30,136636 5616 576,508 L3672274 §235 B17,220
Tetal Short-term
investments 420,657,092 §730,736,636 5515,576,508 $3,672,274 5235,817,220

"Management fees charged to Putnam Short Term Investment Fund have been waived by Putnam Management.
There were norealized or unrealized gains or losses during the pericd.

Hote 6: Market, credit and other risks

In the normal course of business, thie fund trades financial instruments and entars into financial transactions
wrhere risk of potential loss exists due to changes in the market (market risk) or fallure of the contracting party to
the transaction to porform icredit riskl, The fund may be exposed to additional credit risk that an institution or
other entity with which the fund has unsettled or open transactions will default. The fund may invest a signifi-
cant portion of its assetsin securitized debt instrumerts, Including marigage-backed and asset-backed invest-
mients. Thayvields and values of these inves ments are sensitive to changes in interest rates, the rate of principal

payments on the undertylng assets and the market's perceptlon of the issuers. The market for these investments
miay be valatile and limited, which may make them difficult to buy or sall.
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The volumeof activity for the reporting period for any derivative type that was held during the period is listec
below and was bazed an an average of the holdings at the end of each fiscal quarter:

Purchosed TBA commitment cption contracts (contract amount)

Purchased swap option contracts (contract amount}

Written THA commadment opison cantracts I:Etl'lllatl amaunt)

Written swap option Comracts [contract amount)
Futures contracts (number of contracts)

Centrally cleared interest rate swapcontracts notional]

OTC votal retum swap contracts inotsonal)

Centrally cleared total return swap contracts [naotional)

OTC cradt defanlt contracts (notional)
Centrally cleared credit default contracts [netional)

5478,700,000
59,206, 800,000
SBRS, 900,000
$8,110,900,000

3000

34, 1L900,000
5161,900,000
540,400,000
$329,400,000
5102, 100,000

The following i+ a summary of the fair value of dervative instruments as ol the case of the reparting period:

Falrvalue of derivative instruments as of the close of the reporting period

ASSET DERIVATIVES LIABILITY DERIVATIVES
Derivatives not
accounted for as Statement of Statement of
hedging instruments assets and assetsand
under ASC 815 liabilities location Fair value liabilities location Fairvalue
Payables, Net assats —
Crediecontracts Recenables LBAmESET  Unrealized depreciation L6, REE RIS
Ivvesimerts,
Recarsables, et
assets — Unrealized Payalles, Met assets —
Intenest rte contracts approcistion 33981676  Unrealized depreciation 47,285 583"
Total $42 458,263 §73,972,206

*Includes cumulative appreciation/depreciation of futures contracts and/or centrally cleared swaps as
reparted in the fund's portiolio. Only current day's variation margin & reparted within the Statement of

assets and labilities.
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The foliowing i a summary of realized and change in unrealized gains or losses of derivative instrumants in the
Statement of operations for the reparting period (see Mate 1);

Amount of realized gainor (loss) on derivatives recognized innet gain or (loss)oninvestments

Derivatives not

accounted for as

hedging instruments

under ASCB15 Dptions Futures Swaps Total

Credit contracts G— = 54,008 351 54,008,391

Interest rate contracts [TABY 622 [T 558457 32,661,253 SIT52L1THM

Total 4T AAT622) 4(7,658,45T) 536,675,644 $21,529,565

Change in unrealized appreciation or (depreciation) on derivatives recognized innet gain or (loss)

aninyestments

Derivatives not

aceounted for 2s

hedging instruments

under ASC B15 DOptions Futures Swaps Total

Credit contracts f— f— £6, 450,150 56,460,159
ML contracty L) R ..., ... A ...cocls:

Total §(14,230,157) $(4,667,209) 6,740,790 §{12,156,576)

Hote 8: New accounting pronouncements

i March 2007, the Finapcial Accounting Standards Board issued Accounting Standards Update (A5U) No. 2017-08,
Receivables — Nanrefundabie Feesand Other Costs (Subtopic 310-200: Premivm Amartizotion an Purchased
Catlmble Dabt Securties, The amendments in the ASU shorten the amertization period for certain callable debt
sacurities held at a premium, o be amortized to the earliest call date, The ASU is effective for fiscal years and
interim petiods within those [scal years beginning aftes Decernber 16, 2018, Management is currently evaluating
the impact, if any, of applying this provision,

492 Income Fand
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The fund’s portfolio 10/31,/18

.5, GOVERNMENT AND AGENCY

MORTGAGE DBLIGATIONS [48.7%:)"

Principal
amaount

EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000(E14869)
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Valle

U.5. Government Guaranteed Mortgage Obligations (14.9%)
Gavernment National Mortgage Association Pass-Through Certificates

5.00%, withdue dates from 6/15,/40 1o 5/ 70/48 524,368,659 525,387,918
4.70%, with due dates from 5/20/55 to 8/20/67 1198716 1,260,585
4.6T3%, 5/20/65 264 663 276,237
46674, 9/20,/65 274479 286,576
4.646%, /20755 139,171 145,167
4,627, 6/20/67 BTT445 930,220
4,621%, 6/20/55 40,666 42,292
4.589%, 5/20/65 48,894 51,024
4.519%, 8/20/65 63,206 71,192
4,507%, 32057 1,066,505 1111443
4.50%, 620/55 40,951 42,629
4 50%, TRA, 12/1/48 41,000,000 A1,747, 150
4.50%, TBA, 11/1/48 31,000,000 31,794,375
4.50%, with dus dates from 5/ 20/44 10 5/20/48 7437063 7,708,757
445506, 57065 1,020,781 1,056 GET
4 4850, 5/20/65 To811 73,332
4.404%, 6/20/65 25740 6,718
4,375 5/20/67 326652 336, 870
4.00%, TBA, 11/1/48 34,000,000 34,200,845
o, 00%, with due dates from 9/ 20/40 10 520,48 11.985275 12,106,714
3,50, THA, 11/1/48 43,000,000 42,277,342
3,50%, withdus dates from 11/15/42 te 1 /2048 35,612,857 36,041,166
3,004, TBA, 11/1/45 5,000,000 4 778,516
2.00%, with due dates from 3,/20/43 to 10/20/45 2,795,322 2,198,138
233,903,603

U.5. Government Agency Mortgage Obligations (33.8%)

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation Pass-Through Certificates
5.00%, 3/1 /41 462,223 485,536
4 50%, with due dates lrom 7/ 14410 3/1 /45 1,397,258 1,443,045
4.00%, with due dates from 127144 10 97145 9,992725 10,030,157
3.50%, withdue dates from 4/ 142 to 1171747 18,073,204 17,650,028
2.00%, 10/1/46 3,441,106 3,167,917
2.50%, 4/1/43 T15646 57,190

Federal National Mort gage Association Pass-Through Certificates
6.00%, THA, 11/1/48 2,003,000 2,151,119
6,00%, withdue dates from 2/1,365105/1 441 3512770 3,856,504
5.50%, with due dates from 1/1/33 0 2/1/35 595,395 o4l.166
5,008, with due dates frem 37140 ko 1/1 /44 1,832 518 1,937,238
4.50%, TBA, L1/1/48 15,000,000 15,355 079
4,504, with due dates from 7/2,/44 10 10/1 46 6,910,367 7114448
4.00%, TBA, 11/1/48 30,000,000 18,957657
4,00%, with due dates from B/ 144 to 1/ 157 21,658,659 11,744,156
3 50%, with due dates fram 5/ 1 /5610 9/1/5T 25,705,342 24,970,256
3.50%, TBA, 12/1/48 ' 78,000,000 75,820,635
3.50%, TBA, 11/1/48 184,000,000 179,083,740
3.50%, withdue dates from &/ 130 to 2/1 /47 17023642 16,675,556

76 Income Fund
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U.5. GOVERNMENT AND AGENCY Principal

MORTGAGE OBLIGATIONS [48.7%)" cond amount

U.5. Government Agency Mortgage Obligations cont.
Federal National Mortgage Association Pass-Through Certificates

3.00%, TBA, 11/1/48 570,000,200 566,199,217
3.00%, with deedates from /L4210 3/ 147 18,757,349 17,814,513
2.50%, TBA, 11/1/48 31,000,000 8,323,829
1.50%, 12/1047 5554 182 5469642
530,615,086

Total U.5. government and agency mortgage obligations (cost$777,603,135) $764,518,689

Principal
MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES {39.29%%)" amount Value

Agency collateralized mortgage obligations (17.0%)
Bellemeade Re, Lid, Ladh
FRESer. I7-1, Class ML {1 Manth U5 LIBOR + 1L.T0%), 3.9681%,

1042527 Bermuda) 53,063,668 53,066,723
FRBSer. 1824, Class M1EB, {1 Month US LIBOR+ 1.35%), 3 531%,
8/25/28 Barmuda) 3,454,300 3,476,641

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation
IFBSer. 3208, Class EK, [{-8 024 % | Month LS LIBOR) + 25, 794%%),

1662 1%, #/15/37 615,730 836934
IFB Ser 2976, ClassLC, (-3.667 ¢ 1 Month USLIDOR) « 24 42%],

16,0623, 5/15/35 84763 106,453
IFBSer. 3244, Class PS5, ([-3.3x 1 Manth US LIBOR] + 22 28%],

14.753%, 12/15/36 188,775 428,025
IFB Ser. 3065, ClassDC, [{-3x 1 Month US LIBOR) - 19.66%),

13.072%, 3/15/35 441 364 534,665
IFB Ser. 2990, Class LB, ({-2.5%x | MonthUS LIBOR)+ 16,950,

11 119%, 6/15/34 312,856 345,691
Structured Agency Credit Rish Debt FRN Ser, 14-HOQA, Class M3,

{1 Month US LIBOR-+ 4. 75%), TO31%, 10/25/14 634,354 701,135
Structured Agency Credit Hisk Debt FRN Ser. 16-D8A2, Class M3,

[1 Month LIS LIBOR+ 4 65%), 6.931%, 10/25/28 5.830,000 5,683,291
Structured Agency Credit Risk Debt FRN Ser. 15-0NL, Class M3,

[1Month US LIBOR+ 4,15%), 6.431%, 1/25(25 6,602,166 1,073,543
Struetured Agency Credit BRish Debt FRN Ser, [5-0NAZ, Class M2,

(1 Month LIS LISOR+ 2 60%h), 4.881%, 13/25/27 LA 459 1,855,367
Ser.4132, Class P10, 4 50%, 11/15/42 4,648,730 792,618
Ser.4122,ClassT1, |0, 4.50%, 10/15/42 2,056,553 483,534
Ser. 4018, Class D, 10,4 500, T/1541 2038335 288,155
Ser. 3707, Class P, 10, 4.50%, T/15/25 9,055 3507
Structured Agency Credit Rick Dobt ~HN Sar, L5-HOL, Class M2,

(1 Month US LIBOR+ 2.20%], 4487%, 3/25/25 114,89 115174
Structured Agency Credit Rizh Debt RN Ser, 16-DHA2, Class M2,

(1 Month US LISOR+ 2. 20%), 4.481%, 10/25/23 551,734 556,214
Ser.d546, Class T1, 10, 4.00%, 12/15/45 13,785,800 3,067,341
5er,4500,Class G, 10,4.00%, 8/1545 10,860,297 2,436,399
IFE Ser. 3852, Class NT, (-1 « | Month US LIBOR) +&,00%),

37219, 5715/41 1,211,357 1,089,838
Ser.4165, Class A, 10, 2.50%, 1/15M3 9,959,303 1,806,210
Ser.4182,Class G, 10, 2.00%, 1/15/43 14,402,503 984,284
Ser. 4141, Class P10, 3.0006, 12/15/42 5,530,603 GI7.900

Incarme Fund 27
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MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES (39, 2% cont
Agency collateralized mortgage obligations cont.
Federal Home Loan Maortgage Corporation
Ser 4158, Class T1,10,3.00%, 12/15/42
Ser 4176, Class 01, 10, 3.00%, 12/ 1547
Ser4lvl, Class k), 10, 2.00%, 6/15/42
Ser 483, Class Mi, 10, 3.00%, 2/15/42
Sar 4201, Class i, 10, 1.00%, 12/ 15/41
Ser 4206, Class P M0, 3.00%, 12,/15/41
Sar 4004, 10, 3.00%, 3/15/76
Ser. 315, PO, mero %, 3/15/43
Set. 3835, Class FO, PO zero %, 4/15/41
Ser. 3369, Class BO, PO, zero ¥, 9/15/37
Ser. 3391, PO, rera e, 4/15/37
Ser. 3300, PO, zero %, 2/ 1537
Ser. 3206, Class EQ, PO, zero %, 8/15/36
Ser 3175, Class MO, PO, zera %, 6/15/36
Ser 3210, PO, zoro %, 5/15/36
Sor. 3326, Class WF, 2om W, L0y/15/35W
FRB Ser. 3117, ClassAF. (1 Manth US LIBOR + §.00%,
7ero %, 2/15/36
FedoralHome Loan Mortgage Corporation Structured Agency
Credit resk Debt FRN Ser. 15-HQL, Class M3, (1 Menth US LIBOR
+3.A0%), 60875, 3/25/25
Fageral Matlonal Mort gage Association
IFB Ser.06-62, Class PS5, ([-6x L Month US LIBOR) « 393006,
26.212%, 7/25/35
IFB Ser. 06-8, Class HR. ([-3.667 « L Month USLIBOR) » 34,574,
16,2073, 3/25/35
IFBSer.05-122, Class SE, (-3.5% 1 Month US LIBOR) + 23.10%),
15.105%, 11725735
IFB Ser.06-T5, Class G5, (-3 L Month LIS LIBOR) + 20,250,
13.400%, 825/35
|FB Ser. 05-106, Class JC, [{-3.101 x 1 Month LS LIBOR) + 20.12%),
13.08%, 12/25/36
IFB Ser.05-83, Class QF, {(-2.6x 1 Month US LIBOR) + 17395,
IL462%, 1172534
IFBSer. 11-4, Class €5, |[-2= 1 Month US LIBOR) + 12 30%,
B.337%, 5/25/40

Coanecticut Avenue Securities FRB Ser, 16-C02, Class 1Mz,
{1 Manth LIS EIROR + 6.00%), 8,281 %, 9/25/78
Conngctiout venue Securities FRBSor, 14-C04, Class IM2,
{1 Month LIS LIBOR « 4.90%), 7.161%, 11/25/24
Cannecticut Avenue Securities FRE Ser. 15-C02, Class 2M2,
{1 Manith LIS LIBCIR + 4,000, 5281 %, 5/2425

Cannecticut Avenue Securitios FRE Sor, 14003, Class 2MZ,
(L Month US LIBOR « 2.90%;), 5.181%, T/25/24
Connecticut Avenue Securities FRE Ser, 14-C02, Class IM2,
{1 Manth LIS LIBOR + 2_60%), 4 BR1%, 5/25/24
Connecticut Avenue Securities FRE Ser, 16-C03, Class IM1,
{1 MonthUS LIBOR + 2005, 42819, 10/25/28

Ser. 15-3,Class Bi, W0, 4.00%, 3/25/44

28 Income Fund
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513,712.912
15,181 536
717311
4,994 55
14,248,000
6,518,575
5,332,527
13434685
4,996,151
10,520
95,657
130,512
5,204
22,542
13,477
10,749

14,222

500,000

305409
307493
453,291
147,246
317474
55,716
583,190
L2 70000
4,833,651
1,192,112
2,665,343
45,000

1,563,167
6,596,828

51,348,254
1513305
851,681
441,769
1,195,654
597,775
766,156
10,350,940
4,007,360
B570
78,101
106,582
5,144
18,124
17,280
7,266

10,537

533,362

480,214
420,551
556,156
169,740
Ira 113
61,338
B26,745
14,541,374
5.515,186
1,284 250)
846,480
B9E,195

1,579,224
1175297



EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000(E14869)
Ooooooooooooooooonoao

Principal

MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES [39.2%)" con amaunt Value
Agency collateralized mortgage obligations cont.
FederalMational Mortgage Association

Ser. 12124, Class Ul 10, 4.00%, 11,25/42 512,050,657 52,517,057
Ser, | 2116, Class PI, 10, 4.00%, 6,75/47 11,1449 448 7,15A,700
Ser, 12-62, Closs EI, 10, 4.00%, 4/25/41 TABEITS 1,157,002
Ser, 1227, Class T, 10, 4.000%, 3/25/4] 5,007, 368 1,098,272
Ser. 15-10,Class Al 10, 3.5006, 8/25/43 13,670,158 1638466
Sor, 13:18, Class BN, 10, 3.50%, 3,/25/43 4,869,655 T4B,538
Ser, 14-10, 10, 3 50%, 8/25/2 6,914 483 1,272,464
Ser, 12-128, ClassQI, 10, 3.50%, 6/25/42 B, 766,287 818,720
Ser, 12101, Class 1,10, 3.50%, 8/25/40 11,072 647 1,000,750
Ser. 14-20,Class 1A, 10, 3.5006, 7/25/30 8,615,800 602,727
Ser. 13-55, Class 1K, 10, 3.00%, 4/25/43 4,445 B3B8 494 119
Ser. 12150, Class Pl, 10, 3.00%, 1,/25/43 6,380,463 668,609
Ser, 12144, Class K1, 0, 3.00%, 11/25/42 9,168 155 903,221
Ser, 13-35, Class IR, 10D, 3.00%, 6/25/42 4, 26TAER 308,125
Ser. 1366 Class P10, 3,000, 5/25/42 5908 T30 568226
Ser, 1335, Class P10, 2.009,2/25/42 12,045,730 £30,551
Ser, 13-67, Class (P, 10, 3.00%, 2/25/42 G, 78T.601 T3, 744
Ser. 13-30, Class 1P, 10, 3.00%, 10,/25/41 3,300,226 193,426
Ser. 13-23, Class LL, ID, 3,009, 6/25/41 4,159,719 227,133
Sor, 1428, Class Al 10, 3,000, 372540 13,516,375 1228611
FRBSer, 01-50, Class B1, 10, 0LI85%, 10/25,/41 W 345 060 1483
FRE-Ser, 05-Wd, Class LA, 10, 0,062%, 8/25845% 96,161 116
Ser.03-34, Class PL, PO, 2ero %, 4/25 43 137971 114,516
Ser,07-64, Class LO, PO, zero %, 7/25/37 18,337 15,913
S, O7-14, Class KO, PO, 2e00%, 3/25/37 104,125 42,900
Ser.06-125, Class OX, PO, 2ero ¥, 1/25/37 13,758 10,696
Ser, 06-84, Class OT, PO, zero %, 9/25/36 10,534 8512
Ser.05-46, Class OC, PO, zero %, 6/25/36 8,287 6,573
FRE Ser, 02-WG, Class 1A, 10, 2ero%h, 6/25/42 W B24,005 8l
Gewainiment Nat onal Mot gage Assoristion

Sar, 09-79, Class IC, 10, 6,00%, 8/20,/30 10,915,338 3,239,306
Ser. 18-127, Class 1D, 10, 5,00%, T/20/45 537647 87,250
Ser, 14-76, 10, 5,00%, 570/44 5,665,911 1,356,783
Ser, 133, Class (T, 10, 5,00, /20,43 2,656,127 600,656
Sir, 11-116, Class (B, 10, 5.00%, 10/20/40 114 423 9,512
Sar. 10-35, Class U, 00, 5.00%, 3/20/40 1,787,550 414,372
Ser. 109, Class U, 10, 5.00%, 1/20/40 15,801 445 3,556,526
Ser.06-1 21, Class U, 10,5.00%, 12,/20/3% 7,360,481 1,731,995
IFBSer. 10-9, Class VD, 10, {[-1x 1 Manth US LIBOR) « &,80%],

4.52%, §/16/40 22,036,334 3,576,083
Ser. 18-127, Class 1B, 10, 4.50%, 6/20/45 1812738 248,309
Ser, 14-108, Class |2, 10, 4.50%, 12/20/42 4,377,938 657,673
Ser, 13-20, Class G110, 45006, 1271642 10,466,656 1,664,054
Ser. 12129, 10, 4,500, 1116742 5 504, E50 1,758,469
Sor, 10-35, Class QI, 10, 4,50%, 3/20/40 2745318 583,057
Ser. 10-9, Class QF, 10, 4.50%, 1720440 2,838,037 584,357
Ser. 13-34, Class P1 10, 4.50%, B/20/39 15,121,727 1,362,165
Ser. 14-71, Class Bi, 10,4 500, 5/20/29 7018350 778416

Incame Fund 2%
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MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES [30,296)* cont
Agency collateralized mortgage obligations cont.
Government Mational Mortgage Assoclation
Ser. 15-149, Class K, 10, 4.00%, 10,20/45
Sar 15-94, 103, 4.00%, 7/ 20445
Ser 15-99,Class LI, 10, 4.009%, 7/20/45
Ser. 15-53, ClassMI, 1D, 4.00%, 4/16/45
Ser. 14-2,Class L, 10,4000, 1/16/44
Ser. 1463, Class P10, 4.00%, 7/20/43
Ser. 15-52,Class IF,10,4,00%, | /1643
Ser 13-4, Class IC, 10, 4.00%, 9/20/42
Ser. | 3-66, Class |8, 10, 4.00%, 4/20/42
Ser. 12-50, Class P10, 4.00%, 13/ 20/1
Ser. 14-4, Class 1K, 10, 4.00%, 7/20/33
Ser. 11-T1, Class ik, 10, 4,00%, 4/16/39
Ser, 14-162, Class DI, 10,4,00%, 11/20/38
Ser. 14-133, Class Al 10, 4.000, 10/20/35
IFBSer, 13129, Class SN, 10, {-1x 1 Month LIS LIBOR] +6.15%),
3 8T%, 3120043
Ser, 18-127, Class IE. 10, 3.50%, 1/20/46
Ser. 15-69, Class X, 10, 3.500, 5/20/45
Ser. 16136, Class Y, 10, 3.50%, 3/20/45
Sor, 1520, Class Pl KD, 3,500, 2/ 10/45
Ser. 15-24, Class Cl, 10, 3,505, 2/20,/45
Set. 15-24,Class 4, 10, 3,50%, 2/20/45
Ser. |3-100, Class M1, 10, 3.50%, 2/20/43
Ser, 13-37, Class JI 10, 3.50%, 172043
Ser 12145, 10, 3.50%, 12/20/42
Ser, 1321, Class P, 00, 3.50%, 12/7H0M4
Ser, 12-136,10,3.50%, 11/20/42
Ser. 12-113,Class D, 10, 3.50%, &/ 20/42
Ser, 1B-127, Class 14, 10, 3.5006, 4,20/42
Ser. 15-36, ClassGI, 10, 3.50%, 6/16/41
Ser. 14-102, Class G, 10, 3.50%, 3/16/41
Ser, 15-52, Class K1, 10, 3.50%, 11/20/40
Ser, 15-26, Class Al KO, 3, 50%:, 5,/20/39
Ser, 15-87, Class Al 10, 3,505, 12/20/38
Ser. 15-24, ClassiC, 00, 3.50%, 11/20/37
S, 14-100,:!355_.”, 10, 3.50%, T/L6/23
Ser, 14-141, Class 1,10, 3.00%, 3/20/0
Ser. 13-73,Class K, 10, 3.00%, 9/20,/37
Set 1446 Class K1 10, 2.00%, 520/35
Ser. 14-30, Class K1, 10, 3.00%, 2/16/29
Ser.14+5,Class L1,10, 3.00%, 1/16/29
Ser, 13-164, Class CI, 10, 3.00%, 11/15/28
Ser, 16-H2T, Class Bl 10, 2.455%, 12/20/66W
S 16-HD 3, Class NI, M0, 2.483% 10/H)/EEW
FRBSer, 15-H16,Class ¥, 10, 2,33 3%, T/20/65W
Ser. 16-H24, Class JI.10, 2. 1815, 11,/20/66™
Ser [T-HOB, Class M1, 1D, 2.151%, 3/20/6TW
Ser, 16-H11,Class HI, 10, 2,059%, 1/20/66W

30 Income Func
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816,251,358

632,705
3,211,345
16,075,973
234 440
7,520,908
10,487,559
12,734,071
5,762,320
12,741,320
3,786,593
278,909
6,755,992
8,329,657

2,111,800
1,736,235
13,907 854
13,229,583
BTT3,966
6,790,295
9,254,349
3,851,007
3,381 490
5 696,628
4, 4R 150
14,221,894
18,753,332
20,189,509
8,350,711
6,638,585
13,897,314
21,196,998
12,935,086
8,175,510
13719478
f,085 58]
14 487 236
3,737 894
5,551,013
5,800,743
11,100,002
13,056,993
42 B16 056
21,537,608
16,378,083
15,421,280
35,706,388

43,006,696
| 50,856
516,771

3,460,578
1,008,731
1,235,009
1,834,553
2,T22063
1,176,535
2,196,558
330,540
129,097
330,732
662,972

276,435
1,300,467
1,652 128
1867901
1,614,576
1,289,321
1,256,657
B8 418
509 437
1,191,414
B4, 0451
2,640,903
3,620,618
2,033,084
858,645
721,431
1,650,487
223412
906,259
B&D,565
1,432,911
436,653
1,328,422
238297
350,385
265,245
947,940
1,551,171
4,840,931
2232208
1,985,843
1,751,857
3,302 841
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MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES [39.2%:)" conf amaount

Agency collateralized mortgage obligations cont.
Govarnment National Mortgage Asscciation

Ser. 18-H0Z, ClassEl, 10, 19673, 1/20/68% 516,843,761
Ser, [T-H12, Class I, 10, | 955%, 52067 FATIT 237
Ser, 15-H15, Class JI, 10, 195 1%, 6/20/65W 18,245,656
Ser. 17-Hi8, Class CI, 10, 1 B%3%, 9/20/67W 14,612 785
Sar, 17-H23,Class B 10, 187453, 11720/67W 21,975,093
Ser. 15-H12, Class AL 1O, LE54%, 5/20/65 W T 2FT 4L
Ser, 15-HM, Class Al 10, [BX6%, 8/ /65w 24,646,118
Ser, 15-H10, ClassCl, 10, 1.B0SYE, 4/ X, B5W 2TALT 359
Ser. 18-HOS, Clazs Al 10, L A04%, 2/20/68W 21,326,633
Ser, 15-HI2, ClassGI, 10, 1. 79306, 5/ W65 W 36,015,980
Ser. 15-H12, ClassEl, 10, 1699%, 420,65 W 26,518,920
Ser, 15-H09, Class B4, 10, 1.632%, 3/20/65 % 30,640,544
Ser. 13-H17,Class G, 10, L.E69%, 10/20/68W 20,514,377
Ser. 17-H10, Class M, 10, 1E5T%, 4/ 20/67W 19,858,402
Sar 1he-HHG, Class D110, 16535, 10 20/65 W 18,683 045
Ser. 15-H01, Class €110, L634%, 12/20/54 W 25,076,508
Ser, 15-Hz25, Class Al 10, 1,61 1%, 9/20/G5W 22,606,092
Sar, 15-HLT,Class CI, 10, 1.601%, 6/20/65W 26419139
Ser. 15-H14, Class Bi, 10, 1. 5765, 5/20/65W 2,250,054
Sor. 15-H28, ClassiD |0, | 551%, 82065 W 76,129 96}
Sor |5 H2G, Class C1,10, 1.5225%, 10/ 20/65 W 23,743,778
Ser, 14-H1L Class G, 10, 14T3%, 672068 47,367 188
Ser. 14-HOT, Class BL, 10, 1.462%, 5/20/64 % 37,828,460
Ser, 10-H18, ClassGl, 10, 14149, Bf20/60W 30,074,219
Ser 1T-H14, Class El, 10, 1.375%, 6/20/6TW 24078462
Ser. 16-HO4, Class KL, 10, LI54%, 3/20/66W 5823772
Ser. 16-HO2 Class HI, 10, 1.182%, 1/20/66' 46,541,117
Ser, 18-H17, Class Ti, 10, L16E, 10/20/69W 28,875,000
Ser, |5-HO4, Class Al 10, 10865, 12/20/64W 30,414,536
IFBSor. 11-70, Class ¥, 10, |{-1x 1 Meath US LIBOR)+ 5.00%),
0.15%, 1 2/20/40 il,226479
Ser. 10-151, Class KO, PO, zero %, &/16/37 217,205
Ser,06-36, Class 0D, PO, fero%, T116/36 13,824

Here Fig, Lt 1448 FRE Sor. 18:-1 Class M1, (1 Manth USLISOR '

+ 1.60%], 3.832%, 10/25/28 (Bermudal 1,974,000

Value

52,310,753
1794533
1,713,267
2,100,588
2,248,052
2,344,771
2,160,612
2444043
2,505,754
3,018,139
1,089,691
2415506
3,979,869
1,880,520
1,783,500
1,281,851
LT1L390
1,300,037

108,647
1717888
2,132,191
3,298,935
2,789,649
1,686,523
2076767
2,184,753
3,732,598
2,684,919
2471,181

68,217
Ir4,383
16,958

1,974,000
266,831,155

Commercial mortgage-backed securities [13.50)
Bane of AmercaCommercial Mortgagn Trust FRESar 071,

ClassxW, 10, 0.221%, 1/1545% 2,107,073
Bancal AmercaCommercial Mortgage Trust 1444
FRESer.04-4, ClassXC, 10, 03220, 7/10/42 W 78,116
FRBSer. 07-5, Class XW, 10, zero %, 2/10/51W 2,690 694
Banz of America Merrill Lynch Commercial Mortgage, Inc. L4dA
FREBSer, 04-5, Closs 40,10, 0,430%, 1171041 W 1311542
FRBSer, 05-1, Class KW, 10, 2eno%, LL10M42% 21,755,131
Bear Steamns Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
FRBSer.07-T26, Class AJ, 54659, 1/12/45W 4,551,000
FRESer. 04-PRII Class X1, 10, 7ero %, 20 LALW A5,523

181/322

4,108
218

4355 185
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MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES (39.2%)" cont amount
Commercial mortgage-backed securities cont.
BearStearns Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust 1443

FRE Ser. 06-PYW11, Class B, 5. 27%, 3/11/39W 55480,608
FRBSer. 06-PWi4, Class X1,10,0.315%, 12/11/3AW 437 BEO
Capmark Mortigage Securities, Inc, FRB Ser. 97-CL, Class X, 10,
1.337%, W15/29W 306,836
COCommercial Mortgage Trust FRB-Ser. 16-C01, Class XA, 10,
14279, 8/ 10/45 W FENE R
COCommercial Mortgage Trust 1444 FRB Ser. OT-C04, Class XN, 10,
0.771%, 12/11/40W 150,377
CFCRE Commercial Mortgage Trust 1444
FRBSer, 11-CZ, Class [, 5.756%, 12/15/MTW 601,000
FRESer, 11-C2, ClassE, 57569, 12/1547W 3,253,000
Citigroup Commercial Martgage Trust
FRB Ser, 13-GC17, Class XA, 10, 1.307%, L1/10M46 W 33 426,649
FRESer. 14-GC18, Class XA, 10, 1.142%, 3/10/47W 91,380,566
FRE Ser, 15-GC31, Class XA, 10, 0L406%, 6/10/48W 74,020,272
Citigroup Commercial Martgage Trust 14944 .
FRE Ser. 14-G021, Class D, 4.906%, 5/ L0/47W Bk 000
FRB Ser. 06-C5, Class ¥, 10, DA%E05, 10/ 15/40W 10,023,809
COBALT CMB5 Commercial Morigage Trus: FRE Ser, 07-C3,
ClassAl, 5.82%, 5/15/46W 3,502 544
COMM Mortgage Trust
FRE Ser. 14-CR17, Class C,4.T38%, 5/10/47 W LG6ER000
FRE Ser. 18-CRIB, Class C,4.7332%, Tf15/47w £E9,000
Ser. 13-CRLL, Class AM, 4.T15%, B/10/50W 245000
FRE Ser. 14-UB56, ClassC, 4.463%, 1 2/10/47W 1113000
FRESar. 14-LC15, Class MA, 10, 1 2755, &/10/4TW 95,970,536
FRB Ser. 14-CR19, Class K4, 10, L184%, B/ 1047w 41,899,717
FRESer. 14-LIAS4, Class XA, 10, 116, &1 0a7w 4|, H58, 587
FRE Ser. 13-LC13, Class XA, 10, 1L167T%, BA10M4E6W 39,658,795
FRB Ser. 14-CR18, Class XA, 10, L15%, /1547w 58,136,538
FRB Ser. 14-CRIT, Class KA, 10, 108%, 5/10/47W 51084431
FRE 5Ser. 14-UB56, Class XA, 10, 0,963, 12/ 10/47w 54,758,688
FREB Ser. 15-CRE3, Class N, 10,0.961 %, 5/ 10f45W 3TEOT 442
FRB Ser. 14-LC1T, Class XA, 10, 0.961%, 10/10/M47W 28,677,059
COMM Mortgage Trust 1444
Ser. 1 2-LC4, Class E.4.25%, 12/10/44 1,914,000
Sar. 15:LC1%, Class 0, 2 867%, 2/10/48 2,131,000
FRESer. 12-LC4, Ciass XA, 10, 2.206%, 12/10/44W 0,210,873
FRB Ser.06-C8, Class X5, 10, 04439, 12/ 10/46% 3,695,947
Credit Suisse Commerclal Mortgage Trust (444
FRBSer 07-C4,Class T, 5 9850, 97 15/35W L1763
FRBSer 08-C1,ClassAJ,5.07 1%, 2/1541 W 9,861,000
FRESer. 07-C2,ClassAx, 10, 0.04%, 1/15/49W 8,680,689
Credit Suisse First Boston Martgage Securities Corp. 1444 FRB
Ser.03-C3, Class AX, 10, 2.012%, 5/15/28W 722606
CSAIL Commercial Martgage Trust [44AFRB Ser, 15-CL, Class D,
3.796%, 4/15/50W 3,980,000

32 Income Fund
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43,836,476
7,168

4406
L9MA1
15

621,158
3,151,074

1,356,872
4447 558
1,594,712

hA4,r14
100

3318315

1,605,504
855,764
577,016
1,068,384
3,806,191
1,661,253
I AK? 980
1,659,324
2,185,352
2,000,005
2,207,104
1.477,165
828,652

1553440
1,803,163
1116428

ar

1,315,343
8,350,170
87

2,585

3,562,350
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Principal

MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES [39.2%:)" con amaunt Value
Commercial mortgage-backed securities cont.
DBUBS Martgage Trust 144A FRB Ser 11-LC3A, Class D,

5,338%, 51044 %W 52,143,500 52,201,070

GE Cornmercial Morigage Corp, Trust 1444 FRB Ser 07-CL,

Class XL, 10, 0.087%, 12/10/49W 22,179,057 4548

GMAC Commuercial Martgage Securities, Inc. Trust 1444 FRE

Ser,05-C1, Class X1, 10, 09829, 5/ 10/43wW 214462 2

G5 Mortgage Securities Trust
FRBSer. 14-GC18, Class €, 4.996%, 1/ L0/ATW 1,273,000 1,253,655
FROSer. 13-GC 10, Class XA, b0, 1.529, 2/ 1046w G7,092,847 3 498,892
FRBSer, 13-GC12, Class XA, 10, 1.438%, 6/10/6W 32,043,446 1.650,526
FRBSer, 14-GC1A, Class XA, MO, 1,045%, 1/10f7W 42,056,059 1,855,135
FRESer. 14-GC22, Class XA, |0, 0.99%, 6/1047W 54,082,065 2 457,867

G5 Mortgage Securities Trust 1444
FRBSer. 12-GC6, Class D, 5.652%, 1/10/45W 1.5%0,376 1.560,000
FRBSer, 13-GC10, Class E, 4.397%, 2/ 10/46% 3,347,000 4,569,085

JPMBE Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust FRE Ser, 14.0325,

Clags XA, 10, 009470, L1715/4TW 43,326,176 1,372,960

JPMBE Commercial Morlgage Securilies Trusl 1444
FRESer. 13-C14, Class E, 4.566%, B 15746 4,051,000 3,294,268
FRESer, 014, Class D, 4 566%, B/ 15/46% 6,516,000 5,852,278
FRESer, 14-C25, Class [, 39455, 11/15/4TW 5,549,000 4,670,608
Ser, 14-C23, Class E, 3.364%, 9/15/47W 2,623,000 2014, 123
Ser. 14-C25,Class E,3.332%, 11/ 1547w 4,518,000 2,949,300

JPMorgan Chase Commercial Morigage Securities Corp, FRB

Ser. |3.LCY, Class XA, 10, 1.545%, 13/15/4TW 42724 BE2 1,950,340

JPMargan Chase Commencisl Mortgage Securities Trust
FREBSer. 16-0P2, Clags XA, 10, 1LE4E%, B/ 15/49W 18,138,751 1975237
FRBSer. 13-LC11, Class XA, 10, 1.273%,4/15M6% A6,010,674 2,124,313
FRB Ser. 13-C16, Clasy XA, 10, 1.022%, 12/15/45W 45,310,515 1,752,043
FRBSer, 13-C10, Class XA 10, 1019, 12/15/4TW 71,069,553 2483957
FRB Ser. 06-L0PE, Class X, 10, 0.286%, 5/15/45% 1032297 L3
FRESer. OT-LOPX, Class X, 10, 0.151%, 1 /1548w B.344T77 10,808

JPMorgan Chase Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust [444
FRB Ser.07-CB20, Class €, 6.233%, 2/L2/51 W 396,904 397,805
FRESer, 11-C3, ClassF. 5.6/606, 2/ 1546w £,436,000 4,146,156
FRBSer. 12-06,Class E,5.14%, 5/15/45 W 3517,000 3460920
FRBSer, 13-C16, Class D.5.001%, 12/15/46W 41,000 G4),B26
FRE Ser, 12-C8,Class D, 4.651%, 10/15/45W 2,931,000 1,803,852
FRBSer. 12-CB, ClassE, 46519, 10/15/45W 676,000 636,549
FRESer 17-109, Class [, 4 3735, [2f1547W 521,000 611,794
FRESor 13-LC11, Class E, 3.25%, 4/15/46W 2,038,000 1,539.475
FRBSer. 05-CBL2, Class X1, 10, 0.363%, 8/ 1237w 2254017 2764
FRESer. 06-L0PE, Class X1, 10, zero 5, 4/ 1543 W 660,645 T

LB-UBS Commercial Mortgage Trust FRB Ser. 07-C32, Class XW, 10,

0.182%, 2/15M40% 269,889 28

LE-UBS Commercal Mortgage Trust 1444
FRE Ser, 05-C5, Class XCL, 10, 0.507%, 9/15/40% 4,399,656 25,744
FRESer, 05-CT,Class XCL,10,0,318%, 11/15/40% 2,286,641 5,503
FRBSer.07-C2,Class XCL, 0, 0. L85, 2/15/40W 5,078,152 624

Incame Furnd 33
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MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES (30.29)" cont mmaint
Commercial mortgage-backed securities cont.
LSTAR Commercial Mortgage Trust L44A FRBSer. 15-3, ClassC,

30720, 4/20/48 % 3,057,000
Marrill Lyrich Mortgage Trost 1444
FRB Sar. 04-KEY2, Class XC, 10,0.951%, 8/12/39W 364,961
FRESer 05-MOPL, Class XC, 10, 0.001%, 6/12 /43w &8, 168
MerzCapCommeercial Morgape Trust 1444
FRBSer.05-C3, Class ¥, 10, 6.722%, 5/15/M4W LT:Lx]
FRB Ser. 06-C4, Class X, 10,6.235%, T/15/45W 187,340
Margan Stanley Bankof America Mesrill Lyneh Trust
FRB Ser. 13-C7,Class XA, 10, 1.358%, 2/15/46W 53,742,964
FRBE 5ar. 15-C26, Class XA, 10, LO3E%S, 10/15/48W 38,367,054
FRBSer. 13-C12, Class XA, |0, 0.626%, 10/15M6W 123 BET, T4
Margan Stanley Bank of America Merrll Lynch Trust 1444
Ser. 14-C17,Class 0,4 T03%, B/ 15/47W 1,35, 000
FRBSer 13-C11, Class D, 4.35709, 8/15,/46W 5438000
FRESor. 13-C11, Class F 4.35T%, Bf15/46W 6,212,000
FRBSer 13-C10, Class E, 4.083%, T/15M6W 5,447,000
Set, 14-C17,Class E, 3.50%, B/15/47 2,7ir,000
Ser, 14-Ci8,Class D, 33890, 10/15/M47 2,046,000
Maorgan Stanley Capital | Trust FRB Ser, 16-BNK2 Class XA, 10,
1.0, 11715409 27506997
Morgan Stanley Capital | Trust 1444
FRESar 08-T20, Class F A LOTH, 1/11/43W 1812379
FRBSer. 12-C4, Class E, 5.42%, 3/ 1545 W 1,850,000
Tlas Real Estata COO, Lid, 1444 Ser. 03-14, ClassE,
8.00%, 12/28/38 1BBL295
UBS Commercial Mortgage Trust FRE Ser. 1T-C7,Class XA, 10,
1072%, 12/15/50W 34,569,667
UBS Commercizl Mortgage Trust 144AFRE Ser. 12-C1 Class XA, 10,
207%, 5/10/43W 12,558,166
UBS-Barclays Commsncial Martgage Trust 1444
Ser. 12-C2 ClassF 4.893%, 5/ 10/63W 2,565,000
Ser. 13-Co, ClassE, 3.50%, 4/10/46 3,482,000
FRE Ser, 12-C4, Class XA, 10, LEA2%, 12/ 1045w 44553721
Wac hewia Bank Commercial Mortgage Trost
FRBESer. 06-C26, Class Al 6,076, 6/15/45W 575,500
FRESer. 06-C20, 10,0, 274%, 11/15/48W 6.456,121
FRBSer. 07-C34,10,0,108%, 5/15/26W 2,565,760
Wachovia BankCommercial Mortgage Trust 1444
FRASer 05-C21, Class F, 5. 04 10, 10/15/44 % 4,945,000
FRBSer 06-C26,Class XL, 10, 0455, 6/ 15/45% 547528
FRESar 05-C18,Class XC, 10, 2ero %, 4/ 1543 W 179,848
Wilis Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust FRB v, 14-LC16,
Class XA, 10, 1,334%, B/15/50W BT
WE-RBS Commercial Mot gage Trust
FRES2r 14-C22, Class XA, 10, (LE40%, 97 1557w 25,594,350
FRB Ser. 13-C14, Closs XA, 1D, 0,741 %, 6/15/46% o7.803.57T
FRESer. 14-C23, Class XA, 10, 0.63%, M 1557V 69,247,657

3 Income Func
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42,662,586

4
24

1,362
5,540

1ATT 282
2,098,588
2,684,704

930,897
4,350,400
2,174,200
4,306,636
1,501,249
1,632,838

1,657,357

1,789,626
1,680,725

138,718
2425 857
716,230
1,781,642
2475878

2,250,133

521,748
i58
34

4 547,750
1o
2

3405 822
1,379,894

2,530,399
1,815,131



EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000(E14869)
Ooooooooooooooooonoao

Principal

MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES [39.2%)" cont amaunt Value
Commercial mortgage-backed securities cont.
WF-RBS Commercial Mortgage Trust 1444

FRESer 11.C2,Class 0, 565056, 2/15/44'W S5,6TTA3E 55631921
Ser. 11-C4,Class E,.5,230%, &6/15/44 W 1021.76H 2,892 282
Ser, 11-C4, Class F5.00%, 6/15/44W 6,151,000 4,455,520
Ser.11-C3, ClassE, 5.00%, 3/15/44 W 1,601,000 798,051
FRBSar |2-C7, Class [, 4. B220 671545 4,142,000 3,789,060
FREBSer. 12010, Class D, 4.4479%, 12/15/45W 1,834,000 1,605,030
FRESer, |2-C10, Class E, 4 447%, 1 3/15/45W 3,645,000 #,369,250
Ser, 13-C12 Class E, 3.50%, 3/15/48 893,000 653327
FRB Ser, 13-C% Class XA, 10, LBATS 11/15/M45W 53,753 448 3,576,244
FRBSer. 11-C5,Class XA, 10, 1 T38%, 11,/15/44W 32,750 262 1,281,021
FRESeEr 12010, Class XA, 10, 1567, 12/15/45W 42,711,805 2,188,681
FRBSer, 13-C11, Class XA, 10, 1.216%, 3/15/45% 23,004,754 852,178

212,378,358

Residential mortgage-backed securities (non-agency) (8.7%5)
BOAR LLEC Trust 1448 FRB Ser, 15-RRS, Class 282 20140, 1/16/46W 87330040 8,139,339
Bellemeace Re, Lid. 1444

FRBSer, 17-1,Class M2, (1 Month US LIBOR +3.35%), 5,63 1%,

10/25/27 (Bermudal 11,470,000 11,907,168
FRB Ser, 18-2A, Class MIC, {1 Month US LIBOR + 1 60%), 3.881%,
6/25/28 (Bermuda) 1,080,000 1,087,388

Chewy Chase Funding, LLC Mortgage-Backed Certificates
144AFRBSer.04-3A, Class A2, (L Month US LIBOR + 0.30%),
2.581%, B/25/35 1,717,334 1,648,620
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corparation
Structured Agency Credit Risk Debt FRN Ser. 16-HQAL ClassM3,

(1 Month US LIBOR +5.35%), B.631%, 9/25/28 1F3TAT0 13,456,317
Structured Agency Credit Risk Debt FRN Ser. 16-HQAZ, Class M3,

{1 Month US LIBOR + 5.15%), T431%, 11/35/28 B,718,200 7,888,050
FRB Ser. 16-0MA3, Class M3, (L Month US LIBOR + 5,00%),

T.2680%, 12/25/28 4,290,000 5,00r9, 262
Structured Agency Credit Risk Debt FRN Ser. 14- D2, Class M3,

[1 Menth US LIBOR+ 3.6006), 5.881%, 4/25524 2,690,000 2,964 344
Structured Agency Credit Risk Debt FRN Ser. 17-DNAL Class M2,

(1 Month US LIBOR+ 3.25%), 5.531%, T/25/29 403,000 435,473
Structured Agency Credit Rish Debt FRH Ser. 17-DMAZ, Class M2,

(1 Month LS LIBOR+ 2.50%), 4.781%, 3/25/30 2,650,000 2,745,368

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corparation 1444 Structured
Agency Credit Risk Debt FRM Ser. 18-NMNAZ, Class 81, (1 Manth
USLIBOR # 3.70%), 5.981%, 12/25/30 4,330,000 4,376 BR2
Federal Mational Mortgage Assaciation
Connecticut Avenue Securitles FRE Ser. 16-C03, Class 2ke,

[1 Mesmth LIS LIBOR -+ 5 90%), B_181%, 102528 14, R8T, EED 16,815,804
Connecticut Avenue Socurities FRE Ser. 16-C03, Class IM2,
(1 Menth LS LIBOR+ 5.30%), 7.580%, 10/25/28 16,603,000 19,436,905
Cannecticut Avenue Securities FRE Sar. 16-C05, Class 2M2,
[1 Month LS LIBOR+ 4.450), 6. 7319, 1/25/29 3641000 4 (6,524
Connecticut Avenue Securities FRB Ser. 16-COT, Class 2M2,
{1 Month LIS LIBOR + 4.35%), 6.6319%, 5/25,/23 260,000 288,885
Cannecticut Avenue Securitles FRB Ser, 16-C06, Class 1IM2,
[1 Month US LIBOR + 4.2 550, 6.531%, 4./ 479 556,044 6249, 388

Incame Fund 35
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MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES (39, 2%)* cont amaount
Residential mortgage-backed securities (non-agency] cont.
Federal Mational Mart gage Association

Connecticut Avenue Securities FRE Ser. 17-COL, Class IM2,

{1 Manth S LIBOR « 3.55%;), 5.631%, 7/25/29 $263,000 5290564
Connecticut Avenue Securities FRE Ser. 17-CO6, Class 2M32,
(1 Month LS LIBOR + 2.80%), 5.081%, 2/25/30 900,000 935,250
Connecticut Avenue Securities FRB Ser, 18-C04, Class 2M2,
{1 Manth LIS LIBOR + 2.55%:), 4 8319, 12/75/36 4,989,700 5055417
FIRSTPLUS Home Loan Owner Trust 3er 97-3, Class BL, 7.79%,
11410423 {In default) ! 134,710 13
Morgan Stanley Resecuritization Trust 144A Ser, 15-R4, Class CBI,
3,04 1%, Br2G/MATW 4,746,000 4617872
HowaStar Mortgage Funding Trust FRE Ser.04-2, Class M4, (1 Month
USLIBOR + 1.80%), 4.081%, 9/25/34 1,955,860 1,955,478
Oaktown Re, Lid. 144A FRE Ser. 17-14, Class M2, [1 Month US LIBOR
4,000, 5. 28 1%, 4/ 25/27 (Bermuda) 1172000 L210,0580
RadnorRe, Lid. 1444 FRB Ser. 18-1, Class M2, (L Month USLIBOR
+2.70%), 4.981%, 3/25,/28 (Bermuda) 1,500,000 1,520,566
Structured Asset lwestmeant Loan Trust FRB Ser.04-10, Class ALD,
{1 Month USLIBOR + 0.90%1, 3,061%, 11725/34 1,635,771 1,666,240

WalMu Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates Trust
FRB Ser. 05-4R1, Class A28, (1 Month US LIBOR + 0.50%),

3.081%, 1/25/45 1216573 1,209,159
FRB Ser 05-AR11, Class ALCE, (1 Month US LIBOR + 0.510),
2.701%, B/I5/45 2,218,833 2,720,045
FRE Ser. 05-AR13, Class ALC4, (1 Morith US LIBOR « 0.43%),
27119, 1025045 %,146,795 9,053,613
FHE Ser, 05-AH1Y, Class AL, (1 Month US LIBOR +0.41%),
2.601%. 12/25/45 3,502 765 331,171
FRE Ser, 05-4R2, Class ZALE, (1 Month US LIBOR « D374,
2.651%, 1/25/45 L1BE,642 1,181,985
FRB Ser. 05-ARLT, Class ALB3, (1 Month US LIBOR +0.35%),
2.631%, 13/25/45 1,042,185 1.1}3-4.?0_1
136,274,702
Total mortgage-backed securities (cost $641,719,232) $615,484,215
Principal
CORPORATE BONDS AND NOTES {24.5%)" amount Value
Basicmaterials [1.4%)
Cefanese LS Holdings, LLC company guaranty st unssc. notes
5.A75%, £/15(21 [Cermany) 4340,000 £354,795
Celanese US Holdings, LLC company guaranty s unsec, unsul,
notesd G259, | 1/15/22 [Germany) 455000 463,179
CFindustries, Inc. 144Acompany guaranty sr. notes
4 50%:, 12/1/26 4,860,000 4,170,643
Georgla-Paclfic, LLC sr. ursec. unsub. notes 7759, 11715/7% 260,000 338 888
Glencore Finance Canada, Ltd. 1484 company guaranty s2. unsec.
unsub. notes 6,00%, 11/15/4] [Canada) 327000 IMATT
Glencone Funiding, LLC 1444 cormpany guaranty st unsec, unsul,
nofesd 625%, 4/ 10724 2.373,000 1,378,556
GlencoraFunding, LLC 1444 company guaranty sr unsec. unsuls,
nofes 4, 00%, 4/16/25 1,585,000 1,515,854
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Principal
CORPORATEBONDSAND NOTES [24.5%)" cant amount Value
Basic materials cont.
International Flavors B Fragrances, Inc. 50 uncec. notes
4.45%, 9/26/28 51,681,000 51,675,521
[eitermations Papser Co. se, unsec, noles B.00%, 6/15/38 382000 511,091
Sherwin-WilliamsCo. [The) sr.unsec. s, bands 3 45%, 6/1/37 1,543,000 1,426 363
Sauthern CopperCorp. s unsec, unsub, notes 5.375%,
4/16/20 Peru) 200,000 204,500
Westlake Chemical Comp, company guaranty srunsec. unsib
bands4.375%, 11715/47 BT 000 721968
Westlake Chemical Corp, company guarantysr. unsec. unsub,
notes3,60%, 8/15/26 2,725,000 2,504,145
WestRock MWV, LLC company guaranty se. unsec. unsuby notes
B.20%, 11530 3,316,000 A, 233 044
WiestRock MWY, LLC company guaranty sr. unsec, unsub. notes
7.85%, 2/15/31 354,000 448,888
WeyerhasuserCo srumsec. unsub, notes T.3755%, 3/15/37 R T o0 a3 575
22,836,528
Capital goods{1.1%)
Johnson Controls International PLE st unsec, unsub, bonds
4,505, 2/15/47 1,465,000 1,345,554
L3 Techrologies, Inc. campany guaranty s unsec, bonds
3.85%, 12/15/26 2,786,000 4,695,780
L3 Technalogies, Inc.company guaranty s, unsec, notes
4.40%, 61528 1,588 300 1,954 585
Northrop Grumman Corp, srunsec. unsub, notes 3.25%, 2/15/28 4,110,300 3,796,947
Oshkosh Corp, st unsec, sub, notes 4.60%, 5/15/28 3,205,000 3,135,255
Republic Services, Inc sz unsec. notes 3.95%, 5/15/28 3,920,000 3,840,977
ZF Morth America Capital, Inc. 144Acompany guaranty s Unsec,
unsub, notesd, 50%, 403922 713,000 Ti4,122
17,513,634
Communication services | 2.0%)
American Tower Corp.sr.unsec. unsub. bonds 3.55%, T/15/2TR 2,284,000 2,098,955
ATET, Inc. 144Asr unsec. notes4, 0%, 2715/28 4,566,000 4,335,568
CC Holdings GSW, LLC/Crown Castle GS 1 Corp.company guaranty
sr.noles 3 BA9h, 471523 427000 422 507

Charter Communccations Operating, LLC/Charter

Communications Operating Capital Corp, company guaranty sr.

suh, bands 6. 484%, 10/23/45 2,253,200 2,287,151
Charter Communccations Operating, LLCfCharter

Communications Operating Capital Corp. company guasanky sr.

sub. notes 4 908%, /23725 1,006,200 1,010,285
Charter Communcations Operating, LLC ACharter

Communications Operating Capital Corp, company guaranty sr.

suh. bands 5.375%, 57147 1,636,000 1472473
Comcast Cable Communications Holdings, Inc. company

guaranty sr. unsec. notes 34550, 11/15/22 1,100,200 1,328)639
Comcast Corp, compary guaranty sr, unsec. unsuh, bonds

4,049%, 11/1/52 T11.000 606,956
ComcastCorp. company 2uarantysr, unsec. unsub, bonds

3.999%, 11/1/48 514,000 440,105
Comiast Corp. company guaranty sr. unsec unsu b, notes

6.50%, 11/15/35 388,200 453,045
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CORPORATEBONDSAND HOTES {24.5%)" cont.
Communication servicescont.

amaiint

Coux Commumnications, Inc. l44A sr. unsec. bonds 3.509%, BA15/27 52,206,000 §2,032,934

Crown Casthe Internationa] Corp, %0, unsec, bonds 3.80%, 2/15/23% 2,616,000 1435216

Cronwn Castle Intarnational Corp. sr_unsec. bonds 365%, 971 /TR 1,777,000 1,642 9495

Crewn Castle International Corp, 51, unsec, notes 4.875%, 4/15/22 7 403,000 414,562

Crown Casthe [nternational Corp, 51 unsec, notes 4.75%, 5/154T# 1,073,000 997,040

Crown Castie International Corp, a1, unsec. notes 3,155, 7/15/23R 285,000 273,527

Rogers Communications, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsuk,

notes 4, 50%, 3/15/43 (Canada} 236,000 3532

Speint SpectrumCa, LLE/Sprint Spectoum Co, Il LLE/Sprint

Spectrum Cou Il LLC 1444 compary guaranty sr.notes

3.36%, 9/20/21 726,750 19,483

Talefonlca Emisiones SAU company guaranty st unsec. bands

4 B55%, 3548 {Spain} 2,623,000 2,335,450

WVerizon Communications, Inc. s, unsec, unsub. notes

4300, 512128 1,325,000 1,310,842

Videotron, Ltd, Videotron Ltee, 1444 51, unsec. notes 5.135%,

4/15/27 {Canada} 1,052,000 996,770

Vedafone Group PLC s, unsec unsub, notes4,375%, 573028

{United Hingdam) 3,010,000 49%6,408
30,834,478

Consumer cyclicals(2.9%)

215t Century Fox America, Imc, company guaranty st unsec, notes

7150, /20724 482,000 558,101

215t Contury FoxAmerica, Inc, company Zuaraniy s, unsec. unsub,

Bonds 4, 7559, 8/ 1 544 65,000 B7,000

21=t Cantury Fox America, Inc. company guaranty st unsec. unsub,

motes T.T5%, 12/1/45 2,603,000 3,757,901

Alimentation Couche-Tard, inc. 1444 company guaranty srunsec.

notes 3 55% 7/25/27 (Canada) 1,048,000 968,204

Amazon.com, Ine e unse notes 4, 060, 8,22 /47 1,364,000 1,267,964

Amazon.com, Inc.seunsec. noles 3.15%, 8/22/27 1,187,000 1,117,837

CBS Corp. company guaranty st unsec, unsub. bands

2900, 1/15/27 LA03,000 1,234,800

CBS Conp. company guaranty si. unsec, unsub. noles

4.60%, 1/15/45 1,786,000 1,609,265

CBS Corp, company gussranty se, unsec, unsub, notes

4.00%, 1 f15/36 313,000 302,901

Ecolab, Inc.sr. unsec, ursub; notes 3,25%, 121/27 5,145,000 4.869,123

General Motors Financial Co., Inc. company guarantysr, unsac,

notes 4.00%, 10/5/26 625,000 E71,524

General Motors Financlal o, Inc, company guaranty sr unsec.

wnsub, notes 4,309, 7/13/25 520,000 456,868

General Motors Finencial Co, Inc, company guaranty sr, unsec.

unisub. notes 4.00%, 1/15/25 910,000 863,766

Hilton Domestic Operating Co., Inc.company guaranty s unsec.

sulr notes4.25%, 9/1/24 a77,000 650,123

Hilton Worldwide Fmance, LLCHilton Werldwide Finance Corp.

company guaranty st unsec. notes 4.875%, 4/ 1727 3,252,000 3,105,660

IHS Markit, Ltd. 5. unsec, sub, bonds4.75%, 8/1/28

{United Hing!:hm] L 105,000 1.078,756
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Principal
CORPORATEBONDSAND NOTES [24.5%)" cant ameunt
Consumer cyclicals cont.
[HS Warkit, Ltd. 44A company guaranty notes 4.75%, 2/15/25
{United Kingdom) 53,445,000 §3,410,550
IHS bearkit, LLd, F4A comparmy g udranty sfwnsed. noles4,00%,
3126 United Kingdam) 730,000 105,000
Interpublic Groupof Cos., Inc, (The) sr, unsec. sub, bonds
#4.65%, 10/1/28 5,475,000 5, 387834
Lear Corp. sr. unsec, unsub. bonds 3. 80%, 9/15/27 4,002,000 3533452
MWR, Inc. sr.unses. notes 3050 01532 223,000 122,145
Omnicam Group, Inc, company guatanty st unsec_ unsub, notes
3.60%,4/15/26 64,000 717,153
TN, Inc. company guaraniy sr. noles 4 B5%, 471,74 13,000 B4 473
QNG Inc. company guaranty s+ sub. notos 4.45%, 2/15/325 534,000 496 680
S&P Global, Inc. company guaranty s unsec. unsub. notes
4.40%, 2/15/26 1,032,000 1051228
Sirius ¥M Radio, Inc. 144Asr. unsec. bands 5,00%, B/1,/27 4,014,500 3,763,135
Standard Industries, Inc. L44A s unsec, notes 5000, 2/ 15727 1,946,000 1,775,725
TimaWarner, Inc. company guaranty s unsec; unsub. bonds
3.80%, 215027 336,000 314,829
Time Warner, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. bonds
2.95%, 7/15/26 427,300 arvhiz
44,879,779
Consumer staples {1.8%)
Anheuser-Busch InBey Finance, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec.
ursub. bonds 4. 900, 2/1/46 4,541,000 4,277,588
Anheuser-Busch InBev Finance, Inc, company guaranty sr. unsec.
unsub, bonds 3 65%, 2/1/25 262,000 245,219
Anheusar-Busch InBevWaorldwide, Inc. company guaranty sr
unsec.unsub. bonds4.95%, 171542 318,000 34,725
Ashiead Capital, Inc. 1444 notes 4.375%, 8715/27 4,175,000 3,839,748
V5 Pass-Thiough Trust srnoles 5.036%, 12/10/26 45370 51,368
CVS Pass-Through Trust 144Asr mitge. notes T.507%H, 1/10/32 959,805 1,107,252
Diageﬂlnmslnmﬁttarp.tumpany Euaranty s unsec. nobes
B.00%,9/15/22 203,000 235,337
ERALC LISAFinance LLT 144A company guaranty st unsec. bonds
4.50%, 2/15/45 LABL 00 1,330,876
ERAC LISAFinance, LLC 1444 company guaranty 5r. unsec, notes
T00%, 10/15/37 858,300 1,044 362
ERAC LISAFinance, LLC 144A company guaranty S1. URsec. notes
5.625%, 3/ 15/43 1,333,000 1,480,502
ERAC USAFinance, LLC 1444 company guaranty sf. unsec, notes
385%, 11/15/24 289,000 285057
Hraft Heinz Co. (1 he) company guaranty & unsec, bonds
4.375%, 6/1/6 4, 8aT.000 4,074,318
LambWestan Haldings, Inc. 144 A company guaranty sr, unsec,
unsub, notes4.875%, 11/1/26 2071000 1,998,515
Maple Escrow Subsidiary, Inc. 1444 company guaranty sr, unsec.
natesd SO75, 5/25/28 5,253,000 £ I72,355
Newell Brands, Ing. 5r, unses. unsub. notes 4200, 41126 1,462 00 1,343,142
Walgresns Boots Alliance, Inc. s unsec, bonds 3 45%, &/1/16 1,968 000 1,820,215
28,619,579
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Principal

CORPORATE BONDSAND NODTES [24.5%)" cont. Mot
Energy(2.0%)
Cheniare Corpus Christi Holdings, LLC company guaranty sr.notes
5.125%, 630/ 2T £1,543,000 1,512,140
Coneho Resources, e, compadny guaranty s unsec, nales
3750, W0/1/2T 3,051,000 2868, 44]
Energy Transfor Partmess LP jr. unsec, sub. FRE Ser. B, 5.625%,
perpetual maturity 3,294,000 3,030,480
Energy Transler Partners LP s unsec, unsub. bonds
5.125%, 12/15/45 380000 357,545
Energy Transler PartnersLP sr. unsec. unsub. notes 6.50%, 2/1/42 542000 558,535
Energy Transler Partners LP s unsec, unsub. nates 5.20%, 2/1/22 235,000 242,865
E0GResources, Inc. sr unsec, unsub. nates 4 15%, 1/15/76 4 718,000 4157813
EQT Corp. sk unsed. unsub. notes 3.90%, 104127 2,346,000 2134715
Equinor ASA company BUardniy srunsec, nobes 5. 109%,
B/ LT/ [Nearway) 1,054,000 1,150,327
Marathon Petroleusm Corp. er. unsec. unsub. notes 6,50, 31141 263 000 327,722
Petrolens Mericanos company guaranty s1. unsec, unsub. notes
4.50%, 12326 [Mexico) o 1,853,000 1.644,5T1
Sabing Pass Liquefaction, LLC sr. bonds 4. 20%, 3/15/28 B21.000 Tal20T
SahinaPass Liguefaction, LLCsr notes5.00%, 3/15/27 3166000 3,180,743
Spectra Energy Partniars | Pse unsec, notes 3.375%, 10/15/ % 336000 11,58
Targa Resources Partress LFTarga Resources Partners Finance
Corp. company guaranty st unsec. unsub, notes 5.00%, 1/15/28 1,359,000 1,325,553
Transcarada Trust company guaranty|r. unsec_sub. FRE S 30%,
F/1S/TT [Canada) 3387000 3,094,530
Williams Cos.. Inc. {The) sr.unsec, unsub, motes 8.75%, 3/15/32 283000 370 ABD
‘Willkarms Par triars LP 51, unsec sub, notes 4.30%, 3/4/24 3611000 3,601,135
Williams PartnersLP sr. unsac_sub. notes 3.60%, 3/15/22 1ag.ono 188,874

31,440,663
Financials (6.6%)
Air Lease Corp. s unsec, sub. bonds4,625%, 1071/28 4,350,000 4,258,335
Air Lease Corp, &, unsec, unsub, notes 3.625%, 4/1/27 1,054,000 958,972
AirLeaseCoep. sr.unsec. unsub. notes 3.00%, 9/15/23 0000 284,433
Ally Financial, Ine. sub. unsee, notes 5. 750, 11/20/25 2.579,000 2537028
American Intemational Group, Inc_jr. unsec. sub. FREB
H.175%, 5/15/58 1,428,000 1,752,570
Aon PLC company guaranty srunsec. unsub, notes .
A35%, 1271242 LA0&000 1,503,561
Australla & New Zealand Banking Group, Ltd. /AUnited
Kinpdam [444 jr.unses. sub, FREG.T5%, perpetual maturity
United Kingdom) 585,000 600,356
Banco Santander SAsr, unsec. unsub, notes4_379%,
4/12/28 [5pain| 200,000 186,324
Sanco Santander SAuRSe, sub. notes 5, 179%, 11719725 (Spaln) 2,000,600 1,971,004
Sank of Montreal unsec. subl FRMN 2.803%, 12/15/32 (Canada) E3000 BLT.580
Barkshire Hathaway Finance Corp, company guaranty sr. unsec.
notes 4. 30%, 5115/43 623,000 603,636
BGC Partniers, Inc. sr.unsec. notes 5.125%, 53712 | 94,000 96,104
BPCE 5A l44A unsec. sub. notes 5. 15%, 7/21 /24 (France) 260,000 262,336
HACE A 1444 unsec suh, notesd. 504, 3/15/25 [France) 5,063,000 4,893,764
Cantos Fitzgerald LP 1444 unsec. notes 6,50%, 6/17/22 2,870,000 3,007,288
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Principal
CORPORATEBONDSANDNOTES [24,5%)" cant amaiunt Value
Financials cont.
Capital One Bank USA MA unsec.sub. notes 3.375%, 2/15/23 4264000 L3558 |70
Capital One Financial Corp, unsec. sub. notes 4,20%, 10/29/25 1.063.000 1025811
CERE Sarvices, InC. company guaranty st unsec. notes
5.25%, 3/15/15 715,000 740,164
CBRE Services, Inc. company guaranty ¢ unses. unsub. notes
4.875%, 3/1/26 1,716,000 1,733,580
CIT Grewp, Inc. srounsec, nsah, netes 5.25%, 3 25 I 182 000 1,189, 356
Citigroup, Inc. st unsec. FRE3.668%, 7/24/28 3,060,000 2,857,490
Cltigroup, Inc. unsec. sub. bonds 4,75%, 5/18/46 1,791,000 L6T0,207
Citigroup, Inc. unsac. sub. bonds 4.45%, 929,27 6,240,000 6,072,294
CHOFinancial Group, Inc. 51, unsec, unsub. notes 5,.25%, 5/30/25 1,299,000 1,310,366
Credit Agricale 54 14428 unsec, sub. FRN4.00%, 1/10/33 (France) 795,000 T18,588
Credit Suksse Group AG I44Ajr unsec. sub. FRN G350, p-erpetﬁ:ﬂ
maturity (Swit forland) 293,000 284,943
Credit Suisse Group AG M44Asr. unsec. bonds 3,869%,
112779 [Switreriand) 1310000 1,215,680
Digitad Realty Trust LP carmpany guaranty i unsec, boneds
4.45%, 7/15/28% 4,355,000 4,370,671
Fairfax Financial Hobdings. Ltd, 1444 sr. unsec. notes4,85%,
41728 [Canara) 4,003, (43 4,986,905
Fairfas L5, Inc. 1444 company guasanty sr unsec.notes
4.875%, 8/13/24 773,000 76,281
Filth Third Bancora jr. unsec. sub, FRE5_10%, perpetual maturity 347,000 330,518
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (Thel sr.unsec. FRE 4,22 3%, 5/1/20 12,305,000 11,930,606
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (Thel sr.unsec. unsub. notes
3,85%, 1/26/27 728,000 637,569
Goldman Sachs Growp, Inc. (The| unsec. sub. nofes 5750, 10/1/3T 5237.000 B15.E14
Hartford Minangial Services Group, Ine. {The) st unsec unsul,
natess.625%, 3/30/40 1,969,000 4,349,362
Hosoitality Properties Irust st unsec, notesd, 375%, 2/15/30% 1,289,000 1,172,074
Hesgitality Properties Trust sr.unsec, unsul, nl;;(.e-s
4.65%,3/15/24R 136,000 134,576
Haosaitality Properties Trust srunsec, unsub, notes
A 504, 3157258 485,000 467,252
ING Bank BV Jdth unsec. sul, notes 5.80%, 9/25/23 (Netherlands) 816,000 854,931
JPMargan Chase & Co, srursac_unsub, FRE 3. 964%, 1171548 5191000 4 548663
Liberty Mutual Group, Inc. 1444 company guaranty jr. unsec. sub,
bonds 7800, 3/15/37 42,000 48,000
Lloyeds Banking Group PLC unsec, sub. ronds 4, 344%, 19548
(United Kingdom) 1,225,000 1,018,057
Lloyds Banking Group PLC unsec, sub, notes 4.50%, 1104/24
(Linited Kingdam) 1,151,000 1163728
Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance Co. 1444 unsec, sub. notes
B8.57T5%, 6/1/33 1,442,000 2,146,854
Metropolitan Life Insurance Co. 444 unsec. sub. notes .
T.80%, 11125 2,381,000 2,875,120
Mid-America Apartments LP st unsec. notes4.30%, 10/15/230 45,000 45445
Mitsuebishi LS Financial Group, Inc. 2. ungec, unsul, notes 3.85%,
31426 (Japar) 626,000 611,703
Neuberger Berman Group, LLC/Neuberger Berman Firance Corp.
144Asn pnseC. noles 4.875%, 4/15/45 1,387,000 1.2_57.{:'55
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Principal

CORPORATE BONDSAND NOTES {24.5%]" cont amaunt
Financialscont.
OneAmerica Financial Partners, Inc. 444 sr unsec. nates
T.00%, 10/15/33 5757000 $870,156
Peeachitoes Qo riers Funding Trust 144A compuany gudianty sf,
unsec. unsub. bonds 3.976%, 2/15/25 356,000 345451
Prudential Financial, inc. sr.unsec. notes 5.625%, 5/21,/40 630,000 Tr4.075
Royal Bank of Canada unsec. sub, notes Ser. GMTH, 4.65%,
1/27/26 (Canada) 1,126,000 1,136,874
Rewal Bank of Scotland Group PLC sr unsec. unsul. FRE £ 850%,
5/18/29 {United Kingdom) 3,860,000 3,756,281
Royal Bank of Scotland Group PLC 3. unsec, unsub, notes 3,8755%,
971223 [United Kingdom| 265,000 254,933
Santander UK Graup Holdings PLC 1444 unsac. sub. notes 4. 75%,
9/15¢25 (United Kingdam) 260,000 243,834
Santander UK PLC 1444 unsec_sub. notes 5.00%, 117723
{United Kingdom) L.5a8.000 1,550,242
SumtomoMitsu: Financial Growp, Inc_ 1444 unsec. sub. bonds
4.436%,4/2/24 | Japan) 1,321 000 1,315,875
Teachers Insurance &Annulty Assoiation of America 1944 unsec.
sub. bonds4 50%, 9/15/44 230,000 237439
TeachersIngurance & Annuity Association of America J44A unsec.
sub. notes 6850, 12/16/30 667000 855,352
TiAAAsset Managemem Finance Co., LLC 144A 7 unsec. sub,
notesd, 125%, 1171524 24000 24,014
Teronto-Dominion Bank (The) unsec. sub, FRE 3.625%, '
91531 (Canada) 1,640,000 1,526,803
UBS Group Funding Jersey, Lig. 144A comparry guaranty sr unsec.,
notesd 1250, 4/15/26 |Switzerland) 1,561,000 1525348
UBS Group Funding Switzerand AGcompany guaranty jr. unsec.
sub. FRN Ser. REGS, 6.875%, perpetual maturity (Switzerland) 20,000 197,310
WEREIT Qperating Partnership LP company guatanty s unsec,
notesd 50%, 26/ R 2,164,000 2,165,019
VEREIT Operating Partnarship LP company gUaanty S, unses,
unsub, bonds 4 87559, 6/1 /067 114,000 113,755
Wells Fargo Bank, NA unsec. subs nofes Ser. BRNT, 6.60%, 1/15/38 250,000 303,612
Willis Towes Watson PLC company guaranty sr unsec, unsub.
notes 5.75%, 3/15/21 226,000 735,637
WP Carey, Inc, s, unsec, unsub, notes 4.60%, 4/1/24% 1,659,000 1,667,064

103,415,850
Health care (2.8%)
Abbie, Inc. sr ursed. notes 360%, 5/14/25 319,000 304697
Amgen, Inc. sr.unsec. bonds4.663%, 6/15/51 1,776,000 1644379
Anthem, Inc. s unsec. unsub, notes 4,525%, 5/15,/42 365,000 345,651
Hecton Dickinson and Co. (BD) sr. unsec. unsub. bonds
& B, BT 2087000 2,898 596
Becton Dickinson and Co. (B0) sr,unsec. unsub, bonds
2.70%, 6,/5/27 2,652,000 2,490,234
VS Health Corp. se unsec. unsub. bonds 5.05%, 3/25/48 1484000 1446991
CVS Health Corp.se. unsec, unsub. notos 4. T8%, 3/25/38 4. A50,000 4,281,838
ElancoAnimal Health, Inc. 144Asr, unsec. notes+ 50%, B/26/28 3,589,000 3,545,516
Halfmaoon Parent, Inc, 14485 unsub, notes 3, 75%, T15/23 9,045,000 B,9¥0,047
HCA, Inc. company guaranty se. bands5.25%, 6/15/26 336,000 341,880
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CORPORATEBONDSAND NOTES [24.5%)" cant amount
Health care cont.
HCA, Inc. company guarantysr. sub. bonds 5.50%, &/15/47 S725,000 5713400
HCA, Inc. company guaranty sr. sub. nobes 5.00%, 3/15/24 1,276,000 1,291,153
OimegaHealthcare Investors, Inc. company guaranty s, unsec.
natesd S50%, 41278 1,565,200 1,493 488
Omega Healthzare lnvestors, Inc. company guaranty 1, unsee,
urisub, notes4 95%, 4717247 1,222,000 1,230,171
Rnche Holdings, Inc. 1444 company puarantysr unsec, bonds
4,006, 11728044 (Switzerland) 642,000 619,132
Service Corp. International sr. unsec, notes 4.625%, 12115/27 656,000 624,375
Shire Acquisitions Ivestmentsireland DAC company guaranty sr
ursee. unsub, notes 3 205, 92336 [ireland) 1,226,000 1,109.5913
Shire Acquisitions lnvestrments lreland DAC company guaranty se.
unsec. unsub. notes 2.875%, 9723723 firefand) 1,021,000 563,169
UnitedHealth Growp, Inc. s unsec. unsub. notes 3.85%, 6/15/28 ©,040,000 5,981,068
Zoetis, Inc. sr. urser, notes 3 90%, B/20/25 3,370,000 3267312
43,572,150
Technology (2.4%)
Apple, Inc. sr.unsec, notes 3,45%, 5,6/ 24 1,216,000 1,204,742
Apple, InC.sr unsec, unsub, notes4, 3755, 5113/45 269,000 267.5T4
Apple, Inc_sr.unsec. unsub. notes 3,450, 5/4/43 371,000 342,241
Broadeom Corp /Broadeom Cayman Finance, Ltd. compary
Buaranty sr, unsec. unsub, notes3.875%, 1/15/27 3,532,000 3243221
Digmvond | Finance Corp,/Diamand 2 Fingnce Corp, 1444
Company guaranty st notes 60206, 5/15/26 3,181,500 3,206.308
Diamand L Finance Corp./Diamond 2 Finance Corp. 1844 sr. bonds
B.35%, 1/15/46 00,000 813,451
Fidelity Mational Infarmation Services, Inc. sr. unsec. sub. notes
Ser. 10Y, 4.35%, 5/15/28 2AB5,000 2,421,182
Fisery, Inc.sr. unsec. sub, bonds 4.20%, 10/1/28 6,040,000 5,978,167
Legrand France SAsr, unsec, unsul, notes i 50%, 2/ 1545 (France) 11300 937812
Micrachip Techralogy, Inc. 1444 company guaranty st notes
4.333%, 6/1/23 3,835,000 3747094
Microsol Corp, sr. unsec. unsub, bonds 2.40%, 8/8/ 26 936,000 &T1.662
Micrasait Carp, sr, unses. unsulb, notes 3,700, /846 3,251,000 2592207
OracleCorp. sr.unsec. unsub. notes 3.35%, 11/15/37 425 200 572 204
Oracle Corposr unsec. unsub, notes 2 65, 1/15/26 1,146,000 1048038
Sadesforce com, Inc.sr unsec, unsub. notes 3.70%, 4/11,/28 5,645 000 5,511,084
WMwiare, Inc. s unsec. notes 3.90%, 821727 1.332,000 1217638
Westarn Digital Corp. company guaranty sr. unsec. notes
4,750, 215/ 2,682,000 2ATTAGH
37,243,423
Transportation (0.1%)
Penske Truck Leasing Co, LP/PTLFinance Corp, [44A 5, unsec,
bands 3400, 11/15/26 1,282,000 1,176,785
Southwest Airlines Co. Pass Through Trust pass-through
certificates Ser, 07-1,Class 4, 6.15%, 8/1/22 66,523 0,103
Unlled#.lrlines,lnl:.Fass—Thrnugh.TnEt pass-through certificates .
Ser07-1, Class A, 6.636%, T/2/22 250,617 262,018
United Airhnes, Inc. Pass-Through Trist pass-through certificates
Ser. 4.7, Class A, 3.75%, 9/3,26 135,183 133834
1,641,841
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Principal
CORPORATE BONDSAND NOTES [24.5%)" cont amount
Utilities and power (1.4%)
AES Corp/Virginia (The) sr. unsec. unsub. bamds 5.135%, 9/1/27 5962,000
Amesican Transmission Systems, Inc. 1440 50, unsec, unsub. bonds
5.00%, 81744 LA421.000
Appalachian Power Co.sr. unsec. unsub. notes Ser.L, .
5.80%, 10/1/35 322000
Arizana Public Services Co, s unsec. natesd. 50%, 4/ 1 /42 118,000
Berkshire Hathaway Energy Co. srounsec, bonds 6, 50%, 9/ 15/37 2000
Berkshire Hathaway Energy Co.sr unsec. unsub, bands
G125%, 471,35 555,000
Commaonwea'th Edison Co. st mtge. bonds 5.875%, 2/1/33 265,000
Consalidated Edison Co, of New York, Inc. r. unsec. ursub, notes
4006, 315042 214,000
Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC s, mitge. notes4.2 5%, 12/15/41 219000
EDP Finance BV 1444 sr, unsec. unsub. notes 5, 25%,
1/14/21 {Metheriands) 345,000
ElPaso Matural Gas Ca, LLC company guaranty si. unsec. unsub,
notes 8.375%, 6/15/32 460,000
Emara US Finance LP company guaranty s, unsec, notes
3.55%, 6/15/25 611,000
Enbricpe, Inc.sr.unsec. unsub. bonds 4.25%, 1271 /26 {Canasda) 586,000
Energy Transier LPsr.sub, notes 5 B75%, 1/15/24 4, 189,000
Enterprise Products Operating, LLC company guarmniysr, unsec
unsub. bondsd 25%, 2/15/48 L 263,000
FirstEnergy Corp. srunsec. unsub. bands Sar B, 3.90%, 7/ 15/27 437000
FirstEnergy Corp.sr.unsec, unsub. bonds Ser C, 4.85%, 7/ 1547 Taa.000
FirstErergy Transrmission, LLC 1444 s, unsec, unsubs, notles
5,455, 7/15/44 1,504,000
Ibevdrola Interrational BV company guaranty sr.unsed. unsub,
bonds6.75%, T/15/36(3pain) 283,000
IPALCO Emerprises, Inc. s sub, notes 3.70%, 8/1/24 B44.000
Kinder Margan Energy Partners LP company guaranty se. ursec.
notes 5.40%, 9/1 /44 07,000
Hinder Margan Energy Partners LP company guaranty s unsec.
notes 35000, 3/1/21 439,000
Kinder Margan, Inc. company guaranty ss. unsec. unsub. notes
3.15%, 1/15/23 665,000
MidAmerican Funding, LLC 5. bonds 5.927%, 3/1/29 200,000
MextEra Energy Capital Holdings, Inc. campany guatanty Jr, unsec.
sub. FRB 4 B0%, 12/1/77 ) 962,000
Oncor Clectric Delivery Co, LLC st notes 4.10%:, 6/1/22 439,000
PacifiCorpsr, mtge. bonds,25%, 10/15/37 135,000
PPLWEM Lid,Westem Power Distribution, Ltd, 144Asr, unsec.
unsub:. notes 5.375%, 5/1/2 L (Unitad Kingdom) 572,000
Puget Energy, Inc. sr. sub. notes 3.65%, 5/15/25 858,000
Texas-Mew Mexico Power Co. 1444 Lstsr. bonds Ser A,
9.50%, 4/1/19 1,578,000

$349.575

1461551
356,526
LIT7,576
FER L]

554,160
307,050

205,482
211,026

353,039
570,501
566,315
674,237

4,403 686

1,123,895
417,313
04,854

1,596,992

331,724
Bl4.768

685,223
437,135

641,167
242,019

859,768
447,339
170,350

1001919
822,766

1,547,229
23,023,170

Total corporatebonds and notes |cost $398,701,167)
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ASSET-BACKED SECURITIES (1.9%)"
|oanDepat Station Flace Agency Securitization Trust 1444 FRE

amaunt

Walue

Ser. 17-L0E, Classa, (L onth US LIBOR + 0.B0%), 2.081%, 11/25/50 53432000 $3,432,000
Station Place Securitization Trust 144

FRESer 18-1, Class A, {1 Month US LIBOR +0,90%),

3.082%, 4724119 11,361,000 11,381,000

FRB Saor. 185, Class A, {1 Month US LIBOR + 5.70%),

2.882%, 97 24/19 6,303,000 6,303,000

FRB Ser. 18-3,Class A, {1 Month USLIBOR + 0.70%,),

2.H82%, 1/24/19 B.943.000 B,943,000
Total asset-backed securities {cost $30,039,000) $30,039,000

PURCHASED SWAP OPTIONS OUTSTANDING (0,9%)*

Counterparty

Fzed right % to recelve or (pay)/
Floatingrate indexMaturity date

Bankof AmericaN. A,

Explration
date/strike

Maotianalf
contract
amount

Value

3.1165/3 month USD-LIBOR-BBA/Nov-28 Mov-18/2.1165 £224,005,400 458,241
Citibank, N.A.

{30311/ 3manth USO-LIBOR-BBAS Jun-45 Jum-19/3.031 LT GT4EDN 12383282
(3:23)/3 month USD-LIBCR-BRA/Jan-40 Jan-18/3327 39,755,590 1,042,002
(3,290 3 month USD-LIBOR-BBA/ Jan-49 Jan-18/3.28 39,755,900 803,069
3.1905/3manth USD-LIBOR-BEA Mow-28 Mov-18/2.1905 252 610,000 755,902
(3,296)/3 month USD-LIBOR-BEANow-28 Hov-18/3.296 224,005,400 GHT.E9T
3.126/3month USO-LIBOR-BEA/ Nov-25 Pov-1873 126 224,00, 400 510,732
(33745)/3month USD-LIBOR-BBA Moy -28 Hoy-18{3.3T45 252,610,000 164,327
Goldman Sachs International

(2.02325)/3 month USD-LIBOR- BBA /Dec-20 Dec-18/3.0325 318,047 000 1,125,886
(30113 month WsD-LIBOR-BEA/Tec-20 Dec-18/3.01 18047000 830,103
3:2179/3manth USOD-LIBOR-BBA/ Jan-20 Jan-19/3.27TT5 318047000 345.3§I
3.0325/3manth USO-LIBOR-BBA/Dec-20 Dec-18/3.0325 318047000 463,973
3.00/3 month USD-LIBOR-BEA/ Dec-20 Dhec-18/3.01 318,047,000 165,384
2.89375/3month USD-LIBOR-BBA/Jan-20 Jan-18/2.55375 318,047,000 162,204
JPMargan Chase Bank N,

{3.25)/3 month USD-LIBOR-BBA/Jan-29 Jan-19/3.35 158,023,500 1,332,817
(2925} 3 manth USD-LIBCR-BBA/Novw-20 MNow-18/3.925 238,535,200 BA0,195
3.11/3manth USD-LIBOR-BBAMNow-28 Mov-18/3.11 119,267,600 25,046
Morgan Stanley & Co. International PLC

3.00/3 momth USD:LIBOR-BBAMpr-T2 Ape-4T/3.00 18,691,900 1,578,905
3.00/3monh USD-LIBOR-BBA & pr-72 Apr-47/3.00 18651500 L5TT.223
(2.92875)/3month USD-LIBOR-BBA/Nov-20 Nov-18/2.92875 156,614,200 563,811
Total purchased swap options outstanding (cost 16,171,003} $14,115457

PURCHASEDOPTIONS Expiration

OUTSTANDING (0.1%)" date/strike National Contract
Countorparty prece amoun amount

JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A.

Federal Natlonal Mortgage
Association 20yr3.00% TEA

commitments (Call) Mor-18/505,68 553,000,000 553,000,000 53,535
Federal Natlenal Morigage

Association 30yr3.50% TEA

commitmentsiCall) Dec-18/98.02 37,000,000 57,000,000 128,592
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JPMorgan Chase Bank N, A. cont.

Federal National Martgage
Aszociation 30 yr 2,50% TBA

commitments {Call) Dec-16/598.17 557,000,000 557,004,000

Federal National Martgage
Aszociation 30 yr 2 508 TRA

commitments {Call) Dec-16/98.33 57,000,000 57,004,000

Federal Mational Martgage
Assoclation 30y 2.50% TBA

commitments [Call Mov-18/9%.19 57,000,000 57,000,000

Federal National Martgage
Association 30 yr 3,50% TEA

commitments (Call) Mav-18/99.38 57,000,000 57,004,000

Federal Mational Martgage
Assoclation 30yr2,50% TBA

commitments {Call) Biw-16/5 56 S7.000,000 57,000,000

Federal Mational Martgage
Aszociation 30 yr 3.50%% TBA

commitments (Put] Feb-19/47.75 57,000,000 57,000,000

Federal Mational Martgage
Aszociation 30yr 2.50% TEA

commitments (Put] Feb-19/97.59 57,000,000 57,004,000

Federal Mational Martgage
Association 30 yr3.50% TBA

commitments [Pul) Feb-19/4744 57,000,000 57,004,000

57

57

57

621,984

567,307

515,793

Total purchased options outstanding (cost $3,286,250)

$2,028,603

Principal
MUNICIPAL BONDS ANDNOTES (0.2%:)" amount
CAState 5.0, Bonds, [Bulld America Bonds), 7.50%, 4/1/34 5770000
Morth TX, Tollway Auth. Rev. Bonds, (Build America Bonds),
B.TLES, 1145 675,000
OH State U, Rev, Bonds, (Build Amerca Bonds),4.91%, 6/1,/40 845,000

51,051,258

930,346
930,193

Total municipal bonds and notes (cost $2,294,510]

P |rh‘.i.|:|:| amaunt,

SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS [20.99:)* shares

Interestin 5503,000,000 joint tri-party repurchase agreement
dated 10/31/18with Citigroup Glabal Markets, Inc.due
11/1/18 — matwrityvalue of 535,958,220 far an effective yield
of 2.220% icollateralized by various U5, Treasury notes and

@ LL5, Treasury band with coupaon rates ranging from 0.750%
to 2 250% and due dates ranging From 8/15/ 1 9 to B/ 1546, valued

at 5513,080,394) 435 996,000
Futnam Shart Term Investmen; Fund 2. 33%4 Shares 235,817,220
U5, Treasury Bills 2.097%, 11,8/ 1544 S11.152,000
LS. Troasury Bills 2.146%, 12/13/18 044 16,197,000
U5, Treasury Bills 2.312%, 17241904 B,465,000
U5, Treasury Bills 2 163%, 12/13/18 4,289,000
LS, Treasury Bills 2.060%, 11/15/18#a5e 4,212,000
U5, Treasury Bills 2.153%, 11/1/188%e A, 00,000
U5, Treasury Bills 2.129%, 11/23/13 rais 1,768,000

46 Income Fund
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Brincipal amount/

SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS (20.955]* cont shares
L5, Treasury Bitls 21519, 12/6/ 16744 £1.437.000 $1434.021
LS. Treasury Bills 2.2600, 1/10/ 1944 91,000 688,016
LS, Treasury Bills 2, 292%, 1/17/ 192 GEE,000 o6, 70T
Total short-term investments [cost 5328,594,701) $328,593,819

S T
Totalinvestments [cost $2,198,408,998) 52,142,813,475

Kay taholding's abbreviations

DAC Designated Activity Company

FRE Floating Rate Bonds: the rate shown s the cument inferest rate at the close of the reporting period.
Rates may besublect toacapor floor, For certain securities, the rate may represent afized rate
currently in place atthe close of the reparting period,

FRH Floating Rate Notes: therate shown isthe currentintarest rate or yéeld at the closcof the reparting
period. Rates may be subject to a cap orficor. For certain secarities, therate may represent a fised
rate currentlyin place at the closecf the reparting period.

Gl Bonds  General Obligation Bands

IFB Irverse Floating Rate Bonds, which are securities that payinterest rates that varyinversely to
changesin the market interest rates, Asintenest rates rise, inverse floaters produce less curnent
Incarme, The ate shiown is the cuiment Interest Frate at the closeof the reporting perkod, Rates may be

subject toacaporfinar,
s} Irtarest Onty
PQ Principal Only
TBA To Be Announcad Commitments
MNotes ta the fund's partialio

Unless noted othersise, (he notes wihe lund®s por tolio are [or the close of the lend's repor ling perod, which ran
fromMovember 1, 2017 through October 31, 2018 (the reporting perind). Within the following notes to the partfolio,
references to*Putnam Management” représent Putnam Investment Management, LLC, the fund's manager,

an indirect whotly-owned subsidiary of Putnam Investments, LLC and references to "45C 20" represent Accounting
Standards Codification 520Fair Yolue Measwements and (Nscfosures,

® Percentagesindicated are based on net assetsof 51,568,844 484,

t This security s non-income-producing,

* This security, in partarinentirety, was pledged and segregated with the broker to cover margin requirements for
futures cantracts at the elose of the reporting period. Collatersd at period end totaled 54,216,687 and s included
inlmvestments in securitiesonthe Statement of assetsand liabilities (Notes Land 9.

& This security, in part orinentirety, was pledged and segregated with the custadian for collateral on certain
dervative contracts at the closeof therepor ting penod, Collateral ab period end totabed 523,286,916 and isinc luded
Inlnvestments insacuritieson the Statement of assets and liabilities (Notes 1 and 9)

@ This security, in partarinentirety, was pledged and segregated with the custadian forcollateral oncertain TBA
cammitaents st the closeof the reporting penod. Collatera at period end totaled S811.066 and is ineluded
in Investments insecurities o the Statement of assets and liabilities (Notes 1 and 9),

# Thissecurity, in partorinentirety, was pledged and segregated with the custadian bor collateral on theinitial margin
oncertain centrally cleared derivative contracts at the close of the reparting period. Collateral at period end totaled
£23,980,768 and is Included In lnvestmentsin securities on the Statement of assets and liabilities (Notes 1 and 9).

L Affiliated company (Note5). The rate quoted in the security description isthe annualized 7-dayyield of the fund at the
close ofthe raporting pariod.

R Real Estate Investment Trust,
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W Therate shown represents the weighted average coupon associated with the underlying mortgage poals, Rates may

besubjecttaacapor floar,

Al the close of the reporting period, the fund maintained Bquid assets totaling $509.251, 303 tocover certain derivative

contractsand delayed defivery securities.

Unlessotherwise noted, tha rates guoted in Shart-term investments security descriptions represent the weignted

average yield to maturity,

Debtobligations are considered secured unlessatherwise indicated.

14444 after the name of an (ssuer represents securities exempt from reglstration underfule 1944 of the Securities Act
af 1933, as amended. These securithes may be resold in transactions exermpt from registration, narmally to qualified

institutianal buyers.

See Note | tothe financial statements reganding TBAcommitments.

Thedatesshown on debt obligations arethe arginal maturity dates.

FUTURESCONTRACTS OUTSTANDING at 10/31/18

Unrealized

Number of Motienal Expiration appreciation/

contracts amount Value date (depreciation)

U5, Treasury Band 30 yr (Lang) 108 512088730 514,088,750 Dec-l8 S0574, 14
U5, Treasury Band Ultra 30yr {Long) 385 57449219 57449,219 Dec-18 {3,748,504)
LS. Treasury Note 2 yrilong) 337 ETA31313 67,831,313  Dec-lB {1a1,738)
L5, Treasury Note S yriLong) LT 199142345 199142345 Decld {1,554,128)
115, Treasury Note 10yr {Lang) 945 111923438 111923438 Dec-l8 (1,541,929

_ LS. Treasury Note Ullra 10y {Long) 230 28775156 28,775,156 Dec-l8 [607,804)

Unrealized appreciation -
Unrealized (depreciation) (8,218,245)
Total (8,218,245}

WRITTEN SWAP OPTIONS OUTSTANDING at 10/31/158 (premiums 516,021 ,249)

Counterparty Hetionalf

Fixed Obligation % to receive ar (pay)/ Expiration contract
Floating rate index/M aturity date date/strike amount Value
Bankof America N.A.

{32041/ 2 manth USD-LIBOR-BBRA Nov-28 Pone- 183,204 £112,082, 100 L300 445
Barclays Bank PLC

2813/ 3month USD-LIBOR-BBA/ lan-21 Jan-19/2.813 167414,000 1,130,045
Citibank, N.A.

3.50/3month USD-LIBOR-BBA/ Jan-453 Jan-19/3.50 30,755,900 252,848
A2EX5/3month USD-LIBOR-BEA/Now-28 MNow-18/3.2825 126,405,000 279,355
243/ 3month USD-LIA0OR-BEA/ Jan-49 Jan-19/3.43 20,755,900 366,947
3.3853month USD-LIBOR-BBA/Jan-49 Jan-19/3.395 39,755,900 455,542
3,211 3month USD-LIBOR-BRA/Nav-28 Mow-18/3.211 112,002,700 5 093
3.33/3menth USD-LIBOR-BBAJan-49 Jan-19/3.33 39,755,900 40,070
3211 3month USD-LIBOR-BBA/Nov-28 MNow-18/3.211 112,002,700 TC0,0E7
{3.2825)/3 manth USD-LIBOR-BEA/ Nov-28 Miow-18/3.2825 126,405,000 924,021
309 Amonth USD~_I.IB’U'R-—EM{'JIJI‘I--1'I Jun-19/3,09 TE, 553,800 956,000
285633 month USD-LIBOR-BBA /lan-21 Jan-19/2 663 167,414,008 1,561 973
Goldman Sachs International

1202125/ 3 manth USD: LIBOR- BRA/Tee 22 Dee 18/3.02125 318,047,000 419,822
13.1325)/ 3 month USD-LIBOR-BBA/ lan-21 Jan-19/3.1325 318,047,000 486,612
20212573 month USD-LIBOR-BEA/Dec-22 Dhoc-18/3.02125 318,047,000 1,930,545

48 Income Funt
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WRITTEN SWAP OPTIONS DUTSTANDING at 10/31/18 (premiums $16,021,248) cant

Counterparty Hotianalf

Fined Obligation % to receive or [pay)/ Expiration contract

Floating rate index/Maturity date date/strike amount Value
JPMargan Chase Bank N.A.

341/3manth USD-LIBOR-BEAMNov-23 Nene-18/3.41 5119,267,600 £2,385
3,085/ 2 month LISE-LIBDR-BEAMNoy-20 New-1873 085 3K 535,200 307253
3.005/3 month USE-LIBOR-BBAMov-20 New-18/3.005 238,535,200 570,099
3.18/3 month USD-LIBOR-BBA/ Jan-24 Jan-19/3.18 48,687,000 B48,275
3.26/3 month USD-LIBOR-BBA/ lan-43 Jan-19/3.3% 34,867,100 T%1,103
2773 momh US0-LIBOR-BBA/ Jan-21 Jan-1972.77 445,256,000 3,277,084
Morgan Stanley & Co. International PLC

(2.000/3 month US0-LIBOR-BEA fApr-48 Apr25/3.00 18,691,200 1.314,041
({3.0013 monthUSD-LIBOR- BEA/Apr-48 Apr25/3.00 18,691,500 L315,721
Total £19,101,295

WRITTEN OPTIONS OUTSTANDING at 10/31/18 {(premiums $3,232,813)

Countarparty

Expiration

NHotional

date/strike price amaount

Contract
amount

Value

JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A.
Federal Mational Mortgage
Association 30y 1.00% TBA
commitments (Put)
Federal National Mortgage
Association 30 yr3.50% TBA
commitments (Calf)

Federal National Mortgage
Association 30yr 3.50% TBA
cammitments (Call]

Federal National Mortgage
Association 30 yr 3.505 TBA
canmmitments(Call
Federal Natioral Mort gage
Association 30y 3.50% TBA
commitments{Cali]

Faderal National Mortgage
Association 30yr 3.505% TBA
cammitmants (Call]

Federal National Mortgage
Association A yrd 505 THA
cammitments{Call)

Federal National Morigage
Assoclation30yri. 505 TBA
commitments (Call)

Federal National Mortgage
Association 30yr3.50% TBA
commitments(Call)

Federal National Mortgage
Association 20yr3.500: TBA
commitmentis (Call)

Federal National Mortgage
Association 30yr 35006 TEA
cammitments (Put)

Now-18,/595,68 552,000,000

Dec-18/98.36

Dec-18/98.51

Dec-15/98.67

Dec-18/98.T0

Dec-18/98. 85

Dec-18/90.01

Now-18/39.72

Now-15/89.54

Nov-18/99.31

Feb-15/97.27

57,000,000

51,000,000

57,000,000

57,000,000

57,000,000

57,000,000

57,000,000

57,000,000

57,000,000

57,000,000

199/322

£52,000,000

57,000,000

S1.000,000

57,000,000

57,000,000

57,000,000

57,000,000

57,000,000

57,000,000

57,000,000

57,003,000

§572.156

B1ATE

66,918

53634

51585

40,983

32,205

ar

57

57

463,068
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WRITTEN OPTIONS QUTSTANDING 2t 10/11/18 (premiums $3,232 813) cent

Expiration Hational Contract
Counterparty date/strike price amount amount Value
JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A. cont.
Federal National Mortgage
Association 30yr3.50% TBA
commitments {Put) Feb-19/547.11 S5T.000,000 SHT.000,000 5418608
Federal National Mart gage
Associabion 30 yr3,50% TEA
commitments (Put) Feb-19/36.95 57,000,000 57,000,000 377511
FederalMationalMartgage
Associotion 30y 3.50% TBA
commitments (Fut) Feb-19/36.78 57,000,000 57,000,000 336,005
FederalMational Martgage
Association 30 yr3.505% TBA
commitments (Fut) Feb-189/36.63 57,000,000 57,000,000 301644
FederalNational Morigage
Assaciation 30yr 3. 50% THA
commitments (Put) Feb-19/3647 57,000,000 57,000,000 270,284
Total 43,067,730
Counterparty
Fixed right or obligation % to receive Notional/ Premium Unrealized
or (pay)/Floating rate imdex/ Expiration contract receivable/  appreciation/
~ Maturity date datefstrike amount ipayable]  (depreciation]
Bankeof America M. A.
(7 .647)/Amonth USO-LIBOR-BALS
Jun-23[Purchased; Jun-2472 647 555,656,100  S(2.176,177) Si45,061
(2.785)/3 month USD-LIBOR- BEAS
Jan-47 {Purchased| Jan-FTF1.785 33,354,000 [3.583.176) 588,058
2 BT/ Amonth USD-LIBOR-B8A/
Jun-23 {Purchased) Jur-24/2 647 55,656,700 2,176,177) (889,324)
7. TE5/Amonth USD-LIBOR-BAAS
Jan-47 {Purchased) Jan-Fif2.785 13,304,000 [3.583,176) 11,545,932
Citibank, N.A.
{2.6543 month USD-LIBOR:BRA/
Jun-23{Purchased) Jun-2472.654 55,656,700 [176.177) 634,486
(2.689}/3month USD-LIBOR-BBA/
Now-49 (Purchased) Meon-24/2 685 5,102,000 {734,133 244.33]
2 B8%3manth USD-LIBOR-BBAS
Mere-48 | Purchased) Mew-24/2.689 5,702,000 (734,133 (295,136
2.654/3Imonth LUSC-LIBOR-BBA/
Jun-23 [Purchased) Jun-24/2 654 55 656,700 [2.176,177) (B84,335)
Goldman Sachs International
(2.725)/3manth USD-LIBOR-BBAS
Mew-39 {Purchased) Mowv-29/2.715 9,503,400 {Tel,698) 187217
(3,008} 3 manth LUS0-LIBOR-BEA/
Mow-28 (Purchased) Mon-20/3.805 4,503,400 [658,586) 158,752
(281753 month USD-LIBOR-BEA/
Mar-4T [Purchased) Mar-27/2.8175 5,678,300 {843,211) 148472
3.168/3month USD-LIBOR-BAA/
Mov-28 (Purchased) Mow-18/3.169 224,005,400 {o09,462) {15,530)
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FORWARD PREMIUM SWAPOPTION CONTRACTSOUTSTANDING at 10/31/18 conf

Counterparty
Fixed right or obligation % to receive Hotional/ Premium Unrealized
or (pay)/Floating rate index/ Expiration contract  receivable/  appreciation/
Maturity date date/strike amount [payable)  [(depreciation)
Goldman Sachs International cont.
2735/ 3month USD-LIBOR-BEA/
Mew-38 (Purchased] Row-29/2.775 48,503,400 4(76L,598) $1207,079)
3.005/ 2 manth USD-LIBOR-BEAS
New-39 (Purchased) Now-29/3.005 5,503,400 (BE4,809) \218,293)
2.8175/3month JSD-LIBOR-BRA/
Mar-47 (Furchased) Mar-27/2 8175 6,678,900 (B43,211) (370,424)
[3.229)/3 month USD-LIBOR-BEA S
New-28 {(Written) Hoy-18/3.229 112,002 700 686,950 (8,860
3.379 3 month USD- LIBOR-BAAS
Niw-28 (Written) How-18/3.37% 112002700 201605 (8,960

JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A.
(2 A325)/3mionth LSD-LIBOR- 304/

Feb-52 [Purchased) Feh-22/2.8325 33,384,000 (4,662 637 322,586

{2 802)/3 manth USD-LIBOR-BBA/

How-49 (Purchased) How-24/2.802 5,702,000 161L.825) 229448

(2,504 3 month USD-LIBOR-BEA/

Hov-39 [Purchased) How-29/2.50 9,503,400 {088, 354) 111,380

2503 month USE-LIBOR-BRAS

Mew-38 (Purchased)] How-29/2 50 9,503,400 {548,297) 106,935)

3.062/3manth USD-LIBOR-BEAS

Dec-28(Purchased) Dec-18/3.062 143 427,700 {431,478) {172.113)

2.902/3manth USD-LIBOR-BEAS

New-d3 [ Purchased) Hoy 242,902 5,702,000 (BE1.529) (358 428)

2.8325/3 manth USE:LIBOR-BRAS

Feb-52 (Purchased) Fob-22/2 B335 33,394,000 (4,662,637 (2483 8486)
Mar-21/5.00

[5.00 FloorMar-21 {Writlen) Floor 1,060,000 222.000 158,750

3.302/3manth USD-LIBOR-BBAS

Dec-28{Written) Dec 18/3.302 143,427,700 202036 {1656,375)

Morgan Stanley & Co. International PLC
[2.5051/3 month USD-LIBOR-BAA/

New-4% (Purchased) How-24/2 505 5,702,000 {873, 546) 236,006

(32T 3maonth USD-LIBOR-BBAS

Qct-53 (Purchasad) Qe 3307 1 IT9,600 {134,592 5332

3.27/3 momth USD-LIB0R-BBAS

Oct-53 (Puarc hosid) Qet-23/3.37 L1r9,6500 (134,502) i861)

2.505/3month USD-LIBOR:-BBAS

New-43 [Purchased) How-24/2.505 5,702,000 {613,535) (238743}
Unrealized appreciation 3,670,389
Unrealized {depreciation) {7.962,509)
Total £{4,291,720)
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TEASALECOMMITMENTS OUTSTANDING at 10/3118 (proceeds recelvable $311,768,516)

Principal Settiement
Agency amount date Value
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, 3.50%, 11/1/48 55,000,000 Lif13/18 44,666,797
FederalHome Loan Mortgage Corporation, 3.00%, 11/1/18 2,000,000 LL/13/18 1,591 350
Fegeral Natlonal Mortgage Association, 4.00%, 11/1/48 1,006,000 11/13/18 999,922
Foderal National Martgage Association, 3.50%, 11,548 B2,000.000 11/13/18 79,805,058
Federal Mational Martgage Association, 3.00%, 12/1,48 70,000,000 12/13/18 66,125,388
Federal Natlonal Martgage Assoclation, 3,00%, 11/1/48 111,000,000 11/13/18 104,973,044
Government National Merigage Association, 5.00%, 11/1/48 20,000,000 11/19/18 20,750,624
Government National Merigage Association, 4,500, 1 1/1/48 31,000,000 11719718 31,794,375
Total 5311,250,458

CENTRALLY CLEARED INTEREST RATESWAPCONTRACTS OUTSTANDING at 10/31/18

Uplrant
premium Unrealized
received Termination Payments Payments appreciation
Hotional amount Value {paid] date made by fund received by fund (depreciation)
%313 228,300 L1426, 755  5[655,045) 1y5/20 2.8225% — ImonthUsSD- 5698952
Semiannually  LIBOR-BEA—
Quarterty
5,000,000 4,965 31 5/26/20 ImonthUSD-  &manthUsD- {4 2a4)
LIBOR-BBA LIBOR-BEA —
plus 12,70 —  Semiannually
Samiannually
74,668,500 1,830,367 422,754 9/25/28 3ImonthUsD-  2.936%— {1,360.669)
LIBOR-BBA— Semiannually
Quarterly
145,336,900 JARTROZ {412.657) Of25/28 30265 — 3maonthUsD- 1987417
Semiannually  LIBOR-BBA—
Quarterly
119,267,600 625,797 113,733 /1128 Imomth USD-  2.06%— (473,00}
LIBOR-BBA—  Semiannually
Quartorly
112007, T 2418138 L4T.TiG 1ye/28 ImonthUSD-  2.979% — {1,789 438)
LIBOR-BBA—  Semiannually
Quarterly
224,005,400 31,293,103 {B07,TES) 10/9/28 3.05% — ImonhUso- 2512 ATG
Semiannually  LIBOR-BBA—
Quarterhy
74658500  1,32827R 424 620 10/16/28 3monthUSD-  3.005% — (890,711
LIBOR-BBA—  Semiannually
Quarterly
149,336,900 1,561,765 {435,057) 10/16/28 3.10%— ImanthUso- 1,095,526
Semiannually  LIBOR-BRA
Quarterly
435 R0, G G9937HE (167418 1241520 3 05%— ImonthUsi- 531,961
Semiannually  LIBOR-BBA—
Quarterky
3,572,500 5,680E L2153 12/19/20 ImonthUSD-  3.05% = 42T}
LIBOR-BBA—  Semlannually
Quartarly
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premium Unrealized
roceived Termination Payments Payments appreciation/
Motional amount Value [paid] e madebyfund  received by fund [depreciation)
§294,081,500 57336158 5300601 12/19423 3.10%— Imenihuso- 5{162,186)
Semiannually  LIBOR-BBA—
Quarterly
183,130,704 L 3BT.561F  L3T06T 12/1928 ImonthUSD-  3.15%— {1,250,313)
LIBOR-BBA—  Semiannualiy
Quzrterly
465,000 90TiE 2532 13/18M8 3.20%— AmonthUSD- 11,594
Semiannualky LIBDOR-BBA —
Quarterly
24,152,500 4TLILSE (135348 13/19/48 ImonthUsD- 32000 — (606, 863)
LBOR-BBA—  Semiannually
Quarterly
3,136,100 15113 44 1030428 3.16T% — AmenthUsD- 15,232
Semiannually  LIBDR-BEA—
Cluartesly
114,242 800 a72.435 {1,515] 10/2428  30215% — ImanthUSD- a)1,983
Sermisnnually  LIBOR-BEA —
Quarterly
2,862.400 30,564 {og) 1748 3.23%— ImonthUSD- 36,567
Semiannually  LIBOR-BEA —
Quarterly
6421,500 12,807 o) 11/7/28 3.204% — ImonthUSH- 12816
Semiannually  LIBOR-BHA -
Quarterly
8,746,300 7819 [124) 10/23/28 3.2325%— ImonthUsD- 19,013
Somiannually  LIBOR-BHA —
Quarterly
2,385400 4.815¢ {8y 1/14/49 3.29%— Imonth Us0- 4737
Soemiannually  LIBOR-BEA -
Quarterly
35,100,004 164,163 [4E5) 10/%/28 ImonthUsD-  3.275% — 179,945
LUBOR-BBA—  Semianmuaally
Quarterly
35,100,000 115,083 [4&5)] 10/9/28 ImonthUSD- 3.2587T%— 130,527
UBOR-BBA—  Semiannually
Quarterly
35,100,000 102948 [4&5] 107928 ImonthUsO-  3.25475% — 118.2%7
LIEOR-BBA—  Semiznnually
Quarterky
35,100,000 101,474 [465] 1079728 ImenthUsD- 325427 — 116,812
LIBOR-BBA—  Semianmually
Quarterly
35,100,000 131,836 [ae5) 10/9/28 ImonthUsSD-  3.26431% — 147,389
LIBOR-BBA—  Semiannually
Quarterly
4,551,000 114,.362E [574) 11/7/28 3.26% - AmonthUSD- 1115,538)
Semiannualky LIBOR-BBA —
Quarterly
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premium Unrealized
received Termination Payments Paymants preciation/
MNotional amount Value {paid) date made by fund received by fund [depreciation)
6,726,000 521528 1R Lf1lf28 3menthUSD- 3.258% — $24.021
LIBOR-BEA—  Semiannually
Quarterty
44,912,000 106,300 {330} 10/12/28 3manthUsD- 32705 — 115405
LIBOR-BBA—  Semiannually
Quarterly
182,500 203 {1l 10/15/23 3monthUSD- 315450 — T
LIBOR-BBA — Semiannually
Quarterly
57,282,500 54,009 (k6] 1159/33 2 15468%H — imonthUSD- (78,975)
Semiannually  LIBOR-BBA—
Cuarterky
65 385,500 11450 [S&1) 1015723 3.13395% — Amonth Uso- (28,832
Semiannually  LIBOR-BBA—
Quarterty
35 858,000 13,089 7T 10/15/28 3.214703%—  ImonthUSD- 2,350
Semiannually  LIBOR-BBA —
Quarterky
41,816,000 14552 (554) 10/18/28 33355% — Imonth USD- {24,059)
Semiannually  LIBOR-BBA -
Quarterky
46,351,000 24293 1615 10/15/28 ImanthUSD- 321550 — {16227)
LIBOR-BBA—=  Semiannually
Quarterky
39,377,500 51,750 1522} 10/19/28 ImonthUSD-  3.24857% — 93,035
LIBOR-BRA —  Semiannually
Quarterty
39,377,500 E9.820 1522} 101928 ImonthUsD-  3.246% — 9708
LIBOR-BRA—  Semlannually
Quarterky
22,364,000 79,884 {297] 10722728 3monthUSD-  3.2635%— 82,49
LIBOR-BRBA—  Semiannually
Quarterly
1,133,000 4,733 (15} 10/22/28 3monthUSD-  3.27T05% — 4,857
LIBOR-BBA—  Semiannually
Quarterly
53,587,000 91088 111} 1072328 32413 — imanth 5. @729}
Semiannuafly  LIBOR-BBA—
Quarterky
31,519,000 117566 {418} 10f23/28 ImonthUSD-  3.2655%— 120,501
LBOR-BRA—  Semiannually
Quarterly
LT BET000 54,698 {x37) 10/24/28 ImonthUS0-  3.258% — 55,906
LIBOR-BBA—  Semiannually
Quarterly
34,002,000 38,850 1452 10/25/28  3,20950 — Imonth USD- 38,716
Semiannually  LIBOR-BEA—
Guarterky
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CENTRALLY CLEAREDINTEREST RATESWAP CONTRACTS OUTSTANDING at 10/31/18 cant

Upfront
premium Unrealized
roceived Termination Payments Payments appreciation/
Motional amount Value [paid] date madebyfund  received by fund [depreciation)
526,154,000 319,563 S(347] lo/fa6/28 3.2145% — Fmenthuso- £18,472
Semiannually  LIBDR-BBA—
Quarterly
21,811,500 36,600 [389) 10/29/28 3.203%— ImenthUsD- 36,990
Semiannually  LIBOR-BEA—
Quarlerly
26,348,000 112,338 [349) 10730428 3.16% — AmonthUsD- 143,965
Semiannualky LIBDOR-BBA —
Quarterly
42,777,500 303 464 [56T) 10730428 3.14072% — AmonthUs0- 305,154
Semiannually  LIBOR-BEA—
Quarterly
42, 777.500 304,105 (56T /328 3. 14054% — ImonthUS0- 205796
Semiannually  LIBDR-BEA—
Cluartesly
53,197,000 308,596 [T05) 1031/28 31558 — ImonthUS0- 211615
Semisnnualty  LIBOR-BEA —
Quarterly
75,156,100 341 2NE 11,064 12/6/28 3.183% — ImonthUsD- 340,144
Semiannually  LIBOR-BEA —
Quarterly
37,081,000 15574 483 11/3/28 3menthUSD- 3204655 — |16,066)
LIBOR-BBA—  Semiannually
Quarterly
67,201,600 2,688¢ [95T) 12/4/28 3.229% — ImonthUsD- 1732
Somiannually  LIBOR-BHA —
Quarterly
Total $(1,633,827) 53,791,113
EExtended effective date.

OTCTOTALRETURN SWAPCONTRACTSOUTSTANDING at 10/31/18

Upfront
premium  Termina- Payments Total return Unrealized
Swap counterparty/ recaived tion racaived {paid) recaived appreciation/
Motional amount Value {paid) date by fund or paid by fund {depreciation)
Bankof America N.A,
5158475  5158,655 f=  1/12f41 400% (Imonth  SyntheticTRS 51,505
LSD-LIBOR) — Index 4.00% 30 year
Manthly Fannig Mae pools—
Manthly
485383 284,837 = /i34l As0M(Imonth  SyntheticTRS 1,860
USD-LIBOR) — Index 4.500 30 year
Manthly Fanmic Mae pools—
Manthly
Barclays Bank PLC
493,151 459 268 — 112736 (6S50%) Lmaonth  Synthatic TRS (1,504)
LSD-LIBOR— Index 5.50% 30year
Manthly Fannie Mae pools—
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premium  Termina- Payments Total return Unrealized
Swap counterparty/ received tien received [paid]  received by appreciation)
Hotional amount Value (paid) date by fund ar paid by fund {depreciation)
Barclays Bank PLC cont.
SITLT2E 4171 545 5— /13840 4.50%(lmonth Synthetic MBX 85
USD- LIBOR) Indexd. 500 30 yoar
Manthly FannieMae pools—
Marthly
124719 124,893 — 112041 400%(1menth  Syathotic TRS 1,185
LISD-LIBOR)— IndexA.00% 30 year
Wonthly Fannie Mae poaks —
Manthly
380,540 389,754 = 1/13/40 400%(1month  Synthetic MBX feefd)
UsD-LIBOR}— Index4.00% 30 year
Manthly FannieMae pools —
Warthiy
181,166 {79,957 — 11338 600%(Lmonth  Synthetic TRS TH9
USD-LIBOR} — Inddex 6,00% 30 yaar
Meonthly FannieMae pools —
Manthly
2573502 2574309 —  1f12f40 400%(lmonth  Synthetic MBX {3,062
LISD-LIBOR) = Incled. (0% 300 year
Monthhy FannieMae pools —
Manthly
39,102 38834 =  1/12/38 650%{Lmonth  Synthetic TRS 173
USD-LIBOR) — Index 6,505 30 year
Maithly FarinleMae pooks —
Moanthly
284518 293825 — 11241 500%(lmonth  Synthetic MBX Index {334)
USD-LIBOR} — 5.00%: 30 year Ginnie
Maonithly Mae Il pools -
Manthhy
405294 405856 — 1121 4.00%(lmonth  Synthetic TRS 3,849
USD-LIBOR) — I 00% 30 year
Monthly Fannie Mage pools—
Marithly
LBI76E2 1,915,633 — 112040 450%(1menth  Synthetis MY (52}
USD-LIBOR)— Indlex4.50% 30 year
Manthly FannieMae poals —
Manthiy
2580347 2,501,561 —  1f12/39 (6.00%) lmonth  Synthetic MBX {B414)
USD-LIBOR — Index6.00% 30 year
Menthly Fannie Mae pools —
Mo thiy
346420 344,053 —  1/12/38 es0%{lmonth  Synthetic TRS 1,532
USD-LIBOR} — Index6,50% 30 yoar
Menthly FannieMae pools —
Maonthly
99,517 9g, 101 — 11341 (5.00%)1month  Simthetic TRS [1,085)
LISD-LIBOR — Index 5,000 30 year
Keonthly FannieMae poals—
Marthiy
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u
pmm:: Termina- Payments Total return Unrealized
Swap counterparty/ received tion received (paid) received by appreciation/
Motianal ameount Value {paid) date by fund or paid by fund {depreciation)
Barclays Bank PLC cont.
SA01,306  SE00,414 4$—  1/12M3 3508 (Imonth  SyntheticTRS 43,620
USD LIBOH Irichen 3.50%: 30y ear
Manthly Fannie Mae pools—
Monthly
60,238 60,128 = 11243 3150%(Imonth  SynthaticTRS 363
LSD-LIBOR) — Index 3.50% 30 year
Manthly Fannic Macpools —
Manthly
3,886,835 3880518 = 13m0 500%(1month  Synthetic MBX (1,540)
USD-LIBOR) — Incex 5.00% 30 year
Kanthly Fannie Mae pools—
Manthly
40,410,396 40,344,814 —  I/1341 SOme{Imonth  Synthetic MBX {16,066
USDRLIBORI —  [ndexS.00% 20year
Monthly Fannie Mae pools—
Manthly
44064055 44,064,059 = /1338 [6.50%)Imarth  Synthetic MBY (T7.805)
LIS L IBOR — Iricbent 6.50% 30 year
Manthly Fannie Mae pools —
Manthly
Citibank,N.A.
3,306,018 3.300)653 = 1/1zMl 500%(1maonth  Synthatic MBX (1314}
USD-LIBOR) — Irichex 5.00%: 30 year
Manthly Fannle Mae pools—
Manthly
83,339 182,068 = 1J13Ml 500%({1month  Synthetic MBX 311}
USD-LIBOR) — Inchex’5.00% 20 year
Manthly Fannie Mae pools—
Manthly
Credit Suisse International
TAB5,041 7465986 — 113/l 450%(lmonth  Synthetic MBX Index {11,437}
USD-LIBOR) — 4. 50% 30 year Ginnie
Manthly Mae ll pools —
Meanthly
267,345 267,345 —  LE3/39 [500%) Imonth  SyntheticTRS {2.546)
US0-LIBOR — Index 3009 30year
Maonlily Faritii Mae pools —
Manthly
173364 173,107 —  1/12/43 350%(lmonth  Synthatic TRS 1,044
USO-LIBOR) — Iriches 3. 50% 30vear
Weaonthly Fannie Mae pools—
Manthly
481 587 482479 =  1fizMl (5.00%) Imonth  Synthetic TRS (5,254}
USD-LIBOR— Index5.00% 30 year
Manthty Fannie Mae pools—
Manthly
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u
mm Termina- Payments Total return Unrealized
Swap counterparty/ received tion received [paid) received by appreciation)
Hotional amount Value (paid) date by fund or paid by fund {depreciation)
Credit Suisse International cont.
$056452 4863052 — iz 500%(Llmonth Synthatic MBX Index 515 na7
USD LIBog} 5.00% 30 year Ginnie
Manthly Wae ll pools —
Manthly
533,058 532,689 = L12fa4 350%(Imonth  Synthetic TRS 3539
LSD:LIBOR} = Inclex 3.50°% 30 year
Monthly Fannic Mae pooks —
Maonthly
605985  BOT828 — 112740 4.00%(Imonth  Synthetic TRS 5765
Usp-LIBOR) — Index4.00% 20year
Menthly Fannie Mae pools—
Woanthly
ATHAR0 479,110 — 13044 35051 manth Synthetic TRS 3,183
USD-LIBOR} — Inichex 3. 506 30 year
Menthly Famnie Mag pools —
Monthly
349,386 348,131 — U134 350%(lmonth  Synihetic TRS 2,320
LIS0- L IBOR), — Inchex 3,505 30year
Monthly Fannle Mae pools —
Marnthiy
523833 523,833 — 11345 350%(lmonth  SyntheticTRS 3763
USD-LIBOR] — Index 3. 50% 30 year
Masiathihy FannleMas poals —
Manthily
1,632,503 1631414 — 11345 4.00% (1 month Synthetic TRS 11,558
USD-LIBOR) — Iricde 4.00% 20ywear
Monthly Fannie Mae pools —
Manthiy
571655 5TL3ET —  1)13/45 4.00% (1 manth Synthetic TRS 4048
5D LIBOR) — Inchexd 00%: 30year
Monthly Fannie Mae poals—
Manthly
562,282 562,282 — L1345 350%(Imonth  Synthetic TRS 4,039
USD-LIBOR) — Inclex 3. 50% 0 yvear
Meanthly Fannie Mae pools —
Manthiy
2460454 2,463,860 — 113740 (A.00%) lmonth  Synthetic TRS (23,364
USD-LIBOR — Index4.00% 20year
Manthly Fannie Mae pools —
Monthly
Goldman Sachs International
496,782 493,375 — 1138 650%(Imonth  SyntheticTRS 2197
USp-LIBOR)} — Indexs. 50% 30 year
Menthdy Fannie Mae poals -
Koanthly
383229 330,601 —  1712/38 650%(lmonth  Symthetic TRS 1685
USG-LIBOR) = Index . 50% 30 year
Manthly Fannle Mae pools —
Maonthly
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OTCTOTAL RETURN SWAP CONTRACTS OUTSTANDING at 10/31/18 cont

u
pmm:: Termina- Payments Total return Unrealized
Swap counterparty/ received tion received (paid) received by appreciation/
Motional amount Value (paid) date by fund arpaid by fund (depreciation)
Goldman Sachs Internationalcont.
51,130,955 §1,123.411 £—  L12/39 600%(lmonth Synthetic TRS 4823
USD LIBOH Irichen 5.00% 30y oar
Manthly Fannie Mae pools—
Monthly
481360 ATEDSD —  LI¥38 s50M[Imenth  Synthatic TRS 213
UsD-LIBOR) = Indhen 5. 50% 30 year
Manthly Fannic Macpools —
Manthly
26,894 05,408 = 1f13Ml 450%(1lmonth  Symthetic TRS 1,349
USD-LIBOR) — Incex 4.50% 30 year
Haonthly Fannia Mae pools—
Manthly
2942205  28472,225 —  If12/38 (6509} I manth  Synthetic MBX {5,195)
USD-LIBOR— Irchex 5. 50% 30 year
Monthly Fannie Mae pools—
Manthly
1105313 1,105,313 —  1J13/38 [6.50%)Imanth  Synthetic MBX {1952
LIS L IBOR — Iricbent 6.50% 30 year
Manthly Fannie Mae pools —
Manthly
493,151 489268 = 11336 550%(1month  SymtheticTRS 1,544
USD-LIBOR])— Index3.50% 30year
Manthly Fannle Mae pools—
Manthly
42 284 42,342 — 11241 400 [Imonth  SyntheticTRS 407
USD-LIBOR) — Frichex 4. 000 Wyear
Monthly Fannia Mae pools —
Manthly
14,636 14 579 —  L12/3% 6.00%(lmonth Synthetic TRS 4
USD-LIBOR) — Iriches 5.00% 30 year
Maonthly Fannie Mae poals—
Manthly
440872  A4GER? = YiX39 edo%(lmoath  Synthetie TRS 13558
USD-LIBOR) — Index 5.00% 30 year
Manthly Fannie Mae pools —
Manthly
4,030,537 4,030,537 — L1238 [B.50%) Imonth  Synthetic MBX {T.LL7
USD-LIBOR — Index 5.50% 30 year
Manthly Fannie bMae posls —
Meanthly
149453 49,457 —  1/12/38 [G.50%)Llmorth  Synthetic MBX {264)
USO-LIBOR — Inches 6. 5006 30 year
Maonthly Fannie Mae pools—
Manthly
1¥E493 298402 = 1138 [650%) Imorth  Synthetic MEX P04}
USD-LIBOR — Irichens . 500 30 year
Manthly Fannie Mae pools —
Manthly
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Upfrant
premium  Termina- Payments Total return Unrealized
Swap counterparty/ received tion received (paid) received by appreciation/
Hotional amount Value {paid) date by fund or paid by fund {depreciation)
Goldman Sachs Internaticnal cont.
5165,532 5164397 5—  1A12/38 &50%(lmonth  SyntheticTRS 4132
USD LIBOR) Indlex 6. 50% 30 year
Monthhy FannieMae pools—
Monthiy
544433 540,700 = 1A12/38 &50% (1 maonth Synthetic TRS 2,404
LSD-LIBOR] — Index®,50% 30 year
Monthhy FannieMae pools —
Manthiy
812,030 B06,603 — /1338 6,00% (1 manth Synthetic TRS 1535
USD-LIBOR)— Index 6.00% 30 year
Meanithly FannieMae pools —
Monthiy
a3, 402 g, TR — lf13fal 4.00% (1 month Synthetic TRS 6,435
USD-LH0R) — Irides 4.00% 30 year
Monthly FannigMag pools —
Monthiy
930,585 941 3M = 1121 (5.00%) lmontk  Synthetic TRE 110,338)
LISD- L EROR — Indlex 5, 00% 30 year
Monthiy FannleMae pools —
Manthiy
968.TIE 968021 — 134 350%(1manth  SymtheticTRS 6,431
USD-LIBOR) —  Index3,50% 30year
Menthihy FarinleMae peoals —
Monthiy
567,358 567.019 —  LLEM5 4.00%[1month  Synthetic TRS 4,017
USD-LIBOR) — Incex 4.00% 30 pear
Monthiy FannieMae pools —
Maonthiy
626,085 625,156 —  1/13/43 (3.50%) 1month  Synthetic TRS {3,763)
USD-LIBOR — Inddex 3,505 30 year
Monthiy FannieMae poals—
Monthly
1,093,800 1096569 —  Lf12/4 [2.00%) 1 menth  Synthetic TRS [10,697)
USD-LIBOR — Index 3.00% 30 year
Manthly FannleMae poals —
Monthiy
JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A.
129,294 129,474 = 112741 4.00% [1 month Synthetic TRS 1,224
LISTr-| FROR) — Index4.00% 30 year
Monthly FanniaMze pools —
Monthiy
939625 941364 — 1Ml 2.00%) lmonth  SymiheticTRS 110,339
USD-LIBOR — Index5.00% 30year
Mrenthiy FannieMae pools —
Monthly

&l Income Fund
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OTCTOTAL RETURNSWAP CONTRACTSDUTSTANDING at 10731/ 18 cort

u
prgzﬁ:‘: Termina- Payments Total return Unrealized
Swap counterparty/ recaived tion received (paid) received by appreciation/
MNaotional amount Value {paid) date by fund arpaid by fund (depreciation)
JPMorgan Securities LLC
51962 166 51942457 £—  1/12M4 A400% (1 manth Synthetic TRS 54 442)
USD LIBOR) Indes £.00% 30year
Manthly FannieMae pools—
Manthly
LT97574 1796261 = LI2Ma (3.50%) Lmonth  SyntheticTRS {1,534}
USD-LIBOR = Index 3.50% 30year
Manthly Fannie Mac pools—
Manthly
1962166 1,942,457 = J12M4 |400%) Lmonth  Synthetic TRS 4447
UsD-LIBOR — Index £.00% 30 year
Manthly Fannie Mae pools —
Manthly
623,104 R2T428 — If12lL (5.00%) Imanth  Synthetic MBX Index (L0162}
USD-LIBOR — 5009 30 ypear Ginnie
Monthiy Mae | pools —
Manthly
Upfront premium received - Unrealized appreciation 118,181
Upfront premium (paid) - Unrealized {depreciation) (225 690)
Total $— Tatal ${111,509)

CENTRALLY CLEARED TOTAL RETURN SWAP CONTRACTS OUTSTANDING at 10/31/18

Upfront
pu:ﬂum Termina- Payments Total return Unrealized
received tion received (paid) received by appreciation/
Motional amount Valua {paid) date by fund orpaid by fund {depreciation)
59405000 5130178 $—  WEFAD (L9225%)—At  USANon Revised S132.178
maturity Consumer Price
Index-Urban
HCPE-L] = At
maturity
8405 000 162,067 — TAT 2.085% —AL USANon Revised (162 06T)
muaturity Consumer Price
Index-Urban
WCPE-U) — At
maturity
10,792,000 169,963 - T/5f22 (1.89%) —AL UsANon Revised 163,903
maturity Consumer Price
Index-Urban
{CPI-Uj — At
maturity
10,752,000 221682 — TE2T 2.05% — AL USANon Revised (222 582}
maturify Consumer Price
Index-Urban
ICPI-L — At
maturity
Total 4= $(82,608]

Incame Furnd &1
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OTCCREDITDEFAULT CONTRACTS OQUTSTANDING — PROTECTION SOLD &t 10/31/18

pn?;n"?ﬁﬁ Termi- Payments Unrealized

counterparty/ received Motional nation received  appreciation/
Referenceddebt’  Rating™ {paid}* amount  Value date byfund  (depreciation)
Bankof America N A.
CMBXNABBB-B BEE-/P §13 534 £198,000 527562 5/11/63 3D0bp— 4{13,013)
Indhex Mesithly
CMBX NAEBBB-5 BBB-/F 26,395 438,000 60970 5113 300bp— 134,319
Inelex Monthhy
CMEXNABBE-6  BBE-/P 54073 ETROD0 121839 5/11/63 300bp— (67,349
Inchex Momthly
CMEXMNABBB-6  BBBE-P 51,528 004,000 125837 5/11/63 300bp— [73,782)
Index Momithly
Citigroup Global Markets, Inc.
CMBXNAAG AP (131} 337000 T 811463 200bp— TIT)
Inefex Menthly
CMEX NAAG LT g 08 A9T000 G081 511Mm%3 H0bp-— (8,629
Index Manthhy
CMBEXNAAG AP 463 397,000 908] 511463 X0bp— {847
Inchex Menithly
CMBXNAERT BB/P 116,708 008,000 133294 /1747 S0Dbp— {15,703
Index Maonthly
CMEXNABBE-6  BBE-P 15,971 JIH00 AS518 51163 W00bp— 9,356)
Index Monthly
CMBXNABBB-6  BBB-P 38,298 359,000 49973  5/11/63 300bp— (11,465
Index Monthly
CMEXNABBE-6  BBB-/P 53,902 490,000 68208 51143 300bp— {14,020}
Inchex Monithly
CMEXNABHEBE-5  BHB-P 66,061 EI3000 93682  S/11MG3 200bp— (21,229
Indx Monthly
CMEXNABBB-6 BBB-F 13,033 730000 100616 5/11/%3 I00bLp-— {28.157)
Indhex Moaithly
CMEXNABEE-& BAEG.P 107308 LOBTODD  ISL3I0  S/11/63 300bp {43,368)
Index Maonthly
CMEXNABBBE-B BBB-/P 126,06 1144000 15945 51163 I00bp— 32,313
Indesx Manthly
CMEXMNABEB-6  BBB-/P 169,734 1LeT0,000 233464  5/11/563 30D0bp— 161,756}
Inchex Momithby
CMBXNABBE-B&  BBB-/P 206,950 2,168,000 301786 5/11/63 300bp— 93,531
Index Montkily
Credit Suisse Internatianal
CMBXNAAG MNP 132,715 2,662,000 60960  511/63 200bp— 12,790
Inchex Moathly
CMEXNAAR AP 2,036,197 40122000 818,794 5/11/63 X0bp— 1,133,006
Indhen Manthly
CMBENAAT AP 11,938 287,000 1521 /17447 200bp— 10,529
Inehex Moathby
CMBNNAAT AP 102,321 2760000 14734 1/ATMT 200bp— 88,669
Iridhe Menthily
CMBEXNABBB-&  BBB-/P 67,149 665,000 92568  5/11/63 00bp— {25.021)
Index Monthly

b2 Income Func
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OTCCREDITDEFAULT CONTRACTS OUTSTANDING — PROTECTION SOLD at 10/31/ 18 cont

Uplrent

premium Termi- Payments  Unrealized
Swap counterparty/ rec Motional nation received  appreciation/
Referenceddebt’  Rating™ {paid]” amount Value date byfund {depreciation)
Credit Suisse International cont,
CMEXMABBE-E BE8-/P §111.485 SL,004,000 5141148 5/11/63 300bp— £{28,073)
Index Manthhy
CMBEXMNABBB-6 BBB-/P 142,334 1265000 1T60BE 5/L1/G3 300bp— [33.016)
e et Manthiy
CMEXMNABBE-6 BBB-/P 214399 1593000 235566  5/11/53 J00bp— {20,275
Index Manthby
CMEXMNABBE-&  BBB-/P 271,805 2342000 306006  5/11/63 I00bp— {52,735)
Index Monthiy
CMBXNABBE-6  BBE-/P 232,198 2368000 329626 5/11/63 300bp— (95,047}
Indlex Manthly
CMEXMNADDD-G  BBB-/P 317 2500000 248000  S/LL/63 300bp— (82,265)
Imdlex Maonthly
CHMBXNABBE-& Baa-/p 283,039 2,530,000 352176 5/11/B3 300bp— {6T,662)
Indlex Maonthly
CMBXMNABBE-E BEB-/P 306,540 2573000 358,162 S5/11/G3 300bp— {50,121}
Il Maonthly
CHBXNABDRE-G Bes-/r 280,185 2576000 358,579 5/L1/53 30 bp-— 76,5
Il Manthly
CMEXWABBE-E&  BEE-/P 1,723,078 16,115000 2243208 5/11/63 300bp— {510,780
Index Monthly
CMEXNABBR-T  BBB-/P 143,564 266000 137062  IAITMT 300bp— 77
i Manthiby
CMBXNABBE-T  BBB-/P 210,436 2847000 178,507 /17T 300bp— 33,569
Index Monthly
Goldman Sachs International
CHBXNAAG AfP 5171 168,000 3847 5/11/63 200bp— LAES
Index Maonthly
CMBXMNAAG AP 16,026 526,000 12045  5/11/62 200bp 4 185
Index Manthly
CHEXNAAL AP A 497 BOO,000 18,320  5/11/63 200bp— 22 ABR
[l Manthby
CMEXMNAAG AP 65,795 1,256,000 28,762 5/11/63 200bp— 352
Index Manthky
CMBENAAE P 88,084 1L TE3000 40,831 5/L1/63 200bp— 47,847
[ Monthby
CMBXMAAG AR 55,33 | FRO.000 4096 5/11/63 200hp— 15,060
Index Monthlky
CHBXNAAG AfP 109,667 1. 964,00 44376 5/11/63 200bp— 63455
Index Maonthly
CMEXMAMNG Afp 165,367 2518000 57662  5/11/63 200bp— 108,584
Index Manthiy
CHBXNAAS AP 130,272 2,529,008 57914 &/L1/H3 200hn— 73,342
Inlex Manthly
CMEXNAAG AP 152846 2039000 67,303 5/11/63 200bp— 85,786
Index Monthly
CHMBXMNAAG AP 148,581 3,016,000 69066 5/LLB3 200bp— BO.6RE
[rdex Manthly

Income Furnd 63
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premium Termi- Payments Unrealized

counterparty/ received Motional nation rec appreciation/
Referenceddebt”  Rating™ {paid)™ amount  Value date byfund  (depreciation)
Goldman Sachs International cont.
CMBEXNAAG AP §224,300 43497000 580,081  5/11/63 200bp— 4145579
Indhex Mesithly
CMBYXNAAG AP JBS5,860 LEATODD 129316 S/11M3 J0bp— 158,740
Inelex Monthly
CMBEXNAEBBB-6 BEEB-/P 12607 146,000 20,323 511563 300bp— (T.631)
Inchex Momthly
CMEXNABBB-6  BBB-/P 18,143 375,000 52,200 5/11/%63 300bp— (33,839
Index Momithily
CMBXNABBB-6  BBB-P 43,345 392000 54568  5/11/63 300bp— (10,992
Inclex Moaithby
CMOXNABBB-G  BBB-/P 43,557 401,000 56,819  5/11/%63 300bp— 112,028)
Index Monthly
CMEXNABBE-6  BBB-P 43,359 401,000 55,819 5/11/%3 I00bp— [12,197)
Inehex Mesithly
CMEXNABBE-G  BEA.P 39,801 S03000 0018 S/11/53 300bp— (29,923}
Ineex Monthly
CMEXNADDD-6  DBO-P 34,791 GET000 92546 S/11%53 300bp— (57,666
Indesx Momithly
CMBXNABBB-6 BBB-/P 33,2831 671,000 93403  5/11/63 200bp— (58,729)
Index Momthby
CMEXNABBE-&5  BBB-/P 3TH 671,000 93403 H/11/B3 300bp— (60,300
Frnehex Maatkily
CMEXNABEE-5  BER-P 77,301 TI4000 59,389 S/11/53 300bp— 216710
Index Monthiy
CMEXNABBB-6  BBB-/P 98,179 933000 12981 5/11/%63 300bp— {31,151)
Index Monthly
CMBXNABRB-5  BEB-/P 68,535 1006000 140,035 5/11/63 300bp— (70,213
Index Monithly
CMEXNABBE-&6  BBB-P 134237 1,144000 159,245  §/11/63 300bp— [24,341)
Il ex Menthly
CMBXNABRB-& BRA-P 200,757 1446000 200283  5/11/%3 3D0bp— an
Indhex Maonthly
CMBsNABBRB-T BBB-/P 45 185 605,000 37834 11747 300bp— 11,605
I e Menihly
CMBXMABBE-7  BER-P 126785 1,819,000 114051 11747 300bp— 13,795
Index Monthly
JPMorgan Securities LLC
CMEXNABR G BB/P 120,214 105000 L7584 5/11/%3 SD0bp— [22,6835)
Index Monthly
CMEXNAAG AP 3572 67,000 1534 5/11/63 200bp— 2,064
fndex Monthly
CMEXNAAR P 9475 208,000 4763 S/11/63 Abp— 47493
el e Menthly
CMBXMAAG AP 99 STRO00 13090 511563 200bp— {3,043
Inchex Monithly
CMBXNAAG AP 2647 922000  2L114 51163 H0bp— £, 47
e ex Menthly
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OTCCREDITDEFAULT CONTRACTS OUTSTANDING — PROTECTION SOLD at 10/31/ 18 cont

Uplrent

premium Termi- Payments  Unrealized
Swap counterparty/ rec Motional nation received  appreciation/
Referenceddebt’  Rating™ {paid]” amount Value date byfund {depreciation)
JPMorgan Securities LLC cont.
CMBEMAAG AP 106,467 51865000 544999 5/11/63 200bp— $62,233
Index Manthly
CMBEXNAAG AP 118,037 Z,330,000 53,380 5/L1/63 200bp— 65,564
el Manthiy
CMEXNAAG AP 126,001 2507000 57410 5/11/63 200bp— 3,566
Index Manthby
CMBEXMNANG AfP E8,458 26EB00D  B1555  5/11/3 200bp— 2T HE
Index Monthiy
CHEXNAAG AP 113,37 3,365,000 Thaly 51143 200bp— 91173
Indlex Manthly
CMBEXMNAMG AfP 218,564 4,026,000 92,095 51163 00bp— 127534
Imdlex Manthly
CHBXMNAAG AP 250,960 4947000 113286  5/11/83 200bp— 140,315
Indlex Maonthly
CHMBXNAMG AP 245 808 5000000 114500 5/11/63 200bp— 137252
Il Maonthly
CMBXNAAG /P 530,174 5,000,000 206100 5/L1/63 200bp— 327514
Il Manthly
CMBXNAAG AP 1,032,363 17,500,000 400750 5/11/63 200bp— EI8ALB
Index Monthly
CMBXMNABBR-B  BBE-P 42,939 379,000 52,057 5/L1/63 300bp— 19,596}
i Manthiby
CMBXMABBE-&  BBEB-/P 54,512 363,000 53314 5/11/63 300bp— 6A21
Index Monthly
CMBEXMABBE-6  BBB-/P 49,440 408,000 56,784  5/11/63 300bp— (7118}
Index Monthly
CMBXMABBE-E  BBBE-P 54,150 466000 64867  5/11/53 300bp— |1, 445)
Index Monthhky
CHBXNABBE-.6 BBEa-/P 58,281 503,000 006 5/L1/E3 300 bp— 1LL434)
[nclex Manthby
CMBXMNABBB-& Bea-/p 11,340 SoT,000 B3,102 S5/11/63 300bp— |11414)
Imelex Manthiy
CMBEXNABBB-6 BBB-/P 78,281 GEB, 000 95770 S5f11/63 300bp— (L7, 288}
Imlex Maonthly
CMBXMNABBB-B BeB-/P 19,859 712,000 99,110  5/11/63 300bp— {18,836}
Imdex Manthky
CMBXMABBE-E  BBB-/P 18422 T14000 99389 5/11/63 300bp— [20,550)
Index Maonthly
CMEXNABBB-6  BBE-/P 103,1%3 Taa000 101884 5/11/63 300bp— 1726
Imdex Maonthky
CMEXNABEE-&  BBEB-/P 78,850 T33000 102034 5/11/63 300bp— 122,756)
Index Manthly
CMBEXMNABBB-E  BBB-/P 78,850 TI2000 102034 5/11/63 300bp— {22,756
Index Monthly
CMEXMABBE-G  BBB-/P 89,047 TSLOGD 104539 S/11/63 300bp— (15,054)
I Maonthby

Incame Furnd 6%

215/322



OTCCREDITDEFAULT CONTRACTS OQUTSTANDING — PROTECTION SOLD at 10/31 /18 cont

EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000(E14869)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

premium Termi- Payments Unrealized
counterparty/ received Motional nation rec appreciation/
Referenceddebt’  Rating™ {paid)™ amount Value date by fund [depreciation)
JPMorgan Securities LLC cont.
CMBXNABBB-B BEE-/P 77823 £787.000 5109550 5/11/63 300bp— $[31,268)
Indhex Mesithly
CMBX NAEBBB-5 BBB-/F 102,635 B21000 114283 S/115%3 300bp— (LLITS
Inelex Monthhy
CMEXNABBB-6  BBE-P B3,066 EGTOD0  IP0G86 51163 300bp— (37115
Inchex Momthly
CMEXNABBB-6  BBB-/P 124,021 LOIS000 140288  5/11%83 300bp— (16,675
Index Momithily
CMBXNABBB-6  BBB-P 117980 1072000 149228 51163 300bp— (30,618
Inclex Moaithby
CMOXNABBB-G  BBB-/P 130,848 LITa000 163282  5/11/%63 300bp— {31,749
Ind ex Monthly
CMEXNABBE-6  BBB-P 133,775 1411000 196411 511763 300bp— (61,813
Inelex Mesithly
CMEXNABEE-E  BAG-/P 188,865 1524000 212141  S/11/63 300bp— {22,385)
Ineex Monthly
CMEXNABBE-6  BBO-P 151727 L574000 21501 S5/11/63 300bp— {65,456
Indesx Momithly
CMEXMABBE-E BRE-/P 107015 L785,000 24BAT2  5/11/63 200bp— {50,416
Index Momthby
CMEXNABBE-&5  BBB-/P 260,604 2345000 3Me4d4  /1IG3 H0bp— (4,450,
Frnehex Maatkily
CMEXNABBRE-6 BBB-/P 270,691 2455000 341,736 51163 I00bp— (69,613
Index Monthiy
CMBXNABBE-6  BBB-/P 183,809 2467000 33406  5/11/63 300bp— (58,158
Index Monthly
CMBXNABRB-5  BEB-/P 322, Mot 2684000 373813 5/11/63 300bp— (49 281)
Index Monithly
CMEXNABBE-5  BBA-P 322,166 2684000 373613 5/11/63 300bp— [49.281)
Il ex Menthly
CMEXNABRBE-E  BBA-/P 376047 2766000 365,027  S/11/63 3D0bp— (57,366
Indhex Maonthly
CMBXNABBE-6  BBE-P 309,163 2691000 402427  S5/11/63 300bp— @L572)
I e Menihly
CMBXNABBB-F  BAG-T 939,015 TE41000 1000467 SA1LB3 300bp— {147,878)
Index Monthly
CMBXNAEBE-6  BBB-/P 1457400 8284000 L153133 5/11/3 300bp— 309,100
Index Menithly
CMBEXNABBB-T  BBB-/P 392 15,000 941 11747 300bp— 1540}
Index Monthly
CMBXNABBE-T  BBB-/P 93,140 09,000 44454 1/17MT 300bp— 49,700
Index Momithly
CMEXNABBR-Y  BBE-/P 436,274 3E09.000 226284  1/IWAT 0bp— 212,095
Endix Monthly
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Uplrent

premium Termi- Payments  Unrealized
Swap counterparty/ received Motional nation rece appreciation/
Referenceddebt’  Rating™ {paid]” amount Value date byfund {depreciation)
Merrill Lynch International
CMBEXMAME AP Cw L] £2100,000 543,000 5/11/63 200bp— S{1743E)
Index Manthly
CMBEXMNABBB-6 BBB-/P 41,803 AT0,000 51504 5/L1/63 300bp— [BAE5)
Incex Morthiy
CMBEMNABBE-B BBB-/P 116437 991,000 137,547  5/11/53 300bp— (20,942)
Index Manthby
CMBXNABBR-6 BEBR-/P 17044 1443000 200866  5/11/63 300bp— {29,380}
Index Monthiy
CMBEXNABBE-.6 Be6-/P 284,572 2540000 353,566  5/11/63 300bp— (67,515}
Indlex Manthly
Morgan Stanley & Co. International PLC
CHEXNABBB-& HEBR-P 200,817 1458000 203,083 5/L1/63 300 bp— 125)
Inclex Monthly
CHBEMNAAG AP — &43,000 14725  5/11/63 200bp— (14,474}
Il Monthly
CHMBEXMNAAG AP 331 L218,00 2T,z 5/11/63 J00bp— |24, 108}
Index Manthly
CMEXMNABHE-B BBE-'P 3T4R] 329,00 45,797 5/11/63 300bp— {8,124}
Index Maonthby
CMBEXNABBE-.B BBB-/P 0,396 453,004 BEG2E  S/11/63 300bp— (T.842)
Index Maonthly
CHBXNABBE-E BB8e-/P 50,102 504,000 TOA57  5/11/%3 300bp— (10,160}
Index Maonthly
CMEXNABHE-E HEB-/P 65,454 556,000 77,395  5/11/63 300bp— (11816}
Il Manthly
CHBXNABBE-E BEB-/P 6,515 562,000 78230 5/11/63 I00bp— f11.287)
e Monthly
CMBXMABBE- & BEB-/P 198,484 1754000 244157  5/11/62 300bp [44.650)
Il Maonthly
CHMBEXNABBE-B BEB-/P 301,041 2ABA000 345773 5/L1/R3 3Kbbp— 43,323)
[l Manthby
CMEXMNABBE-B BEB-/P 448, 144 2500000 487200  5/11/63 A00bp— 135,844)
Index Manthky
Upfrontpremium received 22,649,596 Unrealized appreciation 4,505,610
Upfrant premium (paid) (131} Unrealized (depreciation)  (3,525,080)
Total $22 649,465 Total $080,530

" Payments related tothe referenced debt are made upon acredit default event,

“Uplrant premivm is based on the differeace between the onginal spread on sseeand the market spread on day

ofexecution,

" Ratinggs for an und e lying index represent the average of Lhe ratings of all the securitiesinclededin that index, The
Moody's, Standard & Poor'sor Fitch ratings are believed to be the mast recent ratings availableat October 31, 2018
Securities rated by Putnam are indicated by P The Putnam rating categaries are comparable to the Standard &

Poor's classifications

217/322
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OTCCREDITDEFAULT CONTRACTS QUTSTANDING — PROTECTION PURCHASED st 10/21/18

premium Termi- Payments Unrealized
counterparty/ received Motional natien [paid) appreciation/
Referenced debt” {paid)™ amount  Value date by fund [depreciation)
Citigroup Global Markets, Inc.
CMBXNAAT Index 5(1,164) 4157,000 $832  1/134T [200bp)— (393
Menthily
CMBYMABR.T Index 128,907} ITT.000 25984  1/U7/4T (500bp}— (3,081)
Menithily
CMEXNA BB Index (142,023 22000 141066  91T/53 (500bp)— (1,859}
Monthily
CMEXNABR.9 Index [142.660) 023000 Jal0eE LTS8 (500bpl— [2,500)
Monthiby
CMEXNA BB Index (139,805} 08000 13850  WLNES (500bpl— (1,764
Monthly
CMEXNABR.Y Index (T1,704) 458000 00T 917/58 (500bpl— (2,072
Monthly
Cradit Suisse International
CMEXNABBT Index (1 18,205] 6697000 1639426 5/L1/63 (300bp)— 1,534,353
Menthly
CMBXMABET Index (761,903 4632000 679978  1/I74T (500bp)— {86,429
Manthly
CMBXNABE T Index [173,025] G3B000 137693 1/U74T [(500bp)— [36,242)
Monthly
CMBXNABR. Index (226,345) LAIB000 216954  9/17/58 (500bp)— {10,773
Monthily
CMEXNABE9 Index (59,440 286000 59058  W1W/S8 (500bp)— {758
Monthly
CMEXNA BB Index [36, 130 43000 35343 WIISE (500bp)— (1012
Monthly
Goldman Sachs International
CMEXNA BB 6index (392,001} 3832000 SIBOTA 51163 (S00bp)— 542,337
Manthly
CMEXNABER.T Index (24167} 1597000 234440  L/LTAT (500 bpl— {8.783)
Monthiy
CMEXNA BB GIndex [a4,124] 303000 T3HI0 51163 (500bp)— 29,513
Monthly
CMEXNABR.T Index {591,993 3408000 S00.204  1/ATMT (500bp)— (195012
Monthily
CMEXNA BB.T Index {204,744) L211000 17777S  L/ITMT (500bph— {28,147
Murithily
CMEXNABRT Index (194,318 LIEGOO0 174105  1/17M7 [S00bp)— (21.36T)
Momnthily
JPMorgan Securities LLC
CMEXNABE.T Index {112.593) TOS,000 103494 1/UTMAT (500bpl— (%.784)
Menthly
CMBYXHAAT Index [61,347) 20910000 15423 L/UTAMT [200bpl— 47,0561
Monthiby
CMEXNA BB &index {219,973 1930000 472109 5/11/63 (3Mbp)— 190,859
Monithly
CMEXNABEG Index (146,983 1022000 250186  5/11/63 [S00kp)— 102,203
Monthily

&8 Income Funt
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OTCCREDITDEFAULT CONTRACTS OUTSTANDING — PROTECTION PURCHASED at 10/3L/18 coal

Upfrent
premium Termi- Payments Unrealized

Swap countarparty/ received Hotional nation {paid} appreciation/

Referenced debt” {paid}™ amount  Value date by fund {depreciation)

JPMorgan Securities LLC cortl

CMEXMNABBGIndex 5(111,356) £732000 5193882  5/11)83 (500bp)— 481755
Manthly

CMBEXMNABBGIndex {T0,996) 534000 130,733 S/11/R3 (500bp)— 59,208
Marthly

CMBXHABBET Index {514,337 5341000 T7B4059 117747 (500 bg) — {135,470}
Maonthly

CMBEXMNABR.T Index (228,865 1408000 206604  1/1TAT (500 bp) — {23.343)
Manthiy

CMEBEXNABE.T Index (126, 168) 806000 118321  1fL7M4T {500 bp)— {8.630)
Manthly

CMBXNABR.T Index [135,307) TI4000  I13.623 1717747 {500 bp) — {26,437}
Manthly

CHEXMNABE.T Index {39,731 635000 93218 1f19MF (500 bp)— {7.130)
Manthly

CMEXMNABET Index (10,923 55,000 BOT4  I/17/4T (500 bp)— (2,502}
Manthly

CHEXMABDT Index (7.6 35,000 5725 11747 {500 bp) = (1,983}
Manthly

CMBEXMABBB-7 Indax (53,921 733000 45953 1/17/47 (300 bpl— {8,400}
Monthly

CMEXNABBE-T Index [53,931) T33000 45959  1/L7/47 (300 bpl — {8400
Manthly

CMBXMABBE-T Index (3&,867) 408,000 25582  1f17/4T {300 bpl — 11,523}
Monthly

Merrill Lynch International

CHBXMABBT Index (251,200 1448000 212566  1/17/47 {500 bp)— 40,041}
Manthly

CMBXMABRS Index (144,208 937000 141066  WIT/SE (500 bp) i4,020)
Manthly

CHEXMNABBBE-T Index CEE] 47,000 53000 1174 (300 bp)— LB, 1597}
Manthly

Morgan Stanley & Co. International PLC

CMBXMNABRBB-T Index [198,658) 1450000 91479 1/17047 (300 bp) — (58,029
Manthly

CHMEX NABBB-T Index [8,256) 130,000 8151 1fL7/4T (300 bp) - {179)
Manthhy

Upfrant premium received - Unrealized appreciation 2,540,227

- Upfront premium | paid) |&,746,705) Unrealized [depreciation) [810,345)

Total 4(6,746,705) Total $1,729,882

' Paymenls relaled Lo the referenced debi are made upon a credit default evenl,

" Upfront prémium is based on the difference betwaen the original spread on ssue and the market spread on day
ofexecution,

Incame Fund &9
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CENTRALLY CLEARED CREDITDEFAULT CONTRACTS OUTSTANDING —PROTECTION PURCHASED at 10/21/18

Upfront
premium Termi- Payments Unrealized
Refere raceived Hotional nation [paid] appreciation/
debt® {paid)” amount Value date by fund [depreciation)
BAHY Serbes 31 46,247,163 581,003,000 54,585,580  12/20/23 (500Lp — 51,229,476
Indhex Quarterly
Total 56,247,163 £1,220.476

*FPayments related to the referenced debt are made upon a credit default event.
“Upfront premium sbased on the difersence between the arginal spread an (ssue and the market spread on day

of executicn,

ASC 820 establishes athree-level hisrarchy for disclosure of fairvalus measurements, Thevaluation hierarchy is based
upon the transparency ofinputsto thevaluation of the fund's Investments. The three levels aredefined asiollows:

Lewe! 1: Valuations based on quoted pricesfor identical securities in active markets.
Lewel 2: Valuatlons based on quoted pricesin markets that are not active or for which all significant Inputs are

obesrvable, sither directly or indirectly.

Leved 3: Valuations based on inputs that are unobservable and significant tothe fair value measurgment,

Thefollowingis 3 summarnyof the inputs used tovaluethe fund's net assets as of the close of the repaorting period:

Valuation inputs
Investments in securities: Levell Level 2 Level 3
Asset-hacked securities = 430,033,000 —
Carporate bondsand notes = 385,121,085 =
Maortgage-backed securities - 615484,215 -
Municizal bonds and notes = 2,802,387 =
Purchased options outstanding — 2,028,803 —
Purchased swap options outstanding - 14,115 457 —
L5, povermment and agency morigage obligations - TE4,518.669 -
Shaort-terminvestments 235,817,220 92,776,550 =
Totalsby level $235,817,220  $1,906,996,255 5—
Valuation inputs
Other financial instruments: Levell Level 2 Level 2
Futurescontracts 518,218,245 G- G
Written options outsianding - 13,067,730 -
Written swepoptionsoutstanding - (19,101,235} -
Fereard premlumswap optlon cantracts - (4,291,720 -
TBA salecommiiments — {311,250 458} -
Interest rate swap coniracts - 544,940 -
Totalreturm swapcontracts - (124,117} -
Credit default contracts — {18, 200,035} -
Totalsbylevel 5(8,218,245)  §{350,690,415) 5—

The accompanying notes are an integral partof these financlal statements.

0 Income Fund
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(2) 2017 10 31

2017 10 31
2,689,807,106 2,669,529,086 290,871,889
20,657,092 20,657,002 2,250,797
1,519,713 165,588
15,919,241 1,734,560
2,051,751 223,559
77,891,795 8,487,000
397,061,104 43,263,778
268,500 29,256
496,034 54,048
5,076,904 553,179
4,646,634 506,297
5,674,851 618,332
50,047 5,453
3,200,842,752 348,763,826
1,400,372 152,585
1,109,951,935 120,940,363
1,795,494 195,637
523,668 57,059
81,531 8,884
421,120 45,885
532,971 58,073
6,780 739
312,771 34,080
1,226,240 133,611
6,923,073 754,338
19,019,232 2,072,336
3,825,019 416,774
46,853,498 28,369,400 3,001,130
458,989,180 458,729,912 49,983,211
2,161,750 235,544
319,367 34,798
1,635,600,635 178,215,045
1,565,242,117 170,548,781
) 1,626,235,180 177,194,585
16,374,064 1,784,118
(74,329,416) (8,098,933)
(3,037,711) (330,989)
— 1,565,242,117 170,548,781
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668,023,855

19,401,692

131,467,459

79,485,305

15,674,915

3,510,430

73,329,452

574,349,009

* %

+ 96,458,290

+ 2,832,338

+ 19,148,651

+ 11,790,324

+ 2,283,748

+ 500,916

+ 10,421,265

+ 81,657,541

2017 10 31
6.93 96.00 100
6.74 96.75 100

10
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6.93

7.22

6.85

6.87

6.74

6.97

6.86

7.01

7.04

7.03

755

787

746

749

734

759

747

764

767

766



791,394

2017 10 31
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75,282,292 8,202,759
75,282,292 8,202,759
6,541,919 712,807
2,705,853 294,830
206,835 22,537
93,501 10,188
4,031,271 439,247
51,767 5,641
692,405 75,444
14,323,551 1,560,694
(5,144) (560)
14,318,407 1,560,134
60,963,885 6,642,625
(54,637,801) (5,953,335)
27,030,376 2,945,230
(13,339,492) (1,453,471)
14,655,176 1,596,828
3,407,305 371,260
(2,862,392) (311,886)
6,388,736 696,117
20,935,235 2,281,103
1,577,143 171,846
62,541,028 6,814,470
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2017 10 31

2016 11 2017 10 31
1940

2017

2017

4.00 3.25

1.00
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17,711,141 17,957,934
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317.5
235.5

1.25
1.30
0.04 25,000
0.04
0.21

1986

4982
740 740 740

2010
2017 10 31

32,316,987 32,316,987
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9,367,579
72,679,078

63,331,652

(107,921,580)

(44,589,928)

15,913,852

(32,316,987)

2,228,653,153
50
50 100
100 200
200 300
300 800
800 1,300
1,300 2,300
2,300
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63,311,499

.550
.500
.450
.400
.350
.330
.320
.315
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0.395
2019 28
0.20
0.25
0.25
0.12
0.05
1,211,312 4,906
36,617 36,061
254,378 988,644
139,545 2,705,853
34,390
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5,144
1,146
1995
2004
2005 12 31
50 2006 12 31
2003

1940 12
0.35 0.25 1,792,916
1.00 1.00 216,900
1.00 1.00 1,506,153
1.00 0.50 413,613
1.00 0.50 101,689
4,031,271
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52,651
1,035
7,773 1,455
1.00
840
TBA 23,921,661,868 24,406,906,220
23,921,661,868 24,406,906,220
2017 10 31 2016 10 31
11,937,181 82,101,703 17,420,831 119,476,416
3,202,893 21,954,903 3,638,187 24,927,008
15,140,074 104,056,606 21,059,018 144,403,424

(39,037,327)

(267,532,889)

(57,474,861)

(394,878,288)

(23,897,253)

(163,476,283)

(36,415,843)

(250,474,864)

2017 10 31 2016 10 31
161,340 1,095,040 473,905 3,215,137
76,098 516,308 80,018 543,022
237,438 1,611,348 553,923 3,758,159

(1,048,641)

(7,121,027)

(1,291,032)

(8,770,404)

(811,203)

(5,509,679)

(737,109)

(5,012, 245)
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2017 10 31 2016 10 31

2,030,543 13,835,244 4,430,148 30,109,030
506,429 3,442,806 530,664 3,609,062

2,536,972 17,278,050 4,960,812 33,718,092

(9,788,422)

(66,604,219)

(10,799,205)

(73,554,564)

(7,251,450)

(49,326,169)

(5,838,393)

(39,836,472)

2017 10 31 2016 10 31
163,274 1,094,644 482,758 3,218,271
58,133 388,227 75,824 506,747
221,407 1,482,871 558,582 3,725,018

(1,653,408)

(11,079,153)

(2,618,370)

(17,563,768)

(1,432,001)

(9,596, 282)

(2.,059,788)

(13,838,750)

2017 10 31 2016 10 31
644,367 4,386,003 1,215,839 8,277,029
81,700 555,126 101,647 691,080
726,067 4,941,129 1,317,486 8,968,109

(2,138,164)

(14,557,577)

(1,868,141)

(12,738,129)

(1,412,097) (9,616,448) (550, 655) (3,770,020)
2017 10 31 2016 10 31
154,014 1,073,749 201,050 1,396,092
22,361 154,890 23,308 161,676
176,375 1,228,639 224,358 1,557,768
(402,215) (2,797,260) (133,296) (926,116)
(225,840) (1,568,621) 91,062 631,652
2017 10 31 2016 10 31
2,570,365 17,907,590 6,606,750 45,915,509
390,605 2,721,115 547,491 3,805,161
2,960,970 20,628,705 7,154,241 49,720,670

(3,487,648)

(24,310,473)

(13,772,333)

(96,559, 360)

(526,678)

(3,681,768)

(6,618,092)

(46,838,690)
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2017 10 31 2016 10 31
32,506,895 226,547,340 39,476,008 274,933,198
2,523,080 17,557,650 2,737,526 19,027,590
35,029,975 244,104,990 42,213,534 293,960,788
(47,813,719) (332,558,436) (58,632,097) (408,018,568)
(12,783,744) (88,453,446) (16,418,563) (114,057,780)
1,716 0.34 12,029
2017 10 31

2016 10 31
185,198,930 | 605,329,949 | 769,871,787 791,394 20,657,092
185,198,930 | 605,329,949 | 769,871,787 791,394 20,657,092
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292,300,000

6,264,000,000

536,600,000

6,304,500,000

1,000

3,692,700,000

217,100,000

9,300,000

223,700,000

51,200,000

815

10,074,227

31,450,819

54,092,465*

52,800,898*

64,166,692

84,251,717
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815
(713,886) (713,886)
(15,074,881) (13,339,492) 27,744,262 (670,111)
(15,074,881) (13,339,492) 27,030,376 (1,383,997)
) )
815
(3,919,516) (3,919,516)
733,251 6,388,736 1,057,124 8,179,111
733,251 6,388,736 (2,862,392) 4,259,595
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Barclays Citigrou Merrill Morgan
Bank of |Barclays| Capital Citibank GI%b alp Credit Suisse Goldman | JPMorgan | JPMorgan | Lynch, | Stanley &
America Bank Inc. NA ' Markets. |International Sachs | ChaseBank| Securities | Pierce, Co.
N.A. PLC | (clearing o Inc ' International N.A. LLC Fenner & |International
broker) ' Smith, Inc. PLC
488,584 488,584
3,036 | 10,703 43,753 32,757 1,732 13,284 105,265
7,450 7,450
243,114 | 3,781,258 | 2,848,860 3,200,995 10,074,227
268,500 268,500
2,518,911 613,337 5,566 1,939,090 5,076,904
5,612,588 6,381,593 3,242,605 | 4,253,986 | 6,206,004 25,696,776
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1,611,240 1,611,240

8,134,535 | 10,703 | 496,034 | 6,994,930 | 243,114 | 7,073,182 | 7,135,603 | 9,758,066 | 3,214,279 | 268,500 43,328,946
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Merrill Morgan
Barclays Citigroup Lynch,
Bank of | porclays |Capital Inc.| Citibank, | Global |Credit suisse] GOldman | JPMorgan | JPMorgan | i | Stanley &
America . . Sachs  |Chase Bank| Securities Co.
Bank PLC | (clearing N.A. Markets, | International : Fenner & !
N.A. International N.A. LLC ) I nternational
broker) Inc. Smith,
PLC
Inc.
1,108,086 1,108,086
650,432 11,051 84,944 119,967 2,044 38,165 906,603
6,078 6,078
402,787 10,120,591 | 4,286,768 10,083,563 24,893,709
112,076 112,076
1,678,271 641,834 209,826 59,175 |1,188,826 47,087 | 3,825,019
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5,235,398 8,518,246 2,493,989 | 4,774,200 [5,795,143 26,816,976
1,552,424 1,552,424
7,316,456 | 1,292,266 (1,226,240 | 8,739,123 12,699,524 | 9,240,110 8,538,437 10,121,728 47,087 | 59,220,971

818,079 [(1,281,563)| (730,206)|(1,744,193)243,114 |(5,626,342)|(2,104,507)[1,219,629 |(6,907,449)|268,500 | (47,087)|(15,892,025)

732,750 [(1,225,675) (1,730,129)220,000 [(5,626,342)|(2,059,018)[1,209,000 |(6,907,449)
N

85,329 | (55,888)| (730,206)| (14,064)| 23,114 (45,489)| 10,629 268,500 | (47,087)
TBA 732,750 220,000 1,209,000 2,161,750
TBA (1,225,675) (1,730,129) (5,945,326)|(2,059,018), (6,997,786), (17,957,934)
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4,492,147 48,468,853
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Statement of assets and liabilities 10/21/17

Irvestment in securities, of value Mote 1)

Unafliliated issuers [identified cost 32,689,807, 106) 52,669529,086

Affiicted issuers (Identified cost 520.557,003) (Motes 1 and 5) 20,657,002
Cash 1,519,713
Ineerest and other receivables 15,519,241
Receivable for shares of the fund sedd 4031,751
Receivable for investments sold TTE3LTIE
Receivable for sales of delayed delivery securities {Mote 1) 397,061,104
Recelvable for variation mangin on futures contracts [Nate 1) 268,500
Receivable for variation margin on centrally cleared swap contracts (Nate 1) 456,034
Unrealized appreciation on forward premium swap option contracts (Note 1) 5,076,904
Unrealized appreciathon on OTC swap contracts (Mote 1) 4,646,634
Pram!urm paid an OTC swap contracts (Note L) 5,674,851
Prepaid azsets 50,047
Tetal assets 3,200,842,752

b |
Poyable for imvestments purchased 1,400,372
Payable for purchases of delayed delfvery securities (Note 1) 1,105,951 935
Payable for shares of the fund repurchased 1,795,494
Payable for compensation of Manager (Note 2) 523,668
Payable for custodian fees (Note 2) B1531
Payablzforinvestor servicing fees (Nate 3| 421,130
Payable for Trustee compensation and expenses (Mote 2) 53287)
Payable for administrative services (Mote 2) 6,780
Payable for distribution fees (Note 2) 277l
Payable for variation margin on centrally cleared swap contracts (Note 1) 1226240
Unrealized dopreciation on OTC swap contracts (Nate 1) 6,923,072
Premium received on OTC swan contracts (MNote 1) 19,019,232
Unrealized deprecistion en farward premium swap option contracts (Note 1) 3825009
Written options outstanding, at value (premiums 546,853 498) (Hote 1] 28,369 400
TBAsale commitments, at value {proceods receivable 5458,%89,130) (Mote 1) 456,729,013
Ccllateral on certain derivative contracts, at value (Motes L and 8) 2,161,750
Other accrued expenses 319,367
Tatal liabilities 1,635,600,635
Net assets 51,565,242,117
Paid-in capital (Unlimited shares authorized) (Notes L and 4) $1,626,235,180
Undistributed net investment income [Note 1) 16,374,064
Accumulated net realized loss on Investments (Hate 1) {74,329 416)
Met unrealized depreciation of investments (3037711
Total — Representing net assets applicable to capital shares outstanding $1,565,242,117
{Continued an nest pagel
Imcome Fund T3
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Statement of assets and liabilities cont.

Net asset value and redemption price per class A share

[5668,023.855 dhvided by 36,458,290 shares) %693
Offering price per class Ashare (100/96.00 of 56.93)" 122
Net asset value and offering price per class B share (519,401,692 divided by 2,832,338 shares)™ 56.85
Met aaset value and sflering price per class € share (5121 467 450 divided by 19,148 651 shares)™ S6.87T
Met asset value and redemption price per class M share

{579,485, 305 divided by 11,790,324 shares; S6.74
Offering price per class M share (100,/96.75 of 56,74)! 2697
Net asset value, offering price and redemption price per class A share

{515,674,915 dividad by 2,283,748 shares) 56.8B
Mel assel value, offering price and redemption price per class RS share

(53,510,430 divided by 500,216 shares) 5701
Met asset value, offering price and redemption price per class Re share

(673,229 457 dwvided by 10,421,265 shares) 5104
Net asset value, offering price and redemption price per class ¥ share

(5574, 345,009 drvided by BL65T 541 shares) ST03

"Onsingle retall sales of less than 100,000, On sales of 5100,000 or mare the offering price s reduced.
“Redemption price pershare is equal to net asset value less any applicable contingent defermed sales charge.
T0nsingle retail zales of ess than 550,000, On sales of 550,000 or mare the offering price is reduced,

The accomparnying notes are an Integral part of these financial statements.

™ Income Fund
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Interest (including interest income of 791,394 from investments in affiliated ssuers) (Note 5)
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575,282,152

Totalinvestment income 75,282,292
Campensation of Manager (Note 2) 8,541,919
Investor servicing fees (Nate 2 2,005,853
Custodian fees (Note 2) 206,815
Trustee compensation and expenses (Note 7| 93,501
Distribution fees Mote 2) 4031271
Administrative services (Wota 2| 51,767
Other 652,405
Total expenses 14,323,551
Expense reduction (Mate 2) 15, 144
Mot expenses 14,318 407
Metinvestment income 60,963,885
Met realizad loss on securities from unaffiliated issuers Motes 1 and 3 154,637 801)
Met realized gain on swap contracts (Hote 1) 27.030,376
Met realized |loss on futures cantracts (Mote 1) (13,339,492
Met realized gain an written options (Mote 1) 14,655,176
Neturreaiized appreciation of securities inunaffiliated issuers and TBA wale commitments

during the year 3,407,305
Met unrealized depreciation of swap contracts during the year |2,862,302)
Net unrealized appreciation of futures cortracts during the year 6,388 736
Net unnealized apprecialion al weitten opthons during the year 20,935 235
Met gain on investments 1,577,143
Metincrease in net assets resulting from operations $62,541,028

1he accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to financial statements 10/31/17

Within the lollowing Notes 1o financial statements, references 1o "State Street” represent State Steet Bank

and Trust Company, references 1o "the 5ECT represent the Securities and Exchangs Commission, relerences o
"Futnam Management” represent Putnam Investment Management, LLE, the fund's manager, an indirec t whally-
ovwred subsidiary of Putnam Investments, LLC and referendas to *OTC, If ary, rapresant over-the-counter. Unless
otherwise noted, the “reporting perod” represents the period from November 1, 2016 through October 31, 2007,

Putnam income Fund [the fund) s a Massachusetls business trust, which i registerad under the Investiment
Company Actof 1940, as amended, as a diversified open-end management irvestment company. The goal of the
fund Is to seek high current income consistent withwhat Putnam Management believes to be prudent risk. The
fund invests mainly in bonds that are securitized debt instruments (such as mortgage-backed investments) and
other obiigations of companies and governments workdwide denominated in U5, dollars, are sither imvestment-
prade or below-investment- grade in quality (sormetimes relermed ta as “unk bonds®) and have intermadiate- to
lomg-term maturities (three years or longer). Putnam Management may consider, among other factors, cradit,
interest rate and prepayment risks, as well as general market conditions, when deciding whether to buy or

sall investments. The fund typically uses to a significart extent derivatives, such as futures, options, and swap
conbracts, for boeth hedging and non-hedging purposes,

Thefund oflers class A, class B, class C, class M, class R, class RS, class 6 and class ¥ shares: Effective Apil 1, 2007,
purchases of class B shares are closed to new and existing investors except by exchange from class B shares of
anather Putnam fund ar through dividand and/or capital galns reinvestment. The furd registered class T sharas
in Fefruary 2017, howewer, asof the date of this report, class T shares had not commenced operations and are not
available tor purchase. Class A and class M shares are sold with a maximum front-end sales charge of 4.00% and
3.35%, respattively, Class Ashares ganerally are not subject to a contingent deferred sales charge, and class M,
class A, class RS, class RS and class ¥ shares are not subject to 3 contingent deferred sales charge, Class B shares,
wihich convert to class A shares after approximately sight wears, are not subject to a front-eng sales charge and
are subject to a contingent defermed sales charge if those shares are redeemed within six years of purchase.
Class C shares are subject to a one-year 1.00% contingent deferred sales charge and do nof convert to class A
shares. Class R snares, which are not available to all investars, are sold at nat asselvalue. The expenses for class A,
class B, class C, class M and class R shares may differ based on the distribution fee of each class, which is identi-
fled in Mote 2, Class RS, class R6 and class Y shares, which are sold at net asset value, are generally subject to the
53Me expenses as class &, class B, class C, class M and class R shares, but do not bear a distribution fee and in

the case of class RS and class RE shares, bear a lower invesior servicing fee, which isidentified In Note 2. Class RS,
class RE6 and class ¥ shares are rot available wo all investars.

in the noemal course of business, thie fund enters into contracts that may include agreements to indemnify
anothar party under given circumstances. The fund's maximumn exposure under these arrangemants is unknown
as this would involve future claims that may be, but have notyet bean, made against the fund, However, the furd’s
management team axpects the risk of material loss to be remote.

The fund has entered inte contractual arrangements with an investment adyiser, administrator, distributor, share-
holder servicing agent and custodian, who each provide services to the fund. Unless expressly stated othenwises,
shareholders are not parties to, or intended beneficiares of these contractual arrangements, and these contrac-
tual arrangements are not intended to create any shareholder rignt fo enforce them against the service providers
of toseek any remedy under them against the service providers, either directly or oo bahalf of the fund.

Linder the fund's Declaration of Trust, any claims asserted against o on behail of the Putnam Funds,
including claims against Trustees ared Officers, must be brought in state and federal courts located within the
Commonwezith of Massachusetts.

Hote 1: Significant accounting policies

The following ks a summary of significant accounting palicies consistently fallowed by the fund in the preparation
of its financial statements. The preparation of financlal statements is in eenbormity with accounting pringples
generally accepted in the United States of America and requires management to make estimates and assump-
tions that aflect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the reported
amounts af increases and decreases in net assels from operations. Actual results could diffes from those esti-
rnates. Subsequent events alter the Statement of assets and labilities date through the date thet the firancial
statements were ssued have been evalualed In the preparation of the financial statements,
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Imvestment incomae, realized and unrealized gains and losses 2nd expenses of the fund are borne pro-rata based
on the relative net assets of each class to the total net assets of the fund, except that sach class bears expenses
unique te that class (including the distribution fees applicable to such classes). Each class votes as a class only
with respect toits own distribution plan or other matters on which a class vote is required by law or determined
by the Trustees, if the fund were liguidated, shares of each class would recelve their pro-rata share of the net
assets of the fund, In addition, the Trustees declane separate dividends on each class of shares,

Security valuation Portfolio securities and other investments are valued using policies and procedures adopted
by the Board of Trustees, The Trustees have formed a Pricing Committee to oversee the implementation of these
procedures and have celegated responsibility for valuing the fund's assets in accordance with these procedures
o Putnam Management. Putnam Management has established an internal Valuation Committes that s respon-
sible far making fair value determinations, evaluating the effectivensss of the pricing policies of the fund and
reporting to tae Pricing Committee.

Market guotations are not considered to be readily avadlable forcartain debt obligations (including short-term
investments with remaining maturities of 60 days or less) and other investments; suchinvestments are valued on
the basis of valuations furnished by an independent pricing service approved by the Trustess ar dealers selected
by Putnam Management. Such services or dealers determine valuations for normal institutional-size trading units
of suchsecuritios using methods based on market transactions for comparable securities and various relatian
ships, generally recognized by institetional traders, between securites (which conseder such factors as security
prices, yields, maturities and ratings). These securities will generally be categorized as Level 2. Securities quoted
in fareign currencies, if any, are translated into .5, dollars at the current exchange rate.

Investments in open-end investment companies (excluding exchange-traded funds), it any, which can be classi-
fied as Leved | or Level 2 securities, are valued based on their net asset value, The net asset value of such invest-
ment companies equals the total value of their assets lass their labilities and divided by the number of their
outstanding shares.

To the extent a pricing service or dealer is unable to value a security or provides a valuation that Putnam Manage-
ment does not balieve accuratedy reflacts the security's [air value, the security will be valued at fair value by
Putnam Management in accordance with policles and procedures approved by the Trustees, Certain invest-
ments, including certain restricted and ilfiguid securities and derivatives, are also valued atfair value following
procedures approved by the Trustees. These valuations consider such factors as significant markat or specific
security events such as interest rate or credit quality changes, various relationships with other securities, discount
rates, U.S. Treasury, U.S. swap and crodityields, index lovels, comvexity exposunes, recovery rates, sales and other
multiples and resale restrictions, These securities are classified as Level 2 or as Level 3 depending on the priority
of the significant inputs,

To assess the continuing appropriateness of fair valuations, the Valuation Committee reviews and affirms the
reasonableness of such valuations on a regular basis after considering all relevant information that is reasonably
available Suchvaluations and procedures are reviewed periodically by the Trustees. Certain securities may be
valued on the basis of a price provided by a single source. The fair value of securities is generally determined as
the amount that the fund could rezsonably expect to realize from an orderly disposition of such securities over
areasonahle periad of time. By its nature, a fair value price s a good faith estimate of the value of a security in 2
current sale and does not reflect an actual market price, which may be diffetent by a material amount,

Security transactions and related investment income Secur ty transactions are recorded on the trade date
(thedate the order to buy or sell is executed). Gains or |osses on securities sold are detarmined an the identi-
fied cost basis. Interest income, net of any applicablewitkhaolding taxes, isrecorded an the accrual basis. All
premiums/discounts are amortized/acereted on a vield-to-maturity basls.

Securities purchased or sold on a delayed dalivery basis may be settled at a future date beyand customary settie-
ment time, Interest income is acerued based on the terms of the securities. Losses may arise due to changes in
the fairvalue of the undertying securities or if the counterparty does ot perform under the contract.

Stripped securities The fund may Invest Instrfpped securities which represent a participation in securites that
may be structured In classes with rights to receive different portions of the Interest and principal. Interest-only
securities receive all of the interest and principal-only securities receive all of the principal. If the interest-only
securities exparience greater than anticipated prepayments of principal, the fund may Tail to recoup fully its initial
imvestment in these securities. Comarsaly, principal-only securitiss increase in value if prepayments are greater
than anticlpated and decline i prepayments are slower than anticipated, The fair value of these securities is
highly sensitive to changes in interest rates,
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Options contracts Tha fund uses options contracts o hedge duration and convexity, to isolate prapayment risk
and to manage downside riks,

The potertial risk to the fund is that the change in value of options contracts may not comespond to the change in
value of the hedgad instruments, In addition, losses may arise from changes in the value of the underlying instru-
ments if there is an illiquid secondary market for the contracts, i interest or exchange rates move unexpectedty
or if the counterparty to the contract is unable to perlorm. Realized gains and losses an puichased options ane
included inrealized gains and losses on Invesitment securities, If 2 written call option Is exerdised, the premium
originally received & recorded as an addition to sales procesds, if awritten put option is exercised, the premium
originally received is recorded as a reduction to the costof investments,

Exchange-traded options arevatued at the last sale price or, if no sales are reported, the last bid price for
purchased aptions and the last ask price for written options, OTC traded options are valued using prices
supplied by dealers,

Optiors on swaps are similar to options on secunties except that the premium paid or recenved is to buy or

prant the right o enter inte a previously agreed upon interest rate or credit defaull contract. Farward premium
swap option contracts include premiums that have extended settlement dates. The delayed settlement of the
premiums is factored into the daily valuation of the option contracts, in the case of Interest rate cap and floor
contracts, in return for a premium, ongoing payments between two parties are based on interest rates exceeding
a specified rate, in the case ol a cap eontract, or falling below a specified rate in the case of a floor contract,

Written option contracts outstanding at period end, it any, are listed after the fund's partfalia.

Futures contracts The fund uses futures confracts for hedging treasury term structure risk and foryield
curve pasitionirg,

The potertial risk to the fund is that the charge In value of futures contracts may not correspond to the change in
value of the hedped instruments, In addition, losses may arise from ¢hanges in the value of the underlying instru-
ments, If there is an illiquid secandary market for the cantracts, if interest or exchange rates move unexpec tedly
or if the counterparty to the contract is unable to perform. With futures, thaem is minimal counterparty credit risk
to the fund since lutures areexchange traded and the exchange’s clearinghouse, as counterparty to all exchange
traded futures, guarantees the futures against default. Risks may exceed amounts recognized on the State-
ment of assets and liabilities. When the contract is closed, the fund records a realized gain or loss equal to the
difference between the value of the contract at the time itwas opened ang the value at the time it was closed.

Futures contracts are valued at the quoted daily settlemenit prices established by the exchange on which they
trade. The fund and the broker agree to exchange an amount of cash equal to the daily fluc tuation in the value of
the futures contract, Such receipts or payments ars known as “varlation margin,”

Futures contracts outstanding at perlod end, If any, are listed after the fund's portfolio,

Interest rate swap contracts The [und entered into OTC and for centrally cleared intenest rate swap cantracts,
which are arrangements between two parties to exchange cash flows based on a noticnal principal amount, for
Fedging term structunz risk and for yield curve positicning.

AnOTC ard centrally cleared Interest rate swap can be purchased or sold with an upfrant premium. Far OTC
Interest rate swap contracts, an upfront paymeant received by the fund is recorded as a liability on the fend's
books, An upfront payment made by the fund is recarded as an asses on the fund’s books, OTC and centrally
cleared interest rata swap contracts are marked o markst daily based upon quotations from an independent
pricing service or market makers, Any change is recorded as an unrealized gainor loss on OTC interest rate swaps.
Dally fluctuations in the value of centrally cleared interest rate swaps are settled through a certral clearing agent
and are recorded in variation margin on the Statement of assets and liabdlities and recorded as unrealized gain
or boss, Payments, including upfront premiums, received or mace are recarded as rezlized gains or losses at

the reset date or the closing of the contract, Certain OTC and centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts may
include extended effective dates. Payments related to these swap contracts are accrued based on the terms

ol the comracl.

Thefund could be exposed to cradit or market risk due to unfavorable changes in the fluctuation of interest
rates or if the counterparty defaults, in the case of OTC interest rate contracts, or the central clearing agency or a
clearing member defaults, in the case of centrally clearad interest rate swap contracts, onits respective obliga-
ton to perfarm under the contract, The fund's maximum risk of loss from counterparty risk or central clearing
risk s tha fair value.of the contract. This risk may be mitigated for OTC intarest rate swap contracts by having
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a master netting arrangement betwean the fund 2nd the counterparty and for centrally cleared interest rate
swap contracts through the daily exchange of variation margin, There s minimal counterparty risk with respect
to centrally cloared interest rate swap contracts die to tha chearinghouse guarantoe fund and other resources
that are available in the event of & clearing member default. Risk of loss may exceed amounts recogrized on the
Statement of assets and llabilities.

OTC and centrally cleared interest rate Swap contracts outstanding, including thair respective national amounts
at pericd end, if any, are listed after the funds portfolio,

Total return swap contracts The fund entered into OTC and/for centrally cleared total returm swap contracts,
which are arrangements to exchange a market-linked return for a perodic payment, both based on a notional
princinal amount, to hedge sector axposure and for gaining exposure to specific sectors,

To the extent that the total return of the security, Index or other financial measure underdying the transaction
ewceads or falls shart of the offsetting interest rate obligation, the fund will receive 2 payment fromar maks a
payment to the counterparty, OTC and/or centrally cleared total returm swap contracts are marked to market
dally basad upon guotations fram an independent pricing service or market maker. Ary change is recordad asan
unrealized galn orloss on OTC total return swaps. Dally fluctuations n the valwe of centrally cleared total return
swaps are seftled through a central cloaring agent and are recorded invariation margin on the Statement of
assets and liabilities and recorded as unrealizad gain ar ioss. Fayments received or made are recorded as realized
gains ar losses. Certain OTC and/or centrally cleared total return swap contracts may include extended effec-

tive dates. Payments related to these swap contracts are accrued based an the terms of the contract. The fund
could be exposed 1o credit or market risk due to unfavorabile chamges in the fluctuation of interest rates or in the
price of the underhing security or indes, the passibility that there is no liquid market for these agreements or that
the counterparty may default on its obligation to perfarm, The fund’s maximum risk of loss from counterparty
risk or central clearing risk is the fair value of the contract, This risk may be mitigated for OTC total return swap
contracts by having a master netting arrangement batween the fund and the counterparty and fior centrally
cleared total retum Swapcontracts through e daily exchange of variation margin. Thene is minimal counterparty
risk with respect to centrz |y cleared total return swap contracts due to the clearinghouse guarantes fund and
oither resources that are available in the event of a clearing member default. Riskof (oss may excesd amounts
recognized on the Statement of assets and liabilities.

OTC andjor centrzlly cleared total return swap cantracts outstanding, including their respective notonal
amounts at periad end, if any, are listed after the fund's portiolio.

Credit default contracts The fund entered into OTC and/or centrally cleared credit default contracts to hedpe
credit risk, for gaining liquid exposure to indwvidual names, to hedge market rlsk and for gaining exposure to
specific sectars,

in OTC and centrally cleared creditdefau t contracts, the protection buyer typleally makes a perlodic stream

of payments to a counterparty, the protection selles, in exchange for the right to recaive a contingent payment
wpan the occurrence of a credit event on the reference obligation or all other equally ranked obligations of tne
relerence entity, Cradit events are contract specilic but may include bankruptcy, falure 10 pay, restructuning and
obligation accaleration. Far OTC eredit default cantracts, an uplront payment received by the fund is recorded as
a liabllity on the fund's books, An upfront payment made by the fund is recorded as an asset on the fund’s books.
Centrally cleared credit default contracts provide the samae rights to the protection buyer and seller axcept the
payments between parties, including upfront premiums, are settied through a central clearing agent through
wariation margin payments. Upfrant and periodic payments received ar paid by the fund far OTC and centrally
cleared credit default contracts are recorded as realized gains or losses at the reset date or close of the contract.
The OTC and centrally cleared credit default contracts are marked to market dally based upon guatations from an
independent pricing service or market makers, Ary change in value of OTC credit default contracts.is recorded as
an unrealized gain or loss. Dally fluctuations in the value of centrally cleared credit default contracts are recorded
in variation margin on the Stabement of assets and liabilities and recorded as unrealized gain or loss, Upon the
oocurrence of a credit event, the difference betwesn the par value and [air value of the reference obligation, net of
any propo! tonal amountol the uplront payment, |s recorded as a realized gain or loss

In-adoition o baaring the risk that the credit event will occur, the fund could be exposed to market risk due to
unfavorable changes ininterest rates or in the price of the underlying security or Index or the possibility that
the fund may be unable ta close cutits position at the same time or 3t the same price as ifit had purchased the
underlying re‘erence ohligations. In certain circumstances, the fund may enter into offsetting OTC and centrally
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cleared cradit dafault contracts which waould mitigate its risk of loss. Risks of loss may exceed amounts recog:
rized on the Statement of assets and liabilities, The fund's maximum risk of loss from counterparty risk, sither
asthe pratection seller or as the protection buyer, is the fair value of the contract. This risk may be mitygated for
OTC credit default contracts by having a master netting arrangerment between the fund ard the countarparty
and for centrally cleared credit default contracts threugh the daily exchange of variation margin. Counterparty
risk is further mitigated with respect to centrally cleared credit default swap contracts due to the clearinghouse
juarantee fund and other resources that are available in the event of a clearing member default, Where the fund
i= a seller of protection, the maximum potential amount of future payments the fund may be required to make is
equal to the notional amount.

OTC and centrally clearad credit default contracts cutstanding, including thelr respective notional amounts at
pericd end, T any, are listed after the fund's portfolio.

TBA commitments The fund may enter into THA (to be announced) commitments o purchase securities for a
fixed unit price at a future date beyond customary settlement time. Although the unit price and par amount have
been established, the actual securities have not been specified, However, it is anticipated that the amount ol the
commitmants will not significantly differ from the principal amount. The fund holds, and maintains unti| settle-
ment date, cash or high-grade debt obligationsin an amount sufficient to meet the purchase price, ar the fund
may enter into offsetting contracts for the forward sale of other securitics it owns. Income on the secutitieswill
riot be egrned until settlerment date.

The fund may also enter into TBA sals commitments to hedge its partfolio positions, tosell mortgage-backed
securities It owns unde delayed defivery arrangements or 1o take a short position in mortgage-backed securi-
ties, Proceeds of TBA sale commitrments are not received until the contractual settement date. During the time

a TBA sale commitment 5 outstanding, either eguivalent deliverable securities or an offselting TBA purchase
commitment deliverable on or befarz the sale commitment date are held as “cover® for the transaction, ar ather
liguid assets in an amaunt equal ta the notional value of the TBA sale commitment are segrogated. If the TBAsale
commitment is closed throwgh the acquisition of an affsetiing TEA purchase commitment, the fund realizes a
gain or loss. If the fund delivers securities under the commitment, the fund realizes a gain or 2 loss from the sale of
tne securities based ppan the unit price established at the date the commitment was enterad into.

TBA commitments, which are accounted for as purchase and sale transactions, may be considered securities
tnemsatves, and involve a risk of loss due to changes in the value of the sacurity prior to the settlement date
aswell as the risk that the counterparty to the transaction wll not perfarm its obligations. Counterparty rlskis
mitigated by having & master agreement between the fund and the counterparty.

Unsettled TBA commitments are valued at their falr value accarding to the procedures described under “Security
valuation™ above, Thecontract s marked to market daily and the change in fair value is recorded by the fund as
an unrealized gain or loss. Based on market circumstances, Putnam Management will determine whether to take
celivery of the undetlying securities or to dispose of the TBA commitments prios te setllement.

TEA purchase commitments outstanding at peried end, H any, are listed within the fund's portiolio and TRA sale
eommitments autstanding at periad end, i any, are listed after the funds portiolia.

Master agreements The fund is a party to 1504 (Intemational Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc.) Master
Agreements that govern OTC derivative and foreign eschangs cantracts and Mastes Securities Forward Transac-
ton Agreements that govern transactions involving mortgage-backed and other asset-backed securities that may
result in delayed delivery (Master Agreements) with cartalm counterparties entered Into from time to time. The
Master Agroements may contain provisions regarding, amang other things, the parties’ general obligations, repre-
sentations, agreements, collateral requirements, events of default and early termination. With respect tocertain
eounterparties, in accordanca with the terms of the Master Agraements, collateral pasted to the fund i held in a
segregated account by the fund's custodian and, with respect to thase amaunts which can be sold ar repledged,
ane presented In the fund's partiolio.

Collateral pledged by the fund is segregated by thefund's custodian and identified in the fund's portfolio. Collat-
enal can bein theform of cash or debt securities issued by the U5, Govermment or related agencles or ot her secu-
rities as agreed to by the fund and the apolicable counterparty. Collateral requirements are determined based on
the fund's net position with each counterparty,

With respect to ES0A Master Agreements, termination events applicable to the fund may occur upan adeclice
in the fund's net assets below a specified threshold over a certain period of time. Termination events applicable
1o canntarparties may oocuf upon a decling in the countarparty's long-term arf short-tarm cradit ratings below
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a specified level, Ineach case, upon occurrence, thi other party may elect to terminateaarly and cause settle-
ment of all derivative and foreign exchange contracts cutstanding, including the payment of any losses and costs
resulting from such earty termination, as reasonably determined by the torminating party. Any decision by oneor
mareof the fund's countarparties to elect early termination could impact the fund's future dervative activity,

At the close of the reparting period, the fund had a net liability position of S17,711,141 onopen derivative
contractssubject to the Master Agreaments. Collateral posted by the fund at period end for these agreements
totaled 517.957.924 and may Include amounts related to unsettled agreements.

Interfund lending The fund, alomg with other Putnam funds, may participete inaninterfund lending program
pursuant to an exemptive order issued by the SEC, This program allows the fund to borrow fromor lend o
other Putnam funds that permit such transactions. Interfund lending transactions are subject to each fund's
investment palicies and borrowing and lending limits. interest earned or paid on the interfund lending transac-
tion will be based on the average of certain current market rates. During the raparting period, the fund did not
utilize the program.

Lines of credit The fund participates, along with other Putnam funds, in a $317.5 million unsecurad cammitted
line of credit and a $235.5 million wnsecured uncommitted line of credit, both provided by State Streat. Bormow-
ings may bemade for termparary or emergency purpeses, Including the funding of sharehelder redemption
requests and trade settlements, Interest is charged to the fund based on the fund's borrowing at a rate equal

to 1.25% plus the higher of (1] the Faderal Funds rate and [2) the overnight LIBOR far the committed fine of
eredit and the Federal Funds rate plus 1309 for the uncommitted line of cradit. A closing lee equal to 0.04%

cf the committed |ineof credit plus a $25.000 fat fee and 0.04% of the uncommitted line of credit has been
paid by the participating funds, In addition, a commitment fee of 0.21% per annum on any unutilized partion of
the committed ling of credit 1s allocated to the participating funds based on their relative net assets and paid
auarterly, During the reporting period, the fund had no borrawings against these arrangaments.

Federal taxes It is the policy of the fund to distribute all of its taxable income within the prescribed time period
and atherwise comply with the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the Code), appli-
cable to regulated investment companies., It is alzo the intention of the fund to distribute an ameunt sufficient to
aviid imposition of any excise tax under Section 4982 of the Code,

Thefund is subject te the provisions of Accounting Standards Codification TA0 Incorme Taxes (A5C T40). ASC T40
sets forth a minimum thresheld fer financial staterment mcognition of the benefit of a tax pesition takenor
expectod to be taken in a tax return, The fund did not have 3 liability to recerd for any unrecognized tax bencfits
in the accompanying finarcial statements. No provision has besn made {or federal taxes anincome, capital gains
ar unrealized appreciation on securities held nor for exclse tax on income and capital gains. Each of the fund's
federal tax returns for the prios three fiscal years remains subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service,

iinder the Regulsted Investment Company Modern|zation Act of 2010, the fund will be permitted 1o carry forward
capital losses incurred for am unlimited period and the carry Torwards will retaln their charactor as elther short-
term or long-term capital losses. At October 31, 2007, the fund had the following capital loss carmyovers available,
1o the extent allowed by the Cade, 1o offset futura net capital gain, if any:

Short-term Long-term Total
532,316,987 — $32,315,987

Distributions to shareholders Distributions to shareholders from net investment income are recorded by

the fund an the ex-dividend date. Distributions from capital gains, if any, are recorded on the ex-dividend date
and paid at least anneally. The amount and character of income and gains (o be distributed are determined in
accordance with ‘ncome Laxs reguliations, which may differ from generally accepted accounting principles. These
differences include temporary and/for permanent differences from the expiration of a capital loss carryover, from
unrezlized gains and losses on certain futures contracts, from income on swap contracts, from interest only secu-
rities and from Real Estate Martgage Investment Conduits "REMIC securities, Reclassifications are made to the
fund's capital accounts ta reflect income and gains avaitable for distribution {or available capital lass carrgovers)
undarincome tax regulations. Al the close of the reporting period, the fund reclassified 59,367,579 to decrease
undistributed net investment income, 563,31 1,499 to decrease paid-in capital and §72,679,078 to decrease
accumulated net realized loss.
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Tau cost of investments includes adjustments to net unnealized aporeciation (depreciation] which may not neces-
sarily be final tax cost basis adjustments, but closely approsimate the tax basks unrealiz=d gains and fosses that
may be realized and distributed to shareholders. The tax basis comporents of distributable sarnings and the
federal tax cost as of the close of the reporting pericd were as follows:

Unreafired appreciation 563,331,652
Unreslized depeeciation {107.421,560]
et unnealized deprociation 44,589,528}
Undistributed ardinary income 15,913,852
Capital boss camyfarward (32,316,987)
Cost for federal inconms Eax purposes 52, 278,653,153

Hote 2: Management fee, administrative services and ather transactions

The fund pays Futnam Management a management fee (based on the fund’s average nat assets and computed
and paid monthly) at annual rates that may vary based on the average of the aggregate net assets of all apen-end
mutual funds spansored by Putnam Management {excluding net assets of [unds that are irvested in, or that are
invesied in by, ather Putnam funds to the extent necessary to avold “double counting” of those assets), Such
annual rates may vary as foliows:

15505 of the first 55 billion, 0.350Mn of the nesxt 550 billian,
0.500% of the next 55 billion, 0.330% of therext 550 billion,
04509 of the next 510 billion, 0.330% of thesnext 5100 billion and
DA00% of thie next $10 billion, 0.315%: ol any excess thenealler,

For the reparting period, the management {e rapresented an effective rate [excluding the impact from any
expensewalvers in effect) of 0.395% of the fund’s average net assets.

Putnam Managemant has contractually agreed, through February 28, 2019, towalve fees or reimburse the fund's
expenses bo the extent necessary to limit the cumulative expenses of the fund, exclusive of broRerage, interest,
tanes, investment-related expenses, extraord nary expenses, acquired fund fees and expenses and payments
undes the fund's investor servicing contract, investment management contract and distribution plans, on a fiscal
year-1o-date basis to an annual rate of 0.20% of the fund’s averege net assets over such fiscal year-to-date period.
During the reporting period, the fund's expenses were not reduced as 2 result of this limit,

Putnam Investments Limited (PILL, an afiillate of Putnam Management, is authorized by the Trustees to manage a
separate portion of the assets of the fund as determined by Putnam Management from time to time. PIL did nat
manage any portion of the assets of the fund during the reparting period. I Putnam Managemeant were to engae
the serices of PIL, Putnam Managementwould pay a quartesly sub-managament fiee to PIL for its sendees ab an
annual rate of 0.25% of the average net assets of the partion of the fund managed by PIL.

The fund reimburses Putnam Management an allocated amount for the compensation and related expenses of
certain officers of the furd and thelr staffwiho provide administrative services to the fund. The aggregate amount
cfall such reimbursements is determined annually by the Trustees,

Custodial functions for the fund's assets are provided by State Street. Custody fees are based an the fund's 2sset
leved, the number of its security holdings and transaction volumes,

Putnam Investar Services, Inc., an affiliate of Putnam Management, provides investor servicing agent functions

1o the fund., Putnam Investor Services, Ing. recelved fees for investor servicing for class A, class B, class C, class M,
clags R and class ¥ shares that included (1) a per account fee foreach direct and underlying nor-defined contribu-
tion account ("retail account ™) of the fund; (2] a specified rate of the fund's assets attributable todefined cortribu-
ton plan accounts; and (3] a specified rate based on the average net assets in retall accounts. Putnam Investos
Services, Inc. has agreed that the aggregate Investor senvicing fees for sach fund’s retail and defined contrinution
accounts for these share classes will not exceed an annual rate of 0.25% of the fund'’s average assets attrinutable
tosuch accounts.

Class RS shares paid a monthly fee based on the average net assets of class RS shares atan annual rate of 0.12%,
Class R shares paid a monthly fee based on the average net assets of class RE shares at an annual rate of 0.05%.

88 Income Fund
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Cruring the reporting period, the expenses for each class of shares refated to investor servicing fees
were as follows:

Class $1211.312 Class RS 4906
ChssB LN Class RG 36,061
ClassC 254,378 Class Y 9RE 544
Class M 139,545 Total $2,705,853
ChssR 34,300

Thefund has entered Into expense affset arrangements with Putnam Investor Services, Inc. and 5tate Street
wherehy Putnam Imvestor Services, Inc.'s and State Streot's fees ane reduced by credits allowed on cash balances.
For the reparting period, the fund’s expenses were reduced by 55,144 under the expense offset arrangements,

Each Independent Trustee of the fund receives an annual Trustee fee, of which 51,146, 35 a quarterly retainer,
has been allocated to the fund, and an additiona! fee for each Trustees meeting attended. Trustees also are
reimbursed for expenses they incur relating to their services as Trustess.

Thefund has adopted a Trustes Fee Delerral Plan (the Deferral Plan) which allows the Trustess to defer the recelpt
of all or a portion af Trustees fees payable on or after July L, 1995, The deferred fees remuain invested in certain
Putnam funds until distribution In accordance with the Deferral Flan,

Thefund has adopted an unfunded norcontribuiory defined benefit pension plan [the Pension Flan] covering

atl Trustees of the fund who have served as a Trustee for at least five years and wera first elected prior to 2004,
Benalits under the Pension Plan 3re equal to 509 of the Trustee's sverage annual attendance and retainer fees for
the three years ended December 31, 2005, The retirement benefit is payable during a Trustee's lifetime, baginning
the year follawing retirement, lor the number of years of service through December 31, 2006, Pension expense

for the fund ks included in Trustee compensatian and expenses in the Statement of operations. Accrued pension
liability is included in Payable for Trustee compenszation and expenses in the Statement of assets and liabilities.
The Trustees have terminated the Penslon Plan with respect to amy Trustee fizst elected after 2003,

The fund has adopted distribution plans (the Plans) with respect to the following share clazses pursuant to Rule
12b-1 urider thie lnvestment Company Act of 1940, The purpose of the Plans is to compensate Putnarm Retall
Management Limited Partnership, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Putnam irvestments, LLC, lor services
provided and expenses incurred In distributing shares of the fund. The Plans provide payments by the fund o
Putnam Retail Management Limited Partnership at an annual rate of up to the fallowing amaunts " Maximum %)
of the average net assets attributable o each class. The Trustees have approved payment By thefund at the
follawing arnual rate ("Approwved %7 of the aserage net assets attributable o each class. During the reparting
period, the class-specific expenses related to distribution fees were as follows:

Maimum % Approvad % Amount
Clzss A 0.35% 0.25% 51,792 916
Clzss B 100 1.00% 216900
Clags © 1003 1.00% 1,506,153
Class M 1.0 00,500 4131513
Cllzss B 100 0.505%: 101,689
Total 24,031,271

For the reporting perod, Putnam Retail Management Limited Partnership, acting as underwriter, received net
commissions of 552,651 and 51,035 from the sale of class A and class M shares, respectively, and received 57,7173
and 51,455 in contingent deferred sales charges from redemptions of class B and class C shares, mespectively.

A deferred sales charge of up to 100% is assessed on certain redemptions of class A shares, For the
reparting pericd, Putnam Retall Management Limited Partnership, acting as underwritern, recelved 5840 on
class A redempticns.
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Note 3: Purchases and sales of securities

During the reporting period, the cost of purchases and the proceeds from sales, excluding short-term
investments, were as follows:

Costof purchases  Proceeds from sales
Investments in securities, including TBA commitments (Long:-term) 523,921,661 858 524 406,906,220
U5 government securities {Lang-term)
Total

513,521,651,868 524,406,906,220

The fund may purchase or sell imestments from or to other Putnam funds in the omdinary course of business,
wiich can reduce the fund’s transaction costs, at prices determined in accordance with SEC requirements and
policies approved by the Trustees. During the reporting period, purchases or sales of long-term securities from

of toother Putnam furds, itany, did not represent mone than 5% of the fund's total cost of purchases and/or total
proceeds from sales,

HNote 4: Capital shares

Al the close of the reporting period, there were anunlimited number of shares of benelicial interest authorized.
Transactions in capltal shares were as foliows:

YEAR ENDED 10/31/17 YEAR EMDED 10/31/16

Shares sold 1183718L $82,101,703 17420831 5119476416
Shares issued in connection with
relnvestrment of distributions 3302893 21,954,903 3,538,187 24,927,008
15,140,074 104,056,606 21,059,018 144,403 424
Shares repurchased (39,037,327} (167,531,889 IBTAT4,861) (334,678,288
Met decrease (23,897,253)  §[1A3,476,283) [36,415,843)  $(250,474,864)
YEAR ENDED 10/31/17 YEAR EMDED L0/31/16
sharos Amount | CShires.  Amolnk
Sharos sold 161,240 51,095,040 473905 53,215,137
Shares issued in connection with
reimvestment of distributions o196 516,308 B 0E 543097
237438 1611348 553,523 3,758,159
Shares reparchased (L.C48641) (T.12L.02T) (1,291,032} {B,770,404)
Het decrease (811,203) 4(5,509,679) (737,109 $(5,012,245)
YEAR ENDED 10/31/17 YEAR EMDED LOj31/18
Amount | . ; . -
Shares sold 2030,543 513,835,244 4,430,148 530,108,020
Shares issued in connection with
reirvestment of distributions L06A20 3442 806 530,664 3,609,062
2536372 17,278,050 4,960,812 33718092
Shases repurchased (5.788.422) (66,604,219) (10,795205)  (73.554,564)
Het decrease (7,251,450)  §(49,326,169) (5,838,303)  §{39,836,472)

30 Income Fund
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YEAR ENDED 10/31/17 YEAR EMDED 10/31/16

Amount Amount
Shares scld 163,274 51,004,544 482,758 53,218,271
Shiares ssued in connection with .
relnvestment of distributions 58,133 283207 15,65 506, 74T
221 407 1482871 558 587 3725018
Sharas mpurchased (LB53A0H) (LLOT.153) {2/618,370) (17,563,768
Met decrease (1,432 001) $(9,596,282) (2,050,788}  §{13,838.750)
YEAR ENDED 10/31/17 YEAR EHDED 10/31/16
Shares Amount Bhamei  Amaimb
Shares sold Edd 36T 54,385,003 L215.83% 58,277,029
Shares issued in connection with '
rairwestment of distributions BLT00 E55,126 101,647 €01,080
726,067 45941179 1317486 8,368,109
Shaes repurchased (2138, 164) (14,557 57T) (1,868, 141) [12,738,129)
Met decrease {1,412,057) §(9,616,448) (550,655 %(3,770,020)
YEAR ENDED 10/31/17 YEAR EMDED 10/31/16

_ Shaies. At

Shares sold 154,004 51,073,749 204,050 £1,396,002
Shaes issued in connection with
reinvestment of distributions 22,361 154,590 3,308 161,678
176,375 1728639 224353 L551,768
Shares repurchased (02,215) (2147, 260) (133, 296) (326,16]
Met increase [decreasa) (225,840) $[1,568,621) 91,062 4631652
YEAR ENDED 10/31/17 YEAR EMDED 10/31/16
Shares sold 2,570,365 S17,907,590 6,606,750 445,915,509
Shares Bsued In connection with
reinvestment of distributions 390,605 2721115 547,491 3,805,161
2,960,970 20,628,705 7,154,241 49,720,670
Shares repurchased (3487648 (24,300473) {13.772.333) (96,555,360
Net decrease (526,678) 5(3,681,768) (6,618,092)  $(46,5838,690)
YEAR ENDED 10/31/17 YEAR ENDED 10/31/16
Clasy. Shares Amount -Shares Amount
Shares sodd 32,506,395 S226,547,340 30 476.008 574,933,196
Shues isued in connaction with
relnvestment of distributions 2,523,080 LT 357650 FRETA-F. 19,027,590
35,028,975 244,104,390 42213534 293,960,788
Shares repurchased TELETIY) [332,558,435) (54,632,007 {#0E,018,568)
Met decrease (12,783,744)  5(88,453,446) [16,418,563)  5(114,057,780)
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At the close of the reporting period, Putnam Investmaents, LLC owned the following shases of the fund:

Shares awned Percentage of swnership Value
Class RS 1,116 0.34% 512,029

Note 5: Affiliated transactions
Transactions during the reparting period with any company which is under common ownershigor contral
were as follows:

Fadr wnine a5 viiup o
AT T Ty ol 1oray/eT
Putnam Short Term
[mvestrnant Fund” 5185.196,930 5605,329,949 S769,871 787 5791,394 520,657,092
Total Short-term
investments 5185,198,930  5605,335,%4%  5769,871.7a7 £791,394 £30,657,092

"Mznagement fees charged to Putnam Short Term Investmant Fund have been waived by Putnam Management.
There were no realized or unrealized pains or losses during the period.

Nete 6: Market, credit and other risks

In the pormal course of business, the fund trades financial instruments and enters Into financial transactions
wiere risk of potential loss exists due to changes in the market (market risk) or falure of the conbracting party to
the tramsaction to perform (credit risk). The fund may be exposed to additional credit risk that an institution or
otherentity with which the fund has unsettled or open transactions will delault. The fund may invest a signifi-
cant portion of its assets in securitized debt instruments. including martgage-backed and asset-backed imaest-
ments. The yields and values of these Ivestments are sensitive to changes In Interest rates, the rate of principal
payments an the underkying assets and the markat's perception of the issuers. The market for these investments
miay be volatile and limited, which may make them difficult to buy or sell,

Wote T: Summary of derivative activity
Thevolume of activity for the reparting pering for any cerivative type that was held during the penod s listed
below and was based on an average of the holdings at the end of each fscal quarter:

Purchased TBA commitment oplion cantracts (contract amount) 4292,300,000
Purchased swap option contracts ([Contract amount) 56,264,000,000
Written TBA commitment option contracts (contract amount) 5536,600,000
Written swap option contracts [contract amount) 6,304,500,000
Futures contracts {numbser of contracts) 1000
Centrally cleared interest rate swap cantracts {notional) £3,692 700,000
OTC tetal returm swap contracts (noticnal) S217,100,000
Centrally cleared total return swap contracts (national) 40,300,000
OTC credit delaull contracts (notknall §273.700,000
Central'y cleared credit default contracts {netional] 551,200,000
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Thefollowing ks a summary of the fair value of derivative instrurments as of the cese of the reporting pericd:

ASSET DERIVATIVES LIABILITY DERIVATIVES
Derivatives not
accounted foras Statement of Statement of
hedging instruments assets and assets and
under ASC 815 ligbilities location Fair value liabilities location Fairvalue
Payakales, Mot assets —
Credit contracts Recehables 510,074,227  Unreailred depreciation 531 450,819°
Investments,
feceivables, Het
assats — Unrealized Payables, Net assats —
Invterest rate contracts appreciation 54092465  Unrealized depreciation 52,800,898
Total 464,166,692 584,251,717

*Includes cumulative approciation/depreciation of futures contracts and/er centrally cleared swaps as raparted In
the fund's portfolio, Only current day’s variation margin is reported within the Statement of assets and liabilities.

The following ks o summary of realized and change in unrealized gains or losses of derivative instruments in the
Statement of eperations for the reporting period (see Mote 1):

Derivatives not

accounted for as

hedging instruments

under ASCB15 Options Futures Swaps Total

Credit contracts 5— §— 5{713,386) 5{713,8846)
Interest rate contracts (15,074,881) (13,339,497 27,744 262 0670, 111)
Total 515,074, 851) $[13,3329,49z2) 527,030,176 $(1,383,937)
Derivatives not

accounted for as

hedging instruments

under ASCBLS Dptions Futures Swaps Total

Credit contracts G S 53,819,516) 3.919,516)
Intefest rate contracts 133,751 b 344,730 LOsT,14 5B, 1,101

Total $733,251 56,388,736 5(2,362,392) 54,259,535

259/322
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(2019 )
( ) ( )
2,791,618,926 304,174,798
1,126,079,016 122,697,570
1,665,539,910 181,477,229
89,524,591
1,697,574
15,796,944
11,006,741
1,862,677
664,076
14,562,064
107,907,292
6.81 742
6.73 733
6.74 734
6.61 720
6.74 734
6.89 751
6.93 755
6.93 755
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€©))
2019
99 ( 792
(2019 )
(100 )

5 1,871.28
9 5,566.80
32 33,632.25
53 38,154.42
99 79,224.75
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2018 12 31 2017 12 31
28,937,087 3,152,985 32,572,573 3,549,108
5,270,779 574,304 4,057,982 442,158
34,207,866 3,727,289 36,630,555 3,991,265
39,763 4,333 39,763 4,333
34,247,629 3,731,622 36,670,318 3,995,598
1,726,392 188,108 2,979,365 324,632
4,977,493 542,348 4,322,601 470,991
6,703,885 730,455 7,301,966 795,622
6,999,622 762,679 3,193,153 347,926
1,000 109 1,000 109
348,302,744 37,951,067 337,372,309 36,760,087

(340,019,711)  (37,048,548)  (323,456,718)  (35,243,844)

12,260,089 1,335,859 12,258,608 1,335,698
27,543,744 3,001,166 29,368,352 3,199,976
34,247,629 3,731,622 36,670,318 3,995,598
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(
2018 12 31 2017 12 31

398,499,068 43,420,458 397,668,443 43,329,954
(33,098,203) (3,606,380)  (37,819,075) (4,120,766)
365,400,865 39,814,078 359,849,368 39,209,187

139,103,702 15,156,739
137,685,105 15,002,169 142,305,050 15,505,558
25,246,574 2,750,867 25,569,320 2,786,033
15,540,601 1,693,304 14,672,928 1,598,762
64,387,876 7,015,703 61,011,471 6,647,810
381,963,858 41,618,782 243,558,769 26,538,163
(16,562,993) (1,804,704) 116,290,599 12,671,024
1,481 161 (1,334,671) (145,426)
1,481 161 (1,334,671) (145,426)
(16,561,512) (1,804,542) 114,955,928 12,525,598
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2018 2017 12 31

2018

3,193,153 347,926 1,000 109 337,372,309 36,760,087 (323,456,718) (35,243,844) 12,258,608 1,335,698 29,368,352 3,199,976

(10,930,435) (1,190,980) 10,930,435 1,190,980
(
)
14,736,904 1,605,733 14,736,904 1,605,733
1,481 161 1,481 161
(16,562,993) (1,804,704) (16,562,993) (1,804,704)
2018
12

31 6,999,622 762,679 1,000 109 348,302,744 37,951,067 (340,019,711) (37,048,548) 12,260,089 1,335,859 27,543,744 3,001,166

2017

(313,081,398) (34,113,349) 1,000 109 751,016,039 81,830,708 (439,747,317) (47,914,868) 13,593,279 1,481,124 11,781,603 1,283,723

(413,643,730) (45,070,621) (413,643,730) (45,070,621)
(
)
316,274,551 34,461,275 316,274,551 34,461,275
(1,334,671) (145,426) (1,334,671)  (145,426)
116,290,599 12,671,024 116,290,599 12,671,024
2017
12
31 3,193,153 347,926 1,000 109 337,372,309 36,760,087 (323,456,718) (35,243,844) 12,258,608 1,335,698 29,368,352 3,199,976
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2018 12 31 2017 12 31
)/ (16,562,993)  (1,804,704) 116,290,599 12,671,024

)/ ( )/
2,514 274

)/
3,635,486 396,123 (3,001,278) (327,019)
(1,212,797) (132,146) (373,678) (40,716)
/(
(1,252,973) (136,524)  (12,662,238)  (1,379,677)
654,892 71,357 (2,886,740) (314,539)
)/ (14,738,385)  (1,605,894) 97,369,179 10,609,346
(367,825,035)  (40,078,216)  (356,474,412)  (38,841,452)
382,561,939 41,683,949 259,105,233 28,232,106
/( ) 14,736,904 1,605,733  (97,369,179)  (10,609,346)
1,481 161
C )

(413,643,730)  (45,070,621)

10,930,435 1,190,980
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2018 2017 12 31
570,991
« ) 2018 2017 12 31
2,514 2018 2017 12 31
2018 2017 12 31
24,797,869 16,607,600
36
2018
M
M M
M 1986
M
M M 105
M
(
) «C )
2017
2017 12 31 (1,334,671)
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a single member limited liability company
disregarded entity

2014-09
2018
2018 2017
613,192 613,192
(286,743)
326,449 613,192
(613,192) (613,192)
286,743
(326,449) (613,192)
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2018 2017 12 31 6,999,622 3,193,153
2018 2017 12 31
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
/( )
24,535,101 22,634,531
5,361,495 (8,932,422)
869,564 588,974
M (35,749,237) 262,707
(261,211) (212,082)
(1,641,042) (18,073,080)
146,261 208,541
4,084 391,971
1,851 980
(251,517) (245,274)
2,700 62,247
(17,671) 119,754
(6,999,622) (3,193,153)
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401(K)
2017 12 31
3,365,385 «C )
2018 2017 12 31 357,139,085
« )
26,898,231 31,552,134
2017 12 31
3,139,982 3,321,581
2018
10,993,678 11,147,416
10,200,995 9,092,525
2018
89,376,610 87,164,151
)/
24,988,734
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2018 12 31
5,849,130 2,078,585 2017 12 31
7,662,138 3,141,213 2018 12 31
24,134,946 4.03
« )
«C )
2018 2017 12 31
2018 12 31
1,823,400 17.90
506,000 17.25
(447,600) 18.98
(125,700) 17.33
12 31 1,756,100 17.48
2017 12 31
1,894,900 18.94
495,000 15.16
(11,600) 19.04
(517,100) 19.02
(37,800) 18.68
12 31 1,823,400 17.90
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G
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DPERATING EXPENSES
Serviee loe capemse {MNole 4 11 E T
Compensaton and besefis. 137685 1o (EFRLEIL]
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CTASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
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PUTHAM INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, LLC
OTES TO FINANC TATEMENTS

(1) ORGANIZATION

Putnam lnvesiment Management, LLC {the “Company™) is a wholly indirectly-owned subsidiary of
Putnam Investments, LLC (the “Parent” or “Putnam’™), which is a majority indirectly-owned subsidinry of
Great-West Lifeco Inc, (“Lifeco™). The US. dollar (5) is the functional and presentation currency of the
Company.

The Company’s primary business 15 1o provide investmient advisory services to Putnam-sponsored mutual
fumdds {the “Funds™). In connection with providing these services, the Company receives a management
foe, which 1s based upon the average asset value of the respective fund or account to which the services
are provided. The Company's revenue 15 largely dependent on the total value and composinon of assets
under management of the Funds, which include domestic and international equity and debt assets.
Accordingly, Nuctuations in financial markets and in the composition of assets under management affect
revenue and results of operations.

The Company, its Parent and its alliliates have significant interdependencies, as descnibed in Notes 2 and
4, The accompanying financial statements have been prepared from the separate reconds mamtamed by
the Compuny and may not be mdicative of the financial position or the resulis of operations that would
have existed if the Company had been operated as an unaffiliated company.

{2) SUMMARY OF SIGRIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Accounting Estimates

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepied in
the Umited Staes of Amernica ("GAAPTY, which require management 1o make significant judgements
involving estimates and assumptions regarding the potennal outcome of hitigation and other matters that
affected the reported amounts in the financial statements and related disclosures, Actual results could
difer from these estimales.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment 15 recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortizanon. Depreciation
expense is caleulated using the straight-line method, based on the estimated useful hife of each asset group
as follows: computer equipment (servers and manframes) = three 1w five years, office and oaher
equipment ~ five years, and fumiture — seven years, Leaschold improvements are amortized using the
straight-line method over the penads coverad by the applicable leases, or the estimated useful life of the
improvement, whichever is less. Upon sale or retirement, the cost and related accumulaed depreciation
and amortzation 15 removed from the sccounts and the resulting gn or loss, 1F any, 15 reflected i Met
income or loss, Additions, renewals, and betlerments of fixed assets are capitalized. Expenditures for
maintenance and repairs below a cenain threshold are charged o expense when incurred. Depreciation
and amorteabion expense on property and equipment, along with the cost of repsurs and manignance, is
meluded m Other operating expenses in the Statements of (LossyIncome and Comprehensive
{Loss¥Income. The Company aonually reviews the carrving value of property and equipment for
impairment, of more frequently if events or changes indicate that the carrying valse of assets may not be
recoverable, There have been mo propeny and equipment impairments or events that would indicate
impairment dunng the vears ended December 31, 2018 and 20017,

Capitalized Sofiware

The Compuny capitahzes certam costs related to purchased software as long-hived assets, which are
amartized on a straight-line basis over the lesser of three vears or estimated useful life, Amortization of
the capitalized costs commences when the application 1s put into production, Capitalized software assets
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PUTHNAM IMVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

are evalumted for smpanrment quarterly, or more frequently iF events or changes imbicate that the carmving
value of assets may not be recoverable.  Assets decmed unsuitable for implementation, or obsolete, are
expensed upon such determination.  Net capitalized software costs were mil for both the vears ended
December 31, 2008 and 2007, which included accumulated amortization of 3370,991 for both years, and
are considered intangible assets, which are included in Intangaible and other axeets, net in the Balance
Sheets.  Amortization expense on capitalized software assets s included in Other operating expenses in
the Statements of {Loss)Income and Comprehensive {Loss) Income and was il and 52,514 for the vears
ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, There were no additions of capitalized software assets
for the vears ended December 31, 2008 and 2017,

Right of Setofl

Intercompany receivables and payables are offset and the net amount i presented in the Balance Sheens.
This presentation is vsed becavse the Company and ws Parent and affiliates owe each other a determinable
amount, the Company ntends to setoff the amount owed, and the Company has the nght to offset which
is enforceable by law under a Putnam Master Netting Agreement.

Revenue Becognition

Investment management fiees, net are recognized as services are performed. Investment management fees
are earned daly and paid monthly or quarterly, depending on the terms of the contractual agreements with
the Funds. Investment management fees are primarily based on contractual percentages of the average
assets under management Investment management fees are shown net of fees waved pursuant o
specified contractual expense limitations of the Funds totaling 524,797 869 and 516,607 600 for the vears
ended December 31, 2008 and 2017, respectively.

Performance fees result from the achievement of specified performance thresholds pursuamt w the
contractual agreement over a rolling thiry-six month period, and are recorded when such levels are
attained and when such fees are not subject o fosfeiture, These performance fees are svinetne, and
therefore can be either positive or negative based on the Fund’s performance relative to the applicable
benchmark index,

Service Fee Expense - Transfer pricing program

Effective January [, 20018, management determined it was appropniate o introduce a new inlercompany
service agreement through the adoption of a transfer pricing program to compensate Putnam Retail
Management, LP ("PEM"), an affiliate of the Company, for distribunion services it provides 1o the
Company. Pursuant to a transfer pricing agresment between the Company and PEM, the Company agrees
1o compensate PRM in recognition of the marketing and brokerage services it provides 1o the Funds at
arms-length pricing in accordance with the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the Treasury
Regulations promulgated thergunder, The terms of the transfer pncing agreement call for the Company to
pay inlercompany service fee expenses to PRM, such that PRM's total revenue equals approximately
105% of its operating expense, excluding distnbution costs (Note 4)

Foreign Currency Translation

Exchange rate differences ansimg from the transloton of mtercompany recervables and payables with
affiliates are recorded in Aceumulated other comprehensive income on the Balance Sheets, and are shown
net of (axes, These differences are also recorded in C(hher Comprehensive (Loss)income on the
Statements of {Loss)Income and Comprehensive {Loss) Income using current exchange rates as of the
end of each accounting period.
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PLITNAM [INVESTMENT MANACEMENT, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Subsequent 1o the issuance of the 2007 financial statements, management elected 10 prospechvely
disclose ihe efMect of changes in exchange mies a5 a separate hine ilem on the Cash Flow Statemenis. The
impact for the vear ended Decembeer 31, 2017 of (51,334,671} is included within Prepaid expenses and
other current assets on the Cash Flow Statements

Income Taxes

The Company 15 a single member limited lability company and 15 trested as a disregarded entity pursuant
io Treasury Regulation Section 300,7701-3 for federal income tax purposes. Generally, disregarded
enhinies are not subject to entitv-level federal or state income taxation and, as such, the Company s not
required 1o provide for income taxes. The Company's taxable income primarily becomes taxable to the
respective member,

Change in Accounting Policy
Rev fir "ol Wi

On January 1, 2008 the Company early adopted Accounting Standords Update (“ASU™) 200400 Revenne

rens Contracts witk Customers, and all the related amendments using the modified retrospective method,
which results in a one-time adjustment to opening Accumulated defieit as of January 1, 2018, if
applicable, as o the standard had alwavs been in effect and withoul restatement of comparative
information. The new puidimge outhines a single comprehensive model for entities 1o use I accounting
for revenue arising from contracts with customers and supersedes most curmenl revenue recognition
gurdance, ncluding industry-specific guidance. It also revises the criteria for determining if an entity is
acting as a principal or agent in certwin armangements. The adoption of this standard did nor have an effect
on the timmng of fevenue recognition of presemtation within the financial statements and related
disclosures, and did not result in o cumulative effect adjustment to opemng Accumulated deficit

(3} PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET
Property and equipment, net 1s recorded at cost and consists of the following as of December 31:

2018 2017
COsT
At January | £ 613,192 5 6L 192
Wirne-olTs (2KG,T745) a
Al Deceniles 31 A6 A4% 613,092
ACCTUAMUTATED DEPRPCIATION
Al January | SOR13 192y SH13. 092
Wric-olfs 26,743 -
At Deceanber 31 [EETELT [TTENLTET
METHOGOK VALUE
Al Decembes 31 % x 5

There was no depreciation and amortization expense for property and equipment, net for the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017
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PUTNAM INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(4) TRANSACTIONS WITH PARENT AND AFFILIATES

The Company has sigmificant imerdependencies with its Parent and its affiliates, which are desenbied
below. The Company is responsible for and kas established processes to identify all related parties and to
diseloze all significant ransactions involving related parties,

Accounts Payable to Parent and affiliates, net

The Company instructs third parties to remit cash directly to the Parent or affiliates and instructs the
Parent (o disburse cash om its belalll The receivables or pavables on the Balunce Sheets represent
amaants for which the Parent has yet to pay or receive on the Company’s behalf  The Parent also
allocates certain expenses to the Company. Accounts payable to Parent and afTiliates. net represents the
et af imtercompany transactions between the Company, the Parent and affiliates due 1o (1) the above
mientioned receipt and payment of cash by the Parent on it behalf and (1) the recordimg of allocated
expenses and service fee expenses.  These balances are recorded as comesponding increases or decreases
in the Member's equity section of the Balance Sheets as the Company neither pays or receives, nor
anticipates paying or receiving cash related 1o these balances, The gross changes in receivable and
payable for the year related 1o these transactions are disclosed separately on the Cash Flow Siatements ns
financing wctivities, As of December 31, 2008 and 2017, the Company had a net intercompany payvable
balance of 6 999 622 and $3,193, 153 respectively, which is included in Accounts payable to Parent and
affiliates, net in the Balance Sheeats

Intercompany balances due to/from Parent and affilintes as of December 31, 2008 and 2001 7 are comprised
of the following:

December 31,  December 31,

2018 T
Mon-interest bearing, wnscewred receivabled payvable)
Dhue from Putnam U8, Holdings I, LLC ("PUSH ™) £ 243315100 8 22634 33
Due fromi{io) The Putnam Advisory Company, LLC 5361495 (8,932 422)
[ from Puinam Fiductary Trust Company, LLC B67 S04 SREO74
Dree (1o} from PRM {35,749 237) 262,707
Due to Putnam Investor Services, Ine. {261.211) {212,082)
D o Putnam Investments Limied (1,641,042} (18,073 080)
Daee fronm Putnam Investments { Ireland ) Limied 146,261 208 541
D froam Putnam Investmentz Canada ULC 4084 39 971
D from Putnam Investments Australin Pry Lomited 1,851 QE0
D 1o The Putniom Advisory Company, LLC - Singapore Branch (251.517) (245.274)
Drue from Puinam Investments Secunities Company Lid. 2,700 62,247
Due (1o} from PanAgora Assel Management (17,671 119,754
Total secounts paviable to Parent and afliliates, ne S (6,999,622 % (3.193.153)

Retirement Plan

The Company, the Parent and affilutes of the Parent sponsor & tax-qualified 401 (k) defined contmbution
retirement plan (1he “Plan™) covering substantally all emplovees, Under this Plas, emplovees may defer a
percentage of ehwble compensaton o the Plan, subject 1o certam limmations, a portion of which 15
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PUTNAM [MVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, LLC
TES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

matched by the Company., The Company also provides for an annual dsscretonary contiibution as
determined by the Parent's Board of Directors. For ihe years ended December 31, 2018 and 2007, the
Companys share of the annual expense to the Plan totaled 53,289 651 and 53,365 385, respectrvely. This
amount is included in Compensation and benefits in the Swatements of (Loss)Tneome and Comprehensive
(Loss)Income

Revenue from AMliated Funds

In comnection with providing invesiment advisory services o the Funds, the Company earned revenue of’
3357139085 and $352 686,405 for the years ended December 31, 20105 and 200 7, respectively, which s
included i Total revenue in the Statements of {Loss) Income and Comprehensive {Losspincome. As of
December 31, 2008 and 2017, the associated receivable was 326,898,231 and $31,552,134, respectively,
and is included in Investment management fees receivable in the Balance Sheets.

Subadvisory Revenue and Expenses with Affiliates

The Company provides investment advisory services to cenain affiliates of Lifeco, The total revenue
eamed (rom these affiliates was 53,139.982 and 53,321 581, respeciively, for the years ended December
i1, 2008 and 2017, which 15 included in Investment management fees, net on the Statements of
{LosspIncome and Comprehensive { Lossilncome.

The Company also incurs expenses for a vanety of investment services that are provided 1o the Company
by certain affilintes. The total expenses mcurred by the Company wos 310,993 678 and $11,147 416,
respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, which i included in Other operating
expenses on the Statements of {Lossiineome and Comprehensive (Lossineome.

Capitalized Software

The Parent capitalizes ceriain costs relpted to software developed for internal use as long-lived assets,
which are amorized on o stroight=line basis over the lesser of three vears or estimaled useful life. The
amortization expense is allocated to cach subsidiary of the Parent, by PUSH I, based on the subsidiary's
usage of each capitalized software project.

Amortizaton expense allocated to the Company dunng the vears ended December 31, 2008 and 2017
was S10.200,995 and 59,002 525, respectively, and 15 included in Allocated expenses from Parent and
affilintes, net in the Statements of {Loss) Income and Comprehensive (Loss) Income.

Allagated Expenses fram Pacent and AfGiliates, net

The Company shares office facilities, personnel and other armangements further described in this note with
other subsidiaries of the Parent, Accordingly, the related costs of such arrangemenis have been allocated
by the Parent and by affilistes amang the vanous subsicharies i o manner which management beleves s
representative of the aciunl costs meurred. Additionally, in the course of the Company's day-to-day
business operanons, certam personnel from ather subsidiaries of the Parent are utihzed o support the
Company, the related costs of which have been allocated 1o the Comipany in a manner which manggement
beligves 15 representative of actual costs ingurred. During the vears ended December 31, 2008 and 2017,
the Company was allocated $89 376,610 and $87. 164151, respectively, of costs. These charges are
included in Allocated cxpenses from Parent and affiliates, net in the Statements of {Lossyincome and
Comprehensive [Loss) Income.

The Company also allocates cerdain of 115 own costs among vanous affiliates i a manner which

management belicves s representative of the actual costs incurred. Duning the vears ended December 31,
2018 and 2017, the Company allocated 524 988 734 and 526,152 680, respectively, of cosis 1o various
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affiliares, which are netted agamst the allocated expenses from the Parem, as desenbed above, amnd
included in Allocated expenses from Parent and affiliates, net in the Statements of (LosshIncome and
Comprehensive (Loss) Income.

Equity Incentive Compensation

The Parent sponsors the Putnam Investments, LLC Equity Incentive Plan (the “EIP”). Certain emplovees
af the Company arc cligible to participate in the EIP, under which they are eligible to receive restricted
shares of the Parent’s (lass B common shares and Class B siock options.

The Parent recognizes expense for awards granted under the EIP over the stated vesning penod and based
on the grant date fair value of the award, A portion of these expenses are allocated to the Company ina
manner consistent with the grant of such share-based payments.

The Company has emplovees who were granted restricted Class B comimon shares of the Parent pursuant
tes the EIF. The Company was also allocated a portion of the compensation charged to the Parent, The
fair market value of the Class B common shares was determined using both the market and income
valuntion approsches as outhned i the EIP, which meludes considerntion of the range of values
determined by a nationally recognized independent valuation firm chosen by the EIP Commutiec.
Caompensation expense for these awards is being amortized over the vesting penod of up 1o five years.
Compensation expense charged directly and allocated to the Company durng the vear ended December
3, 2018 was S5840 130 and 52 078 585, respectively. Compensation expense charged directly and
allocated to the Company during the year ended December 31, 20017 was 57,662, 138 and 33,141,213,
respectively. As of December 11, 2018, there was 524,134 946 of unrecogmred compensation expense
related to the Company’s portion of restricted Class B common shares. The weighted average penod over
which that expense is expected to be recognized 15 4.03 years.

Expenses charged dircctly 1o the Company related 1o the EIF are included in Compensation and benefits
i the Staterments of (Lossyincome and Comprehensive (LosshIncome, while the offsel 15 presented in
Aecounis payable to Parent and affiliates. net, on the Balance Sheets, as there 15 intent to settle per the
intercompany settlement process. Addinonally, allocated expenses related to this plan are included in
Allocated expenses from Parent and affiliates, net in the Sutements of (Loss) Income and Comprehensive
{LosshIncome.
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Restricted Closs B Common Shares

The activity related to Class [3 common shares for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 15.as

follows:

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Weighitled Average

Grant Date Fair

Shares Valuc
Unvested balance at January 1 1,823 400 51790
Granted S0, (00 17.25
Vested {447 600) |8.98
Forfened {125, 700) 1733
Unvested balance at December 3 1,754,100 51748

Far the Year Ended December 31, 2007

Waeghted Average

Girant Date Fair

Shares Value
Unvested balance at Jonuary 1 1,894 900 51894
Granted 495,000 15.16
Transfers {11,600 14504
Wested (5171003 1902
Forfened (37 8000 1868
Unvested balance at December 31 1823400 517.90

Intercompany Settlement

During e year ended December 31, 20018, the Company received 510930435 as a non-cash
contribution-in-kind from the Parent as o result of a proup-wide exercise carned out by the Parent to
reassign and settle histoncal intercompany balances between Putnam affiliates, Dunng the year ended
December 31, 2017, the Company contributed to the Parent S413 643 730 as a non-cash dividend-in-kind
resuling from this group-wide exercise. The Company’s Accounts payvable to Parent and affiliates, net
and Addibonal paid-im capital balances were impacted as a result of these transactions.

Service Fee Expense - Transler pricing program

As desenbed in the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, the Company incurmed additional
expense of $139,103,702 for the vear ended December 31, 2018 based on the transfer pricing agreement
with PRM, such that PRM is compensated for the disiribution services it provides, receiving total revenue
equal o approximately 105% of s operating expenses, excluding distnbation costs. This expensze 15
included in Service fee expense i the Statements of { Loss)Income and Comprehensive (Loss ) Income.
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(5) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Claims, Lawsoits and Other Contingencies

From time 1o time, the Company s subpect 1o begal actions, mcluding class actions, ansing i the normal
course of business, 1 is not expecied thai any of these legal actions wall have a material adverse effect on
the financial position of the Company.  In addition, the Company receives mgquines, ncludimg requests
for documents and information, in the course of its business from vanows siate and federal regulators
ingguaring abowt certmn of the Company’s policies and procedures, Each of these matters iz handled in the
ofdinury course of business. The Company fully responds 1o these requests and Tully cooperates with all
regulatory inquiries, and there are no such matters pending that the Company believes could have a
material adverse effect on its results of operations, cash flows or financial position,

Other Putnam Matters

In early 2016, Putnam began reviewing overnight fixed income morgage transactions m the context of
Putinainn’s interfund trading comphance policies, Putnam determuned that enhancements (o 18 ¢ontrols and
policies were necessary, and that it wonld also remmburse certamn clients, the impact of which has been
recorded in Other operating expenses i the Statements of (Lossylncome and Comprehensive
{Loss)Income. The Massachusetts Secunties Division conducted an inguiry of these ransactions and the
LIS, Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) conducied an invesiigation of ilese transactions. On
September 27, 2008, Putmam entered mto a settlement with the SEC that required Puatmam to pay a
%1,000,0:00 fine, which was recorded 1o Other operating expenses on the Statements of (Loss) Income and
Comprehensive (Loss)Income, Addittonally, Putnam reimbursed 51,095 006 1o the clients impacted by
this maiter, which was accrued for duning the vears ended December 31, 2007 and 2016,

(6) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company evaluated subsequent evenls and trnsagtons ocournng sfier December 31, 2013 through
March 13, 2019, the date these fimancial statements were available to be issued.

The Company is not aware of any subsequent events which would requine recognition or disclosure in the
finaneil statements.
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A
(1994 12 2019 )
( ) ( )

1994 12 0.039 1994 12 15 6.46
1995 0.041 1995 16 6.48
0.039 1995 15 6.55

0.039 1995 15 6.65

0.039 1995 17 6.70

0.040 1995 15 6.84

0.039 1995 15 6.96

0.039 1995 17 6.95

0.039 1995 15 6.82

0.039 1995 15 6.98

10 0.039 1995 10 16 7.04

11 0.039 1995 11 15 7.03

12 0.038 1995 12 15 7.12

1996 0.038 1996 15 7.14
0.038 1996 16 7.13

0.038 1996 15 6.86

0.038 1996 15 6.84

0.038 1996 15 6.81

0.037 1996 17 6.72

0.036 1996 15 6.73

0.036 1996 15 6.84

0.036 1996 16 6.83

10 0.036 1996 10 15 6.91

11 0.036 1996 11 15 7.06

12 0.071 1996 12 16 6.95

1997 0.035 1997 15 6.93
0.036 1997 18 7.05

0.036 1997 17 6.89

0.036 1997 15 6.80

0.036 1997 15 6.88

0.036 1997 16 6.97

0.036 1997 15 7.02

0.035 1997 15 7.02

0.038 1997 15 7.03

10 0.036 1997 10 15 7.09

11 0.036 1997 11 17 7.07

12 0.060 1997 12 15 7.05

1998 0.036 1998 15 7.11
0.036 1998 17 7.11

0.036 1998 16 7.09

0.036 1998 15 7.08

0.036 1998 15 7.04

0.035 1998 15 7.11

0.035 1998 15 7.07

0.035 1998 17 7.00

0.036 1998 15 6.90

10 0.036 1998 10 15 6.84

11 0.036 1998 11 16 6.77

12 0.036 1998 12 18 6.89
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( ) ( )

1999 0.036 1999 15 6.86
0.034 1999 16 6.78

0.034 1999 15 6.74

0.034 1999 15 6.75

0.034 1999 17 6.62

0.034 1999 15 6.47

0.034 1999 15 6.54

0.034 1999 16 6.41

0.034 1999 15 6.40

10 0.034 1999 10 15 6.35
11 0.034 1999 11 15 6.43
12 0.034 1999 12 15 6.35
2000 0.034 2000 18 6.23
0.034 2000 15 6.27

0.034 2000 15 6.29

0.034 2000 17 6.27

0.034 2000 15 6.09

0.034 2000 15 6.19

0.034 2000 17 6.21

0.034 2000 15 6.28

0.034 2000 15 6.26

10 0.034 2000 10 16 6.26
11 0.034 2000 11 15 6.25
12 0.062 2000 12 15 6.31
2001 0.034 2001 16 6.32
0.034 2001 15 6.35

0.034 2001 15 6.44

0.029 2001 16 6.34

0.029 2001 15 6.36

0.029 2001 15 6.42

0.029 2001 16 6.43

0.029 2001 15 6.48

0.029 2001 17 6.53

10 0.029 2001 10 15 6.56
11 0.029 2001 11 15 6.51
12 0.029 2001 12 17 6.36
2002 0.029 2002 15 6.50
0.029 2002 15 6.47

0.029 2002 15 6.36

0.029 2002 15 6.43

0.029 2002 15 6.41

0.029 2002 17 6.49

0.029 2002 15 6.49

0.029 2002 15 6.51

0.024 2002 16 6.59

10 0.024 2002 10 15 6.50
11 0.024 2002 11 15 6.54
12 0.024 2002 12 13 6.56
2003 0.024 2003 15 6.58
0.020 2003 18 6.61

0.020 2003 17 6.63

0.020 2003 15 6.61

0.020 2003 15 6.74

0.018 2003 16 6.82
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2003 0.017 2003 17 6.66
0.018 2003 15 6.49

0.017 2003 17 6.63

10 0.018 2003 10 17 6.59
11 0.018 2003 11 17 6.67
12 0.017 2003 12 18 6.69
2004 0.018 2004 15 6.75
0.018 2004 17 6.76

0.014 2004 17 6.86

0.014 2004 16 6.68

0.014 2004 17 6.56

0.014 2004 17 6.57

0.014 2004 16 6.66

0.014 2004 17 6.72

0.014 2004 17 6.75

10 0.014 2004 10 15 6.78
11 0.013 2004 11 17 6.77
12 0.014 2004 12 16 6.77
2005 0.014 2005 14 6.77
0.014 2005 16 6.80

0.015 2005 17 6.72

0.015 2005 15 6.75

0.015 2005 17 6.78

0.018 2005 17 6.80

0.018 2005 15 6.78

0.017 2005 17 6.75

0.022 2005 16 6.75

10 0.022 2005 10 17 6.67
11 0.022 2005 11 16 6.65
12 0.022 2005 12 16 6.67
2006 0.022 2006 17 6.71
0.021 2006 16 6.64

0.022 2006 17 6.63

0.022 2006 17 6.54

0.023 2006 17 6.50

0.023 2006 16 6.49

0.023 2006 17 6.49

0.023 2006 17 6.57

0.025 2006 15 6.60

10 0.025 2006 10 17 6.60
11 0.025 2006 11 16 6.65
12 0.025 2006 12 15 6.67
2007 0.024 2007 17 6.64
0.026 2007 15 6.66

0.026 2007 16 6.70

0.026 2007 17 6.67

0.026 2007 17 6.64

0.025 2007 19 6.56

0.025 2007 24 6.58

0.026 2007 21 6.63

0.026 2007 19 6.65

10 0.026 2007 10 19 6.70
11 0.026 2007 11 19 6.67
12 0.072 2007 12 19 6.61
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2008 0.028 2008 18 6.69
0.028 2008 19 6.56

0.028 2008 18 6.50

0.038 2008 21 6.41

0.038 2008 20 6.49

0.038 2008 19 6.34

0.038 2008 21 6.24

0.038 2008 19 6.16

0.038 2008 19 6.05

10 0.038 2008 10 21 5.58
11 0.038 2008 11 19 4.94
12 0.038 2008 12 19 4.66
2009 0.038 2009 20 5.08
0.038 2009 19 5.11

0.038 2009 19 5.10

0.038 2009 21 5.17

0.038 2009 19 5.52

0.038 2009 19 5.64

0.038 2009 21 5.94

0.038 2009 19 6.10

0.038 2009 21 6.25

10 0.038 2009 10 20 6.46
11 0.038 2009 11 19 6.53
12 0.038 2009 12 21 6.50
2010 0.038 2010 19 6.59
0.037 2010 19 6.64

0.042 2010 18 6.67

0.042 2010 19 6.72

0.042 2010 18 6.66

0.042 2010 18 6.65

0.042 2010 20 6.73

0.037 2010 19 6.82

0.037 2010 21 6.75

10 0.037 2010 10 19 6.74
11 0.033 2010 11 19 6.66
12 0.033 2010 12 20 6.57
2011 0.033 2011 19 6.64
0.033 2011 18 6.63

0.028 2011 21 6.70

0.028 2011 18 6.71

0.027 2011 19 6.78

0.027 2011 21 6.77

0.028 2011 19 6.74

0.028 2011 19 6.79

0.018 2011 20 6.76

10 0.019 2011 10 19 6.63
11 0.019 2011 11 18 6.63
12 0.019 2011 12 20 6.62
2012 0.019 2012 19 6.65
0.019 2012 21 6.69

0.019 2012 20 6.66

0.015 2012 19 6.75

0.015 2012 21 6.79

0.015 2012 19 6.84

0.015 2012 19 6.94

0.014 2012 21 6.94
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2012 0.015 2012 19 7.03
10 0.015 2012 10 19 7.08

11 0.015 2012 11 19 7.10

12 0.016 2012 12 19 7.09

2013 0.017 2013 18 7.13
0.017 2013 19 7.13

0.017 2013 19 7.20

0.019 2013 19 7.22

0.019 2013 21 7.14

0.020 2013 19 7.00

0.020 2013 19 6.95

0.020 2013 20 6.88

0.020 2013 19 6.92

10 0.020 2013 10 21 7.03

11 0.019 2013 11 19 7.04

12 0.054 2013 12 19 6.98

2014 0.025 2014 21 7.04
0.024 2014 19 7.08

0.025 2014 19 7.10

0.025 2014 21 7.13

0.024 2014 20 7.18

0.025 2014 19 7.17

0.025 2014 21 7.14

0.025 2014 19 7.12

0.025 2014 19 7.10

10 0.024 2014 10 21 7.09

11 0.022 2014 11 19 7.06

12 0.022 2014 12 19 7.04

2015 0.022 2015 20 7.04
0.018 2015 19 7.03

0.019 2015 19 7.06

0.018 2015 21 7.07

0.019 2015 19 7.02

0.014 2015 19 6.98

0.014 2015 21 6.94

0.014 2015 19 6.92

0.014 2015 21 6.81

10 0.014 2015 10 20 6.76

11 0.014 2015 11 19 6.74

12 0.014 2015 12 21 6.72

2016 0.014 2016 19 6.63
0.014 2016 19 6.55

0.016 2016 21 6.58

0.016 2016 19 6.64

0.016 2016 19 6.65

0.016 2016 21 6.67

0.019 2016 19 6.77

0.019 2016 19 6.77

0.019 2016 20 6.74

10 0.019 2016 10 19 6.73

11 0.019 2016 11 18 6.57

12 0.019 2016 12 20 6.55

2017 0.019 2017 19 6.64
0.019 2017 21 6.68

0.019 2017 21 6.66

0.019 2017 19 6.73

0.019 2017 19 6.71

0.019 2017 20 6.76
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0.019 2017 19 6.73

0.019 2017 21 6.72

0.019 2017 19 6.71

10 0.019 2017 10 19 6.74
11 0.019 2017 11 20 6.72
12 0.019 2017 12 19 6.72
2018 0.019 2018 19 6.70
0.019 2018 20 6.64

0.019 2018 20 6.63

0.019 2018 19 6.64

0.019 2018 21 6.60

0.019 2018 19 6.65

0.019 2018 19 6.67

0.019 2018 21 6.65

0.019 2018 19 6.56

10 0.019 2018 10 19 6.49
11 0.019 2018 11 19 6.48
12 0.019 2018 12 19 6.53
2019 0.019 2019 18 6.54
0.019 2019 19 6.60
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2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
2013
2012
2011
2010
2009
2008
2007
2006
2005
2004
2003
2002
2001
2000
1999
1998
1997
1996
1995
1994

12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12

31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
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.53
.76
.62
.70
.04
.99
.12
.64
.63
.55
.91
.63
.67
.69
.78
.68
.63
.44
.33
.32
.88
.07
.98
.20
.47
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Trustees and Shareholders
Putnam Income Fund:

We have audited the accompanying statement of assets and liabilities of Putnam Income Fund (the fund), including
the fund's portfolio, as of October 31, 2017, and the related statement of operations for the year then ended, the
statements of changes in net assets for each of the years in the two-year period then ended, and the financial
highlights for each of the yearsin the five-year period then ended. These financia statements and financial
highlights are the responsibility of the fund's management. Our responsibility isto express an opinion on these
financial statements and financial highlights based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements and financial highlights are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our procedures included
confirmation of securities owned as of October 31, 2017, by correspondence with the custodian and brokers or by
other appropriate auditing procedures. An audit also includes ng the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide areasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements and financial highlights referred to above present fairly, in al material
respects, the financia position of Putnam Income Fund as of October 31, 2017, the results of its operations for the
year then ended, the changes in its net assets for each of the years in the two-year period then ended, and the
financial highlights for each of the yearsin the five-year period then ended, in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

KPMG LLP
Boston, Massachusetts
December 12, 2017
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Trustees and Shareholders
Putnam Income Fund:

Opinion on the Financial Satements

We have audited the accompanying statement of assets and liabilities of Putnam Income Fund (the “fund”),
including the fund's portfolio, as of October 31, 2018, and the related statement of operations for the year then
ended, the statements of changesin net assets for each of the years in the two-year period then ended, and the related
notes (collectively, the “financial statements’) and the financial highlights for each of the years in the five-year
period then ended. In our opinion, the financia statements and financial highlights present fairly, in al material
respects, the financial position of the fund as of October 31, 2018, and the results of its operations for the year then
ended, the changes in its net assets for each of the years in the two-year period then ended, and the financial
highlights for each of the yearsin the five-year period then ended, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

Basisfor Opinion

These financial statements and financial highlights are the responsibility of the fund's management. Our
responsibility isto express an opinion on these financial statements and financial highlights based on our audits. We
are apublic accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(“PCAOB”) and are required to be independent with respect to the fund in accordance with the U.S. federal
securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the
PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements and financial highlights are
free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and financial highlights, whether due to error or fraud, and
performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on atest basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements and financia highlights. Such procedures included
confirmation of securities owned as of October 31, 2018, by correspondence with the custodians and brokers or by
other appropriate auditing procedures. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financia statements
and financial highlights. We believe that our audits provide areasonable basis for our opinion.

KPMG LLP

We have served as the auditor of one or more Putnam investment companies since 1999.

Boston, Massachusetts
December 11, 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS®™ REPORT

To the Board of Directors of Putnam Investments, LLC and Member of
Putnam Investment Management, LLC:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Putnam Investment Management, LLC (the

“ Company” ), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the related
statements of (loss)/income and comprehensive (loss)/income, changes in member®s equity, and cash flows
for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management®s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors® Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor®s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Company*s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Company”s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Putnam Investment Management, LLC as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Notes 1, 2, and 4, the Company has significant transactions with its parent and its
affiliates. These financial statements may not necessarily be indicative of the financial position or
the results of operations had the Company been operated as an unaffiliated company. Our opinion is not
modified with respect to this matter.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
March 13, 2019
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